Annual report of the Sanitary Commissioner with the Government of India.

Contributors

India. Sanitary Commissioner.

Publication/Creation

Calcutta: Superintendent of Government Printing, [1915]

Persistent URL

https://wellcomecollection.org/works/f5vkwh3x

License and attribution

This work has been identified as being free of known restrictions under copyright law, including all related and neighbouring rights and is being made available under the Creative Commons, Public Domain Mark.

You can copy, modify, distribute and perform the work, even for commercial purposes, without asking permission.







ANNUAL REPORT

OF THE

SANITARY COMMISSIONER WITH THE GOVERNMENT OF INDIA

FOR

1915

WITH

APPENDICES AND RETURNS OF SICKNESS AND MORTALITY AMONG EUROPEAN TROOPS, INDIAN TROOPS, AND PRISONERS IN INDIA FOR THE YEAR.





CALCUTTA
SUPERINTENDENT GOVERNMENT PRINTING, INDIA
1917.

Seice, Two Rupees Cight Annas oz 30. 93.

13.

AMNUAL REPORT

1910000

THE THE PARTICULAR STATE OF THE PARTIES.

*

ATT VOTAD ADMINISTRA

TABLE OF CONTENTS.

SECTION I.

EUROPEAN ARMY OF INDIA.

PAR		TEAN TIKE	T OF INDIA		1	PAGE.
T.	Introductory .					1
2.	Deaths from all causes	in India	***			2
3.	Northern and Southern	Armies				2
4	Diseases				***	2
5.	Cholera					2
6.	Small-pox					3
7.	Measles			***	***	3
8.	Malaria					3
9.	Enteric fever					6
130	Paratyphoid fevers					6
	Anti-enteric inoculatio	n				8
10.	Pyrexia of uncertain or	rigin				27
11.	Scarlet fever					28
12.	Sandfly fever	***		***	***	28
13.	Plague					29
14.	Diphtheria					29
15.	Dengue					29
16.	Rabies			***	***	29
17.	Beri-beri			,		29
18.	Dysentery					30
19.	Liver abscess					30
20.	Pneumonia	***				30
21.	Tubercle of the lungs					30
22.	Heat-stroke and Sun-s	troke				30
23.	Poisoning					30
24.	Venereal diseases				***	30
25.	Invaliding					33
26.	Officers				,	35
27.	Women	i				35
28.	Children					36 .
		SECTION	N II.			
		INDIAN A	RMY.			
29.	Introductory		/	and the	***	39
30.	Admissions				lola	39
31.	Deaths				***	39
32.	Northern and Souther					41
33.	Stations and Regiment			es de la constante	*** 4	41
23.	Clations and recommen				77.	

ARA.						PAG
34.	Cholera					42
35-	Small-pox					42
36.	Enteric fever					42
37-	Malaria					44
38.	Pyrexia of uncertain or	rigin				45
39-	Sandfly fever					46
40.	Dengue					47
41.	Malta fever					47
42.	Kala-azar					47
43.	Relapsing fever					47
44.	Beri-beri	***				47
45.	Plague					47
46.	Scurvy					47
47-	Tubercle of the lungs			***		48
48.	Pneumonia					49
49.	Dysentery					49
50.	Colitis					49
51.	Venereal diseases					49
52.	Suicides					50
53.	Guinea-worm disease					50
54-	Ankylostomiasis		***		***	50
55-	British Officers				***	51
			- 3			
		SECTION	III.			
1	Ces	NERAL POP	W ATION			
	GE	NEKAL FOR	ULATION.			
56.	Agricultural conditions					53
57-	Births and deaths	***				53
58.	Chief diseases		***			54
	Cholera	***	***		•••	55
	Small-pox					55
	Plague		***			55
	Fevers	***				55
	Dysentery and dia					56
	Respiratory diseas	ses				56
59-	Delhi	***	***			56
60.	Bengal	***	***			56
61.	City of Calcutta					58
62.	Port of Calcutta	***				58
63.	Assam	***	and it			58
64.	Bihar and Orissa			997		59
65.	United Provinces					60
66.	Punjab		***			62
67.	North-West Frontier F	Province		***		63
68.	Central Provinces	***		***	***	64

PAR	Α.					I	PAGE.
		W. Jane		in the same of the		200	65
	3.	City of Madons	7000				66
	70.	Dest of Mades		in 12 s			66
	71.				- Crui en se		67
	72.			in the state of th			67
	73					·	68
	74-	Deat of Beach				•••	69
100	75.					•••	69
	76.					•••	70
	77-	City of Rangoon				•••	70
- 10	78.	Port of Rangoon Ajmer-Merwara			•••	***	70
	79.	Deaths of civil officers		nare	•••		70
-	80.	L'eaths of civil omcers	and pensio	ners	***************************************		10
			SECTION	IV.			
		· marian	0000	White spilling			
			JAILS OF IN	IDIA.			
	81.	The prison population	n in 1915				73
	82.	Total sickness and me					73
	83.	Malaria					74
	84.	Dysentery					74
	85.	Tubercle of the lungs			March		75
	86.	Pneumonia					75
	87.	Cholera					75
	88.	Enteric fever					75
	89.	Bengal					75
	90.	Assam					76
	91.	Bihar and Orissa					77
	92.	United Provinces					78
	93.	Punjab					78
	94-	North-West Frontier	Province				79
	95.	Central Provinces					80
	96.	Bombay					81
	97.	Madras					81
	98.	Burma					82
	99.	Andamans					83
		4					
1			SECTION	V.			
			W. com				
			VACCINA	IION.		de la	
	100.	Vacinnation in India					85
	101.	Vaccine Lymph					86
	102.						86
		Vessination among				- Francis	0

105

105

133. India

134. Delhi ...

SECTION VI.

MEDICAL INSTITUTIONS.

iCivil	Hospitals and	Dispensaries	(State-Public,	Local
		nd Private-aid		

		2.00,000					
104.	India						89
105.	Delhi						90
106.	Bengal (exc	luding Cal	cutta)				90
107.	Calcutta			'	***	***	90
108.	Assam				***		90
109.	Bihar and C	Orissa					90
110.	Central Pro	vinces					91
111.	United Prov	vinces				***	91
112.	Punjab						91
113.	North-Wes	t Frontier	Province				92
114.	Baluchistan						92
115.	Вигта						92
116.	Bombay					***	92
117.	Madras					***	93
118.	ii.—Civil	Hospitals	and Disp	ensaries (State-Speci	al	93
			and priva	te non-aide	d).		
119.	iiiLunai						95
		iv.	-Medical	Colleges.			
120.	Bombay					***	96
121.	Madras				***	***	97
122.	Punjab						98
123.	Bengal						99
124.	United Pro	vinces	***		***	***	99
			16.21.1	C.1. 1			
		v	-Medical	Schools.			
125.	Bengal						100
126.	Madras						101
127.	Bembay						IOI
128.	United Pro	vinces ,					101
129.	Punjab					***	102
130.	Burma						102
131.	Bihar and	Orissa					102
132.	Assam				***		103
132-	A. The X-Ra	y Institute	of India, D	ehra Dun	'		103
			SECTION	N VII.			
			SANITADY	Works			

PARA.						PAGE.
135-	Bengal	***		***		105
136.	Sanitary Board					106
137.	Assam					106
138.	Sanitary Board	***				107
139.	Bihar and Orissa	***				107
140.	United Provinces					107
141	Sanitary Board	***				108
142.	Punjab					108
143.	Sanitary Board					108
144.	North-West Frontier	Province		***		108
145.	Central Provinces					108
146.	Sanitary Board					109
147.	Madras					109
148.	Sanitary Board					109
149.	Coorg					109
150.	Bombay		***			109
151.	Sanitary Board			***		110
152.	Burma		***	***		110
153.	Sanitary Board					110
154.	Military Works					110
		SECTION				
		SECTION	V111.			,
	G	ENERAL RI	EMARKS.			
155.	Laboratories			***	***	111
	Central Research	h Institute,	Kasauli			111
	King Institute of	Preventive	e Medicine,	Madras		111
	Bombay Bacterie	ological Lal	poratory		***	112
	Pasteur Institute	, Kasauli	***			113
	Pasteur Institute	of Souther	rn India, Co	onoor		113
	Pasteur Institute	of Burma,	Rangoon			113
156.	Indian Research Fun	d Associati	on			113
157	ilgrim Committee		***			115
		APPENDI	CES			
		ALLENDI	C.D.C.			,
Section			***	***		ii—iv
Section				***		v—ix
Section			***		***	x-xxii
Section			*** -			xxiii—xxvi
Section	V		***			xxviii

ANNUAL SANITARY REPORT FOR 1915.

SECTION I.

EUROPEAN ARMY OF INDIA.

(From the Director, Medical Services in India.)

1. The average strength of European troops during 1915 was 44,891 (15,999 Regulars plus 28,892 Territorials), warrant officers, non-commissioned officers and men as against 60,581 in 1914. As regards the health of the European troops it will be seen from the statement in the margin that the rates of admissions,

	E STU		1910-14.	1914.	1915.
Admissions		 	567*2	614'1	823'1
Constantly sick		 	30'13	31'75	39°08
Deaths		 	4'51	1.35	5'95
Invalids		 	7'03	6'01	19'80
Average period of calculated on a		soldier,	10,00	11,20	14'26
Average duration		ckness.	19'39	18'87	17'33

constantly sick, deaths, and invaliding, were all higher than those of the previous year. Increased rates were reported only from the Northern Army and were chiefly due to the greater prevelance of influenza, enteric fever, sandfly fever, respiratory diseases, and diarrhœa. Malaria, pyrexia of un-

certain origin, and dysentery were less prevalent than in 1914.

There were 36,952 (11,207 Regulars plus 25,745 Territorials) admissions from all causes during the year, as compared with 37,205 in 1914, a decrease of 253.

The following table gives the incidence of sickness among the European troops (Regulars and Territorials) in the principal stations in India during 1915:—

Stations having an average strength of over 1,000.

	Stations.					ome.	antly	RATIO PER 1,000 OF STRENGTH,				
		Stations.	-	•	Average strength.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Invalids sent home.	Average constantly sick.	Admissions.	Deaths,	Invalids sent home.
Lucknow				1,320	851	11	36	44'28	644'7	8:33	27.27	33'54
Meerut		***		1,190	978	9	12	50.37	821'8	7'56	10'08	42'24
Rawalpindi		-	***	2,271	1,584	11	19	90-62	697'5	4'84	8-37	39'90
Nowshera	***			1,145	1,203	6	15	50'36	1,050'7	5'24	13'10	43'98
Peshawar			***	1,803	2,106	26	18	91'26	1,1681	14'42	9.08	50"62
Mhow	***			1,328	982	8	24	51'95	739'5	6'02	18'07	139'12
Jubbulpore		***	-	1,056	1,229	5	96	47'93	1,163"8	4'73	90'91	45*39
Secunderabad		***		2,132	1,757	9	87	75'80	824'1	4'22	40'81	35'51
Poona	***			11299	1,089	5	18	63'23	8383	3'85	13'86	48'681
Quetta		***	***	2,868	2,790	8	30	120'79	972*8	2'79	10'46	42'12
Jhansi		***		1,088	718	16	20	43'24	659'9	14'71	18:38	39'74

DEATHS FROM ALL CAUSES IN INDIA.

2. There were 267 deaths, as compared with 262 during the previous year, giving a ratio of mortality of 5'95 per 1,000 of strength against 4'32 in 1914.

The cheif causes of deaths were:—pneumonia 17, enteric fever 16, local injuries 28, heat-stroke 33, malaria 16, appendicitis 14, dysentery 13, abscess of the liver 9, suffocation from submersion, cholera, and valvular disease of heart, 8 each, tubercle of lungs, gastritis, and syncope 5 each, inflammation of brain 4, rheumatic fever 3. There were three fatal cases of 'poisoning'.

NORTHERN AND SOUTHERN ARMIES.

3. The relative health of the troops of the Northern and Southern Armies is shown in Table I. The rates of sickness and deaths were higher in the Northern Army than in the Southern; this was due to the greater prevalence of all the principal diseases, except influenza, small-pox, tubercle of the lungs, dysentery and venereal diseases which were more prevalent in the Southern Army.

DISEASES.

4. There were increased admission rates in all the Divisions during 1915.

The following table compares the admission and death rates in Divisions during 1915 and 1914, respectively:—

		ondiger			191	5.	191.	4
		Divisions.			Admission rate.	Death rate.	Admission rate.	Death rate
1st Division			•••	1.	1,016'3	9'74	1,040'2	5'58
and Division					725'8	3.88	712'5	3,31
3rd Division		-			848.4	5.86	699.6	4.89
4th Division	***				799'1	4'19	641.8	5.10
5th Division					797'9	8.83	557'2	2.85
6th Division					805.1	3'42	513.1	4'49
7th Division					783-2	4'75	556-6	4.55
Sth Division					840*4	8.69	636.3	5'63
9th Division					902'1	5'58	439'4	3'44
Burma Division					882*3	3'35	582'3	4'92
Aden Brigade					838-2	8.52	668-2	3.61
Marching					282'2	4'32	358.6	3'57
Average throug	hout	India			823'1	5'95	614'1	4'32

CHOLERA.

5. Cholera caused 16 admissions and 8 deaths as compared with 23 admissions and 11 deaths in 1914. The stations at which the cases occurred were:—Nowshera (7 admissions, 3 deaths), Chakrata (6 admissions, 3 deaths), Peshawar (2 admissions, 1 death) and Lahore (1 admission, 1 death). The Officer Commanding, Station Hospital, Nowshera, states that the source of this disease was probably

a chaprassi employed in the 1st Durham Light Infantry, Khartoum Barracks, who contracted cholera on the 27th of April 1915 and died the following day. He used to get his drinking water from the well used by the troops in the barracks. The Durham Light Infantry were consequently moved into central barracks. As soon as the first case occurred in the Durham Light Infantry lines, every precaution was taken.

The Medical Officer, Station Hospital, Chakrata, states that the six cases occurring there appear to have contracted the infection from an unauthorised camp follower. The outbreak was confined to one company of 1-7th Hants Regiment occupying two barrack rooms.

SMALL-POX.

6. Only 5 cases of small-pox occurred during the year as compared with 12 in 1914. The stations from which cases were reported were Kirkee 2, Nowshera 1, Madras 1, and Deolali 1.

The following table shows the small-pox incidence for the last five years :--

Years.				Admissions.	Deaths.	No. of primary and secondary vaccinations performed.		
				and others	Estimate .			
, 150			19161	dan dad 3a		anika anima		
1911		dgrame	ob aid	per real (Sta		6,726		
1912			411	17	3	8,524		
1913				14	1	8,981		
1914				12		8,107		
1915				5	Share stand	11,464		
			Stalling	1 2/6/0 06/4		THE SITE PERSONS		

MEASLES.

7. Measles was responsible for 16 admissions with no death as compared with 23 admissions with 1 death during 1914.

MALARIA.

8. Malaria, though exhibiting a decreased prevalence, continues to be the predominating cause of inefficiency among European troops in India. It accounted for 6,934 admissions with 16 deaths in 1915 as compared with 9,862 with 10 deaths in 1914. The ratio of admissions per 1,000 of strength was 154.5 in 1915 and 162.8 in 1914.

The following table gives the admission and death rates for malaria by Divisions for the two years:—

			to or planning	RATIO PER 1,0	000 OF STRENGTH.		
D	ivisions.	-	1915.	•	1914-†		
			Admissions.	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths.	
st Division		 	309'2	'53	416.0	1*47	
and Division		 	276.8		2729		
ard Divisional Area		 	122'3		2397	14	
µth Division		 	263*3		241.8	.31	
5th Division		 	68-2	*22	150.6		
6th Divisional Area	***	 	202'0	-91	134'4		
th Divisional Area		 	114'1	-65	99.9	*28	
8th Division	***	 	53'9	*59	75'5	-	
oth Division	***	 	37'4		56.7	15	
Burma Division		 	196.1	*56	67'9		
Aden Brigade		 	54'5	3'41	201,1		

^{*}Includes figures for Territorials. †Excludes figures for Territorials.

Among stations with a record of high malaria rates during the year were Sabathu, Port Blair, Sialkot, Khan Spur and Ghoradhaka, Kalabagh and Baragali, Cherat, Kasauli, Dum Dum, Peshawar, and Quetta.

Sabathu.—There were 156 admissions with no death at Sabathu; 57 cases were of malignant tertian and 99 of benign tertian. All were contracted in Mesopotamia and were diagnosed by microscopic examination. Of the total admissions 26 were relapses, 6 of which were malignant tertian and 20 benign tertian.

Port Blair.—There were 303 admissions with one death. A detachment of 2-4th Somerset Light Infantry arrived here on April 2, 1915 and was quartered at the barracks on Ross Island which is considered free from anopheles. The first case occurred on May 15, 1915. On August 29 the remainder of the 2-4th Somerset Light Infantry arrived. They were quartered at Aberdeen for ten days and then divided up between Ross and Aberdeen. Accommodation was provided in barracks vacated for them by convicts. The malarial incidence rose from 2.97 in August to 35.26 per mille in December.

Malaria is prevalent in the Settlement throughout the year and particularly at Aberdeen where there are several salt-water swamps, breeding places for malaria-carrying mosquitos. Blood examinations were commenced on the 8th of August as a routine measure in every case, resulting in the discovery of—

Benign tertian parasites in	 134 cases
Malignant tertian parasites in	 105 cases
Quartan tertian parasites in	 13 cases
Benign tertian and quartan mixed	 I case
Malignant tertian and quartan "	 1 case
Benign tertian and malignant ,,	 II cases

There have been 47 relapses or re-infections up to date, 17 amongst benign tertian cases, 26 amongst malignant cases, 4 amongst mixed benign tertian and malignant tertian cases.

Sialkot.—Of the 565 cases of malaria 559 were of benign tertian and 6 of malignant tertian type. A very large majority were re-admissions. The diagnosis was confirmed in every case by microscopic examination of the blood. Anopheles mosquitos were found in the station from May to the end of October.

The troops paraded at the Station Hospital by companies three times a week for a prophylactic issue of quinine from July 1 to October 31. Destruction of mosquito larvæ was also carried out under the supervision of a medical officer.

Only about a fourth of the men used mosquito nets as each man purchases his own. The free issue of mosquito nets which has now been sanctioned should reduce the incidence of these fevers.

Khan Spur and Ghoradhaka.—There were 79 admissions for malaria, most of which were of the benign tertian type. Almost all these cases were relapses of cases sent up from the plains.

Kalabagh and Baragali.—The detachment of the Duke of Wellington's Infantry was largely composed of malaria cases (58) sent to the hills to recuperate.

Cherat.—There were 113 admissions (including one sick transfer from Peshawar). The diagnosis in nearly every case was confirmed by microscopical examination and infected cases were admitted to hospital. No fresh infection was contracted at Cherat.

Kasauli.—There were 122 admissions under the heading of malaria during 1915. Diagnosis was confirmed by microscopic examination of the blood in the majority of the cases. All cases were probably infected in the plains. Prophylactic measures were unnecessary as there is little, if any, indigenous malaria in Kasauli.

Dum Dum.—There were 86 admissions for malaria during the year. The majority of these cases were diagnosed clinically, as, although in every case blood smears were taken for microscopical examination, parasites were seldom discovered due most probably to the regular issue of prophylactic quinine to the troops. A fair percentage of cases were contracted by men on guard at Cossipore. All patients admitted into hospital suffering from malaria were segregated.

Peshawar.—Malaria was responsible for 667 admissions with one death during 1915. This disease continues to be the main cause of inefficiency amongst British troops in the station, but it will be noted that there is a very considerable decrease in the number of cases. The prophylactic issue of quinine and the formation of an anti-malarial brigade were the chief measures adopted. Systematic examination of the blood in all cases has been carried out. Although preventive measures have doubtless helped to reduce the incidence, yet the main cause of the decreased prevalence is to be found in the abnormally hot and dry weather experienced during the latter part of the year under report. This has prevented the formation of pools of water and lessened the amount of irrigation. The ground has remained dry and hard and unfavourable for the breeding of mosquitos.

Quetta.—There were 1,011 admissions for malaria during 1915. The diagnosis was confirmed by microscopical examination. Anophelines are found in Quetta

from the beginning of May until the end of November. Quinine was administered prophylactically in doses of 10 grains on two consecutive days in each week in the presence of a medical officer. The results of this measure were distinctly disappointing.

ENTERIC FEVER.

9. There were 83 admissions with 16 deaths during 1915 against 97 admissions and 10 deaths in 1914. This gives an admission and death rate of 1.8 and 36, respectively, as contrasted with 1.6 and 17 in 1914.

The following table shows the distribution of enteric fever, paratyphoid fever "A" and paratyphoid fever "B," in the various Divisions, amongst Regulars and Territorials:—

	ENTERIO	FEVER.	Ракатурн	юю" А. "	PARATYPH	old " B. "
Divisions.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Admissions.	Ueaths.	Admissions.	Deaths
ıst Division	4	2	2		bearings	under i
2nd ,,	10 -	1	7			
3rd Divisional Area	12		9	1:0	4	
4th Division	2		5		1	
5th "	22	10	15		1	
6th Divisional Area	9	1	3			
7th " " "			5			
8th Division	17	2	27			
9th ,,	5		5			4
Burma " \	2					
Aden Brigade					1	
Marching						3.10
Total	83	16	78		6	

It will be seen that the Divisions which had 'the largest number of cases of enteric fever reported also most cases of paratyphoid "A." The 3rd (Lahore) Divisional Area reported 4 admissions for paratyphoid "B."

The undermentioned table gives the stations which had the highest number of admissions for enteric fever (including paratyphoid fevers "A" and "B") during 1915:—

	Stat	lons.		SH DI	Strength.	Admissions including Paratyphoid "A" and "B."
Lucknow	namer :	100	polate) o	hi b	1,320	21
Jhansi	3 b 70d	mirani.			1,088	20
Mhow					1,328	12
Dinapore			>		458	10
Lahore			o miste		985	9
Quetta			T no		2,868	8
Rawalpindi			M. Bridge		2,351	6

Lucknow.—There were 21 admissions with one death from the enteric group of fevers during 1915 (enteric, 8 admissions and one death and 13 admissions for paratyphoid "A"). The specific bacillus was isolated from all cases and the bacteriological diagnosis was confirmed by the Naini Tal Convalescent Depôt. In no case could the source of infection be traced to water, milk or any special article of tood.

There were 20 admissions for the enteric group of fevers, vis., enteric 12 with 5 deaths, paratyphoid "A" 8 with no death. All of these except 2 cases were inoculated. In no case could the source of infection be traced.

Mhow.—There were 12 admissions for the enteric group of fevers, viz., 7 paratyphoid "A" and 1 paratyphoid "B" with no death. Of the paratyphoid "A" cases the first was admitted in June; infection was probably contracted in Agra or Delhi, where he had recently been on leave, or on the railway journey. His case was peculiar as it was clinically typical of mild dengue but the organism of paratyphoid "A" was recovered from the blood taken on the fifth day of pyrexia.

One case of paratyphoid "B" was admitted to hospital on the 19th of January having arrived with his unit from England on the 4th of December 1914. In the Divisional Laboratory an organism was isolated from his blood which gave cultural reactions characteristic of B. paratyphosus A, but failed to agglutinate. A subculture was sent to Wellington, and a report received from there stated that the case was one of paratyphoid B.

No further case of this disease occurred in the battalion and investigation failed to reveal the existence of a carrier.

Dinapore.—There were 10 admissions and no death from diseases of the enteric group in 1915 as compared with 1 admission and 1 death in 1914. All these cases occurred amougst the 1-9th Battalion, Middlesex Regiment. All the cases had previously been inoculated against enteric fever, just before arriving in India, either at home or on board ship coming out. The source of infection was not traced. The cases occurred scattered throughout companies and barracks. All troops in the station were inoculated with anti-typhoid vaccine, without exception, and towards the end of the year (November and December) 280 men were voluntarily inoculated with paratyphoid "A" vaccine.

The last case of paratyphoid "A" fever must have acquired the infection in Dum Dum as he arrived in Dinapore on December 24, was detained in hospital on the 25th and admitted on the 26th of December 1915. Blood cultural examination of a specimen of his blood taken on December 30th revealed the presence of B. paratyphosus "A."

Lahore.—There were 9 admissions from the enteric group of fevers with no death (3 enteric fever, 4 paratyphoid "A," 2 paratyphoid fever "B") during 1915. All of them had been inoculated and the cause of infection was not traceable.

Quetta.—There were 8 admissions from the enteric group of fevers. Two of them were uninoculated. There is nothing calling for special remark.

Rawalpindi.—There were 6 admissions from the enteric group of fevers, i.e., 3 cases of enteric fever and 3 of paratyphoid "A." Of the 3 cases of enteric fever one was contracted in Calcutta and one at Dera Ismail Khan. The other case of enteric and one of the paratyphoid cases were contracted in the station, but the source of infection could not be traced. The other two cases of paratyphoid "A" occurred in the 1-6th East Surrey Regiment very shortly after their arrival at the station from Fyzabad. There had been no paratyphoid in Rawalpindi previous to their arrival but there had been a number of cases at Fyzabad before they left that station, so that they are believed to have contracted their infection before arrival. One case had been inoculated against enteric in October 1914 and the other in 1899.

From almost every station where enteric fever occurred the Medical Officers report that the source of origin could not be definitely traced and almost all the men affected had previously been inoculated.

Anti-Enteric Inoculation.—Anti-enteric inoculation continues to make satisfactory progress. Over 93 per cent of all European troops in India have been inoculated.

The following table shows the state of inoculation from 1st January to 30th June and from 1st July to 31st December 1915, separately:--

	27/27	PERIOD	ENDING	30тн JU	NE 1915.		PI	ERIOD EN	IDING 310	DECEM	BER 1915	
Arms of Service,	I men.	d SHERIC PEVER.					men.	ated men.	ENTERIC PRIVER,			
Arms of Service.	inoculated	uninocula	Inoculai	ted men.	Uni mocul	ateimen.	Namber of Inoculated men.	Number of uninoculated	Inoculate	d min.	Uninoculat	led men.
les vi	Number of Inoculated	Number of uninoculated men.	Санев.	Deaths.	Cases.	Deaths,	Number of	Number o	Cases.	Deaths.	Cases,	Deaths.
Cavalry	1,407	165	-			-	545	53	-	1		-
Royal Horse Artillery	277	39				-	141	13		***	1-1	
Royal Field Artillery	5,085	385	n	1	6	-	3,403	159	13		. 1	-
Royal Garrison Artillery	3,183	258		-	,	-	2,030	158	5	***		
Ammonision Colomn	175	9		-			184	4				••
Engineers	30	45		-		-	30	27				
Infantry	30,386	1,382	45	6	7	3	27, 489	1,041	ő2		6	,
Garrison and Staff	1,298	680					1,167	455	4	-	,	
Attached or unclassified troops	231	78	-	117	-	-	274	100	-			
Totals	41,179	3,040	55	7	15	3	35.223	2,111	84	3	10	
Ratios per s,000 of strength	-	-	14	*17	4.0	.99	-	-	2'4	. '09	47	*2:

Of the 73 and 94 cases of enteric fever 58 and 84 cases occurred among those who were protected by inoculation and the remaining 15 and 10 were among uninoculated men during the periods ending 30th June and 31st December, respectively.

The ratios of admissions per 1,000 of inoculated and uninoculated strength during the period ending 30th June work out to 1'4 and 4'9 against 2'4 and 4'7 for the period ending 31st December 1915. The value of inoculation is clearly indicated. In the first half of the year, the 'enterica' incidence was three and a half times higher among the uninoculated men than among the inoculated and in the second period it was double that of the inoculated.

Reinoculation is urged after two years, as it is certain that the protective efficacy of inoculation is lessened after that period, and this measure is now progressing steadily.

ENTERIC CONVALESCENT DEPÔTS

The Naini Tal and Wellington enteric convalescent Depôts perform valuable work and provide the chief line of defence against carriers.

NAINI TAL ENTERIC FEVER CONVALESCENT DEPOT.

One hundred and eighty-five convalescents arrived at the Depôt during the year. The final diagnosis of these is shown in Table I, and the figures for 1910 to 1914 are shown for comparison.

TABLE No. I.

		BENE	CONVALESCENTS IN THE DEPOT.										
	Years.		Enteric fever.	Para- typhoid iever "A."	Para- typhoid fever "B."	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Mediterra- nean fever.	Other diseases.	Total.				
1915	***		45	60	5	74		1	185				
1914			49	60	6	78	***	2	195				
1913			41	55		103	2		201				
1912			89	63	4	83			238				
1911			95	90		138			323				
910			143	27					170				

These figures represent the final diagnosis of the cases and include thirteen alterations in diagnosis.

Cases of enteric fever (45).—Altogether forty-seven cases were diagnosed enteric fever on arrival at the Depôt. Two of these were found to be excreting paratyphoid "A" and "B" bacilli, respectively, and the diagnosis were altered accordingly (vide "Carriers"—Watson and Jemmett). Twenty-two were diagnosed on the isolation of the specific organism, from the blood in eighteen, the urine in one, the fæces in two, and rose spots in one case. The remainder (23) had been diagnosed on clinical grounds only. Only one of these cases could be diagnosed with any certainty, the case of a man who had never been inoculated but who gave a marked agglutination reaction to B. typhosus. Two cases were almost certainly paratyphoid "A" fever and three showed no evidence of having suffered from enteric fever. Of the remaining seventeen it seems probable that seven were cases of enteric fever. These forty-five cases can be tabulated as follows:—

Proved Enteric.	Probable Enteric.	Probable Paratyphoid "A."	Doubtful Enteric.
23	7	2	13

Cases of paratyphoid "A" fever (60).—Sixty-seven cases arrived at the Depôt diagnosed paratyphoid "A." Eight of these were changed to pyrexia of uncertain origin in default of bacteriological confirmation and one to malaria, leaving fifty-eight. To these were added two others discovered in the Depôt originally diagnosed enteric fever and pyrexia of uncertain origin, respectively (Carriers, Watson and Jolly). All these sixty cases were confirmed by the culture of the organism, from the blood in fifty-two, the urine in four and the fæces in four cases.

Cases of paratyphoid "B" fever (5).—Five cases were received diagnosed paratyphoid "B." One of these, however, was not confirmed by isolation of the germ and was changed to pyrexia of uncertain origin but another case was found amongst the cases of enteric fever diagnosed clinically, so that the original number—five—remains the same.

Cases of pyrexia of uncertain origin (74).—Sixty-six cases were received as pyrexia of uncertain origin. One proved to be paratyphoid "A" fever ('Carrier' Jolly). As is mentioned above eight cases of paratyphoid "A" and one of paratyphoid "B" fever had to be changed to pyrexia of uncertain origin.

A careful study of serum reactions of these patients gave the following results :-

Probably Enteric.	Probably Paratyphoid " A."	Probably Paratyphoid " B."	Indeterminate.	Unclassified.
gardelotada a	28	barang malmana	34	elimites tod

Other diseases (1).—One case originally received as a paratyphoid "A" diagnosed in error was changed to malaria.

Summary of all the cases.—The following figures indicate the nearest approach to correct diagnosis of these 185 cases as it was possible to make.

Enteric fever.	Paratyphoid fever	Paratyphoid fever	Belonging to Typho-Paratyphoid Group.	Unclassified.
34	89	10	47	4

TABLE No. 2. "CARRIERS."

Serial No.	Rank and Name.			Unit.	Place and date of illness.	Disgnosed as	
1	Pte. Walker, W.		-	r-4th Wilts	 Delhi, 21st February 1915.	Paratyphoid " A."	
2	Sergt. Jolly, H. E.			4th Queens	 Lucknow, 25th February 1915.	Pyrexia of uncertain	
3	Gr. Jemmett, M.	-		3rd Hants, R.F.A.	 Lahore Cantonment, 9th April 1915.	Enteric.	
4	Pte. Bradley, P.			9th Middlesex	 Dum Dum, 17th June 1915.	Paratyphoid " A."	
5	Pte. Watson, W.			1st West Riding	 Sialkot, 23rd May	Enteric.	

Serial No.	Type of Carrier a	nd Organism	Arrived at Depôt.	How disposed of and date.		
1 1	Facal B. Paratyphosus	"A"	 10th May 1915	Returned to duty, 10th November 1915.		
2	Ditto	"A"	 4th June 1915	Returned to duty, 1st November 1915.		
3	Ditto	"B"	 11th July 1915	Still under observation.		
4	Ditto	"A"	 17th June 1915	Returned to duty, 30th November 1915.		
5	Ditto	"A"	 30th September 1915	Still under observation		

Carriers—(vide Table 2). At the end of 1914 there remained one carrier in the Depôt, Private Searle, Welsh Regiment. He was discharged to duty on the 31st August 1915, having been free from specific germs in his excreta since the 11th December 1914.

Five carriers were discovered during the year under review.

Private Walker arrived at the Depôt on the 10th May from Meerut. His fever ran a mild typical course of sixteen days, no special symptoms were noted. A culture of the organism obtained by blood culture was received in this laboratory for confirmation as Bacillus typhosus. The results of the tests were somewhat atypical but on further examination the organism proved to be B. typhosus as the following absorption tests prove:—

(a) High titre typhoid serum was absorbed with Walker's strain and all the

agglutinins for stock B. typhosus were removed.

(b) Walker's serum agglutinated both his own strain and stock B. typhosus in 1/100 dilutions.

(c) Walker's serum was absorbed with stock B. typhosus and all the agglutinins for Walker's strain were removed. On the 19th of May an organism in considerable numbers was found in his fæces and proved to be paratyphoid "A."

The agglutination tests were as follows :-

- (a) Walker's serum reacted with stock paratyphoid "A" up to 1/50 but not in 1/100 dilutions, and to his own fæcal strain up to, but not over 1/100.
- (b) High titre paratyphoid "A" serum was absorbed with the fæcal strain and all the agglutinins for stock paratyphoid "A" were removed. This case is, therefore, one of double infection.

Paratyphoid "A" bacilli were isolated from the fæces on the one occasion only and he was returned to duty on the 10th of November.

Sergeant Folly arrived at the Depôt on the 4th of June from Lucknow diagnosed pyrexia of uncertain origin. His fever was of a mild remittent type lasting twenty-six days. On the 8th, 9th and 10th of June B. paratyphosus A was isolated from his fæces in considerable numbers. His agglutination reaction to stock paratyphoid "A" was barely complete in 1/50 but to his own strain was complete in 1/100 and partial in 1/250 dilution.

No further recovery of the bacillus was made from his fæces and he was allowed to return to duty on the 1st of November.

Grenadier Jemmett arrived at the Depôt on the 11th of July from Lahore diagnosed enteric fever on clinical grounds and on the report of the agglutination reaction. On the 10th day of disease reaction to B. typhosus was complete in 1/100 dilution, on the 27th in 1/250, and on the 36th in 1/500 dilutions. On the strength of this increasing reaction the diagnosis had been made.

On his arrival at the Depôt his agglutination reaction was as follows :-

Dilution			10	20	50	100	250	500	1000
Typhoid	100	F	+	+	+	+	±	-	-
Paratyphoid " A "		(-	_	-		4		
Paratyphoid "B"			+	+	+	+	1/4		

He had been inoculated against typhoid just six months before. On July 16 paratyphoid "B" bacilli were isolated from his stools in large numbers and again on the 22nd and 23rd of July when his first test ended. The organism was again recovered on the 30th of August, 1st and 9th of September.

During the second test (30th of August to 3rd of September) large numbers of curious gelatinous looking colonies were noticed on the plates made from his fæces, one of which was put through the tests and gave, very unexpectedly, the typical reactions of paratyphoid "B" including agglutination and absorption. This organism when first isolated gave a profuse gelatinous growth, refused to emulsify satisfactorily in normal salt on account of its sticky consistency and would not agglutinate with paratyphoid "B" serum. After keeping some days and subculturing, it lost its gelatinous appearance and agglutinated at once with paratyphoid "B" serum. In order that there should be no mistake the tests were repeated with colonies recovered on three different days.

These gelatinous colonies were recovered every day up to the 7th of October (typical paratyphoid "B" were not found after the 9th of September). This man is still under observation.

Private Bradley arrived from Dum Dum on the 28th of July diagnosed paratyphoid "A" fever as the organism had been isolated from the blood. On the 9th of August paratyphoid "A" was isolated from his fæces but this was the only occasion and he was returned to duty on the 30th of November.

Private Watson arrived from Sialkot on the 30th of September diagnosed enteric fever on clinical grounds and on agglutination reactions. Blood culture and several examinations of the urine and fæces had proved negative. On the 4th and 5th of October paratyphoid "A" bacilli were isolated from the fæces but not subsequently. He is still under observation.

Cultures for identification (141). One hundred and forty-one cultures were received for identification or confirmation. Tables 3 and 4 show the Divisions whence these came, the opinion expressed by the sender and the opinion formed at the Depôt.

The following organisms either did not belong to the typho-paratyphoid group, or require special mention:-

Resembling B. typhosus.

No. 776 was obtained from the urine and gave all the reactions of B. typhosus, but it turned milk alkaline, produced a yellow colour on agar and only partially absorbed agglutinins for B. typhosus.

Resembling B. paratyphosus " A."

No. 887 was recovered from the blood, was slow and atypical in growth, and did not absorb the agglutinins for either paratyphoid "A" or "B." It was agglutinated by the patient's own serum up to but not over 1/20 dilution.

No. 892 was isolated from the fæces, and except that it produced an excessive amount of acid in milk gave the reactions of paratyphoid "A." The agglutination reactions were negative.

B. paratyphosus "B" group.

No. 884 was isolated from the blood of a man in the 2-6th Gurkhas and gave all the sugar reactions of paratyphoid "B." The agglutination reactions for paratyphoid "B" and Gaertner's bacillus were negative.

No.759 (Foulds) corresponded to paratyphoid "B" in the sugar tests but neither agglutinated with nor absorbed the agglutinins from either paratyphoid "A" or paratyphoid "B" serum. Further tests proved that it was not Gaertner's bacillus. The patient's serum gave the following reactions:—

		Dilutions.									
	10	20	50	100	250	500	1,000				
Typhoid	 +	+	trace	-							
Paratyphoid " A "	 -	-					•••				
Paratyphoid "B"	 -	-	-	-							
Own strain	 +	+	+	+	+	-	-				
Gaertner	 trace	-	-	-							

His illness was typical of the typhoid group, the fever lasted for eleven days and was moderately severe and accompanied by some diarrhoea but no other symptoms. There is no doubt that this unnamed organism was the infecting one in this man's case.

B. fæcalis alkaligenes :-

No. 783 was sent as paratyphoid "A" isolated from the blood, but there was no doubt of its being facalis alkaligenes. It gave no reaction with the patient's own serum whereas paratyphoid "A" was agglutinated up to 1/50 dilution.

No. 818 came from the Deputy Assistant Director, Medical Services (Sanitary), Lucknow, identified as B. facalis alkaligenes and was confirmed as such. It was isolated from the blood in pure culture and was agglutinated by the patient's serum as follows:—

		Dilutions.						
The state of	-	10	20	50	100			
12th May		 +	-					
16th May		 +	trace					
1st June		 +	+	+	+			
24th S eptember		 -	-	-	-			

The case was probably one of paratyphoid " A " fever.

No. 908 was received from the same laboratory as the previous one and proved to have been correctly identified as B. facalis alkaligenes. It was also isolated from the blood but further particulars are not yet to hand.

No. 790 was isolated from the stools and had been wrongly identified as B. typhosus.

Coliform organisms:

One had been isolated from the blood and was probably a contamination and eight had been recovered from the fæces.

Strains from Indians (22) .- Twenty-one organisms were isolated from the blood and one from the fæces of Indians. These worked out as follows :-

Sendar's opinion.	Number.	Confirmed as Typhoid,	Para- typhoid "A."	Faccalis alkali- genes.	Others.	Total.
Typhoid	17	17	-		-	
Paratyphoid "A"	4	-	3		1	
Fæcalis alkaligenes	1		-	1		22

TABLE No. 3. ANALYSIS OF CULTURES RECEIVED DURING 1015, BY DIVISIONS.

	OPIN	ION EXPRES	SED BY SEN	DER.		OUR OP	INION.		
Source of culture,	Typhoid,	Paraty	phoid.	No opinion.	Typhoid,	Paratyp	hold.	Others.	-
		"A."	4 B."			" A."	"B."		
EST (PESHAWAR) DIVISION.		140 - 50 00 150			SER SER		00220		
Blood	3	2	3		3	. 4		1	
Fæces	1			111-1	- 1				
2ND (RAWALPINDI) DIVISION.	-			1100					-9
Blood	3			2	2	2		1	
38D (LAHORE) DIVISIONAL AREA.	-								-5
Blood	6	2	2		3	5	2		
Fæces	2			1				2	
Urine		,				1		***	
4TH (QUETTA) DIVISION.	-								-14
Blood	9	9			9	. 8	1		
Faeces	3			3	1			5	
STH (MHOW) DIVISION.	-						-		-24
Blood	19	14			19	13		1	
Faces		1		***				1	
Urine		1		1					
6th (Poona) Divisional Area.		To let let							-36
Blood		1			***	1			
Fæces		***		1				1	1200
7TH (MEERUT) DIVISIONAL AREA.									-2
Blood	2	5	1		2	4		2	mile s
Facces	-	1				1			Del
Urine	1	1				1			1
STH (LUCKNOW) DIVISION,									-11
Blood	12	25		3**	12	26	-	2	1999
TO THE PARTY OF TH		-							-40
Total	-							-	141

^{*}Two diagnosed as facalis alkaligenes were confirmed as such.

TABLE No. 4.

SUMMARY OF TABLE III SHOWING CHANGE IN DIAGNOSIS.

			1	Proved in our	hands to be-		
Organisms received as		Typhoid.	Paratyphoid "A."	Paratyphoid	Others.	Fæcalis alkaligenes.	
B. Typhosus		 61	50	5		5	1
Paratyphoid " A "	***	 63	1	56	2	3	1
Paratyphoid " B "		 6	401	5	1		
No opinion	STATE VI	 9	·	. 3	1	5	
Facalis alkaligenes	*	 , 2		-			2
	Total	 141	51	69	4	13	4

Examination of the faces and the urine.—As has been the custom, each convalescent as soon as he arrives at the Depôt is put on the "First test" which consists of ten days' consecutive examination of both the faces and the urine. The second and third tests are carried out as soon as possible and each lasts for five consecutive days. Latterly owing to the large number of plates and the quantity of culture medium required the urine examination has been omitted from the second and third tests unless the first has proved positive. It is extremely unlikely that a "carrier" would be missed by this procedure. During the year the Endo medium has been used in preference to either Conradi-Drigalski or McConkey. A series of tests proved that the growth of the typhoid group was more rapid, more abundant and not so steadily overgrown by eoli on the Endo, and confirmed the recent work of other observers.

The number of specimens examined was 6,254 (fæces 3,198, urine 3,056).

Agglutination reaction.—During the year 214 sera were tested against B. ty/hosus, B. paratyphosus A and B. M. melitensis and others.

With the advent of general prophylactic inoculation against enteric fever the agglutination reaction, as a test for typhoid infection, has lost a very great deal of its value. It is stated, however, that the difficulty may be overcome by estimating the end-point of agglutination on several different occasions during the course of illness. If the end-point becomes higher a specific infection of B. typhosus is indicated. There is a fallacy, however, in coming to such a conclusion too hastily. If the infection be due to either B. paratyphosus "A" or "B" the end-point for B. typhosus may be increased (vide "Carrier" Jemmett). It is not an uncommon thing for a diagnosis of enteric to be made on the alteration of the end-point alone without a control for the paratyphoids. The reaction for the paratyphoids does not yet suffer from the complication introduced by prophylactic inoculation, and as regards paratyphoid "A" fever there can be no doubt that a positive reaction to its specific organism is of the utmost diagnostic significance.

The agglutinins in this fever are apt to be transient, to appear late and disappear early. For instance, in fifty-nine cases proved by culture to be infected by B. paratyphosus "A", the following reactions were obtained on their arrival at the Depôt.

No reaction			 in 1/10	dilutions			in 15
Trace		15	 10		tolphare T.	,	1
Complete		Mining.	 10				7
Complete			 1 20				10
Complete			 20				9
Barely complet	te		 100			'	5
Complete			 100	(and over			12
-							_
	3/10				Total		59

It seems certain that the great bulk of the fever obtaining amongst the British troops in India at present is paratyphoid "A" and it is possible that, were the agglutination test carried out more systematically throughout the course of the disease, much of the uncertainty regarding the diagnosis of the pyrexias of uncertain origin would be removed.

Blood Culture.—There is no doubt that blood culture is the simplest and most reliable method of diagnosis and it is noticed with regret that in many cases blood culture has not been attempted and in others has been delayed till too late.

Preventive Inoculation.—It is of interest to note the inoculation particulars of those cases conclusively proved to be enteric fever.

Not previo	usly i	noculat	ed e).	(one	states th	at he had	enteric		7
Inoculated	two	doses, v	vith	in 6	months				8
,	,1	n	33	12	n				3
29	2)	"	"	18	11				1
,,	,,	"	,,	. 4	years	*			2
, ,,	19	.11	"	5	27			***	1
No record									1
								· A	_
							Total		23
						- 2	1		and the same

Cases according to stations.—The following table shows the stations in which the proved cases of fever were contracted.

TABLE No. 5.

AL YES	Divisions.	11 11	S	tation.	1110	Enteric fever.	Paratyphoid fever "A."	Paratyphoid fever "B."
-		(Peshawar			2		
Ist		{	Nowshera			1		
		(Rawalpindi			1	1	
and	***	{	Sialkot				I India	
		(Lahore				1	2
		- 60	Amritsar				1	
3rd		1	Ambala		***		2	t
		-	Kasauli				190 n (4	1
4th			Quetta		***	3	5	1
		. (Mhow			3	6*	- :
5th		}	Jhansi	•••		6	10	
		[Nasirabad			1	***	-
		. 1	Delhi				3	
7th			Agra		***		2†	
		i	Bareilly		***		2	Sec. 23
		(Lucknow	11000		1‡	11	-
			Fyzabad				3	-
0.1			Allahabad				2	1-10 mor
8th	***	"]	Dum Dum		***		3	
			Barrackpore				2	
		1	Dinapore			4	4	
Burma						1	n 100 100	12 1 miles
				Total		23	59	5

Three cases from overseas, uncertain where contracted.
 † One case probably from Jhansi.
 ‡ From Persian Guif.

It would appear from this table that the distribution of enteric and paratyphoid "B" fevers, particularly the latter, is limited, while paratyphoid "A" has a much wider distribution.

Cases by units .- Sixteen regular units and thirty Territorial were represented, and there was also one Calcutta Volunteer from the East Coast of Africa. The largest number from any one regiment was 22 from the 9th Middlesex, the 1-4th Dorsets came next with 16. The following is the proportion of Regulars and Territorials:-

			CA	SES PROVED TO	BE	Total number
			Enteric.	Paratyphoid fever " A."	Paratyphoid fever "B."	in the
Regulars			 8	11		37
Territorials			 15	48	5	148
The state of	als pleas	Total	 23	59	5	185

Other examinations carried out in the laboratory during the year numbered 503. They included the following:-

Blood films and cu	ltures	 			228
Throat Swabs		 			13
Water examinatio	ns	 	1 10	1-	10
Various pathologic	cal specimens	 			60

The spirochæta of relapsing fever was found in the blood of seven Indians.

Twenty-seven vaccines were prepared from various pathological specimens.

Total number of specimens examined during the year was 7,112.

ENTERIC CONVALESCENT DEPOT, WELLINGTON.

Twenty-three convalescents remained over from last year.

In all 124 convalescents were admitted during the year :-

Officers	book end b		Comment of the land		 9
Warrant Offic	ers, Indian Sub	ordinate	Medical Depa	rtment	 1
Warrant Offic	ers and Staff Se	ergeants,	Indian Miscel	laneous List	 3
Staff Sergeant	s, Indian Ordna	ance Dep	partment		 1
Petty Officers	and men, Roya	l Navy	700		 6
Supply and T	ransport Corps		W/10	0	 i
Indian Postal	Department	d	add aleestoon	al med a	 1
Non-commissi	oned officers ar	d men o	f the Regular	Army	 57
Non-commissi	oned officers an	d men,	Cerritorial Uni	ts	 45

Of this total ninety convalescents were from forces overseas, and the remaining thirty-four cases were from various stations in India.

The figures for the last three years are shown for comparison:-

Dans.	Year.	of mells	Pyrexia of necertain origin.	Paratyphoid fever "A".	Paratyphoid fever "B".	Enteric fever.	Total,
1913	B	Sele	32	15	a same avail	36	83
1914			23	14	2	53	92
1915			13	33	1	77	124

The seemingly large increase in the enterica group as compared with that of previous years, is due to the cases from overseas, which form the majority of the admissions this year, being diagnosed on clinical grounds and on Widal reactions, and none being sent as pyrexia of uncertain origin.

Overseas.—Of the ninety cases from overseas, five were from East Africa and eighty-five from Mesopotamia.

East Africa.—Of these, two were petty officers of the Royal Navy, and three non-commissioned officers and men of the Regular Army. All these cases arrived diagnosed enteric fever, on clinical grounds. In the case of No. 3,928

Sergeant Jones, 2nd Loyal North Lancashire Regiment, who arrived in the Depôt on the 26th April 1915, eggs of Ankylostomum Duodenale were observed in his fæces on the 31st July 1915, and he was sent to the Station Hospital, Wellington, for treatment.

Mesopotamia The tota	l from Mesopotamia	was made up as follows : -
----------------------	--------------------	----------------------------

Officers					8
Warrant Officers, Indian Subordinate	Medical	Department			1
Warrant Officers and Staff Sergeants	, Indian	Miscellaneous	List		3
		A 1 /2 100			I
Petty officers and men, Royal Navy					4
FF-7		****			1
Non-commissioned officers and men,	THE RESERVE TO SERVE				48
Non-commission ed officers and men,	Territori	ial Units		***	19
					-
		To	tal		85
240 may only parent					-

Of this number sixty-one convalescents arrived diagnosed enteric fever, all on clinical grounds and positive Widal reactions. The remaining twenty-four cases arrived as paratyphoid fever "A". In one case the organism was recovered from the blood, the remaining twenty-three cases were diagnosed on positive Widal reactions. In very few instances were any documents such as case sheets, temperature charts or medical history sheets available.

Only two carriers were detected in this number and will be referred to under the head of carriers.

Of the thirty-four cases contracted in India, eighteen came from the 9th (Secunderabad) Division, fourteen cases from the 6th (Poona) Divisional Area, one case from the 5th (Mhow) Division and one case from the Burma Division.

oth (Secunderabad) Division.—Of the eighteen cases from this Division, three were cases of enteric fever, the organism being recovered from the fæces in all three cases. Five were cases of paratyphoid "A," the organism being recovered from blood culture in three cases and from the fæces in two. The remaining two cases were sent as pyrexia of uncertain origin.

Bangalore furnished five cases of pyrexia of uncertain origin and two cases of enteric fever. Madras sent five cases of pyrexia of uncertain origin, one case of enteric fever and one case of paratyphoid fever "A," and Wellington furnished four cases of paratyphoid fever "A." In all the ten cases of pyrexia of uncertain origin sent from this Division, a blood culture was taken and early examinations of fæces and urine were carried out with a view to isolating the causal organism, but with negative results.

6th (Poona) Divisional Area.—Of the fourteen cases from this Division, eight were sent as cases of enteric fever, all being diagnosed on clinical grounds and on Widal reactions. Three arrived as cases of paratyphoid fever "A" diagnosed on the organism being recovered from blood culture, and three were sent as cases of pyrexia of uncertain origin.

Deolali sent two cases of paratyphoid fever "A" diagnosed on the organism being recovered by blood culture, and three cases of pyrexia of uncertain origin. In these latter cases, a blood culture was taken and the fæces and urine were examined, but with negative results. Of the two cases of paratyphoid fever "A," the organism recovered from the blood gave all the reactions of Bacillus paratyphosus "A", and when absorbed with the high titre serum, it removed the agglutinins for itself and for Bacillus paratyphosus "A", thus placing beyond doubt the identity of the organism.

Of the five cases that arrived in the Depôt from Kirkee, all were diagnosed enteric fever on clinical grounds and on rising Widal reactions. In three of the cases a blood culture was taken, and the fæces and urine were examined during the course of the disease, but with negative results. In two of the cases which were treated at the Station Hospital, Poona, and were sent to Kirkee prior to their being transferred to the Enteric Convalescent Depôt, no blood culture was made but the fæces and urine were examined with negative results.

Poona furnished two cases of enteric fever which were diagnosed on clinical grounds, and one case of paratyphoid fever "A" which was diagnosed by the recovery of the organism from the blood.

Colaba furnished one case of enteric fever, which was diagnosed clinically. This case contracted the illness while on boardship, between Bombay and Burma, and there were no means of applying laboratory tests in the investigation of his case.

5th (Mhow) Division.—One case of paratyphoid fever "B", diagnosed by the recovery of the organism from the blood, arrived in the Depôt from this Division.

Burma Division.—One case of enteric fever, an Officer of the Burma Police, arrived from Rangoon. He was treated in one of the Civil Hospitals there, and no documents concerning this case have been received up to date.

Carriers.—A list of these is attached. Two remained over from last year but have now both been discharged from the Enteric Depôt. Four carriers were detected during the year. One has been returned to duty and three remain in the Depôt.

The first carrier detected was Gunner Halyburton, 14th Battery, Royal Field Artillery. This case is of considerable interest in that it is one of the cases in which abscess of the liver has been caused by and directly traced to enteric fever. I therefore propose to give the history of this case in some detail.

The patient was inoculated against enteric fever in December 1913. On the 6th of August 1914, he was admitted to the Station Hospital, Secunderabad, giving a history of being ill for about one week. A blood culture was taken on the following day and Bacillus typhosus was isolated. On the 22nd of the same month he complained of pain over the gall bladder; it was tender on pressure and felt to be enlarged. This condition passed away in four or five days and the patient's temperature fell to normal, on the 19th of September. He was transferred to the Enteric Convalescent Depôt on the 3rd of December 1914, arriving here on the 5th of the month.

On the 29th of December 1914, he complained of pain over a small area of the liver, in the region of the gall bladder. As this condition did not improve under treatment he was admitted to the Station Hospital, Wellington, on the 31st. His temperature on the evening of his admission was 102'4 F.; differential leucocyte count showed polymophonuclears 72 per cent., large mononuclears 9'6 per cent., small mononuclears 15'6 per cent., eosinophiles 6 per cent., and transitionals 2 per cent. On the 4th of January his urine contained neither albumen nor sugar. A blood culture taken on the same day proved sterile. On the 6th, 7th and 8th of January Bacillus typhosus was recovered from his fæces. On the 11th of January his temperature came down to normal morning and evening, and he was discharged to the Enteric Convalescent Depôt on the 24th of the month.

On the 31st of January he complained of pain in the right shoulder; his temperature was normal morning and evening. The next day he complained that the pain was very much aggravated at night. The liver was slightly enlarged upwards in the mid-axillary line with some bulging. His evening temperature was 99.6 F. and his blood was free from malarial parasites. He was again admitted to the Station Hospital, Wellington, on the 2nd of February 1915.

His total leucocyte count taken on the 3rd February was 10,800, and his differential leucocyte count on the same day read as follows :- Polymorphonuclears 78 per cent., large mononuclears 7 per cent., small mononuclears 11'6 per cent,, eosinophlles '4 per cent., and transitionals 1.8 per cent. There was a gradual increase in the total leucocytic count, which was taken daily, between this and the 9th of February, when it reached 27,301. The differential count which was made on the 8th instant remained much about the same. During the early morning of the foth of February the patient expectorated what appeared to be the contents of a liver abscess. The sputum was of a brownish tinge, and on microscopical examination was found to contain numerous pus cells, diplococci, liver cells and some motile bacilli. The sputum was plated on Conradi on the morning of the 10th and on the 12th after 48 hours' incubation an almost pure culture of B. typhosus was obtained. On the same morning the patient was explored under chloroform, but no abscess was found. The daily amount of expectoration for the next few days averaged about six ounces. This was examined daily but with negative results. It then gradually decreased and finally ceased on the 21st of February. The patient was discharged from hospital on the 9th of March 1915.

The points of interest in this case are :-

- Recrudescence of cholecystitis after so long a period with normal temperature.
- (2) The isolation of Bacillus typhosus from his fæces six months after it was isolated by blood culture.
- (3) The finding of Bacillus typhosus and liver cells in the sputum, indicating an abscess in the liver tissue itself, a rare condition following enteric fever.

He was discharged from the Enteric Depôt on the 15th of June 1915, after 123 negative examinations of his fæces and urine.

The second carrier detected was Private Walters, 2-5th Hants Regiment, who arrived in the Depôt on the 30th July 1915, from the Station Hospital, Wellington. He was diagnosed paratyphoid fever "A" by the recovery of that organism from his fæces during the course of his illness. This organism was again recovered from his fæces while in the Depôt on the 3rd and 13th of August, since when he has not again excreted the bacillus. He still remains in the Depôt.

The third case detected was that of Private Gaskin, 2nd Norfolk Regiment, who arrived in the Depôt on the 3rd of August from Colaba. He contracted the disease while on active service in Mesopotamia and was diagnosed clinically as enteric fever. Bacillus paratyphosus "A" was recovered from his fæces on the 9th, 10th and 11th August, six days after his arrival in the Depôt. He still remains in the Depôt.

The last carrier detected this year was Driver Hookham, 76th Battery, Royal Field Artillery. He arrived in the Depôt on the 9th of September from Colaba, having contracted the disease while on active service in Mesopotamia. Bacillus paratyphosus "A" was isolated from his urine on the 23rd, 25th, 29th and 30th of October. This case is of interest in that, though the colonies on the Conradi plates presented the typical appearance of the typhoid group, and gave the sugar reactions of Bacillus paratyphosus "A", it did not on any occasion agglutinate immediately with the high titre serum of any of the typhoid organisms, but did so readily with the high titre serum of Bacillus paratyphosus "A", after being subcultured in sodium taurocholate or nutrient broth and then replated on a Conradi plate.

There was one case of paratyphoid fever "A" in the Depôt during the year, No. 2478 Private Faulkner, S.-1-4th Buffs, who arrived in the Depôt on the 20th of April, from Mhow, as a convalescent case of paratyphoid fever "B." He was inoculated against enteric fever in November 1914, and contracted paratyphoid fever "B" in January 1915, that organism being recovered from his blood and confirmed in this laboratory. On the 26th of June, two months after his arrival in the Deopt, he was admitted to the Station Hospital, Wellington, and found to be suffering with paratyphoid fever "A," which organism was recovered from blood culture. His admission into hospital, coincided with that of three other men of the garrison, who were suffering from the same disease. In the case of these three men, the source of infection was traced, by the Deputy Assistant Director of Medical Services, (Sanitary), 9th Division, to a butler, employed in the Soldiers' Home, who was a paratyphoid fever "A" carrier. Private Faulkner, however, states that he has never been to the institute in question, all institutes outside the Enteric Depôt being out of bounds to the enteric convalescents. The only carriers in the Depôt at the time of Private Faulkner's stay, prior to his contracting the disease, were two enteric fever carriers. All carriers are isolated, having their meals apart and separate latrine accommodation.

One other case that of Recruit Dass, 73rd Carnatic Infantry, stationed at Trichinopoly is worth mention. No blood culture was taken, and his Widal reactions were as follows:—

Ninth day of disease, negative to enteric group in all dilutions.

Twenty-third day of disease, positive in a 1 in 40 dilution, and incomplete in a 1 in 100 dilution to Bacillus Paratyphosus "A", and positive in a 1 in 40 dilution to Bacillus typhosus.

Fifty-fourth day of disease, positive in a 1 in 200 dilution with Bacillus typhosus, and positive in a 1 in 100 dilution with Bacillus paryatphosus "A".

On the 16th and 32nd days of disease, Bacillus paratyphosus "A". was recovered from his fæces, and on the 33rd and 34th days of disease Bacillus typhsous was recovered from his urine.

This case is of interest illustrating as it does a double infection with organisms, of the enteric group.

There was a great influx of patients from July to October from the Persian Gulf, and in order that these convalescents might have the requisite number of examinations very large batches had to be examined at a time. In the course of investigating carriers this year, the method of incubating fæces and urine for twenty-four hours in peptone water with varying dilutions of brilliant green, and then plating on to Conradi, Endo's and ordinary agar plates was given an extensive trial. In this laboratory it was found that no better results are obtained in so far as the enteric group is concerned than when the routine method, i.e., of incubating for half an hour before plating on to Conradi media, is employed. On the contrary the brilliant green method appears to favour the growth of Bacillus pyocyanous.

In all a total of 13,852 plates were examined this year. A comparative statement of the work done during each of the last three years is appended.

Year.	Arrivals.	Widal reactions.	Plates examined.	Carriers detected	
1913	83	192	6,195	8	
1914	92	186	11,398	6	
1915	124	195	13,352	4	

It is very satisfactory to note that in the majority of cases sent to the Depôt this year from the various stations in the Southern Army, a blood culture had been made and that the fæces and urine of patients suspected of enterica, were examined with a view to isolating the causal organism.

Table showing transfers to the Depot by stations in Divisions, including admissions from Overseas.

The state of the				Pyrexia of	PARATYPHO	DID FEVER.	Enteric.	Total.
Divisions.	Station.		uncertain origin.	"A."	"B."			
5th (Mhow)	Mhow Poona Colaba Kirkee				 6 18 2	1	 11 54 5	72
th (Secunderabad)	Deolali Bangalore Wellington Madras	- 12		3 5	4		4	Mile.
Burma	Rangoon	miliop of		5	1		I	
Trees Inches		Total		13	33	1	77	12

Table showing Bacteriological Examinations for the year 1915.

						29003	ORGANIS	DEPÔT.	D OUT IN	
	Month				Fæc:s.	Widals.		1		
				-			Enteric.	Not enteric.	Total.	
January				. 527	527	13	3		3	
February			. ***	407	407	5	6	***	6	
March				425	425	15	. 5		5	
April	Ci.			351	351	12	3	1	4	
May	3 a.			488	488	3			Dalais was 3	
June				488	488	3	1	. 1	. 2	
July				588	588	18	3	2	5	
August				601	601	29	6	1	. 7	
September				736	736	26	***		Seatters.	
October				812	812	21	2	topmosto	2	
November				801	Soi	28				
December	-	-		517	517	22				
		Total	-	6,676	6,676	195	. 29	5	34	

Total plates ... 13,352.

Carriers in Depot on January 1st, 1915.

Name.	22	Uelt.	Place and date of drigin.	Period under ob-	Type of carrier.	How final- ly disposed of,	Division.	Discase,
Pre. Taylor	- 1	z-Loyal North Lancashère,	Bargalore, spth May 1914.	ooth July 1914 to 6th April 1915.	Urine B. T. A. Fæ- ces Para.	Returned to doty.	Ninth	Para.
Pte, Ellis	-	7-Husears	Bangalore, 18th July 1914.	10th September 1914 to 11th May 1915.	Urine B. T. A.	Returned to duty.	Ninth	Pyreris of uncertain origin.

Carriers detected in 1915.

Gr. Halyburton	70-	Artillery. Field	Secunderabad, 31st July 1914.	5th December 1914 to 3th June 1915.	T. A.	Returned to daty.	Ninth	Enteric.
Pte, Walters	-	a-5th Hants	Wellington, fith	30th July 1915 to date.	Faces Pars. "A."	Still in De-	Ninth	Para. "A.
Pte, Gaskin	-	a-Norfolks	Mesopotamia	and March 1915 to date.	Faces Para. "A."	Still in De- pôt.	Siath _	Enterie.
Dr. Hookham		70th Battery, Roya Field Artillery,	Ditto	oth September 1915 to	Urine Para.	Still in De-	Do.	Enteric.

The table below gives the annual admission rate per 1,000 of strength for "enterica" during each of the last 5 years in all Indian stations having an average annual strength of over 500:-

Stations		1911.	1912.	1913.	1914.	1915.*
			/			
Peshawar		 3.0	.6	-6	3.6	2.8
Nowshera		 6.4	1.9		1.9	1.0
Rawalpindi		 .7	2.7	4.6	5.6	2.6
Gharial		 		1'4		
Barian Camp		 8.2	1.3	3'4		
Sialkot		 -8	1.9	7'9	1.8	5'7
Lahore Cantonment		 4.2	3.8	1.7	3.2	9.
Dalhousie		 	6.3	1.2		
Multan		 4'4	2.2	12	1.4	5'3
Ferozepore		 1.0				3.6
Jullundur		 				***
Ambala		 	4.8	***	1.7	ı.
Dagshai		 9.9	. 1.3			
Meerut	***	 1.8	3.5	1.7	7.5	
Delhi		 			1.7	1.
Agra		 		1.1	4'9	- 2
Bareilly		 16.8	1'5	1.4	1.2	1.
Ranikhet		 .5	1'2	2.4	4.2	
Chakrata		 1:6	.9	1.7		
Lucknow		 15.4	5'5	9'3	4.4	15.
Fort William		 •8	. 4.8	-8		
Dinapore	***	 				
Lebong		 1.6	16			
Allahabad		 4.3				2.
Cawnpore		 	1.	1.1	1.3	
Fyzabad		 11.6	30'6	13.3	17.4	
Quetta		 3.2	.3	1.4	2.0	2
Karachi		 4'4		-8		

^{*} Includes figures for Terr torials.

			A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR	and the same	E I I I I I I I	Section 1	
	Stations,		1911.	1912.	1913.	1914.	1915.*
						The same	
-		188	a South		Mark 12 6	ing he said	via-
Hyderabad			 1.8				
Mhow			 2.7	1.1	2 2	4.6	9.0
Kamptee			 3'4	1.0	4'2	6.4	
Nasirabad			 6.0	4'5	2.5	1	
hansi			 3.3	1.0	2.8	2.0	18.4
ubbulpore			 4.8	2.7			2.8
Poona		 To the	 3.0	5.3	. 9.2	12'1	2"
Kirkee			 5'4	.9	2.6	3'4	3.6
Bombay			 3.9	1.7	2.7	4.8	2.0
Deolali			 				
Ahmednagar			 29	1.0	1:8	2.4	
Belgaum			 14'0	3.7	5.6	5'3	
Secunderabad			 4'5	5.0	16	3.1	
Bangalore	2		 4.9	4.6	4.6	4'0	3"
Madras			 3.0		1.3	2.6	
Wellington			 4'3	3.4	1.0		.5"
Maymyo	201100		 10000			10011	3'
Shwebo			 				
Rangoon			 9				· 0
Aden			 	3.3	.9	.9	

*Includes figures for Territorials.

PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIGIN.

10. There were 438 admissions, with no death, returned under this head, as contrasted with 650 admissions and 3 deaths in 1914. One of the most satisfactory features of the statistics for 1915 is that the number of these cases has fallen so considerably, indicating as it probably does, a greater discrimination and care in diagnosis.

The largest number of admissions for pyrexia of uncertain origin occurred in Multan 108, Port Blair 58, Lahore 24, Rawalpindi 20, Quetta 20, Mhow 18, Chakrata 16, Barrackpore 12, Ambala 11 and Jhansi 11.

The following table shows the admission rates for pyrexia of uncertain origin and malaria in the several Divisions during the years 1914 and 1915:-

	1	ADM	ISSIONS PER	OO OF STRENGT	1		
Divisions and Divisional Areas.	1	PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN MALARIA					
	-	1914.	1915.	1914.	1915.		
1st (Peshawar)		12.3	3.3	4160	309.3		
2nd (Rawalpindi)		-11.8	6.2	272'9	276'8		
3rd (Lahore) Divisional Area	***	16.1	28.4	239'7	122'3		
4th (Quetta)		11'9	5'8	241 8	· 263'3		
5th (Mhow)		4.8	7'9	150.6	68 2		
6th (Poona) Divisional Area		-5	4'3	134'4	202'0		
7th (Meerut) Divisional Area		2.8	6.9	99'9	rigi		
Sth (Lucknow)		350	8.5	75'5	53'9		
9th (Secunderabad)		2.8	2'1	56.7	37'4		
Burma		81	30'1	67'9	195'1		
Aden Brigade		.9		201'1	54'5		

The Multan report says that pyrexia of uncertain origin occurred chiefly during the months June, July, August, September and October. As the last hot weather was a particularly severe one in this station, and as the troops (Territorials) were new to the country it is probable that many of these were cases of sun-fever.

The prevailing character of these cases was fever with headache the duration of which was 4 or 5 days.

SCARLET FEVER.

11. There were 160 cases of scarlet fever during 1915 with 2 deaths, as contrasted with only 8 cases with no death in the previous year. The disease occurred in Ambala 47 cases, Mhow 33, Bangalore 18, Quetta 14, and Multan 10. The Ambala report says that all patients had recently arrived from England. The Mhow report explains, that this disease introduced by Territorial units in the previous year, persisted through January, after which it was got under control and finally stamped out by the end of April. One case admitted on 5th May, was infected by direct contact. Many of the cases were of a very mild type with faint fugitive rashes and slight throat symptoms, which rendered recognition difficult, and hampered the efforts to control the disease. One case of a severe toxic type proved fatal. Complications were few and call for no special mention.

SANDFLY FEVER.

12. The number of admissions for sandfly fever was 1,844 as contrasted with 1,493 in the previous year, an increase of 351.

The greater number of cases were returned from the undermentioned stations:-

	Stations.	inomit again	Average annual strength.	Admissions.	Ratio of admission per 1,000	Months of maximum incidence.
Peshawar	districts of	To be	1,803	-	328'3	May and September.
Nowshera			1,145	592 328	286.5	September and October.
Rawalpindi	phe ca n		2,271	214	94.3	May, August, September and October.
Lahore		1	985	94	95'4	April, May and July.
Ferozepore			832	149	179'1	May, July, August and Septem
Dinapore			458	66	144'1	August and September.
Mhow	-		1,328	41	30.0	January, February and March.
Aden	Rightston	bna"e	587	60	102.2	May and June.

This disease generally is most prevalent during the hottest months of the year and occurred practically all over the country.

PLAGUE.

13. There was one admission and one death during the year as against 3 admissions and one death in the previous year. The diagnosis was confirmed by bacteriological examination. The case was of bubonic type. The disease was contracted in the bazar.

DIPHTHERIA.

14. There were 67 admissions for diphtheria in 1915 with 2 deaths as against 20 in the previous year. The greatest number of admissions occurred at Quetta 24 with (2 deaths), Dalhousie 15, and Wellington 8 admissions.

DENGUE.

15. This disease was responsible for 696 admissions as against 645 in 1914, giving ratios of 15.5 and 10.7 per 1,000 of strength.

The stations giving the highest number of admissions were Dinapore and Mandalay 134 each, Calcutta 131, Rangoon 76 and Mhow 67.

RABIES.

16. This disease as in the previous year accounted for only one admission and one death. The man was bitten by a cat and was sent to Kasauli for anti-rabic treatment.

BERI-BERI.

17. There were 21 admissions with no death for this disease as against 47 cases and 4 deaths in 1914. The ratios of strength being 47 and 78, respectively. These admissions occurred at Bangalore 7, Calcutta 6, Quetta 3, Bombay and Sabathu 2 each and Poona 1. There is nothing special to remark.

DYSENTERY.

18. The admission and death rates from dysentery were 5.6 and '29 per 1,000 of strength in 1915 against 6.2 and '17 in 1914. The death rate was higher in the Southern Army. The disease was most prevalent amongst troops in the Secunderabad and Lahore Divisions where the admission rates were 20.2 and 7.1, respectively. For the European Army as a whole, the months of greatest prevalence were April, July, August and September and those of least prevalence were January, March and May. There were, in all, 253 cases of dysentery with 15 deaths.

ABSCESS OF LIVER.

19. Liver abscess caused 23 admissions with 9 deaths against 29 admissions and 9 deaths in 1914. These cases occurred in the following stations: — Cherat and Meerut 3 each, Quetta and Lucknow 2 each and one case occurred in each of 12 other stations and one on the line of march.

PNEUMONIA.

20. The admission and death rates from pneumonia during 1915 were 2.7 and 38 per 1,000 of strength, respectively, as compared with 2.8 and 28 in 1914. The total number of admissions and deaths was 119 and 17 in 1915 and 171 and 17 in 1914. The admission rate was higher in the Southern than in the Northern Army but the death rate in the Northern was double that of the Southern Army. The following stations yielded the largest number of cases: —Quetta 14, Peshawar 13, Secunderabad 8 and Rawalpindi 7.

TUBERCLE OF LUNGS.

21. Fifty-one admissions and 5 deaths were recorded under this head as compared with 52 admissions and 10 deaths in 1914. The ratios of admissions and deaths per 1,000 of strength were 1'1 and '11 in 1915 and '9 and '17 in 1914. These fifty-one cases occurred in 28 stations of which 6 were at Nasirabad and 3 each at Lucknow, Quetta, Karachi, Bombay and Madras. Two cases occurred in each of 6 stations and 16 stations reported single cases.

HEAT-STROKE AND SUN-STROKE.

22. There were 172 cases of heat-stroke with 33 deaths and 35 cases of sunstroke with no death in the period under report, as contrasted with 58 admissions and 16 deaths for heat-stroke and 23 admissions and 6 deaths for sun-stroke in 1914. The following stations returned the highest number of cases of heat-stroke:—Jubbulpore 25 with 2 deaths, Lahore 20 with 3 deaths, Ferozepore 11 with no death.

Poisons.

23. There were 27 cases of poisoning three of which were fatal. Twenty-six were admitted to hospital with 2 deaths. The third death occurred outside hospital (carbon monoxide) and was accidental. In 1914 there were 77 cases and 6 deaths. The admissions were due to the following causes:—Ptomaine poisoning 21, chemical poisoning 2, venom of stinging insects 3.

Of the fatal cases one was due to chloroform poisoning, one to carbon monoxide and one to poisonous food (meat).

VENEREAL DISEASES.

24. The incidence of venereal diseases in the various Divisions and Aden Brigade for the past 5 years is given in the following two tables:—

ALL VENEREAL DISEASES.

Rations per 1,000 of strength.

		1914		1915	
Divisions.		Admissions.	Ratio.	Admissions.	Ratio.
st (Peshawar)	-	 73	21'4	117	30.8
end (Rawalpindi)	14 140	 229	37'9	150	32'3
rd (Lahore) Divisional Area	***	 310	43'3	57	10.1
th (Quetta)		 203 0	43'1	143	33'0
th (Mhow)		 390	586	150	33.1
th (Poona) Divisional Area		 449	74'7	144	32'9
th (Meerut) Divisional Area		 365	51.3	170	36.7
th (Lucknow)		 490	65.7	113	22'3
th (Secunderabad)		 395	59'1	150	34'9
Burma		 295	103'7	93	44'5
Aden Brigade		 74	66.7	10	17'0
Troops marching		 - 72	51.4	9	9.7

ALL VENEREAL DISEASES.

Ratios per 1,000 of strength.

Divisions.		THE	1911	1911 1912 1913		1914	1915
ıst (Peshawar)			36.0	51.6	30.1	21'4	30.8
and (Rawalpindi)			33-9	34'2	30'4	37'9	32.3
3rd (Lahore) Divisional Are	a		44'0	53'0	47'7	43'3	10.1
4th (Quetta)			50.0	39'1	37'2	43'1	33'0
5th (Mhow)			45'2	48.5	48-7	58.6	33.1
6th (Poona) Divisional Area			72.4	64.1	65.6	74'7	32'9
7th (Meerut) Divisional Area		***	49'2	48.1	43'4	51'3	36.7
Sth (Lucknow)			63'7	72.7	73'5	65.7	22'3
gth (Secunderabad)		***	70'9	74'7	62.7	- 59'1	34'9
Burma	573		82.9	84.0	105.1	103.7	44'5
Aden Brigade	- 0.00		44'6	49*8	38.7	66.7	17'0
For whole of Briti	sh troops		53'1	55'5	52.2	55'2	29'1

There were 1,305 admissions from all forms of venereal disease as compared with 3,345 in 1914, a remarkable and satisfactory decrease.

The admissions for each form of venereal disease per 1,000 of strength during each of the past two years are tabulated below:—

	Year.		Syphilis.	Gonorrhæs.	Soft chancre.	All forms of venereal disease.
1914	 	 	10.4	34.6	10'2	55'2
1915	 	 		19.9	5.3	29.1

The following 15 garrisons with a strength of not less than 200 men furnished the highest number of admissions for all forms of venereal disease during the year:—

		Station	15.			Average strength.	Admitted.	Ratios per 1,000 of strength.
-			100		199	-		(position)
Peshawar		***				1,803	56	31.1
Nowshera						1,145	52	45'4
Rawalpindi						2,351	76	32'3
Sialkot						702	32	45'6
Meerut				***		1,190	54	45'4
Agra		***		***		757	36	47.6
Calcutta						722	36	49'9
Quetta .						2,868	69	24'1
Karachi		•••				967	. 50	51.7
Mhow	***	***				1,328	31	23.3
Jhansi			***			1,088	44	40'4
Bombay						977	55	56.3
Secunderabad				•••		2,132	65	30.2
Bangalore						842	40	47'5
Rangoon	***					660	42	63.6

The incidence of venereal diseases during the last 5 years according to the arms of the service is shown in the following table:—

			 VENEREAL DISEA	ON RATIO PER 1,000.	
	Years.		Cavalry.	Artillery.	Infantry.
1911			 48.9	53.8	57'3
1912		***	 56.1	52.4	60.7
1913			 38.1	46.2	59'1
1914			 45.8	48.8	61.6
1915	***		 45'4	42'5	25'3

SYPHILIS.

There was one death from syphilis returned during the year as against 4 in 1914 equivalent to death ratios per 1,000 of '02 and '07, respectively.

INVALIDING.

25. The total number of men invalided during the year was 889 as against 364 in 1914, giving ratios of 19.8 and 6.0 per 1,000 of strength, respectively.

Table showing the number of cases invalided to England for the more important diseases during the years 1906-15.

- 20	1000	44-11	-									01 00		1500	(33)
															-
		-				1905.	1907.	1908.	1909.	1910.	1911.	1912-	1913.	1914.	1915.
-												7			1264
-							-								-
Syphilis						120	76	59	26	18	to	9	13	- 7	6
Malaria						135	274	62	26	5	7	3	5	5	9
Valvular dis	ease of hea	rt and disc	rdered act	ion of hear	rt	222	177	96	71	90	57	61	54	55	181
Debility					181	255	177	70	20	14	5	13	9	.9	39
Tubercle of l	ung			***	***	91	105	72	65	71	55	47	49	27	43
Dysentery		***	***	***		59	49	31	16	9	9	9	7	. 3	3
Insanity						64	69	53	50	37	40	28	44	34	4
Local injurie	28	***	***		•••	66	62	80	35	35	39	42	35	25	35
Rheumatic f	fever includ	ing gout,	osteo-arthr	itis		40	. 30	27	7	4	12	14	17	5	39
Enteric feve		***	***	***	***	115	85	21	9	4	3	60	†2		***
Diseases of r	ervous sys	tem other t	than epilet	psy and me	ental	59	57	44	25	29	23	36	37	14	52
Perforation		77000				51	51	24	23	11	12	15	25	10	17
Diseases of I	the respirat	tory system			***	39	50	30	12	16	15	9	9	4	12
Epilepsy	***	***		***	***	42	.33	35	27	25	30	24	26	20	31
Abscess of li			***	***	***	67	39	31	17	14	2	5	5	7	3
Hepatitis in					***	36	21	23	4	- 9	4	5	5	6	6
Diseases of refraction		ther than	ambiyop	is and err	ors of	29	29	20	16	14	12	16	20	5	32
Diseases of liver, he	digestive sy rnia and ca	stem other	than her	patitis, abs	cess of	56	41	24	11	"	14	9	11	7	40
Bilbarzia ba	ematobia					10	4	2	3	1	1		***		
Diseases of tympan	the ear	other than	perforati	op of mea	brana	38	54	44	26	36	50	29	.49	50	63
Diseases of disease	the circul of heart an	latory sy d disordere	stem other	or than w	alvular d varix.	33	20	18	2	25	10	4	6	9	11
Hernia				***		15	9	10	3	2	3	. 1	3	1	30
Myopia, am and am	etropia, hy aurosis.	permetrop	ia, astigm:	atism, awb	lyopia	23	41	20	10	19	13	6	15	3	55
Gonorrhona		***	***	-	***	11	21	15	8	7	4	2	9	12	3
Varix	-					13	9	6	2	1	3	1	-	***	21
Caries of tee	eth	***				38	31	9	3	3	- 6		1	1	17
Beri-beri		***	***	***		60	5	. 5	3	2	1	***	****		3
Anzemia			-	***		5	7	5	1			1	. ,	1	
All causes	-		-			1,991	1,786	1,074	648	562	512	474	530	354	889
SECRETARIA PROPERTY.	THE RESERVE OF THE PERSON NAMED IN	STREET, SQUARE, SQUARE,	WITH LABOUR PARKET		-	Section .	No.	The same of	Remarks		-			Comment.	The same of the

^{*} Includes 5 form paratyphoid "A."

[†] Both cases are of paratyphoid " A."

The following table shows the number invalided for syphilis and gonorrhœa during the last 10 years :-

			· ·	118		INVALIDS SE	NT HOME.		
		Years.			Svi	HILLS.	GONORPHOEA.		
					Actuals.	Ratio per 1,000.	Actuals	Ratio per 1,000.	
1906			-		120	1'71	11	.16	
1907					76	1,10	21	'30	
1908					59	-86	15	'22	
1909			***	***	26	'36	8	.11	
1910					18	-25	7	10	
1911	***			***	10	14	4	-05	
1912	***	***			9	13	2	703	
1913					13	-18	9	113	
1914	***				7	12	13	120	
1915				***	6	13	3	'07	

The table below contrasts the health of officers with that of non-commissioned officers and men for the last 5 years :-

					RATIO	PER 1,000	OF STREN	GTH.		
		1 12		ADMIS	SIONS.	INVALIDS S	ENT HOME.	DEATHS IN THE COMMAN		
	Yes	118.		Officers.	Non-com- missioned officers and nen-	Officers,	Non-com- missioned officers and men.	Officers.	Non-com- missioned officers and men.	
1911				582-1	524'7	15.78	7.07	8-10	4.89	
1912	***	***	***	597'9	547 9	16-24	6.68	4'39	4.62	
1913	***			\$45'9	5805	14.18	7:49	2.00	3'25	
1914	***	***		536-7	614'1	16.77	6.01	3.83	4'32	
1915	***		***	694'2	823'1	20,10	19.80	7'31	5'95	

The following table gives the incidence of "enterica" among the four groups of officers, non-commissioned officers and men, women, and children, and shows the ratio per 1,000 of strength of admissions and deaths from enteric fever, including paratyphoid fevers " A " and " B " :-

OFFICER		NON-COMMISSIONED OFFICERS AND MEN.		Women.		CHILDREN.	
Admissions.	Deaths.	Admissions	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths.
3-8	4.8	3.7	*36	1.3	.64	3'4	'34

OFFICERS.

26. Forty-two officers were invalided in the period under report, as compared with 35 in 1914. The causes of invaliding were:—Neurasthenia 6; debility 4; pyrexia of uncertain origin, rheumatic fever, tubercle of lungs, gunshot wound 2 each; enteric fever, malaria, inflammation of lymphatic glands, tubercle of bladder, multiple neuritis, choroiditis, lenticular cataract, synchysis, blinding from intense light, arterial sclerosis, valvular disease of heart, disordered action of heart, Raynaud's disease, sprue, bronchitis, emphysema, duodenal ulcer, diarrhæa, calculus in kidney, inflammation of the prostate, synovitis, separation of epiphysis, concussion of brain, one each.

The average strength of commissioned officers with European troops in India during 1915 was 2,080, and among them there were 1,444 admissions with 15 deaths to hospital, as against 1,120 and 8 deaths in 1914, giving admission rates of 694'2 and 536'7 and death rates of 7°21 and 3'83, respectively. The diseases which caused most admissions to hospitals were:—diarrhæa 92, inflammation of connective tissue 75, tonsilitis 62, abrasions or contusions 61, bronchitis 59, malaria 58, sandfly fever 52, sprains and strains 51, jaundice 42, boil 37, myalgia 35, dengue 34, gastritis 33, influenza 29, otitis 28. There were 6 cases of enteric fever and 2 of paratyphoid "A," 3 of pneumonia and 3 of tubercle of lungs. The causes of deaths were fractures 3, heat-stroke 2, enteric, dysentery, apoplexy, cholecystitis, acute nephritis, chronic nephritis, contusion of abdomen with rupture of viscera, dilatation of heart, inflammation of pancreas and gunshot wound, one each.

WOMEN.

27. The average strength of women during 1915 was 1,570 as against 3,772 in the previous year. Their health was satisfactory. There were 733 admissions as contrasted with 1,819 in 1914 or a decrease of 1,086. The ratio of admissions per 1,000 of strength in 1915 was 466'9, while that of 1914 was 482'2. The diseases which caused the highest number of admissions were:—debility 206, malaria 56, bronchitis 21, tonsilitis 17, gastritis 11, inflammation connective tissue 10.

The following table gives the admission and death rates for the last 5 years :-

	Year.						RATIO PER 1,0.0 OF STRENGTH.		
			Year.				Admissions.	Deaths.	
1911	1000						495'8	7'39	
1912	The same of			***		1	510'5	9.16	
1913							526.8	6.31	
1914				· Comme		-	482.2	6:36	
1915	description in						466.9	6:37	

There were 10 deaths as compared with 24 in the previous year. The deaths were due to the following causes:-

Tubercle of the lungs 3, enteric, septicæmia, peurperal fever, carcinoma, valvular disease of heart, dilatation of heart, acute nephritis, and perimetritis, one each. The following table shows the comparative incidence among women and men in respect of the four chief groups of diseases:—

			Admission rate per 1,000 of strength.									
Year,		Enteric fever including paratyphoid.		Dysentery.		Malaria.		Pyrexia of uncertain origin.				
1000			Men.	Women.	Men.	Women.	Men.	Women.	Men.	Women.		
1911			3-8	6.4	7.7	7.1	90'2	26.1	26.4	80		
1912			2.6	7'0	5.3	5'8	82.4	22'4	21'2	10'4		
1913			2'3	3'9	5'4	3'2	125'5	361	156	6.1		
1914			2.9	4'0	6-2	5'3	1628	33'1	10'7	2.4		
1915			37	1'3	5.6	1.3	154'5	357	9.8	1'9		

CHILDREN.

28. The average strength of European soldiers' children during 1915 was 2,025 as compared with 6,465 in the previous year. There were 998 admissions compared with 2,474 in 1914. The admission rates per 1,000 of strength were 341'2 and 382'7, respectively. The diseases which were responsible for the greatest number of admissions were measles 36, bronchitis 117, diarrhæa 80, malaria 100, debility 83, enteritis 39, tonsilitis 44 and chicken-pox 30.

The chief features in connection with the diseases are indicated in the following table :--

		mine will be to the		Admission rates per 1,000 of strength.							
-		Yea.	700 800	Small-pox.	Measles.	Enteric fever.	Dysentery.	Respiratory diseases.			
1911				. 6	66.6	4.3	5.7	319			
1912				2.1	19.2	2.0	3.1	49'5			
1913				-6	27.7	3'7	23	52.7			
1914				•6	39.6	3.3	4.6	48.6			
1915	***				12.3	3'4	41	46.2			

There were 58 deaths as against 150 in 1914, representing mortality ratios of 1983 and 23'20. The causes of deaths were enteritis 12, infantile convulsions 9, diarrhoea 6, premature birth 5, broncho-pneumonia 4, spinal meningitis 3

diphtheria, colitis, and disorders of dentition 2 each and one each from 13 other different diseases.

The following table shows the mortality ratios per 1,000 among children from 1867 to 1915 at different age periods:—

	Y	ear.	Under 6 months.	Between 6 and 12 months.	From 1 to 5 years.
867		1-11-1	 349.8	235.3	114'9
1870			 303.1	222.2	109.7
1873			 330.7	298.6	104.8
1880			 290.8	210'3	75'2
1885			 237'1	175'2	34.1
890			 236.7	* 156.8	35'5
894			 250.6	142.6	31.4
900			 213.7	115.6	34.8
1906			 190.6	87.9	27.5
1910	•••		 135.7	63.9	11.7
912			 142'4	72.8	20'4
913	***		 96.7	39'5	, 11'1
914			 121'4	. 42.8	12.6
915			 98.8	52'1	25.2

8:SC

10

tentering colds and flooders of contains series and one con-

His following to blow the straint at staint party moderning the following follows from

		-		-
	1,260,			
Total .				
	1.00			

SECTION II.

INDIAN ARMY.

(From the Director, Medical Services in India.)

29. The average strength of the Indian troops including those on duty in China and other stations outside India was 119,985 as compared with 125,074 in the previous year. The annexed statement will show at a glance the general position as regards the sickness and mortality in 1915. Each rate was higher than the corresponding rate for 1914 and for the previous quinquennial period.

The following table gives a comparison between the ratios of sickness, mortality and invaliding for the quinquennial period and for the years 1915 and 1914.

				ALL CAUSE	S, RATIO PER M	ILLE.
	Indian	Troops.		1909-1913.	1914.	1915.
Admissions		10		 550.4	566.5	744'4
Constantly sick				 20.2	20'9	33'9
Deaths				 4.69	4.17	8.55
Invalids	900		1	 5.06	7:36	36.23

ADMISSIONS.

30. There were 89,315 admissions from all causes as compared with 70,858 in 1914, giving ratios of 744'4 and 566'5 per 1,000 of strength, respectively.

DEATHS.

31. There were 1,026 deaths, as against 521 last year, representing death rates of 8.55 and 4.17 per 1,000 of strength, respectively.

The table below shows the death rates per 1,000 among Indian troops since 1880 compared with those of British troops in India during the same period:—

			INDIAN	TROOPS.	BRITISH TROOPS.	
	Yes	ar.	Mortality excluding absent deaths based on strength present.	Mortality including absent deaths based on enrolled strength	Death rate per 1,000.	
1880			 39.55	41.13	24.85	
1881			 19:24	22.62	:6.86	
1883			 12'24	14.76	12.07	
1883		•••	 11.76	14:31	10.88	
1884			 10.20	12.33	12.56	
1885		·	 13.67	16.09	14'55	
1886			 13.27	19:46	15.18	
1887		***	 11.68	18.17	14'20	

				Indian	TROOPS.	BRITISH TROOPS.
	Ye	ar.		Mortality excluding absent deaths based on strength present.	Mortality including absent deaths based on enrolled strength.	Death rate per 1,000.
1888				12.84	16.14	14.84
1889				12'94	16.19	16.60
1890				15.91	18.64	13.84
1891				15'44	19'34	15.89
1892				14'97	18-67	1707
1893				10.53	12.81	12.61
1894				10.76	13.59	16.07
1895				11 60	15.71	15.26
1896				10'20	12.57	14.84
1897				13.12	14.90	22.93
1898				11.07	13.33	20'05
1899				10'70	14.20	12.75
1900				14.04	18.57	14.62
1901			•••	10.68	13.89	12:38
1902	1			11.19	15.01	14.68
1903				10.04	16.62	13.02
1904				8.46	12.08	10 83
1905				8.09	9.50	10.02
1906				6.57	8.58	10.43
1907				6.27	8.21	8.18
1908				7.41	8.49	9.73
1909				5.62	6.42	6.25
1910				4.89	7.13	4.66
1911				4.48	6.78	4.89
1912				4.42	5.66	4.62
1913				4.01	4'55	3'26
1914				4.17	3'73	4.32
1915	·			8.55	6.62	5.95

The chief causes of sickness in 1915 were malaria, 17,813 admissions; pyrexia of uncertain origin, 2,675; diseases of the respiratory system, 5,069; diarrhæa, 2,187; venereal diseases, 3,756; dysentery, 2,712; sandfly fever, 1,671; and anæmia and debility, 2,498. The main causes of deaths were:—pneumonia, 314; malaria, 129; enteric fever, 61; cholera, 46; respiratory diseases, 40; and tubercle of the lungs, 38. Pneumonia, which is invariably the chief cause of mortality accounted for nearly one-third of the total

deaths, while malaria came second. Hepatic affections, sandyfly fever and influenza were less prevalent amongst Indian than amongst European troops; on the other hand, the former showed much greater proneness to pneumonia, dysentery, tubercle of lungs, pyrexia of uncertain origin and respiratory diseases.

The statistics of Indian troops located in stations outside India are given in Table XVI. The average strength of troops serving in China was 2,141, their admission rate was 488:6 and the death rate 5:60 per 1,000 of strength. It will thus be seen that on the whole there was less sickness in the China station (Hong Kong) than in India generally. Malaria, respiratory diseases, pyrexia of uncertain origin, anæmia and debility were the chief causes of sickness. There were 1,046 admissions with 12 deaths comprising five from pneumonia, two from anæmia and debility, one from enteric fever and four from other causes.

In the stations of the Aden Brigade (Aden and Khormaksar) the average strength was 587 and the admission and death rates were 1,212.9 and nil, respectively. The chief causes of sickness were sandfly fever and malaria.

The average strength of the stations on the Persian Gulf was 1,342 and the admission and death rates were, respectively, 1,229'2 and 14'90. The prevailing diseases were malaria, diarrhœa, dysentery, anæmia and debility. There were 20 deaths including one each from enteric fever, malaria, pyrexia of uncertain origin, pneumonia, diarrhœa, and anæmia and debility and 14 from all other causes.

The following	table	supplements	the infor	mation giver	in Table XVI.
THE POSTO WITH		ombbiomiconico.	*****	mineral Parion	

	Average strength.	Admission rate.	Death rate.
Aden Brigade	587	1,212.9	Nil.
Persian Gulf	1,342	1,929.2	14'90
Colombo, Diyatalawa and Singapore	847	674.1	t-18
Hong Kong	2,141	488 6	5.60

NORTHERN AND SOUTHERN ARMIES, GROUPS.

32. There was more sickness in the Southern than in the Northern Army, the admission rate of the former being 771'9 as compared with 740'4 in the latter. The death rate of the Southern Army was 6'52 and of the Northern Army 10'08 per 1,000 of strength. The highest admission rates were in Burma Inland, Bengal and Orissa, and Burma Coast and Bay Islands geographical groups.

STATIONS, REGIMENTS.

33. There were 43 stations in India with an average strength of over 1,000, and among these the admission rates per 1,000 of strength were very high in Miranshah, Tank, Poona, Mardan, Jhelum, Loralai, Kirkee and Abbottabad and the death rates were high in Abbottabad, Miranshah, Dera Ismail Khan, Tank, Bannu, Lucknow, Delhi, Lahore Cantonment and Lansdowne. The main causes of the high admission rates were malaria, pyrexia of uncertain origin, sandfly fever and dysentery. The chief cause of the high death rate in all the stations mentioned above

was pneumonia. The following regiments showed the greatest prevalence of disease during the year; the admission and death rates are noted against each in the table given below:—

			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
U	n't.		Station.	Admission rate.	Death rate.
Maria Maria			and the state of	Al London Long	de la constitución de la constit
1-6th Gurkhas		norming ···	Abbottabad	1,451'7	70 05
2-5th Gurkhas		10	Abbottabad	814.9	52.48
1-5th Gurkhas			Campbellpore and Abbottabad.	758.7	32.72
2-6th Gurkhas			Abbottabad	687.1	29 54
Bist Pioneers			Mardan and Now- shera.	512.6	26.59
i4th Pioneers	Zelder	1.	Myitkyina and Mandalay.	1,177'1	2431
52nd Sikhs			Bannu and Miran- sbah.	1,107.6	24.12

During the year 4,383 men were invalided from the service as compared with 920 in 1914. The principal causes of invaliding were anæmia and debility, venereal diseases, rheumatic fever, tubercle of the lungs and malaria.

CHOLERA.

34. There were 82 admissions with 46 deaths as against 71 and 33, respectively, in 1914. There were 80 cases in the Northern and 2 cases in the Southern Army. The most considerable outbreak occurred at Nowshera where 29 cases with 8 deaths were reported from two regiments. The disease broke out in May and September in the 81st Pioneers and the 46th Punjabis. All precautionary measures were taken and the disease was promptly brought under control.

The cause of the outbreak could not be definitely traced.

SMALL-POX.

35. The number of admissions for small-pox was 31 with no death as compared with 32 with one death in the previous year. In no regiment did the disease appear in epidemic form, the largest number in any one station being 3. The 31 cases were spread over 19 stations.

ENTERIC FEVER.

36. There was an increased prevalence of enteric fever among Indian troops as compared with 1914. Admissions numbered 258 as compared with 202; and the number of deaths was 61 as compared with 41. The cases were scattered over 58

stations. Those stations which suffered most severely were:—Bannu—49 admissions and 10 deaths; Miranshah—41 admissions and 10 deaths; Kohat—18 admissions and 2 deaths; Sialkot and Muscat with 11 cases and 1 death each. The following units suffered most severely: 30 cases with 6 deaths in the 52nd Sikhs, 20 cases with 8 deaths in the 10th Jats, 18 cases with 2 deaths in the 26th Punjabis, 15 cases with 3 deaths in the 2-4th Gurkha Rifles, and 14 cases with 1 death in the 116th Mahrattas. The source of infection, as is usual amongst Indian troops, could not be definitely traced, but appears to have been attributable to the easy access to foul water. The disease was most prevalent in the summer months of the year when flies and dust may have been partly responsible for its spread.

The diagnosis of most of the cases of enteric fever was confirmed by blood culture or Widals' test, and urine and fæces were also examined when necessary.

It will be seen from the accompanying table that Gurkhas usually show a greater predisposition to this disease than other Indian and British troops.

Discourse and the same and the	Years.		ERITISH Admissions.	TROOPS. Deaths.	Indian 1	Deaths.	GURK	Deaths.
end days	ad good	ACCE OF THE PARTY OF	Admissions.	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths.
					A COLUMN TO STATE OF	with the lite	DOWN SHE	
1909			8.9	1.28	2.2	'43	2.1	*95
1910			4'6	•63	2'5	2'44	6.1	1.07
1911			3.8	*33	2.3	*42	5.3	1'22
1912			2.6	'39	1.8	*47	33	-84
1913	-		2.3	*25	1.6	'23	2'9	.20
1914	***	ş	2'9	*21	1.6	*33	40	182
915	(3.7	-36	2.2	*51	2.4	-65

The Senior Medical Officer, Kohat, states that in March a Dogra sepoy admitted in the hospital was found to be suffering from enteric fever. The Gurkhas occupied the Chamberlain Lines. In April two more cases occurred in the same lines—one Dogra and one Gurkha, who had recently come to the station. In all 6 cases of typhoid and 12 cases of paratyphoid were admitted during the year under report. The disease was confined to the sepoys living in the Chamberlain Lines. Much time was spent in investigating the origin of the disease. The water from the stream and bathing tank, the milk, meat and fish, from the lines to which the disease was confined, were examined without result. The cooks, bunniahs, sweepers and others were brought to hospital, and their stools were examined and cultured in the usual way. After many days' hard work two typhoid carriers were found in the lines, one a sweet-seller and the other a butcher. These men were isolated, and all other possible precautions were taken to prevent the spread of the disease.

Anti-enteric inoculation.—This preventive measure continues to make fair progress among Indian troops. In some regiments practically all the men of the battalion were inoculated. The exact figures as to the number of men inoculated against enteric fever during the year are not available, owing to withdrawal of regiments for field service and their repeated movements from one station to another.

MALARIA.

37. There were 17,813 admissions and 129 deaths as compared with 14,114 cases and 29 deaths in 1914. This represents an admission rate of 148.5 per 1,000 of strength and a death rate of 1.08 as compared with 112.8 and 23 in 1914. The increase was due to the increased prevalence of the disease in the Northern Army.

The highest admission rates (in stations where the average strength was over 200) were reported from Muscat (1,654.2), Hangu (630.6), Shillong (618.3), Myitkyina (508.6), Miranshah (474.4), Abbottabad (436.2), Tank (434.3) and Thayetmyo (432.6).

Muscat.—There were 1,459 admissions with one death as against 501 and no death in 1914. A scrutiny of the meteorological records seems to show that although Muscat is situated in the sub-tropical zone, its temperature conditions are those associated with a tropical climate. Active breeding by anophelines has been proved to take place practically throughout the year and since the atmospheric temperature rarely falls below 60° F., it may be assumed that, so far as temperature conditions are concerned, infection and reinfection may be acquired at all seasons of the year.

Hangu.—There were 321 admissions from malaria in the year under report.

The land in the neighbourhood of the Hangu Camp is heavily irrigated, which affords many suitable breeding grounds for mosquitos. Quinine was issued as a prophylactic, in doses of ten grains of the sulphate in solution, from May to November 1915.

Shillong.—Admissions 452 (Gurkhas 70 and 123rd Rifles 382) against 351 last year (Gurkha Rifles 165 and 123rd Rifles 196). The disease was confined to men returning from recruiting duties and recruits coming from the depôt of the 123rd Rifles at Mhow. Almost all cases were of the benign tertian variety.

Myitkyina.—Admissions 177 with 6 deaths as against 350 with 3 deaths during 1914. Owing to non-receipt of 'medical transactions' from Myitkyina there is nothing special to remark.

Miranshah .- Cases 611, deaths 8. The units that suffered most were :-

10th Jats, 200 cases, 4 deaths; 52nd Sikhs, 146 cases, 2 deaths; 116th Mahrattas, 134 cases and no death; 25th Cavalry, 44 cases, 1 death; 29th Mountain Battery, 41 cases, 1 death; 26th Punjabis, 41 cases, no death; Frontier Garrison Artillery, 5 cases, no death. The Jats and the 52nd Sikhs suffered much in previous years from malaria, the former in Hyderabad and Jhansi, and the latter in the Bannu Brigade; but the 116th had practically no malaria the year before, and comparatively little in 1913, both years in Jhansi. All the three corps most affected had occupied camps or outposts in the Tochi

Valley and elsewhere, which are notoriously malarious, but Miranshah appears to have been the worst station. Most cases were mild, but severe and persistent cases, with temperatures running up to 105°, accompanied by delirium and with subsequent debility, were frequent. Practically all cases of pyrexia had their blood microscopically examined one or more times. Benign tertian parasites were most frequent but malignant tertian were also found. There was at least one quartan case, in the 116th Mahrattas.

Abbottabad.—Malaria was very prevalent throughout the autumn. The number of admissions during the year was 1,416. The figure though large does not give a true estimate of the extent of the disease, and the degree to which it permeated all ranks. As many cases could not be admitted to the overcrowded hospital, they had to be treated in special segregation camps. The Gurkha battalions in particular suffered severely from this disease. In all severe cases, blood smears were examined microscopically but parasites were not found in as large a proportion of cases as might be expected.

Malaria accounted for 60 deaths. Invalid and segregation camps were established to endeavour to prevent the spread of the epidemic and to hasten the recovery of those affected. Quinine was given intramuscularly and intravenously but with doubtful benefit. Sulphate of quinine was administered as a prophylactic in 10 grain doses on two consecutive days each week and afterwards, during September and October, it was administered in 5 grain doses daily. At first all cases of malaria were treated in a special ward under mosquito curtains, but as the epidemic assumed larger proportions the malaria cases overflowed into every ward and filled each tent.

Tank.—There were 720 admissions from malaria as compared with 282 in 1914. Prophylactic issue of quinine was adopted during the hot weather.

Thayetmyo—Malaria was the most prevalent disease among the sepoys, especially among the Pioneers. There were 152 cases and 2 deaths among the 64th Pioneers and 29 cases among the 91st Punjabis. This high figure is due to the Pioneers having been in a malarious area before they arrived in Thayetmyo. They were on road construction duty in the jungle in Myitkyina and were more or less saturated with malaria before their arrival.

Malignant tertian and benign tertian parasites were found in a fair number of cases. They had been getting quinine and so it was difficult to find parasites in all the cases. Most cases yielded to quinine, but some were rather obstinate in their course. These yielded to arsenic and quinine internally with hypodermic injections of quinine. The Pioneers were put on prophytactic quinine in ten grain doses four times a week. The Punjabis and Carnatics were on quinine on two consecutive days in the week for part of the year. This prophylactic quinine had a decided effect in checking the disease.

PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIGIN.

38. There were 2,675 admissions for pyrexia of uncertain origin with 26 deaths as against 4,436 and 15, respectively, in 1914. The highest number of admissions occurred in the following stations:—Jhelum (353), Tank (320), Rawalpindi (277), Fort William (173), Peshawar (150), and Lahore Cantonment (133).

The units with the largest number of admissions were:—The 16th Rajputs, consisting of a large percentage of recruits and reservists, had 183 admissions and were stationed at Fort William throughout the year. The disease known in Calcutta as "3 days' fever" was the cause of the large number of admissions under this heading. As it is not recognised in the official nomenclature the cases of fever of 3 days' and 5 days' duration, were all designated pyrexia of uncertain origin. The signs and symptoms of these cases showed a great resemblance to a mild form of influenza. The occurrence of this fever in the months of July, August, September and October exhibits a seasonal prevalence in Calcutta similar to that of dengue.

The 97th Infantry at Tank and Dera Ismail Khan had 155 admissions with one death. The 87th Punjabis at Tank and Zam and the 84th Punjabis at Rawalpindi had 141 and 131 admissions, respectively.

SANDFLY FEVER.

39. There were 1,671 cases of sandfly fever as against 1,483 in 1914. The disease was reported from 33 stations and the largest number of admissions occurred in:—Miranshah 323, Bannu 258, Peshawar 237, Aden 179, Kohat 125, Mardan 113, Kila Drosh 104. The disease is in itself not of great importance but it lowers the resisting power and vitality of the sufferers and thus complicates any concomitant disease.

The units which suffered most were:—The 116th Mahrattas at Bannu and Miranshah who admitted 361 cases in all. They did not appear to suffer notably in Bannu, but got sharp attacks on arrival in Miranshah Previous attacks conferred no immunity; on the contrary they seemed to render certain individuals more liable to subsequent attacks.

Although no fatality resulted from sandfly fever, some cases, especially in the autumn, gave cause for anxiety—high temperatures, diarrhœa, epistaxis, prostration and collapse having to be carefully combated. Most cases were of the three day type but some with more prolonged temperature (4 to 7 days) were observed.

The 109th Infantry at Aden admitted 161 cases. As the result of an extraordinary amount of rain in the winter, a succulent green plant covered what are
usually the very barren hills of Aden. Coincidentally with this the place became
infested with the sandfly to an extent unknown in previous years. This resulted in
a large outbreak of three days' sandfly fever with typical symptoms of frontal
beadache, pain and injection of eyes, and body pains. There was no rash discoverable on the bodies of Indians. This fever occurred chiefly in the early months
January, February and March. The plague of sandflies became so severe at one
time that sleep at night became nearly impossible.

The 21st Punjabis at Peshawar had 135 admissions. All the cases occurred during the hot months. The disease was most prevalent during May and June and disappeared in the cold weather.

The Queen Victoria's Own Corps of Guides at Mardan accounted for 113 admissions from sandfly fever against one in 1914.

The 2-1st Gurkhas at Drosh and Chitral admitted 115 cases during 1915.

DENGUE.

40. There were 181 cases attributed to dengue as against 544 last year. Only 16 cases occurred in the Northern Army; the rest of the cases were recorded in the Southern Army. The disease was reported from 14 stations, the largest number of admissions occurring in the following stations:—Thayetmyo 89, Trichinopoly 39, Rangoon 12, Mandalay 9. The Medical Officer, Thayetmyo, states that no parasites were found in the blood. The cases ran a temperature from 3 to 7 days, with pain in the joints and frontal headache. Most of the cases had a slow pulse in proportion to the temperature. A few had a rash on the chest: quinine had no effect on the disease.

MALTA FEVER.

41. There were only 32 admissions of Malta fever with one death as compared with 32 cases and no death during the previous year. The unit which had the largest number of admissions was the 45th Sikhs at Dera Ismail Khan who reported 23 cases. About a third of this number were admitted in January. The type of the disease was severe. Most of the patients were ineffective throughout the year. Relapses were common. There was one death, and two men were invalided. The medical officer attributes the outbreak to the ease with which goats' milk was obtainable and the preference of the men for drinking it unboiled. Every effort was made in the regiment to cut off the supply of unboiled goats' milk.

KALA-AZAR.

42. There were 8 cases of this disease with 4 deaths as in the previous year. The disease was reported from the following 6 stations:—Abbottabad and Dehra Dun 2 each, Ambala, Dinapore, Quetta and Deoli one each.

RELAPSING FEVER.

43. There was a marked decrease in the incidence of relapsing fever. The total number of admissions during the year was only 3 with 2 deaths as compared with 41 admissions and one death last year.

BERI BERI.

44. Admissions for beri beri rose from 7 in 1914 to 59 in the year under report; 26 of the cases occurred at Trichinopoly, 13 at Baroda, 8 at Bangalore, 5 at Thayetmyo, 3 at Mandalay, and 2 cases each at Secunderabad and Bannu.

PLAGUE.

45. There were 24 admissions on account of plague with 8 deaths as against 13 admissions and 7 deaths in 1914. In only one unit, the 5th Cavalry at Rawalpindi, did the disease threaten to become epidemic, 10 cases with one death having occurred in that regiment. The disease was reported from 13 stations.

SCURVY.

46. This disease accounted for 238 admissions and 5 deaths as compared with 81 admissions and 2 deaths in 1914. The largest number of admissions were reported from Jandola 83, Karachi 30, Chaman 17, Ahmednagar 16 and Tank 15.

The 83 cases that occurred in Jandola were admitted into hospital during the last two weeks of the year. The occurrence of such a large number of cases in an outpost with a strength of 138 men and within a very short period of two weeks, must not be taken to mean that scurvy broke out suddenly here. The first weekly inspection was held and 34 men were noticed as suffering from scurvy 12 of whom said they contracted the disease at Jandola. During the next weekly inspection 49 more cases were recognized of which there were only 5 whose disease originated at Jandola. The remaining cases, 66 in all, were among men who had been transferred here from other outposts. The rations of the sepoys were defective though in other respects they live under very good hygenic conditions, having enough exercise and fresh air, and with nothing to depress their vitality. To make good the defect in the rations one ounce lime juice is issued thrice a week.

TUBERCLE OF THE LUNGS.

47. There were 332 admissions with 38 deaths attributed to tubercle of the lungs as compared with 270 and 29 in 1914. This disease continues to be one of the prominent causes of mortality and invaliding in the Indian Army. The stations which suffered most were:—Dehra Dun, 23 admissions with 7 deaths; Peshawar, 23 admissions with 2 deaths; Jhelum, 23 admissions with no death; Abbottabad, 21 admissions with one death; Bareilly, 17 admissions, Mardan, 14 admissions; and Bannu, 13 admissions.

The largest number of admissions to hospital in any regiment during the year was 12 in the 1-2nd Gurkhas at Dehra Dun. The next largest numbers in individual regiments were 9 in the 2-5th Gurkhas at Abbottabad and 7 in 1-6th Gurkhas at Abbottabad and Campbellpore.

It will be seen from the table given below that the Gurkha shows a much greater predisposition to this disease than other Indian troops. The admissions and deaths amongst Gurkhas numbered 61 and 21, respectively, during the year under report.

THUDDON	POP	TREETS F	TINTON .	DAMIA	PER Loop.
I U DESERVA	- 17 5 3 27	I PRINT		PC A I III	PER LOOP.

				ARMY	P INDIA.	GURE	HAS.	EXCLUDING GURKHAS		
	Ye	ar,		Admis- sions.	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Admis- sion s	Deaths.	
1906				2.2	'52	5'2	2'41	2	*29	
1907	***	***	***	2.2	'33	4.8	1'03	2'3	.54	
1908	'-			- 3.0	.42	50	1.43	2.7	*28	
1909	****			2.3	.39	4.0	1'34	2'1	-26	
1910	***	***		2'4	.19	3.6	.20	2.3	15	
1911			***	2.1	*21	3.6	.70	1.0	14	
1912		***		2'0	*24	4.1	-84	17	.16	
1913				1.8	*24	27	*94	1.6	'15	
1914		***		2 2	'23	4'5	1.03	1.8	*13	
1915		***		2.8	*32	4'4	1'51	2.6	*16	

PNEUMONIA.

48. This disease accounted for 1,547 admissions and 314 deaths as against 910 admissions and 136 deaths in 1914. For many years this disease has been the chief cause of mortality amongst Indian troops. The stations principally affected were Bannu (112 cases and 23 deaths), Peshawar (89 cases and 16 deaths), Quetta (68 cases and 21 deaths), Kohat (58 cases and 7 deaths), Rawalpindi (53 cases and 12 deaths), Dehra Dun (49 cases and 3 deaths), Dera Ismail Khan (47 cases and 19 deaths), Jullundur (46 cases and 4 deaths) and Tank (44 cases and 10 deaths). The units which suffered most were the 10th Jats and the 52nd Sikhs (both at Bannu and Miraushah) 55 and 41 cases, respectively; the Queen Victoria's Own Corps of Guides at Mardan 39 cases; the 30th Punjabis at Delhi and Tank (31); the 2-9th Gurkha Rifles at Dehra Dun and Delhi (28); and the 97th Infantry at Dera Ismail Khan and Khajuri Kutch (25).

The disease was less prevalent than in the previous year in only two of the geographical groups, and the highest admission rates for the year were recorded in the North-Western Rajputana group (18.7 per 1,000) and the Upper Sub-Himalayas (16.0 per 1,000).

The pneumonia admission and death rates of the Northern Army were nearly double those of the Southern Army.

DYSENTERY.

49. There were 2,712 admissions with 24 deaths from dysentery as contrasted with 1,781 admissions and 10 deaths in 1914. The highest admission rates were reported from Miranshah, Tank, Shillong, Alipore, Thayetmyo, Bannu and Sanka Cruz, the admission rates in these stations varying between 250.8 and 52.1 per 1,000. As regards the prevalence of the disease in regiments, 174 and 114 cases occurred in the 10th Jats and the 52nd Sikhs, respectively, (both stationed at Miranshah and Bannu) and 110 cases in the 87th Punjabis at Tank and Zam.

Dysentery prevailed most extensively in Miranshah (323 cases). The form of the disease appears to have been mostly bacillary, some medical officers believing that only about 4 per cent. were amæbic, but heavy work prevented systematic microscopic examination of cases.

COLITIS.

50. There has been an increase of 382 cases and one death in the figures for colitis during the year under review, the number of admissions being 1,213 with 3 deaths as against 831 with 2 deaths in 1914.

The stations showing the greatest number of admissions were Peshawar 130, Nowshera 99, Mhow 88, and Kirkee 80.

VENEREAL DISEASES.

51. During 1915 there were 3,756 admissions and 4 deaths amongst Indian troops as compared with 1,945 admissions and 4 deaths in the previous year. The ratios per 1,000 of strength were 31'3 for admissions and '03 for deaths as against 15'6 and '03 for 1914. As has been noted the Southern Army suffers more from such

diseases than does the Northern Army. The highest number of cases were reported from:—Jhelum 167 admissions, Peshawar 150, Poona 141, Secunderabad 139, Ambala 136, Dehra Dun and Karachi 121 each, Bangalore 113, Quetta 112 and Rawalpindi 107.

The statement below contrasts the admission rates from venereal diseases among Indian and European troops.

		VENEREAL DISEASES ADMISSION RATE				
		200 200	Indian Troops.	European Troops		
1906				 	16.3	117'3
1907			***	 	14.7	8919
1908				 	15.2	69.6
1909				 	16.4	67-8
1910				 	16.9	58.9
911				 	14.9	53.1
912				 	14'4	55'5
913				 	12.6	52.5
914				 	15.6	55'2
915				 	31.3	291

SUICIDE.

52. The total number of suicides during 1915 was 15 as compared with 10 in 1914. Of these 6 were by gunshot, four by hanging, two by opium poisoning, one by drowning, one by jumping out of a railway carriage and one probably suicidal (exact cause unknown).

GUINEA-WORM DISEASE.

53. Guinea-worm was responsible for 643 admissions as compared with 256 in 1914. The following stations returned the highest number of admissions:—Ferozepore 63 admissions, Bannu 59, Dacca 58, Jhelum and Poona 42 each, Lahore Cantonment and Belgaum 27 each, and Kirkee 20. The Medical Officer, Bannu, states that most of the cases occurred in the 116th Mahrattas. The infection must have been contracted at their homes in the Deccan where the disease is common and where dirty water from pools and tanks is used indiscriminately for drinking purposes.

ANKYLOSTOMIASIS.

54. There were 41 admissions with one death ascribed to ankylostomiasis. The highest number of cases occurred in the Malakand and Fort Lockhart stations (10 cases each).

COMMISSIONED BRITISH OFFICERS.

55. The average annual strength of British commissioned officers with Indian troops during 1915 was 1,349. The total admissions from all causes among them were 809 with 13 deaths as compared with 631 and 10 deaths in 1914.

The principal causes of admissions were:—malaria 132, sandfly fever 53, pyrexia of uncertain origin 37, diarrhoea 29, and dysentery 20. There were 12 admissions with 5 deaths from enteric fever among British officers attached to Indian troops. The admission and death rates from enteric fever as compared with officers with British troops were in the year under report:—British officers attached to Indian troops admission rate 8.9, death rate 3.71 per mille; British officers with British troops, admission rate 3.8, death rate 0.48.

8ISC 74

Contraction of the property of the party of THE RESIDENCE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY O which there were present to the following the distance of the party of (source) or a destinate of the section of the secti

SECTION III.

GENERAL POPULATION

AGRICULTURAL CONDITIONS.

56. The year 1915 opened with an absence of famine conditions. The cold weather rains were plentiful in January and February over the greater part of the country. The hot weather rains in March—May were also in excess. The monsoon current, on which so much depends, was late in becoming established; north-west India had but little rain till the end of August when matters improved and much needed rain fell in September and the first half of October. The total rainfall of the period June—September was in defect over most of northern India but above normal in the Peninsula. A small area in Bengal and Bihar and Orissa was visited by drought. The rainfall from October to December was either normal, or in excess of normal, in most parts of the country. The total rainfall of the year was two per cent in excess of normal on the plains of India.

The total outturn of wheat was 6.7 per cent in excess of the quinquennial average and was a record one. The seasonal conditions were everywhere favourable for this crop except in Bengal and Bihar and Orissa where, however, the wheat crop is not of much importance. Conditions were not so favourable to the rice crop which fell short of the previous year's outturn by 2.9 per cent. Sugarcane had a decreased acreage but in spite of this the yield was higher than in the previous year and in excess of the quinquennial average. The oilseed crops did fairly well.

BIRTHS AND DEATHS.

57. Below is given in tabular form the total number of births and deaths registered in each administration in India in the year under report:—

		BIRTHS.		T				P DEATHS I		MEAN DEATH RATE DURING PREVIOUS FIVE TEARS.		
Frevince.	Total number,	Ratio per 1,000 of popu- lation.	Mean ratio during previous five years.	In municipa- lities and towns,	In districts excluding towns,		In municipa lities and towns.	In districts dexcloding towns,	Total,	In municipa- lities and towns.	In districts excluding towns.	Total,
Beibi	19,060	47'91		7,703	4,368	12,071	34'15	22.85	38'07			
DE TOTAL CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE PART	1,441,638	31.80	34'53	71,835	1,410,731	1,438,167	24"70	53"30	31.83	24'06	39'69	99'33
Bengal Bihar and Orissa	1,396,805	40'4	41'0	25,074	1,075,851	1,111,935	30'9	3273	31.3	30"2	31.6	31,2
Assam	203,336	33'60	32'39	3,556	183,193	186,778	30,03	30 83	30*36	21'46	25'18	26'18
United Provinces of Agra and Oodh,	2,036,121	43"48	44'55	127,535	1,279,208	1,405,743	41*24	29*13	30.04	43'19	25'93	35'37
Punjah	843,00	43.6	44'9	63,174	639,376	702,550	35'17	35°35	30.33	34'97	30'88	31,12
North-West Frontier Prevince	64,764	317	25'3	5,395	42,799	48,194	35.31	23"14	23'61	25'15	24'37	24'44
Central Provinces and Berar	667,340	47'95	50,12	55,603	443,079	499,681	44'29	35'05	35'91	41*25	37'45	37'77
Madras Presidency	1,249,434	31'3	31,1	125,850	753,081	879,950	39.3	21'4	33.0	28'5	13'1	23'7
Coorg	4,433	25*33	25'44	445	4,993	5,438	44'58	30125	31'05	54'22	34'35	35'42
Bombay Presidency	725,780	37'10	35'14	95,251	415,352	511,613	30728	15.31	25'12	33'78	23107	29'93
(Lower	204,822	33,36	23760	25,393	118,695	154,087	32'62	24'03	35'12	35'65	22'79	24'48
Burma {Upper	141,428	38.01	35'35	16,002	105,670	121,762	50'23	31'07	31.72	41'84	25*78	38.11
Ajmer-Merwara	31,953	43 78	44.01	Not avail	able	13,052	Not avail	able	16'03	Not avail	able	36.86
Beitish India	9,021,825	37.82	30'20	636,965	6,493,395	7,142,418	32'15	1975	19'94	33"43	30'45	30.70

The birth rate for British India as a whole was 37.82 per mille which is 1.8 less than in 1914 and 1.4 lower than the quinquennial mean. The Central Provinces returned the highest rate 47.95 per mille, closely followed by Delhi, 47.91. Among the major provinces the birth rate was lowest in Madras 31.2, the North-West Frontier Province 31.7 and Bengal 31.8. With the exception of Assam and Upper Burma, all administrations reported lower birth rates in 1915 than in the preceding year. The death rate exceeded the birth rate in Bengal and, as usual, in the small province of Coorg. Everywhere else the natural increase of population was considerable, greatest in Delhi, Ajmer-Merwara, the United Provinces, the Central Provinces and Bombay where the excess of births over deaths amounted to 18.95, 17.7, 13.4, 12 and 11.0 per mille, respectively. In Assam the births exceeded the deaths by only 2.8 per mille.

The death rate for British India as a whole amounted to 29'94 per mille which is '06 lower than in the previous year and 0'76 lower than the quinquennial mean. The lowest death rate, 22 per mille, was, as usual, recorded in Madras. The North-West Frontier Province takes second place with 23'61. The Punjab returned the highest death rate, 36'33 per mille closely followed by the Central Provinces with 35'91. The Punjab, Bengal, Burma, Bihar and Orissa, and Assam all had increased death rates as compared with the previous year: the remaining seven administrations returned lower rates. Most noteworthy is the fall in the death rate of Delhi Province from 37'98 in 1914 to 28'97 per mille in the year under report. The Assam death rate was 6'2 per mille in excess of that of 1914.

The urban death rate for India as a whole was 32'15 per mille as compared with 29'75 the rural rate. Both rates are lower than the quinquennial means.

CHIEF DISEASES.

58. Below are tabulated the number of deaths ascribed to each of six important causes of mortality:—

			Caora	ERA.	SHALL	POX.	PLA	ows.	FEVERS	FEVERS, DYSENTERY RESPIRATORY DISEASES.					ALL OTHER CAUSES.		
Province,			Totas deaths.	Ratio per 1,000	Total deaths.	Ratio per 1,000	Total deaths.	Ratio per 1,000	Total deaths	Ratio per 1,000	Total deaths.	Ratio per 1,000	Total deaths.	Ratio per 1,000	Total deaths.	Ratio per 1,000.	
Delbi			92	.33	. 14	*03	8	101	6,716	16,11	256	-63	3,544	874	7,331	3'1	
Bengal	***		130,679	2'38	12,585	*72	199	*004	1,064,159	23'47	28,919	*63	11,733	0-25	210,093	4'8	
Bihar and	Orlesa	***	88,310	2'5	15,525	*4	27,241	7	696,839	30.3	32,940	'9	6,915	'3	244,055	7	
Assam	***	***	25,979	4'45	4,075	.67	200	***	91,739	15'16	16,122	2-66	4,732	"78	43,130	7*1	
United P	rovinces and Oudh	of.	90,508	1,93	2,304	*05	58,118	1'24	937,299	20'44	19,477	'41	24,235	*51	354,791	5'4	
Punjab		***	13,195	'68	1,694	-09	221,955	11'48	284,784	14'73	13,558	*65	47,193	2'44	121,150	6'1	
North-We Provis		tler	932	*45	26	. *01	340	'17	35,518	17:89	481	*34	1,601	-78	8,295	44	
Central P Berar.		and	5,662	*41	1,151	*08	20,254	1146	237,834	17'09	45,122	3,31	44,155	3'17	244,494	10"	
Madras Pr	residency	-	30,098	+8	24,038	*6	3,830	"1	290,228	7"3	61,057	1-5	41,113	1'0	430,537	10	
Coong	***			***	23	*13	1	*01	4,549	15'00	105	*60	44	*25	715	40	
Bombay F	residency		377	*01	1,425	*07	43,814	2'24	324,797	11'48	31,707	1'62	63,354	3'23	145,119	7'4	
Burma		wer	* 8,200	1"34	202	'03	3,891	147	50,554	8'24	8,159	1'33	5,405	*88	78,557	12'6	
-		PEF	9,188	3.23	15	.00	1,749	*47	33,685	9'05	3,427	'92	3,124	-84	70,373	18'9	
A jmer-Me	rwara		3	10.	3	10*			10,585	31.11	450	*93	403	.50	1,600	3"1	
Dritish In-	dla 5191	5	404,473	1"70	83,282	*35	380,501	1.00	3,990,287	15.73	251,800	1,10	157,721	1'08	1,754,349	74	
DETENDED BUT		4	280,730	1,18	75,590	*12	266,588	1'13	4,091,345	17'16	278,225	1'17	251,149	1'00	1,900,144	7'9	

Cholera.—Cholera was more prevalent than in any year since 1912. The increase chiefly affected Bengal, Bihar and Orissa, Assam, the United Provinces, and Burma. Madras, Bombay, and the Central Provinces had a markedly decreased incidence as compared with the previous year. Assam was the chief sufferer: here cholera was responsible for a death rate of 4:46 per mille. This is a higher cholera death rate than has been reported by any administration for very many years and is more than three times the death rate from cholera returned by British India as a whole. Bengal 2:88, Upper Burma 2:52, Bihar and Orissa 2:5, and the United Provinces 1:93 come next. With the exception of Lower Burma, 1:34, all the other administrations returned cholera death rates below one per mille. Coorg had no cholera at all and Bombay's mortality from cholera amounted to '02 per mille, a remarkably low figure representing as it does only 377 deaths throughout the year.

Small-pox.—Small-pox was responsible for 83,282 deaths which represents a rate of 0.35 per mille. This figure closely approximates the normal: the mean small-pox death rate for the previous quinquennium was 0.32. Bengal and Bihar and Orissa were responsible for more than half the small-pox of India. Bengal was the chief sufferer and had a death rate of 0.72 per mille. The North-West Frontier Province returned only 26 deaths and Upper Burma, with 15 deaths, was likewise almost free from this disease. Vaccination in India is considered in Section V of this report.

Plague.—Plague had an increased mortality as compared with the previous year being responsible for a death rate of 1.6 per mille as compared with 1.12 in 1914, 0.83 in 1913, 1.10 in 1912, and 3.07 in 1911. The Punjab was by far the worst infected province, in fact 58 per cent of the total plague deaths of British India were reported from the Punjab. The Punjab plague deaths amounted to 11.5 per mille. Bombay came second with 2.24. The Central Provinces and the United Provinces returned plague mortality rates of 1.5 and 1.2, respectively. In no other province did the rate approach unity. Assam and Ajmer-Merwara were quite free from the disease. In Bengal, Delhi, Coorg and the North-West Frontier Province plague was almost a negligible factor in the vital statistics in the year under report. The outstanding features of the epidemics will be considered in more detail when the various provinces are receiving separate consideration. The Punjab, United Provinces and Bombay excepted, India suffered but little from the ravages of plague in 1915. In British India taken as a whole plague was a less important cause of mortality than was cholera.

Fevers.—Once more, more than half the total deaths in India were ascribed to "fevers," a comprehensive term that includes a multitude of diverse complaints. The "fever" death rate in British India amounted to 16.73 per mille as compared with 17.16 in 1914. This figure remains about the same year after year: during the last five years the lowest rate reported is 16.5 and the highest 17.5. In the year under report the larger administrations returned fever death rates ranging from 7.3 per mille in Madras to 23.47 in Bengal. That is to say, 71 per cent of the total deaths of Bengal were ascribed to "fever" whereas only 33 per cent were so ascribed in Madras. Year after year in this report emphasis has been laid on the fact that it is quite impossible in the present state of our knowledge to hazard even an intelligent guess as to the proportion of fever deaths that are rightly attributable, either directly or indirectly, to malaria, in the various administrations of India. We will revert to this topic again later on. The Government of India are very fully

alive to the urgent need for improvement in the methods of registration of vital statistics now in vogue. The matter would ere this have received a good deal of the attention that it deserves had it not been for the disorganization that has inevitably resulted from the war.

Dysentery and diarrhea.—Dysentery and diarrhea were responsible for a death rate of 1'1 per mille, an almost exactly similar figure to that returned for the previous year. The mortality rate attributed to these conditions is also remarkably constant year after year. The highest rate returned in 1915 was 3'3 per mille in the Central Provinces and the lowest 0'24 in the North-West Frontier Province. Nine of the fourteen provinces returned a rate below one per mille.

Respiratory diseases.—Respiratory disease is another heterogeneous assortment of pathological conditions about which it is not possible to make any dogmatic assertions. As a cause of mortality it generally approximates in importance the group "dysentery and diarrhœa" that we have just discussed. In Bengal and Bihar and Orissa, and generally in the United Provinces, "respiratory disease" is a very unimportant item in the vital statistics. In the Central Provinces, Bombay and the Punjab, on the other hand, it is by no means a negligible factor. In the year under report it was the cause of a death rate of 8.7 in Delhi Province, of 3.2 in Bombay and the Central Provinces, of 2.4 in the Punjab, and one per mille in Madras. All the other administrations returned rates of less than unity. One cannot escape the conviction that the apparent geographical distribution of the pathological conditions, that should be included under this head, are in large part due to the varying methods of registration of vital statistics that are in force in the different provinces.

DELHI.

59. The province of Delhi has a population of 416,656 of which only 191,185 dwell in rural areas. The vital statistics of this province can therefore hardly be compared with those of other Indian provinces in which so relatively small a proportion live in towns. The health of the province was good. The birth rate was 47'9 per mille and the death rate 29 to which it fell from 38 in 1914, a most remarkable decrease. There were 105 male births recorded for every hundred female.

December was the month of maximum mortality, when the deaths reported were more than twice as numerous as in February, the healthiest month. No infectious disease gave rise to anxiety; there being only 92 deaths from cholera, 14 from small-pox and 8 from plague.

In Delhi City the infantile mortality rate showed a remarkable decrease. The infantile death rates for the past three years are:—1913, 346; 1914, 313; 1915, 249 per thousand births. The attention that has been paid to the sanitation of Delhi City during the last few years has already resulted in a most notable improvement in health conditions.

BENGAL.

60. The rainfall in the year under report was above normal in twenty of the twenty-seven districts; it was irregularly distributed however, and the agricultural outturn was below normal in the majority of the districts.

The provincial birth rate declined from 33'8 in 1914 to 31'8, a figure which is nearly 3 per mille below the mean of the previous quinquennium. The birth rate varied in districts between 18'5 in Calcutta and 43 in Noakhali. The rural birth

rate was as usual much in excess of the urban rate. There were 107 male births for every hundred female.

A still further rise in the death rate from 31.57 to 32.83 per mille, which is 3.5 above the quinquennial mean, was recorded in 1915. Thus the recorded death rate exceeded the birth rate by one per mille. The district death rate was lowest in Tippera, 22.77, and highest in Murshidabad, 45.21. The urban death rate was 24.7 per mille, an exactly similar figure to that for 1914: the rural rate was 33.4 against 32 in the previous year. While the urban rate varies but little year after year, the rural rate in 1915 was 3.7 higher than the mean of the previous five years. The male death rate was one per mille in excess of the female rate.

Once again, November and December were the months of greatest mortality. In each of these months more than twice as many deaths were reported as in July, the month when fewest deaths occurred. The onset of the cold weather in Bengal is generally accompanied by an increased mortality.

The infantile mortality for the province amounted to 219 per thousand births against 221 in the previous year. The rates for the two sexes were, 224 for male infants, 213 for female.

Cholera.—Cholera was more than usually prevalent and was responsible for a death rate of 2.88 per mille, the highest rate recorded during the last five years. No district was free from this disease; the district cholera death rates varied between 0.8 in Darjeeling and 5.9 in Mymensingh. The latter district was responsible for 26,662 deaths of the total 130,679. As long as the majority of the water supplies are unprotected, as they are at present, severe outbreaks of this disease must be expected. The throwing of bodies of patients, dead of cholera, into rivers that are the sources of supply of drinking water, is a practice that was reported from the two worst infected districts and must have been attended with most disastrous results. The disease was most prevalent in the months of April, November and December. The distribution of the disease illustrates the importance of a pure water supply as a preventive of this disease.

Small-pox.—Small-pox was likewise very much more prevalent than in the previous year; it caused a death rate of 0'7 per mille against 0'2 in 1914. This rate is the highest recorded since 1909. Calcutta was severely stricken and acted as a distributing centre of infection to surrounding districts. Vaccination is still unsatisfactory in Eastern Bengal; this matter is now receiving some of the attention it deserves. March to May was the season of maximum small-pox incidence. Certain districts escaped lightly; Jalpaiguri came off best with a death rate of '01 per mille; 24-Parganas suffered most and returned a small-pox mortality rate of 2'9. Of the total deaths from this disease 14 per cent occurred among children under ten years of age. This is a smaller percentage than usual and is of good omen.

Plague.—Plague caused only 199 deaths, all but eight of which were reported from Calcutta. In Calcutta itself 1915 was the mildest plague year since this disease gained a foothold.

Fever.—" Fever" accounted for 71 per cent of the total recorded deaths in Bengal in 1915; to it was ascribed a death rate of 23.5 per mille against 23.4 in 1914 and 21.1 the mean rate of the preceding quinquennium. The district of Birbhum recorded a 'fever' mortality rate of 39.7 per mille; its death rate from all causes was but 44.5. The urban "fever," death rate was 7.9 and the rural rate was 24.5.

Quinine was distributed gratuitously in the worst malaria infected districts during the fever season. The question of the prevalence of malaria in Bengal has of late attracted a very large amount of attention. The problems connected with the prevention of malaria in Bengal are attended with very special difficulties and more research work is urgently required.

Dysentery and diarrhæa.—Dysentery and diarrhæa caused a death rate of o.63 per mille: the urban rate, 2.68, was in excess of the rural rate o.5. Fewer deaths were ascribed to these diseases than in the two previous years but the death rate is somewhat higher than the previous quinquennial mean.

CITY OF CALCUTTA.

61. The weather conditions in 1915 deviated but little from the normal. Somewhat higher temperatures were recorded and the rainfall in March was excessive.

It is unsatisfactory to note that the birth-rate in the City of Calcutta has been declining for the past five years and the rate recorded in the year under report, 18.5 per mille, is the lowest for the past 10 years. The death rate 28.5 per mille approximates that for 1914, 28.3 per mille: it is slightly lower than the quinquennial average, 28.6 per mille.

The City of Calcutta was singularly free from plague during the year, there being only 19t deaths recorded. A severe epidemic of small-pox was responsible for 2,560 deaths. The outbreak of cholera which caused 1,612 deaths was the mildest recorded for many years. Malaria accounted for 1,258 deaths, approximating the average for the past five years. It is satisfactory to note that there was a marked diminution in the mortality from respiratory diseases, tubercle, dysentery and diarrhæa, and enteric fever.

PORT OF CALCUTTA.

62. During the year 1,125 vessels with 97,691 crew and passengers were examined. In addition 10,881 cargo boats were inspected. There were 15 cases of small-pox and 7 of chicken-pox on out-going vessels: 3,651 persons were vaccinated. Four ships had beri-beri cases on board. There were no cases of sleeping sickness or jigger and only one case of cholera.

ASSAM.

63. The year 1915 was an unhealthy one. Very heavy and extensive floods occurred in the month of July in Sylhet and Cachar, which resulted in scarcity and the consumption of unusual diet: this, at a time when climatic conditions were very unfavourable, was largely responsible for increased sickness and mortality rates.

The provincial birth rate rose from 32'9 in 1914 to 33'6, which is 1'2 per mille over the mean rate for the previous five years. The rate varied in districts between 30'2 in Lakhimpur and 39'7 in Goalpara. The urban rate was 29'8 while the rural rate was 33'7. There were 106 male births reported for every hundred female.

The death rate rose from 24.66 in 1914 to 30.86 in the year under report: the mean rate of the previous five years is 26.18. Among districts Kamrup reported the lowest rate, 25.4, and Goalpara the highest, 40.9. The urban and rural death rates were approximately equal. November was the most unhealthy month when the death rate was more than double that of March, the month in which fewest deaths occurred. The birth rate exceeded the death rate by 2.7 per mille.

Verification of vital statistics by the vaccination staff resulted in a detection of omissions to report births and deaths amounting to 12.8 and 8.9 per cent of the respective totals.

The infantile mortality rate amounted to 202 per thousand births.

All the chief causes of mortality were responsible for higher death rates than normal.

Cholera.—The death rate from cholera rose from 1.5 in 1914 to 4.5 per mille. The mean rate for the previous decade was 2.7. The floods that occurred in July, to which reference has been made, followed by high temperatures and absence of rain in October and December, produced very favourable conditions for the spread of this disease. When the habits of the people and the unprotected nature of the majority of the water supplies are taken into consideration, little more is required to explain the spread of communicable diseases of this nature.

Fevers.—To "fevers" was attributed a death rate of 15'2 per mille, that is to say rather fewer than half the total deaths reported from all causes. It is not possible to frame an approximation as to what percentage of these "fever" deaths are rightly attributable to malaria. An increased number of quinine "treatments" were sold during the year.

Kala-azar.—Kala-azar caused 1,233 deaths, 65 fewer than in the previous year. Only in the Nowgong and Kamrup districts were more deaths reported than in 1914. The disease appears to be stationary in most of the endemic centres.

During the year sanction was accorded to the creation of a separate post of Sanitary Commissioner for Assam: previously the duties of that post had devolved upon the Inspector-General of Civil Hospitals.

BIHAR AND ORISSA.

64. Climatic conditions in this province were not favourable in the year under report. The rainfall was in defect, and, moreover, was badly distributed, resulting in damage to crops both by drought and flood. These facts probably in part explain the fact that the vital statistics for the year reveal a somewhat less satisfactory state of health conditions than those prevailing in 1914.

The birth rate fell from 42.3 in 1914 to 40.4 per mille. The mean rate for the previous five years is 41.9. There was considerable variation in the district rates; the highest, 48.1, was recorded in Palamau, and the lowest, 31.7, in Singhbhum. The urban birth rate was nearly 9 per mille below the provincial rate. One hundred and five male births were recorded for every hundred female. The birth rate exceeded the death rate by 8.2 per mille.

The death rate which had fallen to 23 3 in 1914 rose to 32 2 per mille which is 0.7 per mille higher than the previous quinquennial mean. The district rate was highest in Balasore, 44 2, and lowest in Singhbhum, 21. The infantile mortality rate was 185 9 per thousand births. Only Bombay and the North-West Frontier Province returned a lower infantile death rate than this in the year under report. More deaths were reported in November than in any other month; November's deaths were 80 per cent in excess of those reported in either January or February, the two healthiest months. Certain improvements have been effected in the registration of vital statistics during the year; it is too early yet to report on the results achieved.

Cholera.—Cholera was much more prevalent than in the previous year and was responsible for a death rate of 2.5 as compared with 0.9. The former figure closely approximates the mean cholera death rate for the previous ten years. No district was completely free from the disease; the Shahabad district suffered most, returning a cholera death rate of 5.4 per mille. The disease was most prevalent in the months of November, October and August. Floods appeared to have played a part of importance in the causation of outbreaks.

Small-pox.—Small-pox exacted a toll of 0.4 per mille of the population which is double the rate for the preceding year. No district was free: Balasore had the highest rate, 1.2. Four-fifths of the deaths occurred in the first half of the year.

Fevers.—To "fevers" were attributed 63 per cent of the total mortality of the province. It can be safely assumed that malaria was responsible for but a relatively small proportion of these 'fever' deaths: badly malaria stricken localities are not numerous in this province. What the chief pathological conditions are that account for the balance of the fever mortality, it is not possible to surmise. In Puri the fever mortality was only 7.2. In the other districts rates varying between 12 and 28 were recorded. The delivery of popular lectures on malaria, the distribution of quinine, and the employment of travelling dispensaries were the chief of the means adopted in the campaign against malaria.

Plague.-Plague was responsible for 27,241 deaths, 0'7 per mille. This is considerably less than half the plague mortality recorded in 1914. Excluding 1908 and 1909 the plague epidemic in the year under report was the mildest experienced during the last decade. As usual the outbreak reached its height in the month of March. Once again the districts of Patna, Saran, Shahabad and Gaya, districts which abut on the United Provinces district of Ballia, were responsible for the majority of deaths. The Orissa and the Chota Nagpur Divisions were again practically free from the disease and the Bhagalpur Division suffered but slightly. The geographical distribution and the seasonal prevalence of plague in this Province remain remarkably constant year after year. In the Patna and the Tirhut Divisions, which are the only two that suffer appreciably from plague, the disease is characterized more by the comparative ease with which infection manages to survive the adverse conditions of the hot weather than by the severity of individual outbreaks: these have never been of similar severity to the severe epidemics that have afflicted the Punjab and the western districts of the United Provinces from time to time.

No other disease calls for special comment.

UNITED PROVINCES OF AGRA AND OUDH.

65. The birth rate declined from 44'9 per mille in 1914 to 43'5 in the year under report which is one per mille below the mean of the previous five years. In districts the birth rates varied between 25'4 in Dehra Dun and 49'2 in Bijnor. Though the provincial birth rate has been falling during the last three years, the birth rate in municipalities has been steadily rising; in 1915 the urban birth rate was 44'8 per mille, the highest ever recorded. In 1915 the urban birth rate in the United Provinces was in excess of the rural rate, an unusual state of affairs in India. The excess of births over deaths amounted to 13'4 per mille which is a greater natural increase of population than was recorded in any other of the major

provinces of India in the year under review. There were 108'7 male births recorded for every hundred female: this proportion remains fairly constant in these provinces.

The provincial death rate fell from 33'46 in 1914 to 30 per mille, which is 6'3 below the mean of the previous quinquennium. Only four of the major provinces had lower death rates than this. The district rates varied between 19 per mille in Banda and 52'97 in Pilibhit. The urban death rate was 41'24 which is twelve per mille in excess of the rural rate. The infantile mortality rate works out at 205 per thousand births as compared with 233'5 in 1914. This reduced rate is a gratifying feature of the vital statistics for 1915: only once has a lower rate been recorded in these provinces and that was as long ago as 1893. It would appear that the increased attention that has been paid during recent years to this important matter is bearing fruit. The training of dhais, the activities of travelling dispensaries, attention to the milk supplies of towns, anti-malaria measures and propagandism, can with justice claim some part in the attainment of this reduced infant mortality rate. A study of the district and municipal figures suggest that malaria and deficient attention to conservancy are potent causes of high infant death rates.

Cholera.—Cholera was responsible for 90,508 deaths (1'9 per mille) which is nearly three times the mortality that was attributed to this disease in the previous year. The pilgrims returning from the Kumbh fair at Hardwar were important agents in the spread of infection. More than half the total deaths occurred in October and November; in the former month the deaths totalled 26,615. January and February were almost free from the disease. Hamirpur and Banda were the only two districts that were completely free; Meerut and Jhansi were very lightly affected. The two severest outbreaks were experienced in the districts of Garhwal and Pilibhit where the cholera death rates for the year were 11'5 and 11'2 per mille, respectively. The former occurred in the hot weather, the latter in the autumn. Almora had a death rate of 9'7; in no other district did the mortality rate attain 6 per mille.

Small-pox.—There was a very marked decrease in the incidence of small-pox; only 2,304 deaths were attributed to this cause as against 17,954 in 1914. Only two of the major provinces had a lower small-pox mortality than this. In only three towns in the province did the number of small-pox deaths exceed ten.

Plague.—Plague was not severe; a death rate of 1'2 per mille was attributed to it which is one per mille less than in the previous year. As usual the months of March and April witnessed by far the greatest number of plague deaths: in these two months alone approximately sixty per cent of the year's mortality occurred. Once again the districts in the east of the province bore the brunt of the disease; this is always the case in years of moderate plague severity for reasons that were discussed in last year's report. In the year under report the Benares and Gorakhpur Divisions contributed considerably more than half of the total plague mortality of the province. Once again the Jhansi and Kumaun Divisions were free from the disease. The west of the province came off comparatively lightly and at the end of the year was all but plague free. Plague in the eastern districts was once more characterized by the persistence with which infection survived the adverse conditions of the non-epidemic season.

Fevers.—To 'fever' was ascribed a death rate of 20'4 per mille which is 2 per mille lower than the rate for the preceding year and the lowest recorded since 1893. Monthly variations in the numbers of fever deaths reported was not as marked as one would premise, were the majority of fever deaths directly caused by malaria; the fact that December was the month of maximum mortality, however, is perhaps explicable on a malaria hypothesis. Anti-malaria measures attracted a considerable amount of attention; amongst them school quininization was perhaps productive of most good.

No other disease calls for special comment.

PUNJAB.

66. On the whole the year was a healthy one. Abnormally heavy rain fell in March which is the month in which plague epidemics in this part of India are approaching their height, and this heavy rain may have played some part in determining the severe nature of the outbreak in the year under report. The monsoon rainfall, on the other hand, was in marked defect with the result that malaria was less in evidence than in an average year. The price of food grains was high throughout the year.

The birth rate fell from 46'3 in 1914 to 43'6 per mille (mean of the previous five years, 44'9). The district rates were lowest in Simla, 21'3, and Dera Ghazi Khan, 31'1, and highest in Rohtak, 51'3. The urban rate was 43'4 which closely approximates the provincial average. There were 109'7 male births reported for every hundred female.

The death rate rose from 32 to 36'3 per mille (mean of the previous five years, 31'3). This increased mortality rate was entirely accounted for by the severity of the plague epidemic without which 1915 would have been an extremely healthy year. Rawalpindi returned the highest district rate, 57'4, and Dera Ghazi Khan the lowest 19 per mille. The urban mortality rate, 36, closely approximated the rural rate and the provincial average. April, May and March were by far the most unhealthy months. Deaths in these three months, which were chiefly due to plague, amounted to 42 per cent of the total mortality for the year. September was the month with fewest deaths; it had a mortality rate less than a third of that of April. The infant mortality rate showed a welcome decrease; it amounted to 188 per thousand births for males and 189 for females, as compared with 209 and 211, respectively, in 1914. The birth rate exceeded the death rate by 7'3 per mille—a low figure for this province.

Cholera.—Cholera was more prevalent than in any year since 1903: it caused 13,196 deaths (0.68 per mille). The part played by the Kumbh fair at Hardwar in the dissemination of cholera infection in the United Provinces has already been referred to; in the Punjab this fair seems to have played an even more definite part in the spread of this disease. It is very significant that the year 1903 was the date of the previous Kumbh fair. Cholera was practically absent from the Punjab during the first three months of the year but in April pilgrims returning from Hardwar spread the infection far and wide and during the next six months most districts suffered more or less severely. The disease was most virulent in the Ferozepore and the Lahore districts which reported mortality rates of 3.1 and 2.6 per mille, respectively. In only three other districts did the rate exceed unity. No death from cholera was reported in December from any

district. More than half the total deaths occurred in the months of May and June. The history of the outbreak demonstrates very clearly the importance of large fairs in the matter of spread of cholera and such like communicable disease,

Small-pox.—A still further decrease in the prevalence of small-pox was recorded in 1915; the very low mortality rate of '09 per mille was attributed to it. This is a tribute to the satisfactory state of vaccination in the province.

Plague .- The year under report witnessed the most severe outbreak of plague since the terrible epidemic of 1907. To it were ascribed 221066 deaths, 11'48 per mille: a figure approximately double the combined plague mortality of the three previous years. Only three epidemics in the Punjab have been more severe than this. Early and heavy winter rains towards the close of 1914 combined with widespread infection combined to make conditions very favourable for plague. Further heavy rains in March and the beginning of April, with the consequent retarding of the hot weather, made a severe outbreak almost inevitable. Of the twenty-eight districts three enjoyed their usual immunity from the disease, vis., Simla, Dera Ghazi Khan and Mianwali. Three other districts, Kangra, Muzaffargarh and Multan suffered but very slightly. The remaining 22 districts had epidemics of varying degrees of severity. The brunt of the disease fell on the Rawalpindi Division; the Lahore Division, which usually suffers most, came second. Gujrat district had a plague mortality rate of 36 per mille, Rawalpindi 28.6, and Jhelum 27.4. Four other districts had plague death rates over twenty, and five between ten and twenty, per thousand. Once again the epidemic reached its height in the month of April; the seasonal prevalence of the disease in the Punjab is remarkably constant. By the end of the year the disease had almost disappeared from the province which fact accompanied by the comparative failure of the early winter rains made the prospects for a very mild epidemic in 1916 very bright.

Malaria.—Malaria was but little in evidence. Deaths, ascribed to 'fever' amounted to 14.7 per mille compared with 17.9 in 1914. 'Fever' deaths were most numerous in the two coldest moraths of the year.

Had it not been for the severity of plague, 1915 would have been an abnormally healthy year in the Punjab.

NORTH-WEST FRONTIER PROVINCE.

67. The birth rate fell from 32.7 in 1914 to 31.7 per mille in the year under report which is 3.6 below the mean rate of the previous five years. This is the lowest provincial birth rate reported in India in the year under report. The district rate varied between 26.6 in Peshawar and 38.3 in Dera Ismail Khan. There were 125.5 male births reported for every hundred female, an even higher proportion than in 1914. It is almost impossible to accept these figures as representative of fact: such an extreme variation in the sex ratio is never witnessed in other provinces of India. The deduction that is forced on one is that the registration of vital statistics is in a more backward condition in this province than in any other part of India.

The reported death rate amounted to 23'6 per mille which is 2'2 below the figure for 1914 and 0'8 below the quinquennial mean. With the single exception of Madras this is the lowest death rate reported from any province in 1915. The district rate was highest, 29'8, in Hazara and lowest, 19'2, in Peshawar. The urban rate 28'2 was five per mille in excess of the rural rate. The number of deaths

reported in December, the month of maximum mortality, was more than double the number reported in April the month of fewest deaths. The birth rate exceeded the death rate by eight per mille. The reported infantile death rate was 166 per thousand births, a low rate for India and probably much lower than it would be were vital occurrences more accurately reported.

Cholera was but little prevalent: 932 deaths were ascribed to this cause. Only 26 deaths were attributed to small-pox; all but two of these occurred in the Peshawar district. Plague caused 340 deaths.

Fevers.—' Fevers' caused a death rate of 17'9 per mille; when the total death rate, 23'6 per mille, is recalled, the hopelessness of any attempt at drawing deductions from such figures, becomes apparent. The year under report was not distinguished by severity of malaria.

CENTRAL PROVINC S AND BERAR.

68. On the whole, meteorological conditions were favourable in the Central Provinces during 1915 Though the monsoon began late and the rain it yielded was somewhat in defect, plentiful rain in September and October was most beneficial to crops. The rice outturn was 17 per cent in excess of normal and wheat and jowar did well. In spite of such favourable conditions the year was not a healthy one.

The provincial birth rate fell from 51°37 to 47°95 per mille, a figure 2°8 below the mean of the previous five years. The district rates varied between 43 and 53 per mille. All the districts save two reported lower rates than in the previous year. In spite of this decrease the birth rate was higher than that recorded by any other province in India. There were 104°6 male births recorded for every hundred female.

The death rate amounted to 35'9 per mille which is '78 lower than the 1914 rate and 1.86 below the quinquennial mean. Only one other province, the Punjab, returned a higher rate than this in the year under report. There was very considerable variation between the rates recorded in districts; the district rate was lowest, 26, in Mandla, and highest, 44.5, in Nagpur. The urban death rate was 44.3 per mille which is 9.2 higher than the rural rate. October was the month of greatest mortality when the number of deaths was almost double the number recorded in July, the healthiest month. The infant mortality rate was 259'7 per thousand births which is lower by four per mille than the 1914 rate. More than half of the total deaths of the province occurred among children under five years of age. This reveals a most serious state of affairs. The importance of the matter is fully realized by the local authorities who are giving the matter earnest attention. The constant seasonal prevalence that the curve illustrating infantile mortality in the Central Provinces exhibits, is of considerable interest : most infant deaths occur in the hot months of May and June, and fewest in the first three months of the year.

Cholera.—The cholera death rate fell from 1'46 per mille in 1914 to 0'41; this rate is well below the mean of the previous five years. Nine of the twenty-two districts were practically free from the disease. Bilaspur, Drug and Jubbulpore were the three worst infected districts; in them the cholera mortality amounted to 1'44, 1'39, and 1'27 per mille, respectively. In no other district did the rate approach unity. The monsoon months July to October witnessed most deaths. Yet once more pilgrims returning from pilgrimages played an important part in the spread of

Small-pox.-Small-pox was very little in evidence: only 1,151 deaths were ascribed to it ('08 per mille). The increased attention paid to vaccination that has been evidenced in recent years is bearing fruit.

Fevers .- To 'fevers' was ascribed a death rate of 17 per mille. Though this figure conveys but little, in the present state of our knowledge, it is a fact that malaria was unduly prevalent in the year under report. Quinine vendors reported greatly increased sales. No extensive anti-malaria measures were undertaken during the year.

Plague.-Plague was relatively severe and was responsible for a death rate of 1.46 per mille. More deaths occurred in February than in any other month, a somewhat unusual circumstance. The urban plague mortality rate amounted to 10'16 per mille as opposed to 0.58 the rural rate. Nagpur was far and away the worst affected district returning a plague death rate of 10.68 per mille. Seoni came next with 4.3. Six other districts had death rates above one per mille. The seasonal prevalence of plague in the Central Provinces presents some points of interest. In the southern Deccan, and in the south of India generally, the monsoon type of epidemic most commonly occurs, that is to say the outbreak starts with the advent of the monsoon and reaches its height in the month of October. In the north of India the cold weather type prevails, the height of the outbreaks occurring in March or April. Epidemics in the Central Provinces may adhere to either of these two types; sometimes they are intermediate between the two.

MADRAS.

69. Favourable climatic conditions in Madras in 1915 resulted in slightly lower prices for all the staple food-grains than those prevailing in the previous year: the prices were, however, still above the average.

The birth rate was 31'2 per mille, 2'3 below the rate for 1914 and one per mille lower than the mean of the previous five years. No other of the major provinces reported so low a birth rate as this in the year under report. District variations were considerable; the rate was lowest in Ramnad, 21'9, and highest in Guntur, 37.6. The urban rate was 30.5 per mille which approximates the provincial rate. There were 104'5 male births reported for every hundred female.

The provincial death rate, 22 per mille, is very appreciably lower than the rate reported from any other administration. It is 3 per mille lower than the 1914 rate and 1'7 lower than the quinquennial mean. Twenty-three of the 25 districts returned lower rates than in the preceding year. District death rates varied between 15'5 in Ramnad and 36'4 in Madras. The urban death rate was 26'2 which is nearly five per mille in excess of the rural rate. January was the month of maximum mortality while June reported fewest deaths, but the monthly variations in the death rate were much-less marked than in the majority of Indian provinces, a fact which indicates the absence of any severe epidemics. The infantile death rate was 186.6 per thousand births which is nearly ten per mille below the rate reported in 1914. Forty per cent of the total deaths occurred among children under five years of age.

Cholera .- Cholera was responsible for 30,098 deaths which is less than half the number recorded in the previous year. Nowhere was the outbreak very severe; among districts Tanjore suffered most returning a cholera mortality rate of 2 per

81 SC

mille. No district was completely free from the disease, which was most prevalent during the first two months of the year. Statistics once more show the comparative freedom from this disease that towns with a piped water supply enjoy.

Small-pox.—Small-pox caused a death rate of o.6 per mille—a rate that was exceeded in only two provinces in India. In no district was the disease very severe but no district entirely escaped.

Plague.—To plague were attributed 3,889 deaths. Of this number the districts of Bellary and Salem were responsible for 70 per cent, recording plague death rates of 1'3 and 0'8 per mille, respectively. In only five other districts did the number of plague deaths run into three figures. Bellary is the only district in Madras in which plague has been a factor of much importance in the vital statistics. December was the month of maximum plague mortality.

Fevers.—To 'fevers' was ascribed a death rate of 7.3 per mille, a figure very closely approximating the rate for the previous year and the mean of the previous quinquennium. Fever deaths were more numerous in December than in any other month but the figures indicate no very marked seasonal prevalence. Anti-malaria measures in Madras City are making progress.

CITY OF MADRAS.

70. The number of births registered was 18,331, or 90 more than in the previous year. The ratio was 35'3 against 35'2 in 1914 and 37'4 the mean of the past five years. The highest number was recorded in September and the lowest in February.

The death rate which was the lowest since 1897, was 36'00 as compared with 46'6 in the year preceding and 41'3 the quinquennial mean. The low mortality during 1915 was due chiefly to the absence of any epidemic disease and may be attributed to the improved water supply, the inauguration of anti-malaria operations and general improvement in conservancy arrangements. Small-pox, measles, cholera, enteric and malaria were more or less present throughout the year, but none assumed an epidemic form. No case of plague occurred. The two heads "dysentery and diarrhæa," and "respiratory diseases" were responsible for 4,208 and 2,303 deaths, respectively, equivalent to 8'1 and 4'4 per mille of the population. Infantile mortality was 286'1 per 1,000 births against 308'9 in 1914. The high death rate among infants is ascribed to (1) early marriage, (2) necessity for mothers to work and earn a livelihood before and soon lafter labour, (3) the general neglect, under feeding, bad feeding and under clothing of infants,

PORT OF MADRAS.

(4) insanitary surroundings, (5) poverty and (6) want of proper medical aid.

71. During the year, 239 incoming vessels were inspected against 304 in 1914. The number of outgoing vessels granted bills of health was 170 as compared with 188 in the previous year. The decrease in the number of vessels inspected was partly due to the withdrawal of plague restrictions against the port of Calcutta during the last quarter of the year. A total number of 49,387 passengers landed at the port against 43,056 in 1914. As usual the saloon passengers were given notification papers and the deck passengers had their clothing disinfected before they were allowed ashore. Five cases of small-pox and two of chicken-pox were detected among the passengers landed and were sent to the Isolation Hospital at Kistnampet. Three cases of chicken-pox

and two contacts from among returned emigrants were sent to the Fiji Emigration Depôt.

COORG.

72. Coorg returned a birth rate of 25'3 per mille nearly one per mille less than the rate for 1914 which closely approximated the quinquennial mean. The death rate as usual exceeded the birth rate, by 5'7 in the year under report. This is explicable in part by the fact that immigrant coolies form an appreciable proportion of the population. Five per cent of the total deaths occurred among persons not permanently resident in the province. The middle four months of the year were the most unhealthy. Of the total 5,438 deaths, 4,549 were ascribed to 'fever'. There was no case of cholera and only 23 deaths were caused by small-pox. There were two deaths from plague. On the whole 1915 was a comparatively healthy year, fewer deaths having been recorded than in any one of the past five years.

BOMBAY.

73. Vital statistics indicate that 1915 was a comparatively healthy year in the Bombay Presidency. The birth rate was 37'1 per mille which is 0'3 lower than the previous year's rate but one per mille higher than the quinquennial mean. The district birth rate was highest in West Khandesh, 50'78, and lowest in Hyderabad, 17'54. The rural rate, 42'67, was nearly 11 per mille higher than the urban rate. For every hundred female births 107'7 male births were recorded. Only four of the major provinces reported a higher birth rate than did Bombay in the year under report.

The death rate fell from 29'49 in 1914 to 26'12 which is 3'8 below the mean of the previous five years. District rates varied considerably being as low as 13.7 in Upper Sind Frontier and as high as 39'2 in Sholapur. The urban death rate, 30'28, was five per mille in excess of the rural rate. More deaths occurred in December than in any other month; December deaths were 79 per cent more numerous than in June the healthiest month. Madras and the North-West Frontier Province alone among the major administrations reported a lower death rate than did Bombay. The infant mortality rate was 172 per thousand births against 193'8 in the previous year, a very satisfactory decrease.

Cholera.—The most noteworthy feature of the vital statistics for the year is the fact that cholera was responsible for but 377 deaths, as compared with 17,779 in 1914. Only once in the last fifty years has cholera been so little prevalent in this Presidency. No such immunity was observed in any other of the major administrations in 1915. Eight districts of the 27 were completely free from the disease.

Dysentery and diarrhea.—Dysentery and diarrhea were less prevalent than in the three previous years causing a death rate of 1.6 per mille. These diseases were most rife in the monsoon months and as pointed out by the provincial Sanitary Commissioner, can with justice be attributed to the washing of surface impurities into the water supplies.

Fevers.—A death rate of 11.48 is ascribed to 'fevers', that is to say 44 per cent of the mortality from all causes. As everywhere else in India it is not possible to define accurately the proportion of such deaths that can be ascribed directly or indirectly to malaria. The provincial Sanitary Commissioner, however, makes some very suggestive remarks about this matter. He has submitted the figures of the

southern and central registration districts to careful analysis in both of which the high incidence of fatal fevers during the first five years of life is the most significant fact that emerges. From this and certain observed facts the deduction is drawn that intestinal disorders are responsible for a very appreciable proportion of these 'fever' deaths. A careful analysis of fever deaths according to age periods and sea sons might well be undertaken in other provinces; such an investigation is an essential preliminary to a fuller understanding of this most important subject.

Plague.-Plague was responsible for a more severe epidemic than any that has been experienced since 1911; to it were attributed 43,824 deaths, 2.24 per mille. Though this was in no way comparable in severity to the Punjab outbreak that has been referred to above, no other administration in India suffered as much from plague in the year under report as did Bombay. No district was completely free from the disease. Sholapur, Belgaum, Nasik and Dharwar suffered the most; in these districts the plague mortality amounted to 10.12, 10.11, 7.9 and 5.8 per mille, respectively. Six other districts reported rates above one per mille. No month was plague-free but the disease was much more prevalent during the last four months of the year than at any other time. A study of the epidemic emphasizes the danger of villages infected late in the preceding epidemic as foci for the spread of infecti on and the rapid dissemination of infection that takes place from large towns that are labour or trade centres. Experience in Satara town indicates that continuous rattrapping carried out intelligently and with enthusiasm is sufficient to keep a town free from plague. The method is not a cheap one; the cost in Satara amounted to one rupee per house per annum, but after all this is not a big price to pay for freedom from plague, and the experience of Satara is well worth the consideration of plague stricken municipalities.

Small-pox.—Small-pox was the cause of 1,425 deaths—a smaller number than in any year during the last decade; the history of the few outbreaks that did occur offer striking proof of the immunity afforded by vaccination.

CITY OF BOMBAY.

74. Climatic conditions were favourable in the City of Bombay which enjoyed exceptional health in 1915. The birth rate recorded was 20'47 per mille which closely approximates the previous Quinquennial mean. The death rate fell from 32'5 in 1914 to 24'2 per mille the lowest rate ever recorded. When this rate is compared with the mean rate of the decade 1905—1914, 40'2, an idea is obtained of the marked improvement in health condition that was evidenced in the year under report.

Plague was responsible for but 598 deaths; in no year during the present century has so mild an outbreak been experienced. The 1912 epidemic which hitherto held the record caused a mortality of 1,717. Only sixteen deaths from cholera were reported; the mean annual mortality from this disease during the last decade is 489. Malaria caused 208 deaths which is a lower number than in any year since 1907. The steady decline in the mortality attributed to tuberculosis continues; in 1915 the tuberculosis death rate was only 1.7 per mille compared with a decennial mean of 3. Very satisfactory too is the marked decline in the infant mortality rate. It fell to 235.4 per thousand births from 268.7 in 1913 and 277 in 1914 (corrected figures).

PORT OF BOMBAY.

85. During the year 950 vessels with 203,880 crew and passengers were examined. The personal effects of 61,420 persons were disinfected. There were 36 vessels on which cases of infectious disease had occurred; these were all disinfected as well as four vessels that carried pilgrims to Jeddah. Nine other incoming vessels were fumigated. One thousand six hundred and twenty-one persons were vaccinated in addition to 2,303 outgoing pilgrims. Of the 83 cases of infectious disease that occurred on incoming vessels, 3 were of small-pox, 52 of measles, 7 of chicken-pox and 21 were cases of jigger. One case of plague, 12 of cholera, 13 of small-pox and 8 cases of chicken-pox occurred on vessels lying in the harbour and docks.

BURMA.

76. The year 1915 was not a healthy one in Burma; a serious outbreak of cholera was chiefly responsible for this, but to most causes of death was attributed a higher mortality than was evidenced in the previous year.

The birth rate in Lower Burma fell from 34'7 to 33'4 per mille which is still higher, by 0'7, than the mean of the previous five years. In Upper Burma the rate was 38 per mille which is 1'3 in excess of the 1914 figure and 2'7 above the quinquennial mean. The urban birth rate was in Lower Burma 23'3 and in Upper Burma 33'5; the corresponding rural rates were 34'8 and 38'4, respectively. The district rates were lowest in Rangoon, 19'7, Bassein, 23, and Pyapon 28'3. The highest rates were recorded in Tavoy 44'7, and Pakoku 43'9. There were 107 male births recorded for every hundred female in Lower Burma; in Upper Burma the sexes were equally balanced.

In Lower Burma the death rate advanced from 23 to 25'1 per mille (quinquennial average 24'4). In Upper Burma the rate was 32'7 to which it rose from 26'2 in 1914, the mean of the previous five years being 28'1. District rates were highest in Mandalay, 51'4, Kyaukse 49'3 and Shwebo 34'3. Amherst and Pyapon recorded the lowest rates, 18'3 and 18'9, respectively. The urban rates were 32'6 and 50'2 as opposed to rural rates of 24 and 31 in Lower and Upper Burma, respectively. The infantile mortality rate was 219'3 per thousand births, a slightly higher figure than that of the previous year.

Cholera.—Cholera was responsible for 17,597 deaths, of which 9,388 were reported from Upper Burma. The disease prevailed throughout the year but was not severe except in the months August to December which witnessed 82 per cent of the total mortality. No district was, free from cholera though eleven districts of the 31 had mortality rates of less than unity. Mergui and Mandalay suffered most; they returned cholera death rates of 4'9 and 4'7 per mille, respectively. Five other districts had a mortality rate exceeding three, and five between two and three per mille.

Small-pox .- Only 217 deaths were ascribed to small-pox.

Plague.—There were 4,640 plague deaths reported in the year under review, of which 2,891 occurred in Lower Burma. This amounts to a death rate of 0.47 per mille which is 0.13 lower than the quinquennial average. Mandalay with a death rate of 2 per mille suffered most followed by Rangoon with 1.9. Only three other districts, all in Lower Burma, had death rates exceeding one per mille. Anti-plague

inoculation appears to meet with less opposition in Burma than in most parts of India.

Fevers.—To "fevers" was attributed a death rate of 8.5 per mille, a lower rate than that recorded by any other administration, Madras alone excepted. The district rates varied between 1.8 in Rangoon and 14.3 in Tavoy.

Beri-beri.—Beri-beri caused 90 deaths in Rangoon; this disease seems to have been more than usually prevalent. No other disease calls for special comment.

CITY OF RANGOON.

77. The birth rate was 19'74 against 19'41 in 1914. The death rate fell from 33'31 in 1914 to 29'03 in the year under review: the quinquennial mean was 34'81. The reduced rate of mortality is accounted for by the lower prevalence of infectious diseases. Of the total number of 8,515 deaths, 897 were ascribed to dysentry and diarrhæa, 1,759 to respiratory diseases and 571 to plague, equivalent to 3'06, 4'52 and 1'95, respectively, per mille of population. Infantile mortality dropped from 294'22 in 1914 to 275'77 in 1915. The Society for the Prevention of Infantile Mortality continued to do good work. Four nurse midwives were engaged.

PORT OF RANGOON.

78. The number of incoming vessels (1,013) was less than that of the previous year by 55, but the number of passengers increased by 75,127. The Port Health Staff inspected 59 vessels as compared with 42 during 1914, and detected 49 cases of infectious diseases other than plague. Thirty-seven deaths including 16 from cholera occurred at sea. The number of outgoing vessels inspected was 285 against 350 in 1914: 112 persons were detained. Ten river steamers, three of which had plague, five cholera and one typhoid fever cases, were disinfected at Rangoon. One had a death from a non-contagious disease.

AIMER-MERWARA.

79. The number of births registered during the year was 21,953 as compared with 23,515 in 1914. The decrease was reported to be due to the emigration of a large proportion of the inhabitants with their flocks and herds on account of the scarcity of fodder.

The deaths numbered 13,052 equivalent to a ratio of 26.03 per mille of population against 30.33 in the preceding year. The decrease is attributable to the absence of plague and malaria. Only three deaths each were recorded under cholera and small-pox. The deaths from fevers numbered 2,141 less than in 1914. Dysentery and diarrhœa and respiratory diseases were responsible for 459 and 402 deaths, respectively.

DEATHS OF EUROPEAN CIVIL OFFICERS AND PENSIONERS.

80. During 1915 reports of the deaths of 96 European officers in Civil employ and pensioners were reported. The statement below gives the cause of death, and

ages at death, arranged according to six age groups :-

		-			Ac	E AT DEAT	н.	
Death	s from		Number of deaths.	20-30 years.	30-40 years.	40-50 years.	50-60 years.	60 years
Malaria			6	2	1	3		
Cholera		***	2		1	1	***	
Enteric fever			3	1			1	
Dysentery			1		1			
Liver abscess			2	1	1			
Small-pox			2					***
Pneumonia			5	1	***	3	1	
Tuberculosis			3		1	1	1	,
Anæmia			1		-	1		***
Appendicitis			1	1				***
Gastro-intestinal affe	ections		4	•••	2			2
Other respiratory dis	eases		5		1	2	2	
Diarrhœa			1		1			
Other digestive disea	ses		4		1) 1		2
Heart disease or hear	t failure		19		B 1	6	4	8
Other circulatory dis	seases		8		1	3	2	2
Carcinoma			3			1	1	1
Suicide			1	1				
Death by misadvent	ure	•••	2	1		1		
All other causes			23		6	7	5	4
	Total		96*	8	19	30	17	19

^{*} Including 3 deaths for which age period not known.

.

		No.	3			
4.						

SECTION IV.

JAILS OF INDIA.

PRISON POPULATION IN 1915 (EXCLUDING ANDAMANS).

81 The prison population of the Indian jails averaged 110,930 in 1915. This is a higher figure than any previously recorded being 8.6 per cent. higher than the corresponding figure for 1914 and 14.6 per cent. above the previous decennial average. Every administration had larger jail populations in 1915 than in the preceding year and in each case, excepting only Madras and Bihar and Orissa, was that population greater than the average of the preceding decade. The increase was more marked in the North-West Frontier Province and the Punjab than elsewhere.

SICKNESS AND MORTALITY RATES (EXCLUDING ANDAMANS).

S2. Coincident with the increase in population there was a slight increase in the sickness and mortality rates but not nearly to the same extent. The constantly sick rate rose from 26 to 28 per mille as compared with 27 the decennial average; the admission rate, for all diseases, was 586 per mille against 548 in 1914 and 590 the decennial average; and the death rate increased from 17.98 to 18.74 per mille (decennial average 19.16).

Assam, Bengal, Punjab, Bombay and Madras returned lower jail death rates than in 1914; there was an increased mortality rate in each of the other administrations.

Madras returned the lowest death rate, 11'82 per mille, followed by Bombay 13'80, the United Provinces 14'58, the Central Provinces 18'98, and the North-West Frontier Province 19'09. The other five administrations returned death, rates of over 20 per mille. The Punjab jails had the highest mortality rate 25'79 per mille, closely followed by Bihar and Orissa, 25'75.

It is pleasing to note that Assam, whose jails have for years past had higher death rates than those of any other province, no longer holds that unenviable position. The fall in the Assam jail death rate from 43.45 to 21.57 per mille (decennial average 39.84) is most noteworthy. The Bombay jail death rate 13.80, as compared with 17.02 in 1914 and a decennial average 17.73, also calls for comment. These figures will be considered in greater detail later.

The chief causes of sickness were :-

		Admission rates	per mille.
		1915.	1914.
Malaria		132.1	117.3
Dysentery	***	61'3	60.1
Abscess, ulcer and boil		58.2	61.7
Diarrhoea		40'7	37.5
Respiratory diseases		30'2	25'7
Pyrexia of uncertain origin		16.2	18.6
Anæmia and debility		14'0	11.8
Pneumonia		12'9	10.8
Tubercle of the lungs		8.5	9.8

Tubercle of the lungs, pyrexia of uncertain origin, and local inflammatory conditions alone amongst these chief causes of sickness had a diminished prevalence as compared with the previous year.

The most important causes of mortality were as usual :-

Mortality rate per m	226	le.
----------------------	-----	-----

			1915.	1914
		Challen .	The same of	-
Paeumonia			3.08	2'45
Tubercle of the	lungs	·	3'02	3.20
Dysentery			2.72	2.62

No other disease was responsible for a death rate higher than o'8 per mille. The decrease in the pthisis death rate is satisfactory.

MALARIA.

83. Malaria was more prevalent than in 1914 being responsible for an admission rate of 132'1 and a death rate of 0'80 per mille, compared with 117'3 and '73. Both figures were, however, lower than the decennial average, though higher than in any of the preceding four years. Judging from the hospital admission rates the jails of the North-West Frontier Province (340'7) suffered more severely from malaria than any other province; Bengal comes second with 332. Four administrations report a decreased malaria incidence, and six report an increased prevalence. Madras again has the lowest malaria admission rate, 17'9 per mille to which it dropped from 28'6 in 1914 and 64'1 the average for the decade. Never before has so low a figure been reported for the jails of any Indian province. Burma comes next with 30'7 and the Central Provinces third with 47'5. Most noteworthy too has been the decreased incidence of malaria in Assam. Here the admission rate in 1915 was only 69'4 per mille. In no previous year has a lower rate than 150 been reported in Assam; in 1914 the rate was 200'9, while as recently as 1909 a rate of 573'9 was returned.

DYSENTERY.

84. Dysentery was also slightly more prevalent and caused a slightly higher mortality than in 1914; the rates per mille were:

		1915.	1914.	1905-1914.
		_	-	-
Death rate	 	2.72	2.62	3.19
Admission rate	 	61.3	60.1	66.0

Bengal with an admission rate of 215.5 per mille heads the list as regards prevalence of this complaint. Assam 137.8 and Bihar and Orissa 123.8, come next. The admission rates for dysentery in all other administrations were below 50. The fall in the Assam rate from 333 to 137.8 is remarkable.

The dysentery death rate was highest in Bihar and Orissa 7 per mille, more than double the rate for 1914, and lowest in Madras, '51, to which it fell from '99. The decline in the Assam death rate from 16'93 in 1914 to 4'73 is most satisfactory.

TUBERCLE OF THE LUNGS.

85. Pthisis was responsible for a somewhat lower admission rate, 8.5, and a lower death rate, 3.02, than in 1914, when the figures were 9.8 and 3.50, respectively (decennial average 9.2 and 3.34 per mille). In the year under report it was second only to pneumonia as a cause of mortality. The disease appears to have been most prevalent in the Punjab, where the admission rate was 17.8 per mille, but the incidence there was appreciatively less than in 1914 when the rate was 23.9. The Punjab pthisis death rate also fell from 7.30 to 4.28 per mille, a figure below the average for the decade, (5.77). Burma returned the highest death rate from this disease 4.86. The lowest rates were reported from Bombay where pulmonary tuberculosis was responsible for admission and death rates of 3.3 and 0.78, respectively. Burma, Bihar and Orissa, the United Provinces and the Central Provinces had higher tubercle death rates than in 1914.

PNEUMONIA.

86. Pneumonia was more prevalent and caused more deaths than in 1914. It was the chief cause of mortality in the year under report having exacted a toll of 3 08 per mille. The jails of the Punjab, the North-West Frontier Province and Bombay suffered most, recording pneumonia death rates of 7.55, 6.24 and 4.90 per mille, respectively. In the two former administrations the disease had approximately doubled the normal prevalence. Pneumonia caused fewest deaths in Madras. The case mortality rate was 24 per cent.

CHOLERA.

87. Cholera was little prevalent and had an admission rate of but '4 per mille as compared with '7 in 1914 and 1'3 the average for the previous decade. Approximately half the attacks proved fatal. Bihar and Orissa jails were the worst affected; even here, however, the cholera death rate was only '84 per mille. The Punjab and the North-West Frontier Province were free from the disease and no death was reported from Assam.

TYPHOID FEVER.

88. Enteric fever was little in evidence; the admission rate was 1'1 per mille and the death rate '17 to which it fell from '29 in 1914.

BENGAL.

89. There was serious overcrowding in nearly all the Bengal jails in 1914. The average prison population was 13,435 as compared with 11,705 in 1914 and a decennial average of 11,600. There was a constantly sick rate of 56 per mille and the very high admission rate of 1,249, against 49 and 1,061, respectively, in the previous year. In spite of these facts the death rate per mille fell from 22°55 to 21°21, decennial average 23°90.

There were but four cases of cholera, one in each of four jails; one proved fatal.

Dysentery was more prevalent than in the previous year and more fatal. The increased prevalence was common to most jails and is ascribed to over-crowding. The dysentery death rate was 6'10 per mille against 4'53 in 1914

and 5.36, the average for the previous decade. It was far and away the most important cause of mortality and next to malaria the chief cause of sickness.

Malaria was more prevalent than in 1914; it was responsible for an admission rate of 332'o per mille and a death rate of 1.71. This latter figure approximates the average malaria mortality of the previous ten years.

Pulmonary tuberculosis was less prevalent and caused fewer deaths than in 1914; it was responsible for a mortality rate of 2.83 per mille against 4.36 in 1914 and 4.22 the average of the previous decade. The Inspector-General once more calls attention to the need of a separate tuberculosis jail for the Presidency.

In spite of overcrowding it is satisfactory to note that pneumonia was somewhat less in evidence than in the previous year.

The only really unhealthy jail in the Presidency was Dinajpur. The average population of this jail was 315; the deaths numbered 34, i.e., 107'94 per mille. The jail draws its population from very unhealthy tracts; eleven of the 34 prisoners who died were admitted direct to hospital on conviction. A new hospital is urgently needed in this jail.

Of the convicts discharged during the year under report 55'92 per cent. gained weight while 22'40 per cent. lost weight.

The mortality rate was greater amongst prisoners who had spent six months or less in jail than amongst those who had been confined for longer periods.

Taking all the circumstances into consideration the health conditions of the Bengal jails were satisfactory.

ASSAM.

go. The marked improvement in the health conditions of the jails in Assam that was evidenced in 1915 is perhaps the most note-worthy and satisfactory feature in the vital statistics of Indian jails for that year. In spite of an average population (1,901) in excess of that of 1914 (1,772) the admission rate fell from 1,183 per mille to 965. Still more remarkable is the fall in the death rate from 43'45 to 21.57 per mille, the lowest death rate ever recorded in the jails of this province. No longer do the Assam jails enjoy the unenviable notoriety of being far and away the most unhealthy in India. This improvement in the health conditions in a year in which the death rate amongst the free civil population was 6.20 per mille in excess of that of 1914, must be attributed to sanitary improvements and measures designed to improve the health conditions of the prisoners and - reflects the greatest credit on all concerned. The difficulties to contend with, have been and are considerable. Only 52 per cent. of the prisoners were admitted in good health. Ankylostome infection is widespread; 24'25 per cent. were found infected on admission. Drug habits are common; 13'3 per cent. of prisoners admitted were so addicted.

There was only one case of cholera reported, which recovered.

Dysentery was responsible for most of the sickness as usual, but the admission and death rates due to this disease 137.8 and 4.73 per mille, compare most favourably with those for 1914, when they were 3330 and 16.93, respectively. The decreased incidence of dysentery is ascribed in large part to the systematic treatment of all prisoners found infected with hook-worm.

Malaria was not very prevalent; the admission rate 69.4 per mille is much lower than in the previous year and is less than a quarter of the average malaria admission rate. Three deaths were ascribed to malarial fevers. Quinine as a prophylactic was issued in all jails from May to October. In most jails the drug was given in fifteen grain doses on two successive days in each week. In one instance five grains were given daily, with still better results.

There were seven admissions and four deaths caused by pulmonary tuberculosis. Three of these deaths occurred in Sylhet. Only one case of enteric fever was reported. Ankylostomiasis occasioned 52 admissions and 5 deaths.

Of the prisoners discharged 61.71 per cent. gained in weight and 20.51 lost weight during their imprisonment.

BIHAR AND ORISSA.

91. The jails of this province, as in all other administrations, had an increased population in the year under report. The average strength was 7,146 compared with 6,525 in 1914. The increase in crime chiefly concerned crimes against property and offences of bad livelihood, probably connected with scarcity in certain districts; crimes of a more serious nature were less prevalent than in 1914. Coincident with the increase in population there was an increase in the sickness and mortality rates; the admission rate rose from 734 to 742 per mille and the death rate from 17.62 to 25.75.

The death rate 25.75 per mille was the highest recorded for these jails during the last four years and was higher than that of any other administration in the year under report except the Punjab. There was an increased mortality in every jail in the province with the exception of five district jails.

Cholera caused sixteen admissions and six deaths, a higher degree of prevalence than recorded by any other administration in 1915. All the cases were sporadic.

Dysentery was responsible for more sickness and deaths than any other disease. The admission and death rates were 123'8 and 7 per mille against 81'1 and 3'07 in the previous year. More than a quarter of the total cases occurred in Bhagalpur Central Jail. Here there were 228 admissions and 11 deaths occasioned by this disease. Many prisoners were admitted to Bhagalpur in bad or indifferent health attributable to scarcity in that district; this fact may explain in part the increased dysentery prevalence.

Malaria was somewhat less prevalent but was responsible for six deaths as compared with four in 1914. Quinine was issued as a prophylactic with, it is thought, beneficent results.

The incidence of pulmonary tuberculosis decreased from 11'5 to 9'o per mille, but the mortality rate rose from 3.68 to 3.78. Fourteen cases with eight deaths (out of the total 64 cases and 27 deaths) occurred in Balasore jail and nine cases with six deaths in Bhagalpur. Only seven jails of the twenty-two were free from the disease.

Pneumonia was responsible for 46 admissions (6.4 per mille) and 25 deaths (3.50 per mille). The case mortality was thus abnormally high. Sixteen cases and twelve deaths occurred in Bhagalpur.

78

Of the prisoners discharged 54 per cent. gained weight while 18 per cent. lost weight during their confinement.

UNITED PROVINCES OF AGRA AND OUDH.

92. A population larger than in any previous year, and sickness and mortality rates larger than those of the previous year but less than the average of the preceding decade, characterized the jail vital statistics of the United Provinces in 1915. The increased population is attributed in large measure to hard times and distress and not to an increase in criminal tendencies. The continuance of the high prices prevailing in 1914 also resulted in a lower standard of health among those admitted to jail. As a consequence the admission to hospital rate rose from 307 in 1914 to 433 per mille (decennial average 520) and the death rate from 11'96 to 14'58 (decennial average 16'37). The death rate is lower than that reported by any other administration, Bombay and Madras excepted.

Only four sporadic cases of cholera with two deaths were reported.

Dysentery which for some years past has played a smaller and smaller part in the sickness and death returns of the jails in these provinces, was more prevalent than in 1914. The admission and death rates 28'G and 2'15 per mille were both higher than in the previous year, 26.7 and 1.24. The figures are still, however, below the decennial averages. The case mortality rate 7.7 per cent. was high, indicating a severe type of the disease or lower powers of resistance than usual. Next to pulmonary tuberculosis dysentery was the chief cause of mortality.

Malaria was more prevalent than in any year since 1910 and caused a mortality greater than that of the preceding year or the decennial average. Deaths ascribed to malaria were twenty-eight in number; the Inspector-General considers it likely that some of these deaths were in reality due to relapsing fever but does not state the grounds for this opinion. Seven of the twenty. eight deaths occurred in Gorakhpur; these seven prisoners were admitted into jail in bad or indifferent health. Quinine was issued as a prophylactic from August to November.

Pulmonary tuberculosis was rather less prevalent but more fatal than in the previous year; the admission and death rates were 6.8 and 2.44 per mille against 71 and 1'93 in 1914. It was the chief cause of mortality in the jails of this province. The Inspector-General is of opinion that the prevalence of the disease is not increasing in his jails.

Pneumonia was more prevalent than in 1914 and with a mortality rate of 2'07 per mille comes third on the list of the chief causes of death.

PUNJAB.

91. The Punjab participated in the increase of the jail population that was evidenced in every administration of India in 1915. The average strength 15,899 was 10 per cent, in excess of that of 1914 and 42 per cent, in excess of the average of the preceding decade. This increase in population of jails in which the accommodation was insufficient in 1914 has added greatly to the difficulties of efficient administration. In these circumstances it is satisfactory to note that though the amount of sickness as exemplified by the admission rate rose from 618 to 756 per mille and the constantly sick rate from 34 to 41, the death rate fell

from 25'95 to 25'79. This rate is, however, higher than that returned from any other administration and more than double the Madras jail mortality rate. More jail accommodation is very urgently required in the Punjab.

Cholera was conspicuous by its absence.

Pneumonia was unduly prevalent in most jails as also, it is stated, among the civil population. It was the chief cause of mortality in the year under report being responsible for a death rate of 7.55 per mille, more than double the rate for the preceding year which closely approximated the average decennial rate. The case mortality rate was slightly higher than usual.

Pulmonary tuberculosis was the next most important cause of mortality and was responsible for admission and death rates of 17.8 and 4.28 per mille, respectively. These figures show a distinct improvement on the very high rates of 23.9 and 7.30 returned in 1914 but they are still excessive and indicate that the disease is much more prevalent in Punjab jails than in jails of any other province. The recent opening of the Shahpur jail for the segregation and special treatment of tuberculous prisoners should be productive of a still further decrease in the incidence of this disease, which still remains the most disquieting feature in the vital statistics of the jails of the province.

Malaria was more prevalent than in any year since 1908, an intensely malarious year when the admission rate was 164 per mille, an exactly similar rate to that of the year under report. This is a considerably higher malaria prevalence than in the previous year, 98.9 per mille. The reasons underlying the increased incidence of the disease are not stated. Montgomery Central Jail was responsible for 893 admissions, nearly a third of the total admissions for the province.

Dysentery did not play so large a part in the morbidity returns as in the previous year; the admission rate fell from 63:3 to 46:7 and the death rate from 4:59 to 2:52 per mille. In a year in which overcrowding was almost universal this is satisfactory. The admission and death rates are, however, still above the decennial averages.

Several cases of cerebro-spinal meningitis causing eleven deaths occurred in the Multan Central Jail and there were two fatal cases of plague in Shahpur jail.

Heat-stroke accounted for twenty deaths.

NORTH-WEST FRONTIER PROVINCE.

94. The average prison population 2,724 was 17 per cent. in excess of that of 1914. The increase was to a certain extent compensated for by an increase in the jail accommodation of 227. Overcrowding was persistent in most jails. As the Inspector-General points out this does not mean that the barracks are overcrowded; the surplus population finds accommodation in tents or factory sheds; but it does add considerably to the difficulties of dealing with infectious disease should such occur and might render segregation difficult if not impossible. In the year under report the necessity for providing accommodation for political prisoners was the cause of the overcrowding that ensued.

Towards the close of the year under report typhus fever was introduced into the overcrowded Peshawar jail and caused serious mortality in the early months of 1916. In spite of adverse conditions the constantly sick rate remained 23 per mille as in 1914; the admission rate fell from 756 to 675 per mille; but the death rate rose from 17.66 in 1914 to 1909 per mille which is 1.52 in excess of the decennial average.

Malaria was the chief cause of sickness; though less prevalent than in the previous year the admission rate attributed to it, 340.7 per mille, is more than double that returned for any other province. Malaria was in fact responsible for more than half the total sickness. Taking this into consideration the death rate it caused, 1.10 per mille, must be considered low. Quinine was issued as a prophylactic in all jails from July to November.

Pneumonia was very prevalent and was far and away the most important cause of death. It was responsible for admission and death rates of 28.6 and 6.24 per mille against 13.4 and 4.74 in 1914, and 18.3 and 3.55, the decennial averages.

Next to pneumonia, dysentery (2.57), respiratory diseases (1.84), and pulmonary tuberculosis (1.10), were the chief causes of mortality. Dysentery was less prevalent than in 1914: on the other hand the admission rate for pulmonary tuberculosis rose from 3.9 to 7 per mille in the year under report.

The jails were quite free from cholera and enteric fever.

CENTRAL PROVINCES.

95. The average strength of the jails in the Central Provinces was 4,004 which is 278 in excess of the 1914 figure and 360 above the decennial average.

The constantly sick rate remained at the remarkably low figure of 11 per mille, the lowest rate in India; the admission rate rose from 2775 in 1914 to 300'4 per mille and the death rate from 12'61 to 18'98. The latter figure is still 1'25 below the average for the previous decade.

There were four sporadic cases of cholera two of which terminated fatally.

Dysentery was the chief cause of mortality and was responsible for admission and death rates of 34.7 and 2.25 per mille. The latter figure is slightly in excess of that for 1914 but when the figures are compared with the decennial averages, 5.8 and 5.38, they must be considered as most satisfactory.

Malaria was more prevalent than in 1914, but even so the admission rate, 47.5 per mille, is extremely low, little more than one-third of the average for the decade: Madras and Burma alone record a lower degree of malaria prevalence. Once more no death was ascribed to malaria: in this respect the Central Provinces jails were unique among the Indian jails. Quinine is issued as a prophylactic.

There were six deaths occasioned by pneumonia and eight by pulmonary tuberculosis. The latter disease was less prevalent than in the preceding year.

One case of plague and two cases of enteric fever were reported. One of the latter is interesting; it was the case of a prisoner who was caught "eating flies to make himself ill."

Of the 76 prisoners who died 22 had been in prison less than six months.

Among the prisoners discharged 65 per cent. had gained and 13 per cent. had lost weight during their imprisonment.

BOMBAY.

96. In spite of an average prison population (10,214) 3'4 per cent. in excess of that of the previous year, the constantly sick rate fell from 26 to 19 per mille, the admission rate from 652 to 521 and the death rate from 17'02 to 13'80 per mille. Madras alone reported a lower death rate than this in the year under report. The mortality rate is the lowest ever recorded in the Bombay jails and is evidence of a healthy year.

Of the 141 prisoners who died 43 were admitted to prison in bad health, 30 of them suffering from the disease to which they succumbed. Only 71 of them were described on admission as being in good health.

Plague infection occurred in two jails: anti-plague inoculation was practised with most satisfactory results: no death occurred.

There was one case and one death from cholera.

Pneumonia was much the most important cause of death: it was responsible or admission and death rates of 16.2 and 4.90 against 17.3 and 5.06 per mille in 1914. No other disease occasioned a death rate of as much as one per mille.

Malaria was responsible for an admission rate of 161.8 which represents 31 per cent. of the admissions for all causes. It was the only disease that was more prevalent than in the preceding year. Quinine was issued as a prophylactic in twelve jails, with good results.

Of prisoners discharged 54 per cent. had gained weight and 23 per cent. lost weight during confinement.

The health conditions of Bombay prisoners appear to be most satisfactory.

MADRAS.

97. The average strength of the Madras jails was 9,810 against 9,081 in 1914 and 10,012 the average of the previous decennium. In spite of the increase of population, the sickness and mortality rates were all extremely low. The constantly sick rate fell from 16 to 13 per mille, a lower rate than that of any other administration, the Central Provinces alone excepted; the admission rate fell from 304 to 248 per mille, the lowest rate on record; and the death rate was 11.82 against 12.44 in 1914 and a decennial mean of 17.54. These admission and death rates are considerably lower than those oany other province.

Malaria was responsible for an admission rate of but 17'9 per mille against 28'6 in 1914 and an average rate of 64'1. This is much the lowest admission rate ever recorded in the jails of any administration. Two deaths were ascribed to malaria, both in Bellary. This is the only province in India in which malaria is not the chief factor in the sick returns.

Dysentery was responsible for more admissions to hospital than any other disease; even so the admission rate amounted to only 21 per mille and the death rate to 0.51.

Pulmonary tuberculosis was responsible for more deaths than any other single disease and caused admission and death rates of 6.5 and 2.55 per mille, respectively, against 7.3 and 2.97 in the previous year.

There was a decreased prevalence of every disease as compared with 1914 with the single exception of pneumonia and the increase under this head was insignificant.

Of the prisoners discharged 69 per cent. gained weight and 14 per cent. lost weight during their imprisonment.

BURMA.

98. With the highest average jail population on record (17,474), 5 per cent. in excess of that of 1914 and 18 per cent. in excess of the average of the previous decade, the sickness and mortality rates of the Burma jails showed a corresponding increase over those of the previous year. The constantly sick rate rose from 15 to 16 per mille, still a remarkably low figure; the admission rate was 291'3 against 269'9 in 1914; and the death rate increased from 17'66 to 20'09 per mille. The admission rate though higher than the decennial average is still much lower than that of any other administration, Madras alone excepted.

There were thirteen fatal cases of cholera reported from six different jails.

Dysentery was more prevalent than in 1914 and was responsible for admission and death rates of 24'3 and 1'66 per mille against 16'0 and 1'38. In Rangoon many of the cases were associated with the drug habit (opium and morphine).

Malaria was responsible for more admissions than any other single cause but even so the admission rate attributed to this disease was only 30.7. When it is recalled that the malaria admission rate for the jails of India amounted to 132 per mille, the relative freedom from malaria of the jails of Burma is appreciated.

Pulmonary tuberculosis was as usual the chief cause of mortality. Though its prevalence in the year under report closely approximated that of the preceding year and the decennial average, the death rate amounted to 4.86 per mille against 4.20 in 1914 and 3.80 the average for the previous decade. This jail tubercle death rate is higher than that returned by any other administration in 1915. Thirty-six of the 85 deaths occurred in Insein: this is accounted for by the transference to this jail of weakly prisoners.

Forty-seven admissions and 10 deaths were occasioned by typhoid fever. There were two fatal cases of plague. Beri-beri caused twenty-one admissions.

Morphinism was once more an important factor in the vital statistics of the Rangoon jail where it caused thirteen deaths. 41'8 per cent. of the deaths in this jail were directly or indirectly attributable to a drug habit. Of the total number of convicts admitted to the Burma jails, 11'3 per cent. admitted that they were opium consumers.

Of convicts released 55'5 per cent. had gained weight during confinement, while 19 per cent. lost weight.

THE ANDAMANS.

99. The average strength of the convict population was 12,239 to which it rose from 11,996 in 1914: the average population for the preceding decade was 12,978.

The year was an unhealthy one. The constantly sick rate rose from 46 to 58 per mille (decennial average 72). The admission and death rates 1,876 and 45'02 per mille were considerably higher than in 1914, 1,364 and 25'18 and the averages for the preceding decade 1,652 and 30'49. The death rate is the highest recorded since 1899.

The chief factor in the production of these unhealthy conditions was the prevalence of a malignant type of malaria which was directly responsible for a death rate of 3.27 per mille and indirectly for the debility that made the sufferers vulnerable to the ravages of other more fatal diseases notably pneumonia. The malaria admission rate 1,343.1 was 60 per cent. in excess of that for the preceding year. The immediate causes underlying the increased malaria incidence are by no means clear. Anopheline mosquitos did not appear to be unduly prevalent. The vital statistics for 1915 emphasize the urgent necessity of energetic action in the matter of swamp reclamation. There were four cases of blackwater fever, one of which proved fatal.

Tneumonia was by far the chief direct cause of mortality and was responsible for a death rate of 10.62 per mille, i.e., nearly a quarter of the total deaths. It was of a very severe type, the case mortality being 43 per cent—a very high figure for this disease. Malaria seems to be a most important factor in the etiology of pneumonia in the Andamans.

Pulmonary tuberculosis caused a death rate of 4'00 per mille as against 2'58 in 1914 and 5'70 the average for the decade. Dysentery was less prevalent than in 1914 but it caused a death rate of 3'84 against 3'25. Scurvy was responsible for 243 admissions and seven deaths.

er de land le partiere de la contrata del la contrata de la contrata del la contrata de la contrata del la contrata de la contrata de la contrata del la contrat and the Arte bee per a proper stands redged videopieson on a plant and sorte death rate of 5 by per police and indirectly for the debility that made the police are walled addition to the first water of the course of the forthe processing restricted by the property of the state of the property of the aid anogen and grave to the fallogs all a to be in the part of a cor an The state of the s

SECTION V.

VACCINATION.

VACCINATION IN INDIA.

100. There were 9,572,083 vaccination operations performed in British India during 1915-16, an increase of 109,182 compared with 1914-15; primary cases numbered 8,275,693 and revaccinations 1,295,390, against 8,212,851 and 1,250,050, respectively, in the previous year. There was a decline in the work of the Vaccination Department in some of the provinces, notably the United Provinces, Bihar and Orissa and the Central Provinces and Berar. The total cost of the Department increased from Rs. 17,40,226 in 1914-15 to Rs. 17,89,621 in 1915-16.

The comparative statement below shows the total number of operations performed, the percentage of successful cases to total operations, the average cost of each successful case and the number of deaths from small-pox in the several provinces as compared with 1914-15. The statements in the Appendix to this Section give full particulars as to the vaccination operations carried out in the various provinces during the year.

Province.	cirl s	TOTAL NUMI		PERCENTA CRSSPUL TOTAL VAC	CASES TO	A verage cost of each suc-	Number of deaths from
		Primary.	Revaccina-	Primary,	Revaccina-	cessful case.	small-pox.
Delhi {	1914	12,220	3,359	98.91	72'13	Ks A. P. 0 4 3	43
	1915	12,968	2,776	99:11	70.61	0 3 11	14
Bengal {	1914	1,137,879	460,749	97.66	64'01	0 2 3	9,935
pengar	1915	1,261,921	369,697	98.09	67.16	0 2 1	32,785
Bihar and Orissa {	1914	1,245,824	68,218	99'68	72.63	0 1 2	5,778
Dinar and Oriosa }	1915	1,217,591	70,828	99.46	. 64.81	0 1 5	15,526
Assam	1914	280,292	39.724	96.53	68.69	0 3 7	2,575
Assam	1915	273,573	38,825	96.63	62'29	0 3 1,	4,076
United Provinces of Agra	1914	1,543,567	110,817	97'35	71'76	0 1 11	17,954
and Oudh.	1915	1,523,656	104,711	97:34	74'46	0 2 0	2,304
migdles useful	1914	671,261	165,378	97'13	70.69	0 3 3	2,900
Punjab	1915	669,236	185,812	96'51	73'22	0 3. 1	1,691
A Was Parella Parel	(1914	141,546	12,633	98.66	88:39	0 1 8	331
North-West Frontier Province.	1915	125,177	18,527	98.62	91.31	0 1 10	20
	1914	526,214	76,429	97'21	63:27	0 2 6	4,58
Central Provinces and Berar	1915	518,088	81,871	97'57	63'71	0 3 3	1,15
- Carlemanus	1914	1,512,515	176,407	90.8	79'1	0 3 10	27,88
Madras	1915	1,532,185	268,985	87.7	75'7	0 3 9	24,035
	1914	8,825	5,796	95.71	85:33	0 3 10	114
Coorg	1915	8,348	4,669	96'54	89 20	0 4 5	25
Assembly many	(1914	711,179	63,596	99'10	57'03	0 8 5	4,200
Bombay	1915	719,960	70,965	98.91	55'83	0 8 8	1,425
OR ALL MAN AND MAN	(1914	405,724	66,843	94'92	60'54	0 8 5	258
Burma	1915	395 597	78,462	97'14	57.65	0 9 1	217
100000000000000000000000000000000000000	1914	15,805	101	97*23	85'00	0 3 8	23
Ajmer-Merwara	1915	17,393	262	97-65	92.75	0.32	3
Total	{ 1914 1915	8,212,851 8,275,693	1,250,050	95°56 95°33	68·38 66·80	0 3 4 0 3 5	76,590 83,2:2

VACCINE LYMPH.

101. Glycerinated vaccine lymph was used in all provinces, supplied in most instances by their respective vaccine depôts. The North-West Frontier Province and Delhi were, as usual, supplied with lymph from the Punjab vaccine depôt. The Punjab depôt also supplied lymph to the Native States in the Punjab and the Jammu and Kashmir States: large quantities were also supplied to the military authorities for use out of India with the Indian Expeditionary Forces. In the United Provinces glycerinated paste was made use of to a small extent : the outturn of the United Provinces depôt was greatly reduced in 1915 owing to the establishment of a provincial depôt by the Bihar and Orissa Government. Lanoline paste was largely used in Madras, glycerinated vaccine lymph being supplied only to Madras City and Colombo. The success rate in the Madras Presidency for the year was the lowest recorded since 1904-05. This is attributed to the new method introduced of storing vaccine pulp in the raw condition and grinding and mixing it with landline as required for issue. The method has proved a failure and has been abandoned. In the Bombay Presidency glycerinated animal and human lymphs were used: the former was used throughout the districts and gave satisfactory results; human lymph was used only in some of the Native States.

GENERAL REMARKS.

102. In the Bengal Presidency free vaccination was introduced in certain districts, a measure which did something towards removing existing objections to vaccination and led to an increase in the number of operations performed. In municipalities there was a decrease in vaccination operations as compared with the previous year, due, it is reported, to the lessened prevalence of small-pox More than twice as many vaccinations were performed in factories and on tea-gardens as in the previous year.

The decrease in vaccination work in Bihar and Orissa is attributed to a deterioration in discipline and energy of the Inspecting Staff. Necessary action in this respect is being taken.

The slight decrease in Assam is attributed to greater strictness and better supervision leading to more accurate returns being obtained from one or two large districts, in which it appears falsification of returns had in the past been considerable.

Local unrest and threatened troubles on the frontier led to a decrease in vaccination work in the North-West Frontier Province. Satisfactory progress was, however, made in the Agencies of Kurram and Tochi, the Chitral Sub-Agency and in the Swat Valley and Shirani country. The attitude of the people on the whole to vaccination has been more favourable, but, as elsewhere in India, the inhabitants cannot be brought to understand the need for revaccination.

In the Madras Presidency the number of vaccination operations performed exceeded that for the previous year though, as already stated, the success rate was the lowest recorded since 1904-05. In municipalities vaccination work was on the whole successful.

Though the total number of operations performed in the Bombay Presidency exceeded that in 1914-15, there was a decrease in the number of primary operations: this is attributed to the increased incidence of plague in certain districts leading to the evacuation of villages. A special vaccination campaign among school children was conducted in certain districts with great success.

In Burma there was a decrease in the number of primary operations performed as compared with the previous year. The decrease is attributed to the large deficit in the number reported from the Southern Shan States due to the cessation of the vaccination campaign that was carried out in 1914-15.

VACCINATION AMONGST TROOPS.

103. Particulars of vaccination in the Army will be found in Statement III of the Appendix to this Section.

Managhan another properties by technically also and a second and the second and the second of the se

SECTION VI.

MEDICAL INSTITUTIONS.

(CONTRIBUTED BY THE DIRECTOR-GENERAL, INDIAN MEDICAL SERVICE.)

1.—State-Public, Local Fund and Private-aided Civil Hospitals and Dispensaries.

104. These institutions, at the end of 1915 numbered 2,980 an increase of 139 on the totals for 1914, and the demand for the opening of more is felt in nearly every part of India.

The number of in-patients and out-patients has greatly increased and the total in crease of both classes is 1,647,409.

The number of operations has increased by 64,261 over the total for 1914.

The following tabular statement compares the figures of 1914 with 1915 :-

Province.		Number of Institutions.	Number of In-patients.	Number of Out-patients.	Total number of Patients.	Number of Operations
conglist matter-one	(1914	14	4,964	287,074	292,038	11,118
Delhi	" 1915	14	5,765	279,847	285,612	14.391
Laborate the state of the state	(1914	414	38,056	4,020,643	4,058,699	116,304
Bengal (excluding Calcutta)	1915	439	40,343	4,481,606	4,521,949	120,013
	(1914	15	29,083	319,062	348,145	36,449
Calcutta	{ 1914	15	27,696	327,978	355,674	35,725
	(1914	155	11,457	1,606,259	1,617.716	26,515
Assam ···	···{ 1914	151	9,621	1,510,363	1,519,984	22,747
A STATE OF THE PARTY NAMED IN	(1914	209	31,593	2,230,361	2,261,954	110,562
Bihar and Orissa	{ 1914	226	34,912	2,438,768	2,473,680	115 629
all by taken on w	(1911	179	15,418	1,731,006	1,746,424	49,029
Central Provinces	1915	185	15,282	1,787,496	1,802,778	49.978
United Provinces		393	75,426	4,432,919	4,508,345	217,014
	{ 1914	461	77.277	4,979,254	5.056,531	235,822
	-	297	88,774	4,778,611	4,867,385	260,775
Punjab	1914	304	89,910	4,685,910	4,775,820	275,506
	(1914	200	63,920	1,602,282	1,666,202	51,491
Burma	{ 1914	206	66,057	1,725.733	1,791,790	50,114
	(1914	353	61,786	2,423,987	2.485.773	101,467
Bombay	{ 1914	359	61,390	2,491,077	2,552,467	101,822
TOWN STREET OF THE P	(1914	530	91,565	6,652,153	6.743.7:8	259,566
Madras	{ 1914	541	90,867	7,039,435	7,130,302	282,167
greens and the seasons	(1914	53	14,034	879,421	893,505	39.053
North-West Frontier Province	1915	53	13,211	880,043	893,254	39,267
	(1914	24	5,597	249,711	255,308	5.411
Baluchistan	{ 1914	26	5,043	227,737	232,780	5.905
	153					
Total	{ 1914	2,841	531,723	31,213,489	31,745,212	1,284,825

DELHI.

105. There were 21 hospitals and dispensaries open at the end of 1915 as compared with 22 in 1914. The number is made up of 7 State-special dispensaries, 12 Local Fund dispensaries and 2 private-aided dispensaries.

There has been a large increase in the surgical work of the Dufferin Hospital and a separate eye department has been established. A total of 2,106 selected eye operations were performed as compared with 153 in the previous year.

The total expenditure was £8,281 of which Indians contributed £173.

BENGAL (EXCLUDING CALCUTTA).

106. There was an increase of 25 institutions during the year, and the totals of treated patients increased by 463,250.

A floating dispensary was opened for 3 months in the Khari river, and a travelling dispensary in the district of Murshidabad. These dispensaries are not successful owing to the difficulty in providing satisfactory Sub-Assistant Surgeons for medical charge.

In common with all other provinces Bengal has had to work very short-handed owing to the depletion of the medical cadre to meet the requirements of the military situation.

Total expenditure was £86,214 of which £18,254 was subscribed by Indians.

CALCUTTA.

107. The Carmichael Nurses Home was opened in connection with the Howrah General Hospital.

Land has been acquired for the urgently required new eye hospital and the building project sanctioned. Work has not yet been begun owing to the impossibility to spare the money.

The buildings of the new School of Tropical Medicine have been completed. It has not however been found possible to open the school owing to the shortage of officers on account of the war.

The maintenance charges were £10,821 of which Indian contributions covered £2,662.

ASSAM.

108. Four travelling dispensaries that were opened in 1914 had to be closed owing to want of facilities of communication in low-lying localities on account of floods.

There is still a difficulty in supplying Sub-Assistant Surgeons and the scarcity of this class has been much exaggerated owing to the withdrawal of men for military duty.

The total expenditure was £27,588 of which £466 was contributed by Europeans and £1,690 by Indians.

BIHAR AND ORISSA.

109. The year began with 209 institutions and ended with 226, a net increase of 17. The King Edward VII Memorial Hospital at Bettiah, and a small hospital

for Europeans (4 beds) at Ranchi, were opened during the year. Electric lights and fans were installed in the Cuttack General Hospital, and an X-ray apparatus in the Ranchi Sadar Hospital. Seven travelling dispensaries worked under the Sanitary Commissioner during the year and treated 36,016 patients.

The demand for more dispensaries is felt, and schemes for a considerable addition to the total number have matured, and in several places work on the necessary buildings has already commenced.

Medical officers specially deputed to visit fairs and markets treated 80,088 patients.

The total expenditure incurred for the upkeep of the hospitals and dispensaries amounted to £69,176 of which £7,996 was contributed by Indians.

Owing to the war there was a further depletion in the cadre of Indian Medical Service officers, their places being generally filled by the more Senior Civil Assistant Surgeons who have carried on the work satisfactorily.

CENTRAL PROVINCES.

110. The number of institutions on the list increased by six; and there was an increase of over 56,000 in the total number of patients treated. The three peripatetic dispensaries maintained as an experimental measure during 1915 are reported on as doing most useful work and they are now being taken on the strength of the permanent establishment as from January 1st, 1916.

The total expenditure amounted to £60,962 against £60,679 in 1914.

The pay of Sub-Assistant Surgeons was raised substantially from August 1st, 1915, with the result that all vacancies have now been filled.

UNITED PROVINCES.

111. The large increase in the number of institutions is due to the inclusion of the 47 travelling dispensaries for the first time in the list. These dispensaries are Government institutions towards the maintenance of which District Boards contribute a fixed yearly amount. Their up-keep is permanent and each dispensary is practically permanently attached to the district which contributes to its support.

The number of patients attending has increased to a remarkable extent—though the figures are swelled by the inclusion of the 340,093 patients treated in the 47 travelling dispensaries.

The system of charging fees from well-to-do patients has continued and has generally worked satisfactorily.

The total expenditure was £109,892 as against £101,645 in 1914. Europeans subscribed £1,403 and Indians £8,938.

PUNJAB.

There was a small increase in the number of in-patients, but the number of out-patients fell by 92,701. The decrease was shared by every district. In some of the districts the growing demands for organised medical relief cannot be met by the number of dispensaries, and proposals are to be put forward to secure adequate relief.

The new buildings for the Mayo Hospital and Medical College were declared open in December 1915.

The dearth of workers is still a serious obstacle to the spread of female medical aid. Facilities for education is now provided by the Punjab Medical School for women at Ludhiana.

The medical cadre has been depleted by the reversion of Medical Officers and Assistant and Sub-Assistant Surgeons to military duty.

The total expenditure was £93,343 out of which Europeans contributed £3,156 and Indians £2,367.

NORTH-WEST FRONTIER PROVINCE.

113. There has been no change in the number of institutions and the figures for patients treated show little variation.

The Municipal Hospital, Abbottabad, was completed during 1915 and one additional travelling dispensary has been sanctioned.

The total expenditure was £14,196 for the year.

BALUCHISTAN.

which treated 232,780 patients: of these 5,043 were in-patients and 227,737 outpatients. A total of 5,905 operations were performed. Despite difficulties connected with Medical personnel, there was a decrease of only 7.14 per cent in the total number treated.

The expenditure amounted to £6,060 compared with £6,006 in 1914.

BURMA.

115. The number of institutions increased by 54, and there was a marked increase in the number of patients treated—the most numerous being among the Burmese themselves.

The three years' course in training nurses at the General Hospital, Rangoon, has worked satisfactorily. There are numerous applications for admissions from all parts of India and Burma. A scheme has been put into operation as from July 1st, 1915, for training for a period of 2 years of 5 Burmese and Karen women annually.

The outlay on Hospitals and Dispensaries was £138,257. At Sagu, Minbu district, a dispensary was constructed at a cost of Rs. 37,774 raised by private subscriptions.

BOMBAY.

with 1914 the total number of patients treated showed an increase of 2.7 per cent, the increase being entirely due to the larger number of out-patients. Notwithstanding the changes in personnel caused by the reversion of Medical Officers to the military department on account of the war a high standard of surgical work was maintained throughout. The total expenditure amounted to £170,369.

MADRAS.

117. The number of institutions rose from 530 to 541 including the itinerating dispensaries, and total number of patients treated increased from 6,743,718 to 7,130,302. The increase in the number of operations is marked in the less serious daily occurring operations.

Large number of patients come to the Madras hospitals from *mufassal* districts, and there was a heavy strain on the nursing staff which sooner or later must be strengthened. The institution of an efficient nursing service in the *mufassal* is receiving attention.

The system of appointing young medical graduates as house surgeons and physicians to the principal hospitals in Madras was continued in 1915, and the reports on those employed, have been satisfactory.

The total expenditure was £63,443 in the City of Madras and £148,573 in the mufassal.

II .- State-Special, Railway and Private non-aided Civil Hospitals and Dispensaries.

118. The two following tables show the number of institutions open and give details of the work done by them in each province:---

State-Special and Railway Hospitals.

1779	Province.	eres s	Number of Institutions.	In-patients.	Out-patients.	Total.	Operations.
Delhi	100.2	{ 191	8 7	1,497 1,258	26,926 32,820	28,423 34,078	754 924
Bengal (excludin	g Calculta)	{ 191	96 93	16,516 16,203	334,271 330,212	350,787 346,415	7,681 7,099
Calcutta		{ 191	4 2 2	3,334 2,597	6,1 91 5,998	9,525 8,895	238 351
Assam	-	{ 191	4 43 49	3,277 3,695	64,744 70,832	68,021 74,527	92 1 766
Bihar and Oriss	a	{ 191	4 75 5 76	6,402 6,950	194,909 209,829	201,311 216,779	5,804 0,563
Central Province	s	{ 191	4 56 5 57	3,896 5,734	161,234 169,511	165,130 175,245	2,652 2,617
United Province	···	{ 191	4 129 5 121	18,848 17,207	310,903 321,869	329,751 339,076	76,476 7,183
Punjab		{ 191	4 157 5 157	7,988 6,626	553,399 580,624	561,387 587,250	18,820 17,115
North-West Fro	ntier Provinc	e { 191		9,649 8,916	120,005	129,654	3,315
Baluchistan		{ 191	4 5 5 8	1.984 2,250	44,8<2 47,986	46,836 50,236	953 1,140
Burma	***	{ 191	4 7 ² 7 ²	17,157 18,443	233,600 221,600	250,847 240,043	2,606 3,255
Bombay	3	{ 191	4 74 5 74	5,170 6,347	244,896 260,465	250,066 266,812	6,436 7,014
Madras		. { 191	4 103 5 103	11,552 11,295	269,143 259,597	280,695 270,892	5,970 7,512
					-		
	Total	{ 191	4 847 5 846	107,270 107,821	2,565,163 2,624,800	2,672,433 2,732,621	63,626 64,730

Private, non-aided Institutions.

Province.	oderat or a	Number of Institutions.	In-patients.	Out-patients	Total.	Operations.
-						
Bengal (excluding Calcutta)	{ 1914	139	6,033	1,155,805	1,161,838	24,973
bengai (excutoing Calcuta)	1915	142	6,251	1,169,023	1,175,274	24,374
Calcutta	{ 1914	3	583	30,414	30,997	2,238
Table III		2	630	128,420	29,050	. 2,020
Assam	{ 1914	6	75	24,224	24.299	381
A STATE OF STREET	1915	6	73	24,710	24,783	371
Bihar and Orissa	1914	65	8,426	687,955	696,381	22,954
	(1915	64	8,757	692,927	701,684	21,508
Central Provinces	1914	38	1,679	145.563	147,242	2,560
	(1915	39	2,075	165,002	167,077	2,657
United Provinces	{ 1914	49	7,386	387,435	394,821	9.937
	(1915	47	6,533	398,542	405,075	10,323
Punjab	{ 1914	13	4,781	84,577	89,358	3,550
-300	(1915	12	4.795	73,260	78,055	3,230
North-West Frontier Province	e § 1914	7	2,715	159,324	162,039	9,822
	36369	7	2,392	116,357	118,749	10,098
Baluchistan	{ 1914	2	79	22,571	22,650	277
. Shirt white	(1915	2	102	18,503	18,605	252
Bombay	{ 1914	333	29,430	2,016,768	2,046,198	62,781
1 The * 1 Tags .	(1915	337	25,591	1,984,804	2,010,395	67.074
Madras	1914	. 55	12,272	321,179	333,451	14,261
	(1915	53	11,900	335,200	347,100	16,225
			100			1000
Total	{ 1914	710	73,459	5,035,815	5,109,274	153,734
	(1915	711	69,099	5,006,748	5.075,847	158,132

III .- Lunatic Asylums.

119. The table attached gives the number of lunatic asylums in each province during 1915, the total population of such institutions in each province and the numbers discharged cured, and that died. The totals for all India are given for 1914 and 1915.

There was no change in the number of asylums during the year; the total asylum population increased from 8,152 to 8,978 and the total discharged as cured rose from 832 to 861. The increase in total number of admissions is spread over each province.

		1	sylams.	Admitted and	TOTAL A	SVLUM POP	ULATION.	cured.	No.	Daily	Daily	atics.
Provinc	e.	-	Namber of Asylams,	re-admit- ted during year.	Males.	Females,	Total.	Discharged cured.	Lied.		average sick.	Criminal lunatics.
Bengal			3	214	1,072	214	1,286	79	85	1,088'11	84'38	602
Assam			1	129	340	- 80	420	32	29	324'91	60.46	123
Bibar and Orissa		***	1	99	351	50	401	37	41	315 18	22'61	183
United Previnces		***	3	431	1,393	364	. 1,757	144	140	1,369*37	199'59	351
Punjab			1	311	818	235	1,053	1:6	73	763'50	68:49	180
Central Provinces			1	137	416	95	511	56	46	373'97	15'33	107
Bombay		***	6	499	1,325	327	1,652	231	85	1,1940	39°5	224
Madras			3	268	802	258	1,060	94	83	799 47	103'15	218
Berma			2	251	6So	158	818	72	53	623'18	184*77	357
- sine	ŗ	915	21	2,330	7,197	1,781	8,978	861	635	6,851'72	778*28	2,345
Total	-{,	914	21	2,083	6,717	1,735	8,452	832	625	6,528*21	658-27	2,243

In Bengal the ever growing asylum population is a serious tax on the capacity of the lunatic asylums. An extension of accommodation was provided at Berhampore to tide over the interval till the new central asylum at Ranchi is opened.

The health of all the inmates was satisfactory and there were no outbreaks of epidemic disease.

The figures for Assam call for no special remarks.

In Bihar and Orissa the insufficiency of accommodation was met by the construction of new wards. Still further extensions are under consideration.

In the United Provinces the admissions rose from 396 to 431, the highest recorded for the last five years. There was no overcrowding.

The Punjab asylums showed 311 admissions, an increase of 47 on the previous year. There were no epidemics and both the death rate and daily average sick rate were

lower than in any year since 1910. During the year cubicular accommodation to the number of 90 was added by the conversion of some of the sleeping barracks. With the increasing number of inmates extra accommodation will be a matter of urgency in the near future.

The admissions in the Central Provinces were 137 against 120 in 1914, and of this number 126 were males and 11 females. There was overcrowding on the male side. Administrative sanction for new buildings in the asylum has been received.

In Bombay structural improvements at the asylums at Dharwar, Ahmedabad and Hyderabad were carried out. At the Central Asylum, Yeravada, the provision of padded rooms, central bath and improvements to the hospital are required. The necessary plans and estimates are being prepared.

No epidemics occurred in any of the asylun.s.

In Madras there was a slight edecrease in admissions from 270 to 268. At Calicut a block of four cells for males under observation was completed. There was no epidemic and no overcrowding.

No change has been made in the total accommodation for Burma, but as the asylum population continues to show a steady increase the prospects of overcrowding have become very real, and plans for new lunatic asylum buildings have been discussed and adopted.

IV .-- Medical Colleges.

BOMBAY.

120. Grant Medical College.—There were 631 students of which there were 41 female students. The following statement shows the number of candidates that presented themselves for the various examinations and the number who passed:—

Examination.		-	Number of candidates,	PA	SSED.
			Candidates,	Males.	Females.
L. M. & S. Part I	Total .		.0		
	***		48	21	3
Part II M. B., B. S			47	24	3
Preliminary	***	***	203	126	13
Intermediate			235	105	5
Final { Part I Part II			77	43	delice I
			100	45	2
M. D. Branch I, Medicine			ī		
Branch II, Midwifery			15 ()		
M. S. BACHELOR OF HYG	ENE.		1	ı	
Part I			10	4	
Part II			7	5	
Doctor of Hygiene			1		

There were 27 Military Medical pupils under training as Military Assistant Surgeons, of whom 3 were removed and 3 passed out from the College during the year.

MADRAS.

121. Madras Medical College.—There were four hundred and twenty-five students on the rolls of the College distributed as follows:—

	Class.			Male:	Females.	Total.
M. B. & B. S.				168	14	182
L. M. & S.				100	1	101
B. Sc.				2		2
Apothecary					21	21
Military Pupi	ils		***	27		27
Chemists & I	Chemists & Druggists			11		11
Sanitary Inspectors including 2nd Class Medical Officers of Health.			81		81	
		Total		389	36	425

The following table details the number of students who sat for the University examinations and the number that passed:—

Examination.	Number of candidates.	Passed.		
L. M. S. (new)-				
1st Examination			1	
" Examination (old)				
2nd Examination			20	13
" Examination (old)				
3rd Examination (new)			29	20
Final Examination (old)			7	5
" Examination (new)			38	20
M. B. & C. M.—				
1st Eaminati on (o ld)	***			
2nd Examination (old)				
3rd Examination (old)		U	1	
M. B. & B. S. (old)-	The second			tentes tall
1st Examination (new)		***	81	50
2nd Examination (new)	•••		33	22
3rd Examination (new)			34	24
Final Examination (new)	1000		31	12
The state of the s	Total		274	166

Seven female students appeared for the 1st M. B. examination of whom 4 passed and one was found qualified for the L. M. & S. One appeared for the L. M. & S. and failed. Of the two who appeared for the 2nd M. B., one passed. Two appeared for the Final M. B. & B. S. and both passed. Six students in the Final year class of the Apothecary Department passed. Of the 27 Military Pupils, 3 passed out of the College and were appointed Military Assistant Surgeons.

PUNJAB.

122. Lahore Medical College.—The total number of students on the rolls of the College was 176 as follows:—

Government Scholarship holde	rs:-		
Punjab		 	 24
North-West Frontier Province		 	 1
Non-Government Scholarships		 	 10
Other students		 	 141
			-
			176
			-

The following statement gives the number of students that appeared for the University examinations and the number that passed:—

			which the state of	Total Sales of
Ex	amination.		Candidates,	Passed.
Final L. M. S. (old)			 1	
Final M.B., B.S.			 47	38
2nd " "			 22	20
and L. M. S. (old)			 1	1
1st M. B., B. S.			 46	33
	7	Total .	 117	92

Two female students appeared for the final examination for the College L. P. M. S. certificate and both failed. Five female students appeared for the 1st examination for the College L. P. M. S. certificate and one passed.

The extensions under the King Edward memorial scheme are now well forward. The new main College block was personally opened by His Excellency the Viceroy on the 10th November 1915 and is almost ready for occupation. Extensions to the Anatomical Department have been partially completed and the new Anatomical Theatre and Tutorial Rooms have been in use since the new year. The Research Block which is practically completed still requires much to be done in the way of fitting and the cold storage Block including the Post mortem rooms is approaching completion.

BENGAL.

123. The Calcutta Medical College.—During the year there were 916 male, 21 female and 77 military students on the rolls of the College or a total of 1,014 students. Applications for admission numbered 720 against 702 in the previous years: 162 of the former were admitted.

The following statement shews the number of students who appeared for the University examination and the number that passed:—

The stay result to be on	13-14	Number of c	andidates.	Passe	d.
Examination.		Males.	Females,	Males.	Females.
Preliminary Scientific M. B.		190	5	151	5
1st M. B Examination		296	6	130	4
2nd M. B. Examination		173	3	97	2
Doctor in Medicine		. 2		. 2	
Preliminary number State Medica	al Faculty	. 5		2	
Intermediate		14		8	
To	tal	680	14	390	11

Two students in the female certificate class passed the final Diploma examination and left the College, thus closing the female certificate class of this college for ever.

Eight Military pupils passed the final examination and left the college on being appointed as Military Assistant Surgeons.

UNITED PROVINCES.

124. King George's Medical College, Lucknow.—There were 136 students on the rolls of the College, 131 males and 5 females.

The following statement shows the number of students who appeared for the different examinations and the number that passed:—

	Number of ca	ndidates.	Pass	ed.
Examination-	Males.	Females.	Males.	Females.
ıst M. B., B. S	29		16	
Final M. B., B. S., Group "A"	22	2	16	2
Final M. B. B. S., Group "B"	19		13	
Female certificate class examination, 3rd final examination.	-	1		
Total	70	3	45	2

Owing to the financial stringency caused by the war it was not practicable to carry out many of the estimates which have been administratively sanctioned for improvements and additions to the buildings of the College.

V .- Medical Schools ..

There are 15 Medical Schools distributed as follows:—Bengal 2, Madras 3, Bombay 3, United Provinces 1, Punjab 2, Burma 1, Bihar and Orissa 2, and Assam 1.

BNEGAL.

125. The Campbell Medical School, Calcutta.—During the year there was a total of 381 students on the school rolls, 360 of whom were males and 21 females.

The following table gives the number of students who appeared for examina-

			Stu	dents.	Pas	ard.
Examination			Males.	Females.	Males.	Females.
Licensed Medical Practition	ers Diploma-	-			-	Common Services
Final Examination			95	6	55	1
Junior Examination			19	1	14	1
Compoundership			133		116	

The establishment and equipment of a Chemical and Physics laboratory for 1st year students is considered necessary as well the appointment of whole-time Demonstrator in Physiology, as the students have to attend the Medical College, Calcutta, for a course in Chemistry and Physics and there is only one Demonstrator for practical classes in Physiology and Pathology.

The Dacca Medical School.—There were 251 male and 3 female students on the rolls of the school, making a total of 254. The following statement details the result of the school examination:—

Examination.			Cand	idates.	Pa	ssed.
E Asimination	10-3-		Males.	Females.	Males.	Females.
icensed Medical Practition	ers Diploma	-				13.14
Final Examination			49	1	37	1
Junior Examination			14		14	
			127		120	1 3 3 3 1 1

Thirteen passed students were recruited into the service of Government.

MADRAS.

pupils (209 male and 16 female) including 41 in the Indian Military Pupil Class. 56 students appeared for the 1st year Examination and 41 passed; 54 students appeared for the 2nd year examination and 52 passed. Of 47 who appeared for the 3rd year examination all passed, and out of 59 final year students 50 were successful.

Plans for the accommodation of 210 students, in addition to the 50 rooms in the old hostel, have been submitted to Government and commencement of work on them is awaited.

Prince of Wales' Medical School, Tanjore.—There were 123 pupils on the rolls. Out of 26 pupils who went up for the final examination 24 passed. 29 and 23 pupils, respectively, passed the third and second year examination and 29 out of 34 first year pupils were successful at the first year examination.

Plans and estimates were prepared for construction of a new Medical School and Hostel but they have had to lie over owing to the present financial crisis.

Medical School, Visagapatam.—There were 96 pupils on the rolls. Of 21 final year, 18 third year, 17 second year and 27 first year pupils, 17 of each respective class passed the final examination. Owing to the rebuilding of the Civil Hospital, the Medical School was converted for use as a Hospital and alterations made to render it suitable for the purpose.

BOMBAY.

127. Medical School, Hyderabad (Sind).--There were 142 pupils on the school's rolls, which number was comprised of 132 Hindus and Brahmans, 8 Muhammadans, 1 Christian and 1 Parsi.

17 students appeared for the final examination of whom 14 passed. 8 of the successful students were admitted into the department as Sub-Assistant Surgeons.

The proposal to appoint a whole time teacher for Anatomy and Physiology, though administratively approved, were postponed on account of the present financial situation.

The Byramjee Jeejeebhoy Medical School, Poona.—The school year opened with 145 students on the rolls and closed with 159. During the year, 21 students passed out from the school as Sub-Assistant Surgeons, 4 of whom were admitted into the Military and 11 into the Civil branch of the service. 3 were dismissed, 2 resigned and one was allowed to proceed to Alexandria with the staff of the Bombay Presidency War Hospital.

The Byramjee Jeejeebhoy Medical School, Ahmedabad.—Including 2 female pupils, there were 204 students on the rolls. Of this number, 6 were Indian Christians, 16 Jains, 83 Brahmins, 76 other Hindus, 8 Muhammadans and 10 Parsis. One Military and 2 Civil pupils were dismissed for absence without leave. 80 pupils resided in the school hostel.

UNITED PROVINCES.

128. Medical School, Agra. The number of new admissions during the year, vis., 422, including 15 female students, was the highest on the record since the school

was opened in 1854, the increase being due to 330 pupils being admitted into the military pupil class. There were 113 pupils in the Civil class, 9 in the Rajputana and 20 in the private class and 8 qualifying for compounderships. Including 7 military pupils 24 out of 29 male and 6 out of 6 female students passed the final examination. 44 male and 20 female students appeared for the 3rd year examination and all passed. Two out of 38 male students passed the junior qualifying examination and out of 10 female students all passed the same examination.

The hostel accommodation proved insufficient to house the unprecedentedly large number of admissions and therefore 11 houses had to be hired in the city for the purpose.

PUNJAB.

129. Medical School, Lahore-—The number of students on the rolls was 255, of these 60 belonged to the Military Pupil, 15 to the Civil, 15 to the Burma, 2 to the North-West Frontier Province and 13 to the local classes. 95 students appeared for the final examination for the M. P. L. diploma and 87 passed. 37 out of 54 students passed the junior qualifying examination.

Ludhiana Medical School.—5 female students appeared and passed the final examination. All 6 female students who appeared for the junior qualifying examination failed to pass. This institution is now the provincial school for training women for the Sub-Assistant Surgeon class.

BURMA.

130. There were 75 pupils on the rolls which number includes 7 females. There were 39 male and 3 female Burman students.

8 male and 2 female students appeared for the final examination and with the exception of 1 female student, all passed. 5 out of 7 male students passed the junior examination.

BIHAR AND ORISSA.

131. Temple Medical School, Patna.—There were 97 male and 1 female students on the rolls during the year. The following is the result of the examinations:—

		A	ppeared.	Passed.
Final year	 	 	15	11
Junior class	 	 	13	13

There were no female candidates for any of these examinations. There were 74 students in the Compounder class. Of 38 male students who appeared for the compoundership examination 25 passed and 4 out of 13 outside candidates passed the compounders examination. There were no female students in the Compounders' class.

Only 3 passed students were recruited into Government service in view of better terms offered by railways and other sources of employment.

Orissa Medical School, Cuttack .- There were 159 male and 6 female students on the rolls during the year: - this number includes 80 in the Compounder class. 32

male pupils appeared for the final examination and 17 passed. 33 male and 4 female pupils appeared for the junior examination of whom 23 and 2, respectively, passed. Out of 47 male students who appeared for the Compoundership examination 37 (including 2 outsiders) passed.

ASSAM.

132. Berry-White Medical School, Dibrugarh.—There were 142 students on the rolls during the year. 14 out of 20 students passed the final and 32 out of 44 the junior qualifying examination. Out of 23 regular and 30 outside candidates 20 and 11, respectively, passed the Compounders' examination.

VI .- The X-Ray Institute of India, Dehra Dun.

132-A.—No ordinary classes of instruction were held during the year on account of the war. A modified course lasting one month was however held during February-March, the students attending being Civil Assistant and Sub-Assistant Surgeons and one private student. The total number attending was 10, of whom eight passed, two obtaining special proficiency certificates.

The number of radiographic examinations made was 1,242. 215 cases of disease were under treatment during the year.

Since the end of January the Institute has been undertaking the X-Ray examination and electrical treatment of all cases of wounded men from overseas belonging to the Indian Troops War Hospital, Dehra Dun. Further in September the services of the Institute were offered to the Military Department in connexion with a special St. John Ambulance War Hospital to be opened in Dehra Dun. The offer was gratefully accepted. Localization of severe bullet and shell injuries and the treatment of paralysis and paresis, stiff joints, trench foot and other allied conditions arising from the war are receiving appropriate treatment.

The Branch Installations at Delhi and Simla are both working satisfactorily and are obtaining a large number of patients.

Demands for renewals and replacements received from X-Ray Divisions in the field have been on an unprecedented scale, but so far the Institute has been able in all cases to comply with the requisitions received.

No case of X-Ray traumatism has occurred to any of the staff, students or patients of the Institute.

pendit negative for the judge exclusion of whom as and except the paragraph of the paragrap the same and points blad only assessment to be an an extension and the same and the by pullation of the Bullion and the state of to such the Wale of the gas of the later and ordinates use 2 to see off a

SECTION VII.

SANITARY WORKS.

INDIA.

133. From the sanitary reserve a sum of Rs. 7.80 lakhs was allotted during 1914-15 on account of Imperial grants for sanitation. From this sum a non-recurring grant of Rs. 3.30 lakhs was made towards the improvement and extension of the sewage system in Simla; one lakh was allotted to the United Provinces for the sanitary improvement of the pilgrim route to Badrinath and Kedarnath, and a similar amount towards the establishment of an experimental sullage farm at Lucknow; two lakhs were allotted for anti-malarial and other sanitary measures in Delhi and a grant of Rs. 20,000 was made to the Bombay Sanitary Association. A recurring grant of Rs. 10,000 a year was made to Hyderabad as a contribution towards sanitary and general improvements of the Residency bazaars.

The following paragraphs contain information regarding sanitary works carried out or in progress in the several provinces.

DELHI.

134. The income of the Delhi Municipality for the year amounted to Rs. 13,37,322. Exclusive of Government grants the actual net income was Rs. 11,40,497 as compared with Rs. 11,10,354 in the previous year. A sum of Rs. 8,04,367 was expended on public health and convenience against Rs. 7,36,889 in 1914-15.

The sanitation of Delhi City shows remarkable improvement. The staff of the Sanitary Department remained the same as in 1914, except that the services of one Circle Inspector were dispensed with and a qualified Sanitary Inspector appointed in his stead. No new large drainage works were undertaken. Steady progress with the erection of water flush latrines continues as sites become available. The work of constructing incinerators and bathing places was continued. Among the important sanitary works undertaken during the year was the removal of robas. It may be explained that a roba is a masonry shaft, 10 to 20 feet long, through which night-soil passes from the roof of a house to a receptacle placed at the lower end, obviously a most insanitary contrivance and a fruitful breeding place for flies. During the year 250 robas were closed and sanitary latrines erected in their stead.

In the Notified Area improvements in drainage were carried out; low ground was filled in; pucca drains were made and part of the canal cut was lined. Sanitary defects still abound but are being steadily removed.

BENGAL.

135. The number of municipalities in Bengal as in the previous year was 111. Their total income from all sources, including the opening balance of Rs. 19,05,845 and 'extraordinary and debts' of Rs. 18,31,165, amounted to Rs. 93,64,841 against Rs. 88,64,602 in the previous year. Of this 37'18 per cent was spent on sanitary works against 40'15 per cent in 1914. The decrease is mainly on account of water

supplies due to the fact that abnormally large sums had been spent in this connexion in the previous year.

Of the reserve sanitary grant of 3 lakhs for 1915-16, Rs. 2,99,568 was allotted.

The total expenditure on sanitary works incurred by municipalities, district boards, Government and private individuals amounted to Rs. 22,92,429 against Rs. 17,28,946 in the preceding year. The most important work undertaken was the excavation of a canal at a cost of Rs. 6,47,432 to carry the drainage of the central part of Howrah town. Several new septic tank installations were erected and six were under construction at the close of the year.

Measures for the improvement of village sanitation such as cleaning out filthy tanks, filling of ditches, cleaning of drains, removing refuse and jungle, received considerable attention during the year.

136. Sanitary Board.—There was no change in the constitution of the Board. Nine meetings were held during the year. Five sketch projects at an estimated cost of Rs. 7,10,592 were recommended to Government of which four were approved: six detailed schemes were also recommended for final sanction.

Amongst other questions the Board addressed Government on the proposal of the Sanitary Engineer to depute subordinates to England for training in sanitary engineering.

Various sanitary schemes under consideration or in the course of preparation had to be postponed until the end of the war on account of lack of funds.

ASSAM.

137. There were in Assam in 1915, 14 municipalities, 6 unions and one station, an increase of two unions as compared with 1914. Their total income amounted to Rs. 9,74,820 against Rs. 8,56,613 in the previous year: the increase is mainly due to Government grants-in-aid for large improvement schemes. The aggregate expenditure on sanitation during the year was Rs. 2,69,071 or 27.60 per cent of the total income as compared with Rs. 2,29 238 or 28.58 per cent in 1914. Under the orders of the local Government the expenditure on account of 'treatment of the sick' has not, as hitherto, been shown as expenditure on sanitation.

Improvements were effected in urban sanitation in the matter of water-supplies and better supervision of municipal sanitary activity by the appointment of sanitary inspectors in larger towns: this work would have been carried on still further but for financial limitations occasioned by the war.

The balance of the Imperial sanitary grants, recurring and non-recurring, amounted to Rs. 68,000, out of which Rs. 14,357 were allotted for various sanitary improvements. Numerous schemes for piped water-supplies, drainage and town planning were under construction or consideration during the year.

Programmes drawn up by Local Boards for the improvement of water-supplies, to be spread over a period of five years, were approved. Funds amounting to Rs. 1,40,113 were placed at the disposal of the boards for financing the first year's programme. Two-thirds of this sum was contributed by Government, the remainder being found from local funds. The expenditure of Local Boards on rural water-supplies and other minor schemes of village sanitation was much below the amount so spent in 1914, vis., Rs. 1,13,037 against Rs. 2,24,388.

138. Sanitary Board.—The Sanitary Board was reconstituted during the year and now consists of the Inspector General of Civil Hospitals as president, the Chief Engineer and the Commissioners of Divisions concerned as members and the Sanitary Commissioner as secretary and member. No formal meeting of the Board was held, all business being transacted by correspondence.

BIHAR AND ORISSA.

139. An expenditure of Rs. 14,77,004 was incurred in municipal towns on sanitary works during the year as compared with Rs. 14,48,054 in 1914. The increase was mainly on account of conservancy, drainage and markets and fairs.

Of the Imperial grant of Rs. 2,89,000 on account of sanitation, Rs. 1,56,063 was distributed during 1915-16. Rs. 15,000 was allotted to the Sanitary Board for the provision of a temporary staff for the preparation of drainage and water-supply projects of municipalities, and Rs. 16,980 on account of temporary establishment required for plague preventive measures. Grants were also made in aid of a scheme for improving methods of registration of vital statistics; water-supplies in the new capital (Bankipore) and in the Patna and Monghyr municipalities; and the new vaccine depot.

District Boards expended a sum of Rs. 3,71,868 as compared with Rs. 2,45,803 in the previous year. The main heads under which there was increased expenditure were conservancy, drainage, and water-supply: under the latter head there was an increase of nearly one lakh of rupees.

Two additional Health Officers were appointed during the year. There were altogether nine second class Health Officers, six of whom were appointed during the year after a course of training at Madras. Model rules and standard forms for the guidance and use of Sanitary Inspectors in municipalities were drafted and submitted to Government.

A scheme was drawn up for carrying out a complete sanitary survey of the province, but the work could not be commenced on any large scale owing to the lack of funds and necessary trained staff.

Two Assistant Engineers were appointed during the year and the subordinate engineering staff was reorganized, resulting in increased efficiency of the department. Numerous sanitary improvement schemes were commenced during the year, the most important being water-supply and sewerage schemes for the new capital.

UNITED PROVINCES.

140. The total municipal income of the year amounted to Rs. 88,71,233 against Rs. 99,98,464 in the preceding year. Of this 44 per cent was spent on water-supply, drainage and conservancy. A grant of Rs. 50,000 was as usual made for the improvement of village sanitation in rural tracts.

Out of the grant sanctioned by the Government of India for urban sanitation five and a half lakhs were allotted for sanitary schemes. Of this Rs. 1,20,000 were for the Agra water works and 1,95,000 for the Lucknow Town Planning Emergency Schemes. A further grant of Rs. 80,000 was also made towards the improvement of the water-supply plant at Agra.

141. Sanitary Board.—The Sanitary Board held ten meetings during the year. Sanitary schemes of an aggregate cost of Rs. 7,05,410 received the administrative sanction of the Sanitary Board. Many large projects were hampered or held in abeyance for want of adequate funds. The total amount at the disposal of the Board for expenditure on sanitary works aggregated Rs. 6,50,866 of which Rs. 5,89,312 were allotted.

PUNJAB.

142. The system of rewards on account of sanitary improvement does not appear to appeal to the people concerned; at any rate no effort is made to obtain them. An income of Rs. 1,28,286 was derived from the sale of street sweepings and Rs. 34,333 was realized from sewage irrigation. Few attempts were made to improve village sanitation as it is extremely difficult to get the villagers to change their customs or habits. Endeavours are being made to remove existing prejudices against sanitary reforms.

143. Sanitary Board.—The Board, whose constitution remained the same as in 1914, met three times during the year. The annual grant was enhanced from seven and a half lakhs to eight lakhs and the Sanitary Board would have been able to dispose of the entire grant but for circumstances which resulted in a reduction in the amount and the subsequent withdrawal by Government of Rs. 4,26,564. Of the urban grant of five lakhs allotments to the amount of Rs. 3,56,537 were made during the year, the balance being withdrawn by Government. The most important urban sanitary works undertaken were the Sialkot water-supply scheme and the Dera Ghazi Khan water-supply extension scheme. In accordance with the powers delegated to the Sanitary Board to accord administrative sanction to sanitary schemes the cost of which does not exceed one lakh, the Board approved of 8 drainage schemes and one water-supply scheme during the year. Government accorded technical sanction to five drainage schemes.

NORTH-WEST FRONTIER PROVINCE.

144. During the year little progress was possible in the province with regard to sanitary schemes as the officers of the Public Works Department were 50 per cent under strength on account of the war.

From the balance of the yearly recurring grants of one lakh, Rs. 1,31,000 were allotted to Peshawar City for the provision of improved water-supply and drainage Towards this the Government of India have sanctioned a grant-in-aid of 5 lakhs of which two lakhs have been allotted. Of the recurring grant of one lakh for 1915, Rs. 60,000 were surrendered, the balance being allotted to the Dera Ismail Khan municipality for paving and draining, and for the construction of infectious diseases camps in the vicinity of all municipal towns.

In all a sum of Rs. 1,66,308 was expended by municipalities and district boards on sanitary works during the year.

CENTRAL PROVINCES AND BERAR.

145. The total income of municipalities for 1914-15 excluding loans and balances was Rs. 33,09,175 against Rs. 31,62,928 in 1913-14. Of this Rs. 17,77,358 or 46 per cent was spent on sanitation.

Municipalities continued to display reasonable activity in the sanitation of towns. A provincial grant of Rs. 4,12,648 was made them during the year for sanitary improvements.

A special grant of Rs. 55,000 was made for improvements to water-supplies in rural areas. Schemes for the provision of good water-supplies at all places where fairs are held and along the routes leading thereto were under consideration.

146. Sanitary Board .- The Sanitary Board held four meetings during the year and considered numerous schemes in connexion with water-supply, drainage, &c.

MADRAS.

147. In 1915 the number of municipal towns increased from 64 to 68. The expenditure on the improvement of water-supplies amounted to Rs. 3,14,851 and that on conservancy to Rs. 8,83,857 or 92.8 and 70.6 per cent, respectively, of the allotments under these heads.

There was no change in the number of district boards. Beyond petty improvements to water-supplies, latrines, drains, &c., no sanitary works of any magnitude were undertaken during the year. The allotment for sanitary purposes amounted to Rs. 14,46,771 and the expenditure during the nine months for which figures are available, to Rs. 7,02,072 or 48.5 per cent against 40.8 per cent in 1914: more than 50 per cent of the allotment thus lapsed to Government. The conditions as to water-supply and drainage in rural areas as a whole were more or less the same as in previous years. Two water-supply schemes were in progress and 14 under investigation.

148. Sanitary Board .- There was no change in the constitution and functions of the Board. Thirty-two sanitary schemes at an estimated cost of Rs. 12,13,172 were approved during the year. Standard designs were issued for sewage purification arrangements, contagious diseases wards, &c.

COORG.

140. A sum of Rs. 6,156 was expended during the year on certain works connected with the drainage and water-supply of Mercara. Wells were sunk in two pettas and repairs were carried out to several wells and tanks in the province.

BOMBAY.

150. There were 157 municipalities in the Bombay Presidency in 1915. The combined municipal income amounted to Rs. 1,24,87,579 of which Rs. 60,67,924 or 48.5 per cent was expended on public health requirements, an increase of Rs. 4,06,204 over the corresponding expenditure of the previous year.

Under the scheme for the appointment of Health Officers and Sanitary Inspectors, three first class and two second class Health Officers and 32 Sanitary Inspectors were appointed.

There were 26 District Local Boards and 216 Taluka Local Boards, the same number as in 1914. Their income amounted to Rs. 84,74,757 and expenditure to Rs. 84,42,463. On water-supplies, drainage and other public health works, Rs. 3,86,398 or less than 5 per cent of the income was spent.

A grant of Rs. 62,000 was made for the improvement of village water-supplies. The allotments were expended in making new tanks and deepening existing ones, in constructing new wells, repairing old ones, &c.

The Imperial grant of Rs. 7 lakhs was distributed among the District Local Boards of the Presidency and Sind and was mainly devoted to the improvement of water supplies, maintenance of medical and veterinary dispensaries and the provision of dharmshalas. Allotments were also made by the local Government in connexion with various sanitary works.

151. Sanitary Board.—Three meetings of the Board were held during the year to consider water-supply and drainage schemes. The Board sanctioned the preparation of four new projects, mainly in connexion with water-supply: twenty water-supply and drainage schemes were either completed or made progress during the year and 56 others were under investigation.

BURMA.

152. The total income of municipalities and local bodies during 1914-15 was Rs. 1,96,05,306 of which Rs. 57,51,320 was expended on civil sanitary works as compared with Rs. 1,91,25,924 and Rs. 56,52,187, respectively, in 1913-14. The amount spent on water-supply was about Rs. 20 lakhs, on drainage 7 lakhs, conservancy 17 lakhs and on other sanitary works about 13 lakhs.

The whole of the recurring grant of six lakhs for the improvement of urban sanitation together with a balance of Rs. 72,453 from the previous year, was distributed.

153. Sanitary Board.—Three meetings of the Board were held at which various sanitary schemes were considered.

MILITARY WORKS.

154. During 1915-16 the expenditure on ordinary original military works, viz., drainage, conservancy, water-supply, hospitals, &c., was Rs. 2,28,562 and on repairs Rs. 5,96,280 against Rs. 2,35,575 and Rs. 6,21,690, respectively, in 1914-15. The expenditure on special military works under the same heads amounted to Rs. 2,05,224 against Rs. 3,98,459.

gaber as in 1914. Their income amounted to Ke St.74.757 and exprediture to

SECTION VIII.

GENERAL REMARKS.

LABORATORIES.

Institute were, in 1915, devoted to the manufacture and issue of sera and vaccines for which the demands made by the Indian expeditionary forces were very considerable. All demands were satisfactorily complied with, a fact that reflects great credit on the Serum and Vaccine Therapy Section, which for a great part of the year were working under great pressure, with a staff reduced on account of the war. Much greater demands have been dealt with in 1916, but even in 1915 the output was enormously in excess of anything that had till then been accomplished by the Institute.

The greatest demand was for typhoid vaccine the output of which approximated 150,000 c.c. as compared with 55,000 c.c. in the previous year. Cholera vaccine was manufactured and issued in large quantities for the first time; 51,500 c.c. were sent out. This vaccine was prepared from fresh cultures obtained in Calcutta. In the manufacture of these and other vaccines that may be employed for the inoculation of Indian troops, every precaution is taken to ensure that nothing detrimental to caste prejudice is employed in the process; for example beef is never employed in the manufacture of the culture media on which the vaccines are grown. In addition approximately 3,000 c.c. of other stock vaccines were issued and ninety autogenous vaccines were prepared. Fifty thousand c.c. of antivenene and one thousand doses of anti-diphtheritic serum were prepared and issued as well as seven hundred c.c. of other sera.

In addition to the above a large amount of sera imported from England was distributed.

Seven hundred and nine specimens of pathological material, &c., were examined and reported on, including 151 Widal tests, 143 Wassermann tests, 243 blood examinations and 45 tumours.

In spite of this large amount of routine work, a fair amount of research work was done as is evidenced by the fact that sixteen papers were contributed to the *Indian Journal of Medical Research* by workers in the Institute. The equipment of several bacteriological laboratories for service in Mesopotamia has been undertaken by the Institute, which laboratories, we believe, have been of very great value and assistance.

The classes of training in bacteriological technique and malaria investigation, that form an important part of the functions of the Institute in peace time, have been in abeyance on account of the war.

The King Institute of Preventive Medicine, Madras.—Once again a large part of the energies of the staff of this Institute were devoted to the examination of water supplies. One thousand six hundred samples were submitted to either chemical or bacteriological examination. Pathological specimens sent for examination numbered 4,382, which is considerably less than in the previous year. Seven thousand doses of vaccines were manufactured and issued of which 773 were doses of autogenous vaccine (129 such vaccines were made).

The Bombay Bacteriological Laboratory.—This institute still continues to function as a Plague Laboratory for India as well as the Bombay Provincial Laboratory.

The output of anti-plague vaccine was larger in 1915 than in any previous year with the single exception of 1911. Altogether 827,407 doses were despatched. Since the Laboratory was opened in 1896, thirteen million and seventy thousand doses have been supplied. Statistics contained in the Laboratory report demonstrate the efficacy of inoculation as a means for combating a plague epidemic.

Further experiments with hydrocyanic acid gas as a means for destroying vermin (rat-fleas, bugs, etc.) were carried out. A number of different types of machine for generating and distributing the gas were designed and constructed. These machines were tested on a practical scale in houses in Poona City and on bug infested railway carriages. The experiments showed that with suitable precautions, the gas could be used with safety and success. Some of the experiments proved that although a number of rats were killed in the houses' by the gas, some which found shelter in deep boxes and barrels survived because the gas did not diffuse into such situations in sufficient concentration during the period the house remained closed. This result is explicable by the fact that the gas is slightly lighter than air. Again rats placed in cages near the roof of some of the houses which were treated with the gas were not killed; here apparently fresh air blown into the room through the comparatively open country tiles sufficed to dilute the gas so that it was no longer harmful to the rats. The action of the gas on insects was more marked than on mammals. Bugs, fleas, cockroaches and mosquitos were readily killed but certain grain weevils were found to be more resistant.

Guinea-worm disease continued to engage the attention of the staff of the Laboratory. Two villages in which the disease has prevailed for many years have been chosen for further experiment and observation. It is proposed to improve the water supply in use in these villages in such a way as to eradicate the disease therein. A new species of guinea-worm was found in the Cobra.

Further investigations have been made in regard to the prevalence of bovine tuberculosis in Bombay. An epidemic of this disease was studied among deer and antelopes confined in the Zoological Gardens in Bombay City.

Although cultures of tubercle bacilli from more than sixty cases of glandular tuberculosis in patients operated upon in the hopitals in Bombay have been obtained and studied, no single strain among these has conformed to the bovine type; all strains were of the human type.

In addition to the manufacture of the plague prophylactic, the laboratory staff were engaged in the examination of pathological material derived from the hospitals throughout the Presidency.

A department has been started for the examination of samples of water used by the municipalities, jails and other public and private institutions in the Presidency.

The laboratory has rendered considerable service during the year to the Military Authorities in the supply of vaccines, disinfectants and apparatus for bacteriological and chemical examinations; as well as assisting with the pathological examination of material derived from the War Hospitals in Bombay.

The Pasteur Institute of India, Kasauli.—A still further increase in the number of patients presenting themselves for treatment at this institute was recorded in 1915. The steady increase in attendance year after year in spite of the multiplication of anti-rabic institutes in India, is evidence of increasing dissemination of knowledge regarding the efficacy of Pasteurian treatment. In the year under report 5,046 patients were treated and an additional 441 persons who presented themselves were advised that treatment was unnecessary in their cases. Of the total treated only 322 were Europeans a lesser number than in the three preceding years. The failure rate was 0.7 per cent. Altogether since the Institute started working in 1900, 30,735 persons have been treated. Several additions and improvements in the Institute buildings, notably a special rabies hospital, an increase in the accommodation for poor patients and the installation of a cold storage plant, have been effected with advantage to both the staff and the patients.

The Pasteur Institute of Southern India, Coonoor.—In 1915-16, 1,490 persons underwent the course of treatment in addition to which 142 persons were advised that treatment was unnecessary. This is a larger number than have been treated in any previous year at this Institute. Since the foundation of the Institute in 1907, 8,180 persons have been treated. Of the total treated in the year under report 111 were either Europeans or Anglo-Indians. The failure rate amounted to 0.47 per cent.

The Pasteur Institute of Burma, Rangoon.—The institute was inaugurated on August 13th, 1915. The first case for treatment, however, arrived a month earlier, i.e., on the 6th July.

During the year ending 31st July 1916, 451 persons sought advice. Of these 110 were dismissed, as no treatment was deemed necessary in their cases, while 30 did not complete the full course of treatment.

Of the 311 patients subjected to treatment, 199 had been buitten by animals proved to have been rabid: in 112 the risk of infection was more doubtful.

The cases were drawn from the different communities as follows:—European and Anglo-Indian 35, Hindu 135, Mahomedan 60, Burman 90, other classes 21.

The new Government laboratories were amalgamated with the Pasteur Institute and the bacteriological and pathological work hitherto done in them was carried out in that institute. The total number of examinations made in these laboratories during the twelve months ending 3rd of May 1916 amounted to 1,354. In addition 88 examinations of brain for Negri bodies and 2 inoculation tests for rabies were made.

THE INDIAN RESEARCH FUND ASSOCIATION.

156. Research work in India has naturally suffered as a result of the continuance of the war. Most of our research workers are employed on military duties, and even those that are left in civil employ are devoting most of their energies to meeting war demands for vaccines or sera or, with greatly reduced staffs, are coping with the essential routine work of the Institutes.

Throughout 1915 Major Greig, I.M.S., continued his important investigations on the subject of cholera. His reports have been published in the *Indian Journal of Medical Research*. The inquiry has now been closed and Major Greig has reverted to military employ.

Further work was also done by Captain Morison I.M.S., in Poona in connexion with the bacteriological examination of water supplies; this inquiry has been completed. The results achieved are important: among other things Captain Morison has demonstrated that the intestinal complaints for which Poona has long had a most unenviable reputation are entirely dependent upon contamination of the water supply that follows rainfall in the catchment area of Lake Fife. Sterilization of the water has already had most beneficial results; as a direct consequence the infant mortality rate of Poona City has fallen in a striking manner. Several reports relating to this inquiry have been published in the Journal.

Dr. A. Lankester has completed the preliminary part of his inquiry into the relative prevalence of tuberculosis in the different parts of India; he has submitted a report which has been circulated to all provincial Governments for criticism of the methods proposed for dealing with the situation. These criticisms are now being considered. On the whole there is little evidence to show that the prevalence of this disease is increasing in India considered as a whole though it is undoubtedly very wide spread.

The inquiry that was started in Poona by Major Kunhardt, I.M.S., dealing with certain aspects of the etiology and prevention of plague epidemics is being continued by Dr. Chitre. Some interesting work has been done in connexion with rat poisons. At present it appears that barium carbonate is the most generally efficient rat poison that has yet been employed.

Major McCay, I.M.S., Professor of Physiology in the Calcutta Medical College, is prosecuting an inquiry on behalf of the Association into the etiology of diabetes in Calcutta; this work is being carried out in addition to his own duties.

Ankylostomiasis or hook-worm disease has been attracting considerable attention. This work has been undertaken partly in response to representations made by the Rockefeller Institute whose activities in connexion with hook-worm disease in all corners of the globe are well known. Inquiries are being prosecuted in the Darjeeling district by Major Clayton Lane, I.M.S., who is working chiefly among the tea garden coolies, and by Dr. Mhasker in Negapatam, Madras, who is devoting most of his attention to the coolies that pass through the emigration depot there. Both inquiries have already demonstrated how very widespread hook-worm infection is in India; from 60 to 98 per cent of the populations concerned have been found to harbour the parasite.

A chemical investigation of chaulmoogra oil under the supervision of Lieutenant-Colonel Sir Leonard Rogers, I. M. S.; an investigation of the genus *Musca* by Mr. Awati; an inquiry into osteomalacia by Dr. Scott and certain protozological investigations complete the list of all the purely research activities of the Association that have been possible in the present straitened circumstances regarding personnel.

In spite of the war the official organ of the Association, The Indian Journal of Medical Research, has managed to issue a number each quarter. Fourteen numbers have now appeared and from the support that has been accorded to it, it may be assumed that it fulfils a useful purpose. It is a striking record of the interest that is being taken in medical research in India at the present time and of the benefit that medical research is conferring on the people of India.

PILGRIM COMMITTEE.

Committees in various Provinces. The reports in Bihar and Orissa, the United Provinces, Madras and Bombay have been completed and submitted to local Governments. They have also been forwarded to the Government of India with a note dealing with the various subjects from the point of view of India as a whole. Action is being taken on these various recommendations in consultation with the bodies concerned.

W. W. CLEMESHA, M.D., D.P.H., Lieut.-Col., I.M.S.,

Sanitary Commissioner with the Government of India.

THE ROW AND THE COVERNMENT SPECIAL PORTS. Note and Mint to war to him the state of the second of the and their contribution of administration for support and an extendible of their The state of the s

APPENDICES

TO THE

Annual Report of the Sanitary Commissioner with the Government of India

FOR

1915.

SISC

99

_							1				-
										RA	TIO PE
										AAn	MISSION
		Years.	*Average strength.							D	Deaths
	A. Groupe.	I cars.	strengta.	Constantly sick.							- 10
				tant	Invaliding.	Influe	nza.	Chol	ora.	Smal	l-pox.
				Cons	Inva					-	
										7	
						Α.	D.	Α.	D.	Δ.	D.
				41	19:4	3:7				- 5	
Grou	p I.—Burma Coast and	1905-1914	1,255	35	12-1			***			
Grou	Bay Islands.	1915	298	37	11-0			***			
	,	1905—1914	1,561	42	+2.1	1.5	101	16	1.22		
,,	II.—Burma Inland	1914	1,031	41				***			
	- 1	1915	579	45	5.2	7	***	***			
		1905—1914	1,862	46	†8·0	6.8		-3		-5	-0
,,	IV.—Bengal and Orissa	1914	1,704	47	8.8			2.9	***	-	-
		1915	1,220	50	84.4	57			***		
	- (1905-1914	6,262	38	1914	57		1.1	-62	.9	
	VGangetic Plain and Chutia Nagpur.	1914	4,919	26	10.1	6.9		-6		1.4	
	(1915	3,374	34	19-9	11.6		***			
	[1905—1914	13,400	41	18.0	71		'3	18	-4	40
20	VIUpper Sub-Himalaya	1914	11,141	34	7-0	3·5 8·5		1	'36	-2	3
	SHI MILW I	1915	9,410	38	14.2	A DIE	10	123113	371	Similar	1
	VII North-West Frontier,	1905-1914	5,156	43	187	36.8	-02	-2	-19	*5	. 0
11	North-Western	1914	5,101	38	9:4	2.8		1.6	-70	2	
	Rajputana.	1915	5,752								-
	The State of Paid	1995—1914	5,914	41. 27	†6 9 5·2	6.3		-1		1.1	
99	VIII.—South-Eastern Raj- putana, Central I India and Gujarat.	1914	6,404 3,500	39	16-9	4.3					-
				36	164	2.1		.5	-35	-6	
	IXDeccan	1905—1914	9,267	- 29	6.3	-8		1.0	-54		
**		1915	6,798	39	- 39-9	17-9	***	***		-3	
		1905—1914	1,480	45	18.9	24		1		8	-
11	XWestern Coast	1914	1,519	34	33	3-3					
		1915	1,170	46	49-6	10.3					
		1905—1914	3,441	43	†7 -6	3.3		-2	-06	-7	
10	XI.—Southern India	1914	2,869	18	8.8	:3		-7	-35	-7	
	1	1915	1,254	40	30.3	7:2				-8	
	(1905—1914	11,660	31	+5.4	5.5		•1		1	
19	XII (a)Hill Stations	1914	10,039	28	2-8	4.6					-
		1915	6,593	38	10-3	4.5	****	-9	-45		
	(1905-1914	3,648	52	19-3	1.7	***	1	.08	-2	.00
**	XII (b).—Hill Convalescent-	1914	3,225	40	3.7	1.5	***		-31	.3	
		1915	2,427	. 53		1.6			***	-	
	[1905—1914	69,846	29	17.4	71	-00	3	-27	-5	-02
India		1914	60,581	32	19.8	2-9		-4	18	1	-
	,								10	-	-
	Marin The Control of		nananial aut		THE LOCAL PROPERTY OF THE PARTY				The second		

The decennial ratios are worked on the total strength of the ten-year period.
 † From 1909 to 1914.

E OF STRENGTH.

teric	fever.	Mala	ria.	Pyre of uncertain	(C) (C) (C)	Pneun	onia.	Dysen	itery.	Venereal	discases.	All ca	uses.
	D	Α.	D.	Α.	D.	Α.	D.	A.	D.	. A.	D.	Α.	D.
-6	-16	61.1	48	126.7	*08	1.3	.16	13.5	-80	128:3	-32	706-0	7-57
		29-3		3.4		1-7		gra .		107.8	-86	499-1	6-90
	***	332-7	1.00	60-1		1.0			,	55.1		950-9	2.00
30	-70	91.8	- 19	76-6		1.5	-38	7:4	-26	124:1	. 13	737-8	5.83
		63-0		18.1		1.9		2.8		117-4		637-7	1.94
	***	466		5-2		1.7		2.3	****	34.2		1,024-2	1.73
4.0	-59	125-1	-16	69-2		3.1	*81	11.5	-33	140-2	-11	720-6	9.24
-6		190 7	Pillian II	21.1		-6		3-5		112.7		900-8	8-22
2-5		159.8	1.64	13-1		-81		8-2	-82	42.6		1,156-6	9.01
-		80-7	-14	75.0	103	3.7	-43	11-1	-42	83.5	-02	657-4	8:24
2-3	2.01	36.2		45.7	•20	7.5	1.22	9-1		51.0		575-7	5.08
10	-59	16.9	-30	62	-20	1.8	-59	50	-89	16.0		756-7	8.89
				-						1		mrn a	
0.1	1.88	2091	*31	43-6	-01	3-8	.39	6-9	-25	66.8	-04	782-9	7°16 4 85
3.8	45	247-4	-27	88	***	3.9	.08	6°0 3°7	-21	48·6 28·1	-11	824.0	4.78
80	- 11	172-5	-21	7-6	***	1.9	32		21	201	**		
77	1.63	319-3	-45	61:0	.06	44	-37	. 4.8	-06	61-0	-06	985-6	7-33
18	-59	398:4	1.18	23-3	.39	2.7	. 59	1.6		37.4	-39	833.0	6-27
1.7	.35	224-9	35	21-7		4.7	1-22	2.1		33.0	-	890-9	8.70
0.7	2.79	233 4	-27	197		2.8	-25	10.0	-32	81-2	-05	778-9	7.78
23	47	84.6		4.5		1'4	.16	4.1		26.4		481.6	3.13
0-0	1.71	84-6	-29	10.0		2.9	-57	5.1	***	44'3		713-7	8.57
16	1.92	97-4	10	25.3		2.2	-22	15.9	-33	81.6	*05	572-2	6.37
44	2	112-3	-11	9		1.5	-22	10-2	-11	59.7		467-5	3-34
16	-44	117-7	-59	24		2.4		10 6	-29	25.7		852-3	6.41
2.3	-61	152-0	-27	9-6	10.01	2.1	-54	11.4	-20	139-5	-14	642.0	6-49
39		128-4		-7	***	2-6	1.97	13-8	1:32	117-2		610-3	6 58
1.7		117-9		3.4		-8		11:1		73'5		838-3	4:27
		199				-	.00	16-0	117	118 5	.06	702:0	5'41
31	1.22	73·5	-09	24.1	***	2·0 3·5	-29	8.0	*15	63.4	-00	475-1	3:14
40		32.7		7-2	***	24		8.0		36.7		901-9	8:77
									3 18			****	
5.8	195	88-9	-13	24.7	***	2.4	-88	5.5	*26	53.6	12	531·6 500·0	4:49 2:59
1.9		135-9		6.6	***	1.7	10	3.5	-20	33·6 22·9	-10	798-3	8-79
3-0		247.5	*15	8:0	***	2.7	15	1.2	-15				
70	1.10	142.0	-19	17-2	200	2.5	-25	9.7	-44	69-9	.16	686.3	7:54
.3		194-1		5.0		2.8		5.6	1.34	41.9	100	804-6	6-20
4.9	-41	145:4		4.5	***	3.7	-82	17-3	-82	11.1		750-7	6.24
8-5	1.52	148-1	-21	89-0	-01	3.0	-83	9-8	-59	77-6	-07	685-2	6.60
2.9	-21	162-8	'16	10.7	-05	2.8	-28	6.2	-16	55-2	-07	614-5	4:35
3-7	-36	154-5	-36	9.8		2.7	-38	5.6	-29	29.1	.03	823·1	\$-90

- 4
7
5
ě
5
*
0
0
0
-
1
0
030
-
0
- On
n and death rates from Enteric fever in stations of over 1,000 strength.
.0
2
40
60
2
2
2
0
-
.5
6
+2
:57
7
2
0
4
000
0
10
1
12
12
e
2
73
2
0
22
.0
88
.25
-Admission a
0
4
1
B
80

1	1	1 .				10		1	1	1		
1905-1915.	Death rate per 1,000.	92:68	517	19.1	1.60	18			Death rate per 1,000.	32-13	23.20	23-25
DECRMINA 1905-1915.	J000,I veq ofar moissimbA	11.5	17-6	9.7	191	12-9		LDREN.	Constantly sick rate per 1,000,1	16.0	15.8	141
5.	.000,f roq oter deso(I	15	4.60	1.89		-		ECHILDREN	.000,I raq etar neissimbA.	300.4	288-7	341-2
1915.	.000,f roq star noissimbA	9.6	18.4	00 61	69	ė			.dracers femans *energeth.	6,213	6,465	2,925
		1	1	1	1	1			.000,1 rate per 1,000.	8-13	96.9	6-37
	i		,		1	17.4		MEN.	Constantly sick rate per 1,000.	5.75	181	19-2
	Stations.		1	!	1	. !		DWOKEN.	.000,I req oter noiseimbA	583.7	481-7	6.994
		Mhow	Jhansi .	Jabbalpore	Poons.	Secunderabad .			Average annual strongth.	3,839	3,772	1,570
ж 1905-1914.	Death rate per 1,000.	02-5	5.49 T	1.70	3-00 E	2.50	1.33		Douth rate per 1,000.	7-72	3.83	7-31
DECENNIUM	.000,1 roq otar noissimbA.	12.9	1.9	1111	16.0	15.4	8.9	FICESS	Constantly siok rate per ,000,1	24.1	21.5	24.7
16	Death rate per 1,000.	Ell	1	-	1	-16		COFFICERS	.000,I veq etsa noissimbA	8-919	2.985	604-3
1915.	.000,f and other notasimhA.	99	ç,	9.8	1	15-9	90		Average annua strength.	1,267	2,087	2,080
-1		i	1	1		i	-			-		-
			- 1	1	-		-				1	:
		1	i		1	i		1	100 1100	1	:	100
	Stations.	1	i		i		-	200	Period.		-1	1
		1		1	1	1	1		110 5 00 70		1	1
	100000	War	bera	Rawalpindi	#	mos		-	100	114.	1	1
	The state of the s	Poshawar	Nowsbern	awa.	Meernt	Lueknow	Quetta		CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF	1905-1914	1914	1915

	100	1				R								
		-3			4			1	Di	EATHS FR	ОМ			
ARMIES AND DIVISIONS	Years.	Ayerage strength	Admissions into hospita'.	Con- stantly sick.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric fever.	Malaria .	Tubercle of the lungs.	Preumonia.	Dysentery.	Abscess of the liver,	All causes.	Mortality including absent deaths.
	1914	60,614	641	23	.31	*02	.31	-30	*33	1'29	.10	*05	4'50	
en Army	1915	71,842	740	34	.64		74	1'38	*40	3 26	*24	.07	10.08	
	1914	45,710	568	22			*44	'22	*15	1'12	*07		4'57	
ra Army	1915	42,631	772	35			*14	*66	*21	171	-16	-	6.25	
The later with	1914	10,326	743	23	*29		'97	.39	.29	*97	.10	,10	5,53	
eshawar) Division	1915	13,438	725	30	*97	,	15	'30	'22	3'42	*07		7*81	-
(awalpindi) Division	1914	10,729	598	24	.09		'37	19	*37	1'12	.09	A	4'29	
Rawalpindi) Division	1915	11,405	825	40	1'23		.35	5'61	.00	3'42	-61		15.78	
ahore) Division	1914	9,007	509	19	'44		*11	'44	'22	1'22		711	4'11	-
ahore) Division	1915	11,584	633	33	*60		-69	*26	*35	2.42	.09		7'51	
petta) Division	5 1914	9,539	635	24			.10		'21	2,10			4.61	-
(Jetus) Division in	1915	13,778	576	26			*15	*80	'22	2.83	-29		7'55	
Mhow) Division	5 1914	12,140	465	18	'41		*41	.33	*68	1'07	*08		4'53	
	1915	10,549	725	35			*19	119	.19	1'33	.10		474	-
Poons) Division	§ 1914	9,740	578	23	'21		'31	'21	*10	'92	'21		4'31	
(a)	1915	6,174	1,001	51	-		-	,33	*16	1'62	*15		5'18	
Meerut) Division	§ 1914	11,233	475	22	-		.09	*36	*80	1'60	*09	3-	5'07	-
	1915	12,633	553	32	*47		*47	'47	1'98	1'58	'03	*08	8*23	***
Lucknow) Division	5 1914	10,791	655	24	.09	.00	.10	.19	'19	:65	'09		2.69	-
	1915	8,757	643	34	.46	-	'57	1'03	*57	1,60	*34	,53	9'02	-
Secunderabad) Division	5 1914	8,172	457	20	'61		*36	-	*36	1,10	-		4'52	-
to the	1915	5,526	652	32	-	-	18	-	*18	'54		-	5'07	-
na Division	11	4,435		27	-	-	1.80	0			-	-	5.63	-
-	(1915			39	1'17		'11	2,33		2'34	*23	-	5'74	
, Derajat and Bannu Brigade							3,00	1'21	.07	5'42	'43	*14	12'91	
- 1	(1914	981	764	24		-	-	-	-		-	-	2'04	
a Brigade	1915	587	1,213	36	-		-		-		-		-	-
IY OF INDIA	\$ 1914	125,074	567	21	1		.33			1,00	80.	*02	4"17	3
	(1915	119 983	744	34	*38		'51	1.08	.35	2'62	*20	. '04	8'55	6

B Gaoura.	-							17	-			8
B Gaouya.				111111111111111111111111111111111111111	i lings						1	RATI
Choice C			- min								AADM	118510
Croup L.—Horma Coast and 1905-1914 1,366 21/5				12 .			1	62 132	E y	SEDIETY	y oza esta	D1
Croup L.—Horma Coast and 1905-1914 1,366 21/5	B GROU	PB.									1	
Company L-Derma Coast September Se				á	1-311		Influe	nza.	Cho	lera.	Small	-pox.
Company Land County Co				Dreng!	sick.							
Company Land County Co		102	ri vi	age	antly	ding	1 10		The last		1	
Creep L-Durma Coast and 1914 1,345 2116			Year	Aver	Const	Inval	۸.	D,	A.	D.		10
Creop L-Burna Coast and 1914 1,345 2116	*							-1-	-			
Bay Island. 1914 1915 235 1916 1914 2,079 236 1914 2,079 237 1915 2,721 4370 1915 2,721 4370 1915 2,721 4370 1915 2,721 4370 1915 2,721 4370 1915 2,721 4370 1915 1,075 2,721 4370 1915 1,075 2,721 4370 1915 1,075 2,721 4370 1915 1,075 1915 1,075 2,721 4370 1915 1,075 2,721 4370 1915 1,075 2,721 1,075 1	Group L-Burma	Coast and	1000		- 1000		-8		-	***	- "	
### II.—Burma Island #### 1905-1014 2,057 23'6 2'6 .									-		975	435
III.—Burma Island		,	1915	742	35.0		-	***	-	-	-	
HIL—Assam	To be !		1000			***	2.6	-	-		'2	1
III	- II.—Burma	Inland		132733	3370						100000	100
III. Assam Ispid Ispid			1915	2,721	430	***	-	***	*	***	-	
### IV.—Bengal and Orissa 1905-1914 2,161 26'3 1'9 72 723 #### V.—Cangelic Plain and Chutia Nagpur. 1914 2,200 21'9		1	1905-1914	1,038	25'4		2'0		.2	.19	'2	1
### IV.—Bengal and Orissa 1905-1914 2,161 26'5 1'9 '2 '23	III.—Assam				\$4.2		6.8				*5	100
IV.—Beegal and Orissa 1914 2,000 21'9		,	1915	706	32'6	***	4'2	***			-	
V.—Cangelle Plain and Chutia Naggur.		1	1905-1914	2,161	26'5		1.0		12	* *23		
** V.—Cangelic Plain and Chutta Nagpur. { ** 1914 5,491 22'1 3'6 1'1 18 1 1915 6,753 24'7 3'6 1'1 18 1 18 1 18 1 1915 6,753 24'7 3 6 44 19	" IV.—Bengal	and Orissa	1914	2,009	27.0				'5		5	- 6
V. Cancelle Plain and Chutia Nagpur. 1914 5,491 22'1 3'6 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1'1 1'8 1			1915	1,307	630		4'1		-		-	1
V. Charge Plain and Chuta Nagpur. 1914 5,491 22'1 3'6 1'1 '18 1 1915 6,753 24'7 '3 '6 '44 1915 6,753 24'7 '3 '6 '44 1916 1915 20,603 21'9 '6 '4 '19 1915 24,661 34'2 '2 '3 '12 '3 '12 '4 '19 1915 24,661 34'2 '2 '3 '12 '4 '26 1915 24,661 34'2 '1 16 '4 '26 1914 18,791 24'6 '1 16 17 16 1915 28,791 35'0 '2 1'2 '49 1915 28,791 35'0 '1 1'2 '49 1'2 '49 1915 28,791 35'0 '1 1'2 '49 1'2 1'3 1'4 1'4 1'4 1'5		[1905-1914	6,220	18"7	***	2'5		.0	'43	'5	1
VI, -Upper Sub-Him- 1905-1914 20,003 22'2 3'1 '3 '18 1914 20,603 21'9 '6 '4 '19 1915 24,061 34'2 '2 '3 '12 '12 '12 '12 '12 '12 '14 '15 '12 '15 '12 '15 '12 '15 '12 '15	. VGangeli Chutia	Nagpur.	1914	5,491	\$2'1		3.6			.18	1.8	
VII. Upper Sub-Him- 1914 20,603 21'9 '6 '4 '19 1915 24,661 34'2 '2 '3 '12 '19 '19 '19 '19 '19 '19 '19 '10		i	1915	6,753	24.4		-3		-6	'44	.3	
VII.—North-West Frontier, Indus Valley and North-West Frontier, Indu		ſ	1905-1914	20,938	23,3		3'1		3	*18	-5	
VII.—North-West Frontier, Indus Valley and North-West Frontier, Indus Valley and North-West Frontier, Rajputana. 1914 18,791 24'6 116 64 1915 28,791 35'0 12 '49 1914 1915 28,791 35'0 12 '49 1915 1914 1915 1915 1914 1900 1905-1914 1915 1915 1916 1916 1916 1916 1916 1916		Sub-Him-	1914	20,603	31.0			198	28	100	.3	- 19.
VIII		- 1	1915	24,061	34'2		'2		.3	'12	.,	
tier, Indus Valley and North-Western Rajonal North-Western Rajourans. 1914 18,791 24.6	VII North-V	Vest From	1905-1914	18,467	26.2		5'2	1		'26	'5	
### VIII South-Eastern Rajpotana, Central landia and Gujarat. 1905-1914 11,940 19'9 1'9 1'3 115 1915 7,570 33'3 1'2 1'1 1'13 1'14 1'15 1'15 1'15 1'17 1'18 1'18 1'19	tier, Ind	dus Valley	1914	18,791	24.6		1000		9.00	1000	'1	- 7.
VIII - South-Eastern Ray 1914 9,763 19'1 3'4 '4 '41 1915 7,570 33'3 1'2 '1 '13 '1 '1 '1 '1 '1 '1 '	ern Raj	putana. [1915	28,791	35'0	***	'2	-	1'2	*49	.2	
Potana, Central 1914 9,763 19'1 3'4 '4 '41 1915 7,570 33'3 1'2 '1 '13 '1 '13	VIII-South-F	Fostern Pair	1905-1914	11,940	0'01		1.0		.,	115	-8	
1915 7,570 33'3 1'2 '1 '13	putana.	Central ?	1914	9,763	19'1			Sec. of		1000	'2	- 11
IX.—Decean Ig14 I4.931 20'5 2'4 '9 '33		(1915	7,570	33'3		F 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10					
IX.—Decean 1914 14.931 20'5 2'4 '9 '33		ſ	1905-1914	17,064	19'0		274	201		***		
1915 11,009 43'5 2'4	" IXDeccan		1914			1000	0 373	7 1000		1	' '9	18
X.—Western Coast \{ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc		i	1915	11,009	43'5		1200	7000	1 200		7	-
X.—Western Coast 1914		ſ	1905-1914	1,806	46'0		***			4		1
., XI.—Southern India { 1905-1914	- XWester	n Coast	1 3 3 7 7 7		33	75	1 1000			196	-8	1
", XII.—Hill Stations { 1905-1914		1	1915	1,192	40'3				1000		2'5	1
, XII.—Hill Stations { 1914 3,922 21'2 1'5 '5 '51 1'5 '5 '51 1'5 '3 1'5 '3 1'5 '3 1'1 '1 '09 '109		1	1905-1914	4.756	10'2						1 7 7	1
, XII.—Hill Stations 1915 2,856 33'1	., XISouther	n India	14666			0	1-1		12 11		.2	-
, XII.—Hill Stations { 1905-1914 22,490 23'8 4'0 '01 '3 '19 1'1 '1 '09		l	1915	The state of					100		1'0	
, XII.—Hill Stations 1914 21,685 23'3 1'1 '1 '09		r	1905-1014	27,400	0.410							1
1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	. XII.—Hill Sta	ations			10000		55.50			of called to	'2	-
1915 24,896 30'3 4'5 1'3 1'00		(1915	10.320		1 1 27			1000		1	
1 1005-1014 1-8-70		-	1905-1914	108 200				-	- 3	100	'2	-
ARMY OF INDIA 1914 125,074 20'0 196	ARMY OF INDIA	!					1		1	5	. 4	
1915 119,085 3370 173 16 '26 13						10000		1		1	-3	
33 22 81 7 38 3			-			130	The same of the		1	38	.3	-

LLE OF STRENGTH.

ON

*	300,014		1000							184 7	10000		
Esteric	fever.	Mala	ıria.	Pyre uncertain	4 1	Pncu	monia.	Dyse	atery.	Venereal	diseases.	All c	auses.
A	D.	Α.	D.	A.	D,	À.	D,	Α.	D,	Α,	D,	Α.	D.
***	-	120'5	'51	103.1	'15	3'7	*59	33 6	*07	19*2	-	661.8	7.81
	-	61.7	-	236.4		5.5		12'6		27'5		745'7	1'49
	-	296'5	2'70	103.5	-	277	-	8'1	-	71'4) ·	9137	6'74
-9	*34	189'5	179	51'1	*15	2.8	*67	15'4	.07	13.8	-	617'0	4'23
40	3'57	300'1	1'34	64.8		40		450		31.0		778'0	8-93
		342*9	3'31	4'0	-37	7.0	1'54	10'3		49'6		994'5	12'50
-4	19	251'3	*58	28.0		8'4	-67	33'8	-10	23.2		772'7	3'47
*5	*52	132'1	*52	62'7		7'3	'52	51'7		12'0		631'3	2'09
4'2	-	68'0		85'0		2.8		22'7		29"7		660.1	1'42
-8	*23	208'3	*56	62'5	10	75	1'02	48.2	'32	21.8	*05	7187	4'81
1'5		69'1		43'8		5'0	.50	37.3		26.0		908'4	1'00
		67'9	-83	159'1		6.6	*83	55'5		61'3		988'4	3'31
	100	1		1		100			F1-1				
-8	'23	103'9	1'18	99.3	.11	7'9	1,33	32,3	,53	14'8	,02	515.9	3,46
1'5	.30	21'0	'41	10'7	-	6.7	1'78	9,9	'15	25'0		4633	8.00
	-			-									
2.4	'53	158 7	*44	30.3	""	11,0	1.83	33,3	,10	16.1	,01	582'9	2,08
3.0	*29 *62	89'1	*29	35 1	,10	10.0	2.78	20'4	°05	35.0	'05	517'6	4'42 7'11
3.1		102'7	3/	30.2	-37	100	2,0	20.4		309	***	685.0	
2.3	142	312,0	.46	22'7	112	15'1	2'56	34.9	*13	6.6	'03	857'2	6.33
1.2	*16	208.0	'32	50 2	'27	10,5	1,05	16.8	.16	12'1		781.6	5'75 +
44	1,01	144'1	.90	30.6	'35	18'7	4'10	37'2	*24	23'8	.03	811.2	10,11
2.0	'45	185 3	*37	13'4	*07	9.8	1'42	21'4	.os	14'3	.03	572'2	4'99
1.6	'51	74'3	'41.	29'7	*20	6.8	1"13	13.2		12 4	-	483'4	4'81
1'1	13	65.5	.16	5.9		10.3	1,35	14'3		39,3	0	712'3	4'36
2'0	*30	74"1	*24	29.4	.08	6.0	*94	24"7	.10	23.2	.01	473'9	4'84
1:3	.32	53'3	07	7'6		2.8	'94	157	120	28 o	***	498'1	4'29
1.0	.13	104'7	*27	4.5	.18	6.2	1.18	31.6	18	55'0	-18	8-4'4	5*81
1'5	-66	220'5	-89	21'5	*17	87	2'27	63.1	*55	30'3	*06	778'5	6.63
2.6	'51	183.0	*51	14'9		8.3		43"	-	30 8		69711	4'10
1.7	****	1997		1.7		12'6	2'52	45'3	*84	82'2		8:0'5	3'36
7	*06	126'7	'21	23'4	.06	6.3	*82	21'0	'23	246	*06	506'7	5'19
1'5		48.4		1'5		5.6	1'53	5"		28 0	'25	573'0	4'59
3,1	-	69.1	-	7		9.3	'35	3'5	-	62 5		673'3	4'14
2"5	.56	16.0	*64	32'3	10	11*3	1'78	21'3	16	150	'03	599'3	7'47
20	.46	135-8	'23	42'9	'14	8.3	1'06	6'5	.00	12'3	.00	623'5	4'29
171	.25	301.3	2'85	8.1	112	12'8	5'05	15'6	*44	18'6	, '04	688'2	12'41
1.8	.38	1677	'45	27'5	.09	9'7	U47	26'5	*14	15'6	03	5;0'6	5'57
16	.33	112'8	.33	35'5	*12	73	1'09	14'2	*08	15'6	'0.	5(6'5	4'17
2"3	'51	148.5	1'08	33,2	'22	12'9	2'62	22.6	'20	31,3	.03	744'-	8'55
1/2/10	1000	1	1 3	13000		LINE WE			+		- 1- 1- 10	121/1-	3

1-ACTUALS. 2-RATIOS.

-			200		-						-	1			5		N			1
c	-PLAINS AND HILLS.	Average annual strength.		Mala	ria.	Tuber of the lu		Pneu	-	Respi tor diseas	y	Dysent and Diarrh		Seu	rvy.	Anser an Debil	d	All ca	auses.	
				A	D	A	D	A	D	A,	D	A	D	٨	D	A	D	A	D	The state of
-	Plains }	103,785	5	10,481	35	208	16	745	107	2,751	27	2,992	13	84	101	1,063	8	52,483	453	18
	Hills}	22,477	5	2,472	15	56	9	191	16	719	12	610	. 4	9		229		11,702	100	- 2
1161	Hills above	11,741	5	941	6	27	3	104	9	358	3 25	277	2	4 4	-	122		4,998	56	
	Hills below 5,000 feet sea-level.	10,736	1	1,528	9 -84	29	6	87	7	361	9	333	2	5		107		6,704	54	2
-			-	9/134	10	187	17	672	73	2,306	-	3,254	12	128	-	1,136	8	57,252		-
	,	103,834	1	£8.0 1,971	10	1'8	16	6'5	70	23'2	.11	31'3	12	21	'01	10'9	·08	551:4	4'05	1
1912.	Hills above)	22,019	1	9°5 606	'45 a	2'7	54	8.5	1.24	31'2	·36	23.0	.09	1'0		14'6		548.3	5 6 3 5 4	2
	5,000 feet sta-level. Hills below)	11,625	1	521	17 8	2.3	·60	7'7 97	1.13	35'2	'34 4	19'7	1 60.	.0		12'5		438°0 6,982	4'65	1
-	5,000 feet sea-level.	10,394	1	131.3	. '77	2.4	.48	9.3	3,0%	26'7	38	26.6	-10	ri	-	17.0		671.2	673	2
	Plains}	103,786	{	10,358	19	174	18	819	1.08	2431	14	2,713	10	43	02	1,072	4	55,412	405	2,2
.613-	Hills}	21,535	1	2,411	37	36	13	7'0	19	510 23'7	8	509	1 '05	11	.03	301		12,478 579'4	100	2
61	Hills above g,ooo feet sea-level,	11,748	1	573 48·8		19	5	6.9	7	327 27.8	2 '17	228		1 7	1 '09	146		5,434 462	40 3'40	1
	Hills below 5,000 feet sea-level.	9,787	{	1,938	-82	17	8 -82	70	12	183	61	281	.10	1.0		15'8	100	7:044	6.13	20 20
-	Plains}	97,245	{	10,479	24	191	17	709	110	2,782	13	3,058	13	69	1	1.039		54,407	410	1,9
	Hills}	21,680	5	2,944	*25 5	2.0	10	7'3	1.13	2 85 532	13	31'4 5 ⁶ 7	'13 4	10	10.	10.0		559'5	93	5
101	Hills above 5,000 feet sca-level.	11,048	1	1,455	23	36	·46	8'2	18	24'5	18	359	.18	7	°05	11'7	'05	623°5 5.987	4'29	2,
	Hills below 5.000 feet statevel	10,632	5	131.7	5	3'3	45	10'3	363	25.3	36	238	2	3		132	.09	7,530	4'34	21
-			-	1400	*47	2.4	47	60	*47	228			-19		-	12:4	-	708-2	4*23	0.
	Flains}	90,816	100	133'4	58 64	207	'21	13'3	2.22	42'9	32	43'0	26	*4	.03	23'0	1	765.7	773	3,2
1915.	Hills }	25,019	-	201'3	a-84	2'4	76	320 12'8 18o	3'04	38-9	'44	34'9	1,15	9	3	303	*08	686.5	308	30
	5,000 feet sea-level.	13,094	1	113'2	'53 64	2.0	.99	13'7	3'21	42.1	46	26.6	31	398	*23	154	.08	537*3	9.85	26
-	5,000 feet }	11,925	1	29.0	5'37	33	.50		2'85	35.4	5	52.6	24	3		149	1 80	850'3	179	35

				in man	Acres !	1905-1	914-	191	15.
	D.—1	Enteric Fev	er.			Admission	Death rate	Admission	Death rate
1	0.50.	4-5		10		rate per 1,000.	per 1,000.	rate per 1,000.	per 1,000.
						-			
ropean troops	- "					8.2	1152	37	-36
lian troops*						1.8	38	2-2	*51
ian troops		-					30		3.
rkhas only						4'2	•86	2'4	-65
socore						. 8	10	1.1	*22

• Including Gurkhas also.

the payor with the						E.—T	UBERCLE 19	OF THE I	UNGS,	FVEN DISEASE	S, 1915
	-						r I,000.		rate	Admi rate per	
	1	10 10		1			Total I				
my of India excluding Gurkhas							2.0		.16	1	31.2
urkbas only							4'4		1'51		300
		EN 19			G.—INFL	UENZA.		1	I.—PNE	UMONIA	
				1905	1914-	191	5.		1914.	19:	15.
				Admission rate per 1,000.	Death rate per 1,000.	Admission rate per 1,000.	Death rate per 1,000.	Admission rate rer 1,000.	Death rate per	Admission rate per 1,000,	Death rate per 1,000.
	and a				11						-
uropean troops				7,1	-00	7.4		3.0	*33	2.7	.3
dian troops				3.5	.00	22	10'	9'7	1.47	12.9	24
						19, 1					-
Soners		-		36	-04	4-2	.01	11'2	2.88	13.9	3.8
			17-17	18		Trail				-	STA.

APPENDIX TO SECTION III.—GENERAL

A .- Maximum, Minimum and mean temperature in shade and its departure from the averag

					JANEA	RY.			Fanau	ARY.			Man	ecm.			Arm	16.			М	AY.	animonia.
	Stations																				2010	-	-
				Maximum,	Minimum.	Mean temperature.	Departure.	Maximum,	Misimum.	Mean temperature.	Departure.	Maximum.	Minimam.	Mean temperature.	Departure.	Maximum.	Misimum.	Mean temperature.	Departure.	Maximum.	Misimam.	Mean temperature.	Departure.
Calcutta			-	78-4	57'	67.7	+173	830	60-7	43'4	+1'3	8913	0819	70'*	-1"	95'7	75.6	86'7		-			- 20
Narayangani			***		55'6	222		60:80			+0.1	87'2	66.3		-2-1	200		336			79.4	86*9	
Chittagong	_			22.3		67 1												1					
Sibsagar				71'9		61'4			55'9			1		133	+11	130	67'5				75'1		
Stichar			_	78'7			+1'0								-0.0						71'9		
Cuttack			***	80'1	1		-2.0					-			-1.05	1					73°2 80°8		-1
Patna				73.7										10000	-2.1		0.500	2100					
Darjeeling				517		177.0					1000				+1'4	- 51.0	7				54'8		
Allahabad			-	75'1	1320		1000	1 200	1000		-1'4	-	100	1	-3.2	- 60		1000		103-8	799		
Lucknow		***	***	74'9	50 3	6217	+ 2"51								-1'1		73.0		4.00	105 8	817	-	
Delhi				6810	477	57'8	-1'0		30		100		byss	30	1.0		72'4		-		857		
Agra	-			70'9			-07								-1.0			0000	1	10000	85'9	20.00	
Jhansii	-			75'0	47'3	61'4	-273					1983			-3.85	700			-3,33		8610	98-8	
Ajmer			***	70'0			-1.0						0.0		+011			-	100	1050	83.6	91.8	
Sauger	***			277		1000	1887				-3.1	On the		1000	-1.9	10.88	2200			105-1	814	93'8	
Jubbulpore	-		***	78-5	1.2	1000					-0'1	1000	1000	1	-1.1	1000		030	-1'0		81'7	94'4	
Multan				73.5	45'9	50'1	+5'2	1	-		+0%	88"1	62'3	The same	+5'1					112'9	84'0	98.8	
Eahers	-			63'4	4116	55'5	+0'7	69'5	45'7	57"6	-0,3	8310	57'6		100			350		111'5	80*7		
Peshawar		***		65'3	35"2	50"1	-1.1	63"3	200		-1'8	77.6	53'5	65'6				78'0			74'1	91"2	+7"
Chakrata		*		****		101	101					-					-				_		
Indore	-			80.7	51'5	65*1	+1.6		51'8							and the	70'3	1000	-0'5	200	77'8	91"5	+13
Deesa		***	-	82'3	4973	657	- 1.3	84 4	51'6	68.5	-179	95.8	63.8	70'8	+0'1	103'0	71'0	86'5	-12		78.0	9276	
Karachi			***	76 %	57'4	67.1		77.7	587	68.3	-1"7	817	69"1	75'4	+1"3	84'5			-0.0	88-4	80"3	84'5	
Bombay		-		83 6	13.1	75'9	+0.2	8312	68.9	75'2	-0.4	871	73'9	800	+0'5		78.5		+1'2	93.0	83'4	87'3	
Belgaum				81-3	59'7	71'0	+05	87"	58-6	72.9	-1,0	90.0	63.8	76'9	-1'9	95'5	077		+0'1	01.8	6973	80'5	
Nagpur		-		81.4	3510	63.7	+1,0	87"1	5816	73'9	-1.3	91'4	60%	79"3	-2.3	103,1	75'3	85-6	-19	109*3	84"4	95'8	
Ballary	-			88-8	64.4	36.6	+17	94.6	678	81.1	+1"	9310	72'3	85'1	-1'3	103'4	7/7	90'6	+0"	102'3	77'7	9000	
Bangalore				89'4	600	71*2	+27	88'3	61.1	75'2	+3.3)	89*9	66"7	78'3	+0*5	140	697	81.8	+0'5	9370	69.0	81.3	
Madras				84"1	dgro	72*0	+019	8616	71'1	78.8	+1'2	90.1	74'2	81'2	+1"1	93'5	77.6	85'5	+0"3	101'4	Barg	92"1	
Rangoon	***		-	37.4	67.5	77*4	+e-6	9370	68'4	80.7	+1"2	95°3	71'6	8375	-0.3	95'3	75.0	85'9	-1'3	89*8	77-2	83.8	
Akyab	-			8013	61.3	70 8	+0'5	84'5	610	72'7	-0.3	50,1	67.7	78 9	+0.3	91.0	74'6	83'8	-0.0	883	76 9	817	
									-		-			1			-		-	1	1	1	1

OPULATION.

each month at thirty-one stations in India during 1915.

Jo	INE.			J	CLY.	20.00		Aer	oust.			Sam	EMBIR	1		Oc	TORE B.			No	ZMREP			Duc	ENBER.	
Stranger Land	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	The same of	1000			and the last			3						1000		-				11		The second second	-		
Minimum.	Mean temperature.	Departure.	Maximum.	Mielmum.	Mean temperature,	Departure.	Maximum.	Minimum,	Mean temperature.	Departure.	Maximum,	Minimum,	Mean temperature,	I eparture,	Maximum,	Misimam.	Mean temperature.	Departure.	Maximum.	Min'mum,	Mean temperature,	Departure.	Maximom.	Minimum.	Mean temperature,	Departure.
7972	85.1	+0'1	90'5	79'7	85"1	+1-6	89.9	Sore	84'9	+17	88'7	78*0	83.3	+0"3	Sgré	7776	83.0	+20	8410	70'3	7776	+4'5	77'8	56.5	-	
3 75-6	81'1	-16	83-8	79'3	84.0	+0-3	8910	79'5	84'3	+0%	89"	1870	83.4	-0.3	89.5	7777	33'6	+2.0	86'3	69'9	78-1	+ 3*5	78.7	58"0	68.4	+07
7'9	81'4	-	86'3	77"0	81.6	+0'5	87*2	77*2	82"2	+17	85"7	75'4	816	0	83'7	75'7	82'2	+ 2"3	84.0	68-8	76.7	+2.2	78%	56 8	677	-0.3
75'4	80.7							78:		-0.0		163	81.0	-0.2	87.2	76'1	817	+2'9		23.0			72'9	517	613	+1.4
76-1	8210		000		1	300		P. F.	180	+0.8	-	1999	83.8	-0'3	31,1	75'0	. 83.1	+25	86'5	67*4	77"0	+27	.80*4	55'4	67.9	+0*7
80'5		+0'8	-										837	-0.3	89"3	77'1	83.1	+0'8	84'1	71'4	77'7	+3"3	78-6	57'7	6812	-2'17
7 567	62 7	Towns	1	-	100	-0.1				+0,1	1	1000		-0",		76'8	83.9	+2-4	(b)	65.4	73'5	+2.2	72 9	53'3	63'1	+0.1
82'9	93'4		-	20.8	8515		700			+37				+3.2		\$5.0	9	-	59"4	45"1	33"4	+3.0	517	37'9	44"8	+1'9
8372		+1'1	200	1		Tay of		78'4	84.0					-17	8		300	1000	83.8	57*4	70'6	+1'3	75'3	47'7	61.0	+0.3
6 8310		+0'1		-			97'6	100	89'8		-	1000		-1.0	100	2000			85.5	57'0		+2.8	76'5	490	63'8	+1,36
3475	95'4	+0.1	300	840	100	1000			193						1	73'0	1		8379	36.8	199		74'8	49'7	62'9	+1.1
3 85%	9014	+2"1	9:16	81"3	89'5	+370		7712	83'6				85"1	+1'3			83.3	+4'3	85'7	50'6	200	+0'5	76'9	49'9	200	
9 83.0	94'6	+3"3	98.2	80'5	80'5	+4'6	93'3	79'0	86 2	+4"2	97'9	1000		+6'6		71.8		+379	84'8	55'5	71'9	+0.8	79'6	49'3		-0,85
8115	92'5	+3'9	89'2	75'5	81*4	72'3	83.2	72.8	18-1	-0.1	88.6	18'5					10000	+2'1				+17	171	48'0	62.6	+1.3
80'6	93'5	+50	87*9	25.3	823	+17	8370	74'9	79 4	+0.1	F7'9	74'3	390	600	- 30	- 3	19300	+3'52		1	70'3	-	175	47'9		+0'0
87"1	98.7	+1'5	108.6	87.0	978	+3'5	104'1	84'3	24"2	+373	104'4	81.0		+37				+2.1				+1'6		85		+0,1
81-8	95'0	+172	107'1	85'1	95"1	+577	103.1	83.9	93'5	+5"2	980	78'4	88-2	+1"3	938	62'5	28-3	+0'3		48'5		+01		40'5		-0.0
257	92'9	+1"3	1:0%	81'3	950	+5"1	105'4	813	93.8	+5*3	100.0	74'5	87.3	+42	83,4	5779	75'1	+2"1	79'9	457	61.8	+0.1			51.3	
59"1	61-8	-0.2	-			***					***															***
3 78'3		+5.3	57.0	74'9	1	+37		72 4	27.8	+679	89"	71'6	80"3	+275	58'4	68.6	78'5	+375	86 3	57"4	718	+ 2*9	Sore	51'2	65'9	+1'3
810		+2'5	99.0	80.3		+473		77'9			101"	78'4	89-8	+6"1	66.4	72'6	84'5	+273	95'4	60%	180	+1.0	87.2	55'0	71-4	+1'3
8377		+0"3		82"		+1'6		79"1		+0.0		77'0	81'4	+0'7	90'9	76-1	83"5	+3'7)	85'7	66 2	7500	+0.5	79'3	60'5	70'0	+1'1
8 Birs	78"	+1'6	28-3	79'0		+1'5		78'2			85'6			+0'7				-0.1	88'1	75'9	82'0	+1'7	34'0	70'5	77"2	-0,1
3371	2000	+5'3	20.2	76'3	16	+1*4	30'1	6613			80.0					64'8		-1.1	821	69.1	74'6	+0.0	79'7	50.0	67.9	-1,1
16.1	8610	+1.0	91'7	74'8		+0.3	91.2		80.5			74'3	201	+0'4				100		650	75.0	+35	81.3	59'7	67.0	-1.0
68-1	77'1	+13	83":	676	0	+1"3	845	66.9		+1'9		65"7				71'2			86'4		77.9	200	83'5	60'1	71'8	-1.8
826		107	91'3	78%		-0'9	95"7	79"1	1000	+1'9	10.50	72'7		+1"6	-	1	100	+1'7	80'1		72,3		78.5	57'6	68-1	-0.2
75'4	83'1	+0"7	87":	76'3		+1"1	8616		81'8	1				+0'9	87 7	and a	-	+0'3	86.3	33	80"1	300		26.0	77.3	+07
7770	81'4	+0'5	85'4	70'4	80'9	0	86'0		81'5	100		77'0	83.1	0	87.8	1		+0.3	85'4		81'0		5377	65'4		-2.1
3					8				-		2	10-11	-				-	.03	000	724	79.3	+1.3	80"1	63'2	71.7	-0'7

B.—Monthly and annual rainfall and its departure from the average at thirty-three] stations in India during 115.

				TANGART.	ART.	FEBRUARY.	ART.	MARKE.		APRILE.				7035			Avoust,		SIPTEMBER,			-		-			1	
					1	T		-	1	-		-				1	-				_	_	_	_	_	-	- Comment	
	Stations,			Raie-	Depar-	Rain- fall.	Depar-	Rain- D	Depar- Rater Lane.	Rain, Depar-	re. Rais-	Depar-	Fain-	Depar-	Rain-	Depar- ture.	Rain-	Depar- R	Rain- De	Depar- Ra ture, fa	Rain- Depar-	e. Call.	ture.	Rail Fall	. Depar-	Rain.	tere.	
	1			1	-	0,.00	96,0-	4,00	+2.84	0- 05,1	81.0	5,68	19.01 6	-079	10.23	15.5-	16,51	+3.75	+ 10.45	+0,10	3,30	10,0-	ris +1.77	1	-0.1	65.86	+1.05	
Calcotta		1	1	1000	1 4	1.81	+0.40		_			13.14 +1.30	14.83	+13731	12.28	\$1.0-	15.04	+2.82	+ 69.6	+0.33	7-61 +3	+3,63 0,	0.33	2	-0,12	27.56	+15.01	
Narayangue]	1	1			10	01.0	-0.30	-	-	5	-	19.8+ 86,61	20.50	+4.63	39'10	+11.36	19.10	+6.67	7.41	1 18.3-	15.75 +5	+6.84	1.11 -0.70	2	-0.79	138.80	+40,32	
Chittagong	1	I	1	1 2	# 0		+0.69			-	_	19.114 81.161	-	_	13.15	19.9+	1474	19.5-	+ - 80,51	+1,32	3.10	1 18.1-	1,36 +0,38	61,0	13 -0.36	103.33	+7.10	
Sibragar		1	1	100	11		70,00	-	_	-	-	3175 +17'54	18.58	16.9+ 8	90.77	+34.84	19'35	-1.03	13,00	78.0-	5.30	.0 61,1-	0.80 -0.60	9	-0.43	170'10	+45.24	
Slichar	i	1	1	50.0	91.0-	1.00	07,0+	-		-		-	17 8-84	_		-4.88	14.63	40,12	10.6	81.0-	9.60	+3.01	9.84 +8.80	i S	-0.38	5 70'31	+10,01+	
Cuttack	1	i		0.17	0,00	7.30	+373	_	-	_		1.48 -0.31	71 5.62	-1.	673	-6.58	803	16,71	8.70	51,0-	3.10	1 10.0-	1,12 +1.00	8	-0,31	1 40'58	49.11-	
Hararibagh	1	1		0,30	10.00	1.88	+1.13	0.33	Az.0-	90.0	7	0.39 -1.37	37 5'58	8 -2.39	31.12	+8.80	15,54	40.00	14.71	+2,43	1.03	-0.83 T	1.55 + 1.38	1 %	-0,00	0 61.72	-	
1 ;	1	-		0,01	-0.63	3.16	+1.33	1.93	+0.15	1.53	51.77	9.03 +0.54	81.61	8 -3.49	10.00	-5.47	19.83	+3.33	15.11	60,4-	-		1.13 +1.04		-	-	-13.86	
Darjeening	1	1		0,18	90,01	2,13	+1.65	1,69	+1.47	+ ++.0	+0.18	95.0-	84.5 95.	19 -2.44	13.74	+1.38	11.83	00,0-	11,33	+8.5+		+3.10	10,0-	71,0 15,	-	-		
Allababad	!	1			-	19.5	+3,04	0.08	(9.0 +	- 41.0	-0.13	1.15 +0.33	37 1,30	20 -3.45	11.38	+0.03	31.15	+9.83	31.65 +	+15,63	+ 68.1		01.0-	0.	-	-	-	
1	1	1			-	2.46	+1753	-9.1	+1713	6.39	+0.0-	\$1,- \$1,0	11.1	11.1- 14	1 9.14	51.0-	3.43	-5.87	109.9	+0.83	1	95.01	-0,13		54.0- 10.48	990	-	
Meerut	1	:			-	0.0	+5.38	3.08	+27.61	1.36	86,0+	0,00 -0,00	Cf. 1 00.	17.1- 12	11.5	-5.19	3735	14.63	5,30	06.1+	ī	-0.30	1	01,0-	0,03 -0,40	16 24.87		
	1	1			_			3.84	+3.58	+0,0	15.0	0'15 -0'33	171 17	12 -079	5.32	-4,03	6.31	-2705	1.33	-3.63	1.38		-0.01	101	- 0,33		19.5-	-
	i	i			-	4	-	_	60.1+	0.31	+0.0+	0,00 -0.30	3,11	11 -176	9 4.31	10.9-	9775	-1-38	69.1	97.7-	1,35	+1.63	0-01	0,10	0,13 -0,01	15.51	-11.76	
!	1	1	1	90	-	1	-	-	+1.05	1	-0.30	-0.55		0.00 -1.03	3 0.55	59.9-	04.0	-0.38	0.80	89.1-	5,38	+2.13	1	91.0-	0.00	14.85	14.0-	
					-	1		3.04	+1.73	95.0	11.0	0.40 -0,00		1,30 -4.22	2 9.69	-4.87	15.00	+1.6+	5.80	3,1	1.08	66.0+	60,0	-0.31	PS.0-		-	-
Saugor Tabbulane	ı	1	-		-		- 1000	10,0	09.1+	0,30	+0,13	10.0	-0.48	9,12 +1.39	6 33'13	+14.00	19,08	+3,14	474	-373	4.28	56.4+	0.02	0 86.0-	0,10 -0,31	-	-	
		1				0,0	-0.38	19.0	+0.23	0.03	-0.18	1	0.30	\$0.0- 65.0	1	-1.04	6.11	9.7		95.0-	-		ï			_		
				0.38	-	2.36	11.11	1.33	+0.31	0.33	81,0-	1	1,000	1.15 -0.69	6.94	50.7-	0.55	-4.12	273	\$4.0+	-	+1,14	1					
Peshawar				1	10.1	81.7	1 + 2.87	1.56	+0.43	16.4	+5.16	15.0	-0.30		2 0,33			13.00	-	10,0+	_	+0.13	1		Cr.o - 90.0	13.08	09.0+	
Chakrata		1	1	1	,1	i		1	-	1	1		1	5.80	12.72	-1.30	9.6	-10.19	0.00	0:0					_	-	-	-
Indore		1		0.30	90.04	94.0	62,0+ 9	0.02	+0.03	14.0	+0.21	10.0	ot.o-	31.6- 61.5	2 3.48	3 1.36	7.48	61.0-	80.9	16,0-	-		1		0.22 +0.30		-	
				0.30	+0:17	0.33	90,0+	0.33	+0.38	1	-0.03	1	.1 61,0-	17.14 -0.78	8 3.07	10.34	60,0	17.50	99,0	96.5-		18.1+	1	-0.13	9 9		-	-
Karachi				!	-0.62	11,0	-0.30	0.43	+0,31	1734	+1.18	1	90.0	0.03 -0.03	0.10	-3.63	0,17	17.1-	1	17.0-	61.0	+0'13	-	50.0-	1	-	-	
Bornhaw	-				00,0-	06.0	10,37	60.0	+0.01	90.0	-	96.0	-0.35 397	92.48	19,71 0	1 -10.55	8-45	-5.11	10'78	90,0-	_		-					
Relonan				100		1	[0,0-	00.0	-0.35	17.0	-1,30	0- 69.1	-0.10	9'57 +1'19	00 15-50	-0.47	7.35	-1.88	10,11	+6.45	3.80	-1.13	16.0		_		41	
Name				1,01	-		-		+17.17	0.48	80.0-	95.0	-0.47 8·	8.10 -0.61	15.80	17.14	800	-376	95.6	41.39	40.4	+ 1772	1		91,0	-	-	
Rellan	100			0,31	-	01,0	+0,01	86.1	+179	16,0	+0,00	- +9.1	-0.40 8.	5'16 +5'18	2 5.85	11.5+ 5	0,40	-1.80	10.03	+5.48	89.1	-1.30	7:17 +3		10.0	11 35,38	-	-
Harman Jose				95,0	-	-	-		41,12	19.1	+0.34	4,04 +0	+0 30 0	19.0	4 3759	85,0- 6	1.18	19.51	85.6	+2.92	3.33	-3.00	3.31 +0		0.30 -0.30	_	B.	
				19.0	-		-	1	90,0+	0.23	60.0-	o- 9f.0	1. 11.0-	1.34 -0.09	8.82	7 +478	1,30	-3.24	95,6	+4,51	3711	95.4-	14 41.00		-	-	_	
Rangoon					-	1	8E.0-		+0,03	27.5	+1.11	18-51 +6	+6.39	19.5+ 17.16	\$1.15 t	\$ +0.33	18.36	15.1-	16,01	7.32	60,11	+4.38				-	200	0
	-			-	-		-	_	-	_		_			-	Bereit .	The same of	4 6:00	14.86	98.0	16'00	+6-11	4.83 +0	98.04	11,0- 10,0	248'50	1 + 57.05	*

C .- Births.

		-		RATIOO	POPULATION.		1600		
Province.			Population under registration.	Maximum for any one district.	Minimum for any on- district.	Mean for t e province.	Number of males born to every 100 females.	Excess of births over deaths per 1,000 of population.	Excess of deaths over births per 1,000 of population.
hi	1		416,656			47'91	105	18'95	
gal		***	45,329,247	43'06	18-50	31.80	107		1'03
ar and Orissa			34,490,038	48-1	317	40'4	105	8.3	
am			6,051,507	39'71	30.12	33'60	106	2'74	
ted Provinces of Agra and Oudh			46,80,556	49°25	25'44	43'48	108.76	13'44	
jab			19.337,146	51'3	21 3	43.6	109'7	7.3	
th-West Frontier Fravince			2,041,077	38.3	:66	31'7	125'5	81	
stral Provinces and Berar			13,916,108	53'19	42'97	47*95	104'59	12'04	
dras Presidency			40,005,735	37 6	21.9	31,3	104.5	9.2	
rg			174,976	3674	18:07	25'33	101'59		5.74
abay Presidency			19,587,383	50.78	17'54	37.10	10774	10.08	***
	-		6,134,572	44'70	1974	33 39	107	8	
ma {Lower			3,721,281	43'95	32 73	38.01	100	5	
mer-Merwara	4		501,395	48-80	42'19	43'78	113'53	17.75	

D .- Deaths.

-				RATIO OF D	LATION.	OO OF POPU-	DEATH RAT	E BY SEX.
Province.	Population under registration	Area in square miles.	Average population per square mile-	Maximum for any one district.	Minimum for any one district.	Mean for the province.	Male.	Pemale.
elhi	416,656	6'82°	33*			28:97	26 86	31.62
The state of the s	45,329,247	70,873	639	45'21	92'77	32.83	33'34	32.30
THE REAL PROPERTY OF THE PARTY	34.490,038	83,181	4:4	44'8	21'0	32.3	34'0	30'5
	6,051,507	31,845	190	40'91	25'41	30.86	31,36	30'44
nited Provinces of Agra and Oudh	46,820,556	106,357	440	52'97	19'05	30.04	29.95	30.12
	19,337,146	96,654	200	57'4	19.0	36.3	33'9	39:3
	2,041,077	13-399	152	29'8	19.3	23'6	23.8	23'4
	13.916,308	99,823	139	44'51	25'97	35'91	37'40	34'43
	40,005,735	126,585	3:6	36.4	15'5	22-0	22'6	21'4
coorg	174,976	1,582	in	38.21	4.84	31.08	50.00	33.33
lombay Presidency	19.587,383	1,978	159	39.16	13.66	26.13	25.88	26-38
(Lower	6 34,572	71,116	86	33'54	18:27	2512	25.77	24*39
Surma Upper	3,721,281	40,542	92	\$1.41	26.18	32.72	34'00	31.23
Ajmer-Merwara	501,395	2,711	185	26-66	25'83	26'03	25'73	26'37

E .- Total number of deaths by months.

Province.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	Total.	RITIS I,OCO POPUI TION
Delhi	854	599	783	993	1,336	1.032	8;1	1,011	826	1,022	1,344	1,400	12,071	28.97
Bengal	138,689	113.908	146,143	124.670	106,717	92.452	83,056	98,376	102,12	116,297	179.542	186,589	1,488,567	32.83
Bihar & Orissa	71,364	68,:77	93,119	87,584	84.330	78,161	77.540	105,753	101,091	107,760	124 826	111 920	1,111,925	32'2
Assam	12,788	10 207	10,735	11 519	12.762	14,318	14,077	15,357	17,834	21,474	24,453	21,254	186,778	30 86
United Provin- ces of Agra and Oudh.	98,833	85.547	103,453	116,435	116,778	107,837	92,193	106,994	120,28	153,471	151,413	153,505	1,406,743	30'04
Punjab	57,644	61,798	87,656	116,728	93,067	46,971	39,852	36,152	33,739	35,652	41,009	52,362	702,550	36:33
North-West Frontier Province-	4,441	3,230	3,260	2,734	4,278	3 769	3,296	3,462	4.239	4,679	4.908	5,898	48,194	23.61
Central Provin- ces and Berar.		31,324	31,873	30,649	35,083	39,118	29.943	43,244	53,210	59.493	55,978	56,364	499 682	35.91
Madras Presi- dency.	92,235	72,966	70,043	64,394	63,999	62,2/3	71,763	77,230	73,756	68,945	71,399	90,947	879.950	22'0
Coorg	430	312	389	420	513	569	604	512	440	421	371	457	5,438	3118
Bombay Presi- dency.	43 743	38,218	43:424	38,723	35,382	32,469	34,068	42,635	45 504	48,722	50,626	58,099	511,613	26-12
Burma SLower	11,827	10,737	9,482	9,697	9,903	13.017	16,374	15 951	15,162	14,122	13,743	14.072	154,087	25'12
Burma (Upper	8,397	7,149	7,375	6,716	6,210	8,285	10,988	12,367	14.048	12,950	12,850	14,407	121,762	32'72
Ajmer-Mer- wara.	1,155	942	1,061	1,233	1,137	866	842	921	1,050	918	1,236	1,6, 1	13,052	26" 3
TOTAL	575,803	505,414	608,796	612,505	571,495	501,037	475-467	559,965	583-331	645,926	733.708	768,965	7,142,412	29'94

F .- Ratio of deaths from all causes according to months.

				. 8	ANNUA	L* DEAT	TH RATE	PERM	ILLE FO	RTHE	MONTH	07			
Province.			January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	Septe ber.	October.	November.	December.	Ratio the
Delhi			24'13	18:74	2213	29 00	37 75	50 14	2461	28.57	24 12	28.8	39'25	39.56	2
Bengal			36.02	32-76	3756	33.46	27.72	24.81	21.27	25.55	27.41	30.51	48-19	48-47	3
Bihar and Orissa			24:36	25.88	31.79	30.00	28.79	27.57	26:47	36.10	35.65	36.79	44'03	38.21	3
Assam			24.88	21.99	20.89	23.16	24'83	2 79	27'39	29.89	35 86	4: 78	49'10	41'35	3
United Provinces of Agra and	Oudh		24.85	23.82	25.03	:0:26	29'37	28.03	23:18	26.91	31.26	38.59	39 35	38.60	34
Punjah	***		35.10	41.66	53'37	73'44	56.67	29.49	24.27	22.01	21'24	21'71	25 80	31.88	3
North-West Frontier Province			25.62	20.63	18-81	16:30	24.68	22.47	10.01	19.97	25'27	26.99	29'26	34'02	2
Central Provinces and Berar			28.25	29'34	26.97	25.80	29'68	34*20	25:33	36.59	16'52	50'34	48'94	47.69	31
Madras Presidency			27'15	23.78	20.01	19:58	18.84	18.94	21.13	22.73	22.43	\$0.50	21'71	25:77	21
Coorg		·	28.93	23.24	26:18	29'20	34'52	39'56	40.61	34'45	0.59	28 33	2580	10*75	3
omony residency			26 29	25'43	26.10	24'05	21'27	2017	20:48	25.63	28.26	39.59	31'45	34'92	2
Burma {Lower	***		22.70	22.82	18:20	1923	19.01	25.82	31:43	30-62	30'07	27 10	27.25	27'01	25
Copper	***	***	26-57	25 04	23 33	21'99	1965	27'09	34'77	39:13	45'93	40'97	42'05	45'58	31
Ajmer-Merwara			27.12	24'49	31.03	-0.03	26.70	21.01	19:77	21.63	5'49	21-56	20.00	39'71	20
Irdia			28:42	27 62	30'05	31'24	28 21	25.26	23'47	27.64	29'75	31 88	37.42	37.96	

^{*} The ratios in the statement have been calculated with reference to the number of days in each month

G .- Deaths according to age.

							RT	IO PE	it 1,000	OF P	OPUL	ATION								
ovince.	UND		1-5 YEARS.		5-10 YEARS.		YEA:		15-		20- YEA			4º 85.	4°- o YEARS.		YEARS,		60 YE	D
	Male.	Female.	Male.	Female.	Male.	Female.	Male.	Femsle.	Nale.	Female	Male.	F male.	Male.	Female.	Male.	Female.	Male.	Female.	Male.	Female,
	228'99	212'36				-		Info m	ation	not av	ailable			-					-	
al	214'43	213'13	45'18	40'35	18'66	15'33	12.72	12.01	17 25	19*85	18:81	21'03	23'06	24'49	30 04	18.05	46.77	43"18	86'26	73'68
issa.	190'76	180'86	56.8	52'0	160	13.6	12'7	11.3	14 3	13,0	17'4	14'9	20.6	176	27.3	20*6	43'0	37*1	9.°t	73'9
m	210'78	192'41	37 40	33'92	16:17	13'50	13.18	11'34	15'15	19.84	17'94	24'00	22.03	25'05	29.32	27.03	44.86	38.64	81'78	64.53
ed Prev- ces of ma and idh.	209'55	200'03	60'19	58.72	10'57	10'28	8*14	9*23	9 06	12'30	12,24	14 59	15'08	15 17	21.01	19'11	36.43	32'27	32.11	63*45
ab	188'03	189'17	48:48	50'79	16'28	21.06	16:16	25.31	17 6	23.69	16.00	19'49	20'41	24.08	26.14	18.98	6.43	40.84	78'03	84'47
h-West entier ovince.	169'21	162'54	37'3	32.2	9'4	98	8.6	11.0	11.3	14:4	10'8	11.3	13.6	14'5	20 1	20'0	370	30,3	60.3	65"10
ral Prov- ces and crar.	274*28	244'49	67:39	9 88	13'55	12'58	8.74	0, 0	10" (1	12 06	11'42	19'41	13'68	13'58	20.69	16'04	\$4.20	29.85	87.87	76:21
ras Presi- ecy.	194'40	178'40	29'4	53.3	8.3	7'9	5'7	58	8.1	108	9.4	10'5	11.8	10'9	16'1	12.8	26.6	23,3	70'0	67.8
g	294'0)	284'22	39,15	32'51	11'36	8'9	6,00	8-7	1284	13 22	16'98	25'96	25'77	29'40	35'3:	30,03	47'23	44'33	83*:0	75'1.
bay Presi-	178'92	164'55	42'00	40.44	10'11	11'34	7'52	9795	9.60	12'93	11'24	13765	14"14	14.78	20'64	16*42	35.03	29.07	83'01	79'9
ma Lower	186'78	255'43	1	1	11'07		1		1	11'46	1000		1		25 16	19		1	82.83	
er-Merwan		1	-	9.04	13.00	1403	74.		1	not a			-	1 30	-, 4,	-			020	76-9
Total	208 06	105'20	10:11	Ac'es	13'62	1,2	10,11	10.22	12.44	14.00	12.2	16:41	8' 14	16'45	2200	21.00	18'4	-	-	-

. Calculated on the number of births during 1915.

H. Deaths in Towns and Rural Circles compared.

Province.	Numbi	CIRCLES.	TRATION		POPULATION	RATIO OF DEATHS PER 1,000 OF POPULATION.				
	Rural.	Town,	Total.	Rural.	Town.	Total.	Rural.	Town.	Total,	
lhi	. 11	1	12	191,185	225,471	416,656	22.85	34 16	28.97	
ngal	. 375	112	487	42,421,996	2,907,251	45-3:9-247	33'39	24'70	3283	
ar and Orissa	. 230	55	285	33,322,784	1,167,254	34.490,038	32 2	30.0	32.2	
sam	. 79	20	99	5,932,062	119,445	6,051 507	9 30.88	30.03	30 85	
ited Provinces o	f 1,066	93	1,159	43,770,699	3,049,857	46,820,556	29'22	41 24	30.04	
njab	413	139	552	17,500,302	1,746,754	19,537,146	36.32	36 17	36-33	
rth-West Frontie	66	. 13	79	1 849,832	191,245	2,041,077	23'14	28 21	23 61	
ntral Provinces and Berar.	397	. 110	507	12,638,587	1,277,721	13,916,308	35'06	44'29	35'91	
dras Presidency	. 231	269	500	35,165,665	4.839 070	40,005 735	21'4	26 2	22'0	
org	. 8	2	10	16;,995	9,981	174,976	30.26	44.28	31.03	
nbay Presidency	240	112	561	16.407,762	3,1796-1	19,537,383	25.31	30'28	26'13	
(Lower	. 217	39	256	5,356,176	778,396	6,131,572	24'03	3262	25'12	
ma {Upper	138	20	158	3,400,963	320,318	3.721,281	31'07	50.53	32.72	
ner-Merwara	Not av	ailable.	23	Not avai	lable.	501.395	Not ava	ilable.	20 03	

1915.
~
2
0
1884 to 19
90
80
-
20
2
5
4
2
India from 1
B
20
~
2
1
52
8
22

5
2
ā
-
*
tue
rent
erent
ferent
liff erent
different
e different
he different
the different
n the different
in the different
a in the different
ra in the different
era in the different
olera in the different
holera in
Deaths from cholera in the different
holera in
holera in
holera in

Mysore.	330	2,677	10	833	1,015	1,590	1,326	1,204	5,497	020	318	2,334	2,100	4,248	1,193	113	770	11,351	218	86	471	626	7,:13	4.072	2,149	1,629	1,8:2	210	6,748	8		178
Hydera- bad (can- tonment stations).	2,47.9	1,387	409	2,831	2,057	1,128	1	3,102	53	165	1,862	467	525	1,039	9	1	3,813	-	1	1	:	70	1,061	-	937	* 91	*	803	1,190	1,322 (c)	5,593(c)	2,072(c)
Central India.	1,018	4,624	300	8,868	161	3,344	3,132	17,474	8,384	127	5,210	150'9	15.766	13,202	*	i	20,450	. 72	12	1,110	150	27	10,147	-	1,730	1,421	2,864	1,054	030'6	2,823	10,075	295
Rajputana	1,197	1,615	173	2,612	33	6,923	2,746	3,946	26,760	314	64	640'1	3,707	1,496	9	864	28,719	9	515'1	235	-	. 69	4:114	70	737	403	90	85	4114	4,085	1,627	1,981
Ajmer- Merwara.	100	100	765	384	13	SS	408	533	2,353	6	:	289		61	-	-	4,842	50	32	1	i		100	-	1	-	*	50	13	1	6	3
Upper Burma.		1	!	1	1	i	i	1	1	1	+	:	1		:	2,050	4	**	57	2,887	808	1,836	2,313	4114	2,575	7,348	127	9651	1,173	635	-	9,388
Lower Burma.	5,515	7,685	4,037	2,649	13,982	3,240	920'1	2,400	802,3	2,393	7,428	5,150	2,959	8,538	2,972	4,942	3,440	3,552	1,844	5,346	2,472	3,511	5,529	1,964	16,336	4,041	1,834	2,595	6,013	3,704	ctor's	8,200
Bombay.	13,804	37,287	101	25,711	36,100	32,431	3,259	17,830	42,900	18,833	33.588	8,890	35,404	\$7,109	4,368	8,579	163,889	13,600	3,230	1,825	13,156	5,396	46,119	7,656	1,759	28,714	3,694	5,817	64,505	5,134	644.71	377
Coorg.	:	1.		0	*	6	20	1	358	0	63	1	40	106	00	i	i	60,	,	1	1	1	0	121	114	8	8	9	1	161	1	-
Madras.	75,370	58,109	12,417	98,359	28,677	76,020	35,288	98,773	79.033	32,209	24,289	21,172	47,847	143,445	65,444	290'62	60,662	81,370	19,769	27,393	23,109	16,888	142,811	81,565	141,970	39.474	32,594	58,174	269466	37,750	68,449	30,008
Berar.	87	3,683	926	24,395	305	10,925	847	7,958	2,030	1,188	2,452	616,11	13,264	10,122	1	341	18,375	17	91	1	:	1	1	ı	1	1	1	1	1	1	i	
Central Provinces.	641	21,868	16,679	12,576	126	52,588	4,787	21,312	39,972	557	7,043	15,506	\$2,985	57,131	2	1192	63,114	40	90	437	2,967	1,217	3 ,768	4,391	84046	7,687	5,316	2,998	34.313	15,285	20,345	5,662
NW. Frontier Province.		1		1	-	1	i	i	1	1	1	1	1		:	1	1	111	1	1,354	-	300	1	995 -	2,845	134	1,605	2	1,329	175	2,300	013
Punjab.	110	1,936	12	8,804	14,938	2,835	3,401	10,107	75,959	629	113	\$40	5,146	622	335	1,816	28,260	180	371	14,658	216	2,197	4,232	437	12,297	1,513	2,131	1,260	1,833	5,811	96969	13,196
United Provinces of Agra and Oudh.	30,143	63,457	34,365	200,538	18,704	48,494	80,295	169,013	194,886	12,154	178,079	STASSA	69,147	44,708	2,508	8,142	84,960	53,795	\$5,160	47,159	6,617	121,790	140,549	\$2,438	83,544	21,813	102,402	117,689	18,894	60,427	37,498	805'00
Assam.	22,276	2,753	20,183	7,941	9,643	18,388	15,396	23,882	21,552	21,849	13,497	18,063	17,042	33,440	691,11	8,380	23,761	7,168	12,658	8,160	5,188	142,312**	108,278	77,181	59,329	71,737	696'211	39,248	(6) 14,303	16,407	9,270	26,970
Bihar and Orissa.	1	1	:	:	:	1	,	1	:	ı	1		,	1	1	i	1	:	1	!	-	:	:	:	1			1	77,023	70,379	33,115	88,310
*Bengal.	134,421	173,757	118,368	172,178	105,111	171,103	145,885	229,575	359,398	126,976	236,150	177,0%7	\$26,824	196,247	020'59	107,678	345,878	110,753	120,971	Softoz	137,701	146,339	192,596	205,702	208,908	1111'98	119,611	124,560	95.4h7	18,848	89,224	13,679
Delbi.	1:	ı	i	1	1	-	i	1	-		1	i	-	1	1		ī	1	1	;	***	'i	:	:	i	1			406	37	22	93
	1	-	-	1	:	!	:	1	i	1	:	i	:	i	i	1	1	1	1	1	:	i	1	1	i	:		1	-	2	ı	- 111
YEAR.	1	i				!	!	:	***		i	1	:	:	1	1					:	:		1		:			1			***
YR										-	-										-	-	-									
1	1001	1885	1586	1887	1888	1889	1890	1891	1892	1893	1894	1895	18,6	-1897	1898	1899	1500	1001	1901	1003	1001	1905	1906	1907	1908	6061	1910	101	1913	1913	101	1915

3.—Deaths from Cholera in British Provinces, by months, during the year 1915.

												-		RATIO 1,000 POPUL	
Province.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	Total.	1915.	1914.
hi			3	50	11	7	7	9	5				92	'22	'03
gal	7,496	5,447	16,110	19,833	8,9°3	4,840	4.786	5,108	6,645	12,823	19,681	18,927	130,679	2.88	1.96
ar and Orissa	1,450	1,542	2,649	3,853	4,521	5,024	7,287	12,239	9.765	15,205	17.615	7,199	88,349	2.2	. 9
am	837	4.6	870	1,324	1,180	697	715	1,037	2,630	5,158	7,300	4.745	20,979	4'45	1'53
ted Provinces & Agra. and Judh.	41	47	427	1,901	5,053	8,916	4,003	6,101	7,583	26,615	19,821	10,000	90,568	1'93	-69
njab	3	***	10	877	4,390	3,607	2,145	1,796	331	29	8		13,196	-68	*34
Frontier Province.	-	-		28	325	154	24	91	148	100	61	1	932	'45	1113
stral Provinces ad Berar.	9		2	9	40	373	796	2,294	937	790	362	50	5.662	'41	1.46
Aras Presi-	8,600	4 840	2,743	2,511	1,494	1,288	1,882	1,698	1,068	727	821	2,426	30,038	-8	1.7
org													***		
mbay Presi-	10	18	16	25	42	19	31	79	73	17	1	46	377	.03	10.
rma { Lower	125	280	248	497	505	631	771	835	1,396	942	1,138	841	8.209	1'34	.33
Upper	1		4	4	1	2	151	1,153	2,804	2,5:9	2,009	650	9,388	2.23	10.
mer-Merwara			-			2	-						3	101	'02
	-	-	-			-	-		-			-	-		-
Total	18.572	12,650	23,082	30,913	25,545	25.560	22,598	32,440	33.385	65,005	688.7	44.895	404 472	1'70	1:18

K .- Details of the distribution and occurrence of Cholera during the year 1915.

Province.		Mortality in 1915.	Mean mor- tality of previous 5 years.	Urban mortality.	Rural mor- tality.	Per centage of villag-s attacked.	Maximum mortality in any one district excluding towns.	Maximum mortality in any one town.	Month of maximum mortality.
thi		.22	-25	*36	*05	-33	1		April.
ngal		2.83	1.98	2.32	2.91	14.80	5'94	14.67	April.
ar and Orissa		2.2	22	41	2.5	12:26	5'3	25'8	November.
sam		4.46	2.70	3.12	4:48	1.90	10'86	1274	November.
ited Provinces of Agra and Ou	dh	1.03	1'41	1.38	1'97	6-29	11:68	1543	October.
njab		-68	-18	'55	70	5'07	3.13	20'41	May.
orth-West Frontier Province	***	'45	'54	*76	.42	3.64	1'04	15.85	May.
ntral Provinces and Berar		'41	1'14	**44	.40	2.67	1:40	867	August.
dras Presidency	•••	-8	1'4	-8	7	9.72	2'1	11.6	January.
org			'29			- TI			
mbay Presidency	***	.03	'99	105	.01	-23	'14	4.83	August.
Fma (Lower		1'34	*53	1.78	1'27	7'02	4.36	21.18	September.
Upper		3.23	'21	5.68	2:23	11.07	4'33	12:40	September.
mer-Merwara		101	*03			-27			June.

L .- Small-pox mortality-1915.

Newleading by Previnces 1— A.—Ceathby by Previnces 1— A.—Ceathby by Previnces 1— A.—Ceathby by Mark 1— I 2,740 B. Spi	
A.—E caths by months— Javosty 3 3,740 833 250 186 64 150 2,678 3 133 9 Petrakry 1 4,455 1,436 263 266 59 4 134 9,712 3 111 14 March 1 7,680 2,331 435 354 311 1 111 3,455 2 213 2 2 April 6,816 2,890 544 464 123 117 3,479 7 262 33 5 May 2 5,148 3,690 544 464 123 117 3,479 7 262 33 5 June 3 3,013 1,644 610 281 222 7 157 157 1,931 113 33 5 Joly 1 1,692 682 477 129 244 3 86 17,783 81 33 2 Argust 1,644 731 324 83 144 3 66 1,783 81 33 2 September 449 407 173 58 165 4 56 1,427 58 15 3 13 1 November 1 337 220 116 40 66 3 20 16,64 1 50 1,207 1 53 13 1 Cotober 1 337 220 116 40 66 3 20 16,64 1 50 5 3,27 1 5 5 5 6 November 2 3 316 345 94 15 77 34 1,619 1 57 3 3 Desember 1 880 507 1126 27 85 47 1,218 1 172 133 Total 1 880 507 1126 27 85 47 1,218 1 172 133 BAnnual death ratios 1 880 507 1126 27 85 47 1,218 1 172 133 BAnnual death ratios 1 1 880 50 77 126 127 135 116 126 127 128 117 129 130 116 1160, 1914 Difference	Ajmer-Merwara,
A.—E caths by months— January 3 3,740 833 250 150 64 150 2,078 3 133 9 Petraary 1 4,855 1,436 563 246 59 4 134 9,712 3 111 14 March 1 7,080 5,331 435 354 301 1 1 111 3,195 2 21 2 2 April 6,310 8,890 544 404 131 117 3,490 7 202 33 5 May 2 5,148 2,044 815 454 200 2 130 2,559 5 200 21 1 June 3 3,013 1,644 610 881 22 7 157 1,931 113 33 5 July 1 1,092 682 497 149 244 3 86 17,783 81 23 1 September 476 407 173 58 105 4 50 1,427 58 15 3 12 September 476 407 173 58 105 4 50 1,427 1 53 13 1 November 3 316 345 94 15 77 34 1,019 1 59 6 November 3 316 345 94 15 77 34 1,019 1 59 6 Total 1 880 507 1326 27 88 47 1,238 1 172 133 Total 1 880 507 1326 27 88 47 1,238 1 172 133 B.—Annual death ratios :— Ratio per 1,000 of population, 125 1 125 24,038 23 1,445 202 155 Ratio per 1,000 of population, 125 1 125 24,038 23 1,455 202 155 Mean ratio per 1,000 of population, 125 1 125 23 125	78
Fetraary	
Petraary	-
April	-
May 3 5,848 3,404 815 454 300 2 130 8,550 5 206 21 1 June 3 3,013 1,641 610 881 282 7 167 1,921 113 33 5 July 1 1,692 952 427 240 244 3 86 1,783 81 23 1 August 1,041 731 214 83 144 3 00 1,783 53 15 September 475 407 177 55 105 4 50 1,247 1 2 53 13 13 15 October 1 337 220 316 40 96 3 20 1,684 1 56 6 November 2 316 345 94 15 77 34 1,019 1 57 3 December 1 580 507 126 27 85 47 1,213 1 1772 13 Total 14 32,785 15,126 4,076 2,204 1,694 26 1,151 24,038 23 1,485 202 15 BAnnoal death ratios : Ratio per 1,000 of population, 100 121 12 12 12 143 13 15 16 16 13 177 16 13 177 16 12 17 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	
June 3 3,013 1,421 6.0 281 282 7 157 1,921 113 32 5 July 1 1,692 982 427 249 244 3 85 1,783 81 23 1 August 1,641 731 244 83 144 2 90 1,473 58 15 September 475 407 173 55 105 4 55 1,247 1 53 13 1 October 1 337 229 116 40 96 3 29 1,084 1 50 6 November 2 316 345 94 15 77 34 1,019 1 57 3 Desember 1 880 507 126 27 85 47 1,318 1 173 13 Total 14 32,785 15,126 4,076 2,204 1,694 25 1,751 24,038 23 1,425 202 15 B. Annoul desth ratios :— Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Difference'07 +'51 +'2 +'25 -'33 -'06 -'15 -'25 -'1 -'53 -'14 -'01 Difference'07 +'51 +'2 +'25 -'33 -'06 -'15 -'25 -'1 -'53 -'16 -'23 -'16 -'23 -'26 -'25 -'14 -'01 Difference'36 +'53 +'13 +'22 -'08 -'73 -'53 -'25 -'1 -'53 -'25 -'14 -'01 Number of districts affects'26 -'23 -'48 -'20 -'25 -'25 -'25 -'25 -'25 -'25 -'26 -'25 -'26 -'25 -'26 -'26 -'26 -'26 -'26 -'26 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'20 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'20 -'28 -'26 -'27 -'28 -'20 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'28 -'28 -'26 -'28 -'28 -'28 -'28 -'28 -'28 -'28 -'28	
Agust	-
September 476 407 173 55 105 4 56 1,247 1 53 13 1 1 October 1 337 239 116 40 96 3 29 1,084 1 96 6 November 2 316 345 94 15 77 34 1,019 1 57 3 December 1 580 507 126 37 85 47 1,318 1 173 13 Total 1 4 32,785 15,126 4,076 2,304 1,694 26 1,151 24,038 23 1,425 202 15 B.—Annual death ratios :— Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1215. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1215. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1215. Difference —'07 +:51 +:2 +:25 —:33 —:06 —:15 —:25 —:1 —:53 —:14 —:01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during 1:30 -:20 -:4 -:4 -:01 Difference —'07 +:51 +:3 +:2 -:33 —:06 -:15 -:25 —:1 -:53 —:14 —:01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during 1:30 -:20 -:4 -:4 -:01 Difference —'06 +:32 +:3 +:3 +:22 —:08 —:73 —:53:21 +:1:50:23 —:48:20 Number of districts affecte:36 -:23 -:48:20 Number of districts affecte:36 -:21 8 38 38 27 3 19 24 4 188 9 3	-
October 1 337 229 110 40 95 3 29 1,084 1 50 6 November 2 316 345 94 15 77 34 1,019 1 57 3 Desember 1 580 507 126 37 85 47 1,318 1 173 13 Total 14 32,785 15,126 4,070 2,304 1,694 26 1,151 24,028 23 1,425 202 15 B.—Annual death ratios :— Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Difference —'07 + 51 + '2 + '25 — '33 — '06 — '15 — '25 — '1 — '52 — '14 — '01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during 130 120 131 132 133 134 135 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130	-
Describer 1 S80 S07 136 37 85 47 1,318 1 173 13 Total 14 32,785 15,526 4,076 2,304 1,694 26 1,151 24,038 23 1,425 202 15 BAnnual death ratios c Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1925. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1925. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1924. Difference'07 +'51 +'2 +'25 -'33 -'06 -'15 -'25 -'1 -'52 -'14 -'01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during '30 '25 '1 '45 '13 '82 '54 '29 '5 '63 '30 '51 '20 Difference'36 +'52 +'3 +'22 -'08 -'73 -'53 -'21 +'1 -'50 -'23 -'48 -'20 11District mortality excluding towns : Number of districts affects 26 22 28 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	-
Total 14 32,785 15,526 4,076 2,304 1,624 26 1,151 24,038 23 1,425 202 15 BAnnual desth ratios : Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1925. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1925. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1925. Difference	
B Annual death ratios 2 Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1914. Difference'07 + 51 + '2 + '25 - '33 - '06 - '15 - '25 - '1 - '52 - '14 - '01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during '39 '20 '1 '45 '13 '81 '54 '29 '5 '03 '30 '51 '20 11District mortality excluding tow as 3 Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	-
B Annual death ratios 2 Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1915. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1914. Difference'07 + 51 + '2 + '25 - '33 - '06 - '15 - '25 - '1 - '52 - '14 - '01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during '39 '20 '1 '45 '13 '81 '54 '29 '5 '03 '30 '51 '20 11District mortality excluding tow as 3 Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	
Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1935. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1935. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1914. Difference —'07 +'31 +'2 +'25 —'33 —'06 —'15 —'25 —'1 —'52 —'14 —'01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during 190 '20 '1 145 '13 18 190 '5 163 '30 '30 '31 190 1910-14. Difference —'26 +'32 +'3 +'22 —'08 —'73 —'23 —'21 + 3 —'20 —'23 —'48 —'20 11.—District mortality excluding towns :— Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	
Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1935. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1935. Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1914. Difference —'07 +'31 +'2 +'25 —'33 —'06 —'15 —'25 —'1 —'52 —'14 —'01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during 190 '20 '1 145 '13 18 190 '5 163 '30 '30 '31 190 1910-14. Difference —'26 +'32 +'3 +'22 —'08 —'73 —'23 —'21 + 3 —'20 —'23 —'48 —'20 11.—District mortality excluding towns :— Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	
Ratio per 1,000 of population, 1914. Difference —'07 +'51 +'9 +'25 —'33 —'06 —'15 —'25 —'1 —'52 —'14 —'01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during '30 '33 '1 '45 '13 '82 '54 '29 '5 '63 '30 '54 '20 1910-14. Difference —'36 +'52 +'3 +'22 —'05 —'73 —'53 —'21 +1 —'50 —'23 —'48 —'20 11.—District mortality excluding towns :— Number of districts affects 26 21 8 36 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	101
Difference —'07 +'31 +'2 +'25 —'33 —'06 —'15 —'25 —'1 —'52 —'14 —'01 Mean ratio per 1,000 during '30 '20 '1 '45 '13 '81 '54 '20 '5 '63 '30 '51 '20 Difference —'36 +'32 +'3 +'22 —'05 —'73 —'53 —'21 +1 —'50 —'23 —'48 —'20 II.—District mortality excluding towns :— Number of districts affect*	105
Mean ratio per 1,000 during '30 '33 '1 '45 '13 '82 '54 '29 '5 '63 '30 '34 '20 '30 '34 '34 '34 '34 '34 '34 '34 '34 '34 '34	
Mean ratio per 1,000 during '39 '23 '1 '45 '13 '82 '54 '29 '5 '63 '30 '31 '20 '20 '31 '30 '31	04
Difference'36 +'32 +'3 +'22 -'08 -'73 -'31 +1 -'50 -'23 -'48 -'20 11.—District mortality excluding towns :- Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	
Difference'36 +'32 +'3 +'22 -'08 -'73 -'53 -'21 +1 -'50 -'23 -'48 -'20 11.—District mortality excluding towars :- Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	. 183
II.—District mortality excluding towns:— Number of districts affects 26 21 8 36 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	
Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	-1-82
Number of districts affects 26 21 8 38 27 2 19 24 4 18 9 3	
el.	120
Highest district ratio 5'36 1'3 3'63 '73 '45 '03 '58 3'5 '35 '69 '10 "01	47 10
Name of that district 24 Parga Balgatre, Kamrup, Mirapur, Fereze- Feshawar, Drug, Godavari, Kirgatnad Kasara, Akyab, Mandalay	2.11
Lowest district ratio 2 (as. 101 '01 '028 '01 '01 '001 '01 '002 '1 '03 '00 '00 (200)	ole.
Name of that district Ja'palgor Angul. Cachar. Budaun, Gujran- Hazara, Saugor. Nilgiris. Yedecal- Kaira. Ambrest, Yamethic	rallat
Name of that district E Jalpalgor Angul. Cachar. Budaun. Cujran-wais. Hazara, Saugor. Nilgiris. Yedenai-knaid. Kaira. Amherst. Yamethic	Not available
Number of districts without mortality.	-
District death rate per "64 "4 "61 "65 "68 "01 "09 "6 "13 "05 "08 "00	. 3
	-
111.—Town mortality:- Number of towns affected 100 45 21 41 43 1 21 133 3 21 11 5	
Highest town ratio 8-64 3'9 35'38 '75 173 '05 1'51 8'1 '54 6'81 '74 '37	3878
Name of that town Vishnu- colgong. Barpeia. Beledabar Ballab- Pe-hawar. Nerpin- Falakoliu. Virajen- drapet. Malegaon Kyon- pyaw. Yamethin	Je.
Lowest town ratio 2	dellah
	Not available,
Number of towns with. 2. 13 30 9 59 97 13 89 137 91 38 15	-
Town death rate per 1,000 1:83 '5 3:40 '05 '12 '00 '08 '6 '30 '19 '46 '02	
IV.—Infanti'e mortality:	hall .
	30.30
Children : 10 years 2 3,04% 4,575 1,418 1,034 911 18 401 8,343 543 10 2	
Percentage of children in d 14'05 49'05 59'35 29'04 26'15 96'15 71'03 71'31 63'16 12 87 20'00	66167
lity. Z	

M .- Fever mortality-1915.

really 347 82,547 41,631 5,313 58,462 21,435 9,5 rch 445 98,550 53,847 5,553 65,865 21,877 2,55 ii 547 78,775 53,137 5,911 75,500 19,701 1,0 f 746 74,117 54,152 7,127 83,176 27,613 2,7 ii 578 67,804 50,654 8,918 77,562 24,885 2,6 f 459 61,209 46,830 8,613 61,408 23,106 2,4 f 555 77,974 62,539 8,670 68,717 20,055 2,4 f 440 75,861 64,113 8,673 78,571 19,181 3,1 ober 546 82,192 67,449 8,607 94,180 20,639 3,6 rember 750 130,273 80,999 8,933 103,040 25,047 3,0 rember 820 136,453 75,943 8,975 113,121 3,201 4,8 Total 6,716 6,054,139 696,839 91,739 957,299 284,784 30,5	514 14,982 514 14,982 550 12,594 550 13,548 1018 14,834 745 18,552 75,650 20,757 75,650 20,757 76,650 20,757 76,650 20,757 76,650 20,757 76,650 20,757 76,650 20,757	27,858 27,858 22,710 22,525 21,123 21,408 20,458 22,117 25,997 24,811 24,530 32,320	356 251 327 340 437 491 530 414 364 -348 310 391	22, 231 18,636 20,577 17,646 15,770 14,115 13,536 16,314 17,181 19,496 23,140 20,434	3,881 3,395 3,150 3,315 3,044 4,722 5,409 5,309 4,247 4,455 4,511 5,473	2,647 1,073 2,365 3,159 1,731 2,334 3,141 3,033 2,894 3,575 5,045	984 797 870 1,015 905 664 666 729 853 749 975	233,775 273,669 313,635 295,933 313,635 295,143 265,533 307,329 437,430 437,430 437,430
the by months	,556 11,594 55.0 13,548 ,018 14 834 ,746 18,552 ,630 20,757 ,455 13,942 ,437 18,665 ,193 23,993 ,640 28,759 ,982 28,353 ,888 25,957	22,710 22,525 21,123 21,408 20,458 23,117 25,597 24,811 23,461 24,530 32,320	251 327 340 427 491 530 414 364 - 348 310 391	18,636 20,577 17,646 15,770 14,115 13,535 16,314 17,881 19,495 23,140 26,434	3,881 3,395 3,880 3,315 3,044 4,722 5,409 5,309 4,247 4,455 4,511 5,473	1,973 2,305 2,129 1,731 2,334 3,141 2,053 2,874 2,848 3,575	984 797 870 1,015 905 614 665 729 853 749 975	272,669 312,136 295,933 313,625 295,142 265,512 307,329 325,054 357,439 437,294
CARTY	,556 11,594 55.0 13,548 ,018 14 834 ,746 18,552 ,630 20,757 ,455 13,942 ,437 18,665 ,193 23,993 ,640 28,759 ,982 28,353 ,888 25,957	22,710 22,525 21,123 21,408 20,458 23,117 25,597 24,811 23,461 24,530 32,320	251 327 340 427 491 530 414 364 - 348 310 391	18,636 20,577 17,646 15,770 14,115 13,535 16,314 17,881 19,495 23,140 26,434	3,881 3,395 3,880 3,315 3,044 4,722 5,409 5,309 4,247 4,455 4,511 5,473	1,973 2,305 2,129 1,731 2,334 3,141 2,053 2,874 2,848 3,575	984 797 870 1,015 905 684 666 729 853 749 975	273,669 312,135 295,933 313,625 295,142 265,512 307,329 325,054 357,439 437,434
Total 6,716 £,054,139 696,839 91,730 957,299 284,784 30.5	,556 11,594 55.0 13,548 ,018 14 834 ,746 18,552 ,630 20,757 ,455 13,942 ,437 18,665 ,193 23,993 ,640 28,759 ,982 28,353 ,888 25,957	22,710 22,525 21,123 21,408 20,458 23,117 25,597 24,811 23,461 24,530 32,320	251 327 340 427 491 530 414 364 - 348 310 391	18,636 20,577 17,646 15,770 14,115 13,535 16,314 17,881 19,495 23,140 26,434	3,395 3,150 3,316 3,044 4,722 5,409 5,300 4,247 4,436 4,511 5,473	1,973 2,305 2,129 1,731 2,334 3,141 2,053 2,874 2,848 3,575	797 870 1,015 905 614 666 729 853 749 975	273,669 312,136 293,933 313,625 296,142 266,522 307,329 325,054 357,439 437,294
18	55.0 23,548 ,918 14 834 ,746 18,152 ,630 20,757 ,455 13,942 ,437 18,665 ,191 23,093 ,640 28,759 ,992 28,253 ,858 25,957	23,525 21,123 21,408 20,458 23,117 25,597 24,811 23,461 24,530 32,320	327 340 427 491 530 414 364 -348 310 391	20,577 17,646 15,770 14,115 13,595 16,314 17,881 19,495 23,140 16,434	3,180 3,316 3,044 4,722 5,409 5,300 4,247 4,435 4,511 5,473	3,365 3,159 1,731 2,334 3,141 3,053 3,874 2,848 3,575	870 1,015 905 614 666 729 853 749 975	312,136 295,933 313,625 296,142 266,512 307,329 325,054 357,430 437,294
11	,918 14 834 ,746 18,152 ,680 20,757 ,456 13,942 ,437 18,665 ,101 23,093 ,640 28,759 ,982 28,253 ,888 28,957	21,133 21,408 20,458 22,117 25,597 24,811 23,461 24,530 32,320	340 437 491 530 414 364 348 310	17,646 15,770 14,115 13,536 16,314 17,881 19,495 23,140 26,434	3,316 3,644 4,723 5,409 5,309 4,247 4,435 4,511 5,473	3,159 1,731 2,334 3,141 3,053 2,874 2,848 3,575	1,015 900 61,4 666 729 853 749 975	205,933 313,625 295,142 205,512 307,329 325,054 357,430 437,294
7 746 74,117 54,252 7,127 85,176 27,613 2,7 8 578 67,804 50,654 8,018 77,502 24,885 2,6 7 469 61,209 46,830 8,613 67,498 23,106 2,4 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10	,630 20,757 ,455 13,942 ,437 18,665 ,101 23,992 ,640 28,759 ,912 28,251 ,838 28,957	20,458 22,117 25,897 24,811 23,461 24,530 32,320	491 520 414 364 - 348 310 391	14,115 13,556 16,314 17,881 19,495 22,140 16,434	4,722 5,409 5,309 4,247 4,456 4,511 5,473	2,334 3,141 3,053 2,874 2,848 3,575	614 666 729 853 749 975	305,143 265,513 307,319 325,054 357,439 437,494
### ### ### ### ######################	,455 13,942 ,437 18,465 ,101 23,993 ,640 28,759 ,982 28,853 ,858 28,957	22,117 25,897 24,811 23,161 24,530 33,320	520 414 364 - 348 310 391	13,555 16,314 17,881 19,495 23,140 26,434	5,409 5,309 4,247 4,455 4,511 5,473	3,141 3,053 3,874 2,848 3,575	853 749 975	307,329 325,054 357,430 437,394
Total 556 73,974 63,539 8,670 68,717 30,055 2,4 6ember 440 75,861 64,115 8,673 78,571 19,181 3,1 6ember 546 83,193 67,449 8,667 94,180 30,639 3,6 750 130,373 80,999 8,933 103,040 35,017 3,0 750 136,453 75,943 8,976 113,121 3,201 4,8	,437 18,665 ,191 23,992 ,640 28,759 ,922 28,253 ,858 28,957	25,597 24,811 23,161 24,530 32,320	414 364 - 348 310 391	15,314 17,881 19,495 23,140 15,434	5,309 4,247 4,455 4,511 5,473	3,053 2,874 2,848 3,575	729 853 749 975	307,329 325,054 357,430 437,294
ober 546 82,192 07,449 8,667 94,180 20,639 3,6 sember 750 130,273 80,999 8,933 103,040 25,017 3,9 sember 820 136,453 75,943 8,976 113,121 3,201 4,8 Total 6,716 1,064,139 696,839 91,739 957,299 284,784 36,5	,640 28,759 ,922 28,252 ,858 28,957 ,518 237,834	24,530 32,320	348 310 391	19,495 23,440 26,434	4,456 4,511 5,473	2,848 3.575	749 97 ⁵	357,430 437,794
rember 750 130,273 80,009 8,953 103,040 25,0,7 3,0 cmber 820 130,453 75,943 8,975 113,121 3,201 4,8 Total 6,716 1,054,139 696,839 91,739 957,299 284,784 30,5	,992 28,253 ,858 25,957 ,518 237,534	32,320	310	29,140 26,434	5,473	3.575	975	437,794
Total 6,716 1,064,159 696,830 91,730 957,299 284,784 36.5	318 237,834					5,045	1,355	
		. Fsc,000	4,549	334,797	50,554			
						33,686	10,585	:,090,187
the state of the s	780 1719			1			-	
nual death ratios — the per 1,000 of popula- 16'11' 23'47 20'2 15'16 20'44 14'73 17'		7'3	25'00	11'48	8'24	9105		16'73
ion, 1915.	8199 16:86						31.11	
tio per 1,000 of popula- lon, 1914.	0 99 10 00		27'41	13.13	7'63	7-91	35"38	17'16
Difference5'23 +'07 +2'5 +1'42 -1'99 -3'14 -1'	1,10 +,33		-14	-175	+161	+1*14	-4'27	-'43
ratio per 1,000 during 24'38 21'13 19'4 13'78 24'40 16'31 17	17'87 17'72	7.6	a8-p8	13 21	8103	8'90	27°08	17'41
Difference8'27 +1'34 +'8 +1'35 -3 95 -1'58 +	+103 -103	'3	-1.88	-1'73	+'31	+*15	-6'57	45
istrict mortality exclud-				-				
CW18 1-						7		
umber of districts affect- rd. 35 31 S 48 38	3 22	24	5	25	18	"	1	345
	ohat Damoh.	Viz gapa	34'11 Nanjaraj-	Abmeda-	Trarra-	Mandalay	75 14	Barelliy
me of that district Birbnum. Parrea Goalpara. Barelly Mursdar garh.	100	tam.	Patna Talok.	bad.	w day.		able.	
meet dietrict ratio a 10°51 7 1 11°70 11°47 7°55 15 ame of that dietrict Z Howrah Pori Sibeagar. Banda Simia, Pesha	awar Boldana.	Anasta-	Yedenal- Kead	6'41 Be'gaum	ard ₃ Maubin,	4°23 Mylogyan	Not available	Arantaput
omber of districts with-			Taluk.	-	_		2	-
	18'33 17'70	7.6	26.83	13'30	887	9'47		17'36*
-good of population.		1						1
							1000	
Iown mortality:-				111	39	30		977
umber of towns affected 112 55 20 93 139 150 16hett town ratio 20°33 30°4 39°75 53 12 30°12 4	40'76 24'73	363	10.13	43'25	12.83	1 200		3,13
ame of that town Kotchand Dumka Mangal- Shirkot Murree. Na	awa- shahr s'atan-	Mudu-	Virajendra	Minne	Torres	Allanma	de.	Shirket
Neti	tified pur.	gula.	l et.	khas.		Allanmyo	1 1	Smiraos
5 W W.D.	6.08 ,10	1	8'14	29	'47	1 20 00		1
Singh, bani, Dhubri, I apor, Rewarl, Kula	lach. Nawar-	Kollegal	Mercaar	Ahmed- Nagar (pasea-	Maubin,	Myingyan	1	Kollegal
univer of towns with-		7	-	meni.	-	-	1	7
out mortality. 2w death rate per 1,000 7:94 13'8 \$'45 18'64 13'33 1	12.01	4'5	13'81	775	3,88	1.40		9*59

N .- Dysentery and Diarrhea mortality-1915.

										, ,					14
Provinces, Districts, Towns.	Dehl.	Bengal,	Bihar and Orisia.	Assam.	United Provinces of Agra and Oodh,	Punjab.	North-West Presider Province.	Central Provinces and Berar.	Madras Presidency.	Ccorg.	Combay Pres deacy.	Lower Forma,	Upper Barma.	Ajmer-Merwara.	The second second
I,-Mortality by Provinces:-			1	-			The same		1			1		1	
							1	The same	1	1	1		11:		10
A Drains by mosths				1		1	-	Tonas .		1		100	133	1	100
January	18	100000	1 300	1	940	760	33	1000	1	- 10	2,140	433	116	1 19	
February	10	1000000	1 700	1000	985	596	11		1	1					
Ajril	37	1000	2,807		1,531	803	18							100	
May	27	2,177	9,419	933	1,980	1,713	83	15 775	75 (20)	8	0.750.70				
Jose	15	1,725	3,153	1,094	1,713	1,510	: 43	2,702	4,455	15	2,283	955	1000	1	
Joly	23	1,722	1		1,817	1,000	43	1 3 700	100000			1 12 12	543	20	1-0
August September	28	3,096	3,515	1300	2 354	976	41	5,340		16					
October	25	2,420	3,000		1,795	1,060	74	1 233	-	13	1		1		
November	15	3,325	2,007	2,255	1,779	1,305	40	1 222	1000		_			35	
December	23	3,607	3,134	2,058	1,718	1,099	31	3,974	10000	6	10000	1		-	
Anna Carlotte															
Total	255	28,9.9	32,940	15,122	19,477	12,558	483	45,122	61,037	105	31,707	8,159	3,427	459	20
				-								-	-		-
Bi-An anal death ratios :-	100	Seal.	g mai			L ALL	NAME OF	13,000		1	1		197	1	100
Ratio per 1,000 of popu-	*63	163	9	2155	*41	* **	- *24	3'31	1'5	160	1,61	1,33			
Ration, 1915.	*80	*65	7		7		100				1		.01	*92	
lation, 1914.	-	0,		3'23	,30	*69	'22	3'45	1.0	1,01	3,10	.63	*63	*86	
Difference	17		+'2								-			-	
Difference		-'03		+'43	+.03	-,04	+.03	14	4	41	57	+.40	+-10	+.00	
Mean ratio per 1,000	166							1							
during 1910-14,	-00	*50	-8	3'07	'30	*57	'17	3,22	1.7	1714	3,10	1'23	*64	1,04	
Distance													-	_	
Difference	-,03	+.04	+11	+-20	+'01	+.08	+.07	- 24	'2	-7:4	- '57	+ 10	+ 18	-113	1
II,-District mortality exclud-															-
log towns :-							1 - 6	1	1	10 9					
Number of districts		36	. "	8	48	28	5	22	24	5	26	18	12	7	
Highest district ratio	100	4'61	5'4	*60	781	4'04	*44	8165	5'8	*45	3:66	2165			
Name of that district	4	Howrah.	Cuttack.	Lakhim-	Garhwal.	Rawalpir-	Dera Is-	Akola.	Nilgiris.	Padical-	Shelayor.	Tarry.	Pokokku,	je.	
Lowest district ratio	rails			P		di.	Khan,	100		Rund Taluk.	1 1 1 1 1	1 3		ot available	1
Name of that district	Not available,	Dinajpur.	1.1	*40	101	'02	'01	*63		*16	*06	.03	*44		
	-	ormalpur.	Pornea.	icalpara.	Khtri.	Hoshlar-	Kohat.	Balaghat.	Vizagapa-	inad	Larkhana.	Toungoo.	Kyankse.	Z	* h
Number of districts with-	1 -	-	4							Taiuk.		S. A. S.		TREE	
District death rate per	WY!	*49	.0	3'63	1	1				The same	***		-	1500	,
1,000 of population.			-		'31	.23	118	3,38	1.3	.90	1,23	mi	*77	1 .	
Ill,-Town meetality:-											- 31		-		
Number of towns affected		1			1200	1			1000		-	5	-	11 3000	
Highest town ratio		7113	53	30	88	128	11	108	355	2	108	27	20	9 - 18 14 -	-
Name of that t wa		Trio Baracag r	Sambal-	Mangal	8'05 Mau.	Murree.	I'63	15'50 Wessian	9'3	8-62	14'06	5'17	4'42		1
Address of the Party of the Par	-	Bernel) uc	can,		Janiet.	Banco.	Merping-	Colmba-	Virajend- raper	Shelspur.	Zigon.	Alianmyo*	The car	Mai
Lowest town ratio	sble.	.00	.00	-18	*00	'21	*18	*15	1	3,55	*06	*44	*25	ole.	
Name of that town	available	Satkhira.	Gird h.	Gachati.	Gangoh.	Sohdra.	Koh t.	Lucia 1	Proddatur	Acres 1970	Larkhana,	Share-	Pakokkn.	avoilable	Prode
Number of tower without	No.		10.10	1000	-	12-34		-	1	13/11/	1	daung.	1	Not av	
mortality.			,	-	5	"	2	2	13	- /	4	2	-	-	
Town oath rate per		3'68	31	4'07	3'24	1.01	78	3"70	3'4	571	3,33	3-86	2*55	TARA	
-			1			1240		1000		100		1	134	Market	

O.—Plague mortality—1915.

		18		1	1834		1	100	90					70	TAL.
Province or State.	-	January.	Petruary.	March.	Aprili.	Nay.	June.	Jaly.	Vagust.	September.	October,	Norember,	December,	1915.	1914
													-	5	
Bartten Pacytness.		1151			1000	1					8			7-1-1	
		1000	1	-	1000	1000	The same	11217	18	100	100				
		3	3	23	111	43	-	"	-		***			8	
and Orisea	-	2,195	4,802	9,018	6,600	7,398	7 99	15	50	136	106	416	1,405	199	64,3
	***				100		101	***			***	-			
ed Provinces of Agra and Oudh		4,889	9,548	17,797	15,507	3,749	124	50	65	191	340	2,116	3,651	58,128	103,9
ab	-	13,890	37,057	51,678	82,251	43,176	3,276	235	20	7	. 44	162	170	211,955	64,0
h-West Prontier Province	***	***		8	90	198	43	1				340		340	
ras Fresidency		395	4,538	3,808	43	165	7	38	135	343	2,503	572	2,355	3,889	5,1
E					2							1	1	3	3,5
hay Presidency	***	2,005	2,313	3,705	2,521	1,313	810	1,758	3,903	4,925	6,058	6,748	6,754	43,824	20,0
Lower		719	674	377	196	193	175	197	132	65	37	42	85	3,891	5,10
(Upper	-	237	407	310	84	4	5	24	31	14	. 32	156	545	1,740	2,3
er-Merwera			***	***	***	***	***			***	***	***		***	***
	-						1								
Ç1915		25,287	49,716	87,798	109,615	50,218	4,551	3,302	4,603	7,008	10,584	11,546	15,104	380,501	
TOTAL {1914		33,559	47,214	73,241	53,878	26,539	5,932	1,378	1,776	2,560	3,939	6,909	15,053		255,5
									1.					Die er	and the
					1	Der	100	1	199	100	HER	No to 19		all of	
NATIVE STATES, ETC.	3					1				1	1 13			7.3	
gai Native States	-	-							-		-	-			·,
ar and Orissa Native States		***	***	***	***		***		-	***				***	***
am Native States ted Provinces of Agra and C	andh l	25	101	253	495	245	20						6	1,170	8
itive States.		-3	1000		11.5				-	100	9	***			
jab Native States	***	1,413	2,580	3,811	535	7,218	705	99	8	9		3	47 68	2,559*	9,5
mu and Kashmir States		73	183	583	343	***	269			-		42	903	*120.99	
putana			3	21	79	14	13				-	1	1	134	3,1
trol India		135	- 236	317	144	13			50	111	498	575	541	2,651	2,2
ive States in Central Provinces		***		-	***		***							***	
nbay Presidency Native States	-1	541	703	1,003	604	. 196	72	158	603	7,354	2,598	1,931	1,575	11,166	7.7
ma Native States		***	6	6	313	55	9	21	15	670	1,137	1,753	4,075	93	
embad State		134	347 516	359 326	110	43	gt	70	194	186	393	455	575	3,547	3,5
galore, Civil and Military Stati		77	97	83	51	13	9	40	69	55	69	69	65	693	- 7
dras Native States			-			-		444	444	ant .	***			-	A CO
				1											
		THE R								4.013					
TOTAL {1915	***	3,853	4,781	6,482	8,473	3,518	1,005	352	1,412	3,513	4,707 3,351	4,836	5,954 2,901	53,365	30/
(1914	-	9,153	2,159	3,314	4,090	3,310	1,000	33-	3,454		ugao.	2,410	*1000		-
	1	-						-		7 37		-	TE		
GRAND TOTAL {1915		29,149	54,507	. 94,280	113,088	\$9,016	5,766	3,694	6,014	9,521	15,191	16,382	23,158	433,866	
GRAND TOTAL {1914		35,722	44,373	75.535	57,968	30,157	6,321	1,730	3,050	5,608	7,290	9,395	19,154		196,
		1000					-	- Contract							-
cutta City	4	3	,	23	110	47	6							191	
nbay City		7	17	77	159	131	33	40	31	18	. 21	24	30	100	2,
THE RESERVE AND THE PARTY OF TH	10000	1		D. H. S. S.							I down			1	1 10
idras City				100	1000	***	-	***	600	***	100	***	***	***	

P .- Mortality from Respiratory Diseases-1915.

Provinces, Districts, Towns.	Delhi, "	Bengal,	Bihar and Orissa.	Assam.	United Provinces of Agra and Cuch.	Punjab.	North-West Freatier Province.	Central Provinces and Berar,	Madras Prinidency.	Coorg.	Bombay Presidency.	Lower Burma,	Upper Butma.	Ajmer-Merwaca,
Mortality by Provinces :														
A,-Deaths by months-			FF.										7	1
January	195	1,150	dig	457	1,868	4,533	112	3,655	4,051	2	5,724	448	349	53
February	174	1,098	537	399	1,537	4,101	123	3,340	3,277		5,313	377	1 516	33
March	220	1,207	738	474	1,898	4,346	108	3,450	1 10000	4	5,665	100	224	34
April	378 388	949	581	376	1,905	3,821	131	3,249	1	. 4	5,197	- 300	185	44
June	a87	760	430	301	1,515	10000	160	3,001			4,194	7.50	1	11
July	963	751	448	330	1,519	3,330	110	3,502	13,259	7	4,280	57:	314	18
August	294	Son	634	395	8,059	100	144	3,319	3,497	3	4,895	513	319	25
September	355	731 855	540	437	3,355		138	3,913	10000	7	5,005	538	303	33
October	414	1,010	519	380	2,245	3,168	114	4,886	33.63	5	5,954	100	284	45
December	437	1,381	757	480	3,637	1	156	5,444	- 300	5	7,275		266	64
			1		10000	1	-			100	1 2000		1	
Total	3,644	11,735												
notal	3,044	11,133	6,975	4,732	24,235	47,193	1,601	44,155	41,113	44	63,364	5,405	3,124	403
				1		12.34		-	1	1			1000	
B.—Antual death ratios—	100	-35	1 Back							CO.C.	1	1	13	
Ratio per 1,000 of popu- lation, 1915.	8*74	*95	*2	178	'53	2'44	*18	3'17	1'0	'35	3725	-88	*84	-50
Ratio per 1,000 of popu- lation, 1914.	1075	*27	.1	*65	'50	3"43	*78	3,20	171	'31	3'37	-84	'75	'05
		3200										1		
Difference	-2'01	'01	+1		-				-		-			
, Minerence				+112	+,03	+,03		03	,	'05	14	+.04	+*09	/ +14
				100	1					1				
Mean ratio per 1,000 dur- ing 1910-1914.	6.11	*94	'1	'61	*47	2'26	'76	3.04	1'0	*38	3"18	*85	*65	165
		- 11							1111		Day		The same	WIT TO
Difference	37	+*01	+12	+*17	+105	+*18	+103	+113		-113	+105	+103	+-18	+"15
I District mortality exclud-						-	-							
ing towns:-			1000			13.	17 3					100		
Number of districts affected Highest district ratio	A L	25	116	8	48 8:18	37	5	23	24	1	26	18	13	1
Name of that district		Howrah	Pari	Lakhlm-	Hamir-	10'22 Gurdas-	Hazara	Jabbal-	Nilgirie Nilgirie	Padinal-	6'87	1'03	1'18	de,
Lowest district rate	bie.	1003	*094	Pul.	pur.	pur.	10000	pore.		knad Taluk,	Kains	Akyab	Shwebo	Not available,
Name of that district	available.	Noakhali	1000000	Goalpara	Basti	Munaffar-	Kohat	Polanhas	Caniam .		*08	'03	*05	ot av
Number of districts with-	Not a		201			garb.	rotter.	Balaghat	Ganjam	4	Larkhaga	Topogoo	Myin- gyan	Z
District death rate per	~	*08	7	*95	'21	-			***		***	"	***	
1,000 of popt lation.				-		3,12	.46	3,03	.0	101	3,28	*40	*18	
IL-Town mertality :-					1233			7000	-		-	-		
Number of towns affected Highest town ratio		110	45	17	86	139	13	108	237		108	35	20	10.3
Name of that town	2	Manik.	Sambal-	6-1: Mangaldai	17*78 Kanah	19°10	7°13	17'02	80	670	14'12	11'24	10.00	
Compat town male	available	taia,	por.		Koneh	Dathousie	E'eshawar	Jubbul- pore.	Cochin	Mercara.	Kaira	Kyon- pyaw.	Pyawbwe	
Lowest town ratio	Not av	.00	108	*42	105	*01	*65	.18	.03		*11	*15	17	
Name of that town	Z	Asangol	Deoghar	Mouly! Bazar.	Bahraich	Multan	Becket-	Mohpa	Tanjore	***	Dohad	Danubyu	Maymyo	Not available.
		1	1		9-6		gang. Khwaja- ganj			1	1	1 100		E ava
	11		11			1000	(Notified Area.)			1 Guin	1	350	The said	No
Number of towns without		2	10	- 0				-						100
Number of towns without mortality. Town death rate per 1,000		a*80	10	3 1'79	7 4'86			2	45			4	-	

				1			10000									
-		All causes.	D.	15.38 17.66 20.09	39.84	23.55	25.75 25.75	14.58	25.05	19.09	18.88	13.80	17.31	19708	30'49	10.30 18.74 21.35
-		Alle	۸.	288'2 269'9 291'3	979.4 1,182'8 865 8	975'8 1,060'8 12,48'9	830'3 742'4	520'4 306'9 433'3	632.4 618.1 755.9	965°0 795°1 675°1	491.4 277.5 300.4	575.7 652.4 521.3	30476	590'1 548'3 586'1	1,551.6	7157
1		is and dity.	D,	71. II	35.	37.73	1.1.88	22. 80.	200	388	.38	5.4.6	7.55	97.79	,00 ,08 ,08	2.58
		Angenia and Debility.	. A	3.3	19.3	18°0 26°4 23°0	13.5	1 200	19.3	9.03	9.6	10'5 7'8 8'7	2004	14.0	2.09	10.0
1		hora.	D,	क्ष क्षेत्र	81.1	779	1.68	98.	254	38.087	.38 1.75	81.18 -89	10	.80 19.	.51 114 114	1288
-	1	Diarrhora.	· .	7.5	132.0	138.3	87.3 76'0 82'4	17.8	33.3 43.3	34.0	18.2	40'9 10'12 27'0	5.50	37.5	35.6	37.8
	PAN	Dysentery.	,D,	1.38	16'93	5.36 4.53 6-10	3.52	2729	2,44 0,50 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0	2.20	5°38 2°15 2°25	1,72	3.50	3.16 27.22	3.55	2.48
	8	Dyse	4	19.1	210'9 333'0 137'8	187.3	137'5	280	39'4 61'3 46'7	66.2 65.1 48.6	51.8 42.1	30.2	\$23.2 40.6 21.0	60°1 60°1 61°3	109'6 85'0 50'2	71.2 62.3 60.2
	NS FROM	atory ases.	D,	388	25.05	17.13 -97	85.58	884	7.00	1.84	1.25	1,12	97.1	8.83	3.76	11128
	AADMISSIONS DDEATHS.	Respiratory diseases.	. Y	11.5	25.2	36.4	29.1	27.75	41.0 70.0 70.0	25.1 16.4 27.5	14.4	33.9	15.0 15.0	25.7 30-2	0.28.5	25.50 25.50
	DI	nonia.	D.	1.01	3.84 4.51 1.58	2.14	3.50	3.06	3.33	3.55	1.50	3.55	1.02	2.36 2.45 3.08	5.31	3.83
1	-	Preumonia	A.	3.0	7.80	9.5	6.49	1378	16.7 21.2 34.3	18.3	8.00	13.4	7.03	10.7	14.6	13.9
1	-	Tubercle of the lungs.	D.	3.50	2.78 2.82 2.10	2.83	3.54	27.43	5.77 7.30 4.28	177	2.00.5	1911	2.75	3.34	57.0 4.00	3.62 3.12
1		Total		7.80	0 80 50	10.0	9.00	7.1	15.6 17.8	7.00	5.1 4.7	3.3	9.0	8.00	5.45 5.05 5.05	2.000
		rija.	D.	92.08	3.39	177	8.1.8 6.48	1.04	£15.65	26.	9 : :	16.1	.888	873.8	3.27 3.27	1.05
-		Malaria.	Y.	36.5	25978 20079 89-4	269'3 317'5 332'0	241'5 148'7 123'3	158.1	141.1	340.7	29.3	1163	28.6 17.9	153.1	840.1 1,343.1	260'2 193'3 252'4
		Small-pox.	D.	So	811	75.	0.5.1	9 11	70.11	811	80.11	0. : 1		% 5.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50	111	5000
		Small	Y.	17.7	uh 1	,v10	0.700	60 1-61	io tuda	211	66	60 1000	304	io '464	111	to toda
1		lera.	D.	8,88	1736	92.0.	75.8	786	F.7 :	.43	: 120		31.36	93. 286.	5 ::	85.84
1		Cholera	4	0.4	0.410	5.46	10 PP 17 PP	, 5 TH	27	F.F. ;	10001	EFF	1.00	574	011	554
		Con- stantly sick.	100	25.00	8 250	444	2002	22.22	844	7.58	8::1	26 19 19	13	288	5452	255
-		Averago Strength.†		17,474	1,617	13,435	7,146	24,512	15,896	2,724	3,644	8,416 9,873 10,214	9,081	96,775	12,239	123,169
	AL ST		THE	1905-14	1505-14	1905-14 1914 1915	1905-14	1905-14	1905-14	1905-14	1905-14	1905-14	1905-14	1905-14	1905-14 1914 1915	1905-14
100				-	~	~	7	}pur	~	7	~~	7	7	~~	~~	~
		tions.			1	1	,	of Agra and	1	North-West Frontier Province		1		1		1
		-Administrations. Years.			3.					Frontier				1		
		A.—Administrations.		1 1	1	i i	Bihar and Orista	United Provinces Ough,	ab	h-West	Central Provinces	bay	881	i +	Andamans	1 -
				Burma	Assam	Bengul	Biha	Unite	Punjab	Nort	Cent	Bombay	Madras	Indiat	Anda	Indial

*Excluding subsidiary Jails.

†The decennal ratios are worked on the total strength of the ten year period.

‡Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad, Mercara and excluding Andamans.

-			1															1
		Ай сапесе,	ů.	14-85 18-18 20-13	20.00	25.73 25.73 25.73	22.41	17.05	18.52	25-99	12.64	14.07	14.65	11.24	46.11	18.74	45.02	21.35
		All o	4	286.5	274.3 202.3 802.3	047'S	1,050'8	57816	610.3 610.3 610.3	615'0 609'4 723'0	544'6 674'7 595 3	60 f.4 4451 89676	189.2 388-7	2555'8	\$55.3 939.9 1,042.1	590.1 548.3	1,876.3	7157
		a e	. O	, iò	\$ 000	1.10	1.00	1124 1124	12.00	\$ 1.55 5.55	1001.19	FFF	255	31.	4.51	35.07	5.85	F748
		Distribus	· V	8.8.8	550	123.9	184.3	3977	28.8	36.8	30,53	# # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # #	1286	552	57.50	100 A	32'6 197 43'8	37.8 \$1.0 \$1.0
		ery.	D.	1.80	1155	4.08	5.50 0.50 0.50	3.30	1.88	25.25 25 25.25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 2	1.28	1.59	25.50	20.50	8.39 9.74 12.03	37.16 2.72 2.72	3.84	25.00 se
	13	Dysentery,	4	24.0	24.0	133.8	183.6	64.9	20.00	5.65 \$6.09 \$6.09	28.1	20 50 17 204 17 204	57.7	25.0	126.8	81.9 60.1	100'6 85'0 50'2	60.2
		4	ď	\$ 8.00 \$	2.48	1.66	2.08	2.27	4.95	9-02	9 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	170	2.02	1,10	5.48 4.83 6.02	30.00 30.00 30.00	5.00 0.62 0.62	3.83
		Pacementa	٧.	# P.00	\$55	2 0 00 25 00 00	9-20-0	222	24.0	20.2 20.2 35.8	18.8	5.00	959	212	80.1	12.0	13.3	13.6
•		79,	o D	9 11	3 11	5 SEE	B 200	110	F	to, 109	3 11	70, 60	811	111	111	5,86	49.49	332
RATIO PER MILLE OF STRENGTH.	MORA!	Pyrenia of uncertain celgin,	٧.	30.1	12.3	35'3 149'8 188'3	525	CEE.	27.00	18.0	224	1673 1170 1170	523	18.7	5.3	16.2	1 50 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	168
LE OF ST	A,-Adminstons D,-Deaths	· i	D.	, FF ,	850	112	1,000	10201	7.9F	1:07	FR,	15 2	1501	ses	3708	8F@	3.27	1.00
PER MIL	A, T	Malarla,		37.0 27.0	3975	203'4 203'4 64'2	318.7		The state of	200		45's 81'8	-	1000			\$43.1	
RATIO		1	o o	-				-	- 200	-	/	224		1000				
to dispersion of		Enteric forer.	4	200	5 5 5 6	450	550	pro	200	250	2.1.64	8 204	7000	229	2 00	252	F 2 7	FEE
Specie .		all-pox.	o,	911	311	311	9 17	37	211	811	111	711	811	PF :	111	955	111	50.00
	3 8	Small	~	27.	-	70		200	200	rrd	1000	*10	-	-2254		10 was	111	P (200
	1 50	i	o.	8.891	1.40	22	677	275	55.20	95:	FFF	7.78	0, 19	31.2	573	\$ F.99	5 11	7.88
		Cholera	. A.	22.00	2 5	250	279	520	- PE-	- 27	2.56s	1.79	0,1	250	211	in their	9 11	E54
		019	D.	211	111	1 10	2 1 1	\$ 11	9:1	25:	P : 1	511	1-1-1	311	111	20.00	111	155
		Induenta	4	234	120	24.0	2.12	7,710	202	000	13.3	27.0	° 16	160 10 10	28,	2524	9 11	F12
	-	Speaking Speaking		22 22	202	20 THE ST	5440	22.0	286	1, 80 00 10	M 2 60	25 25	18	130	298	2,200	2,48	SAM
		Arerige Strength.? Continuity		16,300 11,408 12,124	5,350	1,808	14,412	33,347	15,133	12,198	4,178	8,310	1,950 1,950 1,980	8,133 9,071	Sf4 665 665	930	12,239	100
-	1			1914		19161		1915		- 100 m	TOROUGH					14 95,775 15 110,930	H	123,169
-	1	*	-			5 7	~~	-	-	-		\$ 19191 19181	\$ 1905 14 19161	19191 }	19191 11911	1905-14	19181	1905-14 1914 1916 1916
				Georp I Berma Coast and Bay Islands	1	1		and Chattae	- 10	", VII North-West Frontier, Indus Valley and North-Western Rajputana.	", VIII, South Western Rajputana, Central India and Gujarat.	1		1		7	7	7
		-Qeenbe		oast and			and Oriens	Plain a	b-Himata	ind North	Vestern 1	I	Coast	Todia	-1	1	1	I
9		9.		Barma C	II,-Barna Inland	III,—Assam	IVPengal and Orista	VCangetic Plain and	VIUpper Sub-Himalaya	North-We Valley a Rajputat	South W	IXDeccan	XWestern Coast	XI Southern India	Hills	1	.1"	1
				Group 1	, II.	III.	n, IV.	" V	" VI.	". VII,-	VIII	. IX	x .		" XII,-Hills	7	Andamans	5
		B,-Grupe,										-	-	:		India	And	India §

			1	1		_							-	
CCauses of admission.	Years.*	Jaenary.	February.	March.	April	May.	Juce.	July.	August,	September,	October,	November,	December,	Total
	1	-						-	-				-	
	1911			1	3	3		1	1		2	3		19
	1913	-,	1	,	6	3	13	22	7	-	19	24		130
CARL CO. C. C.	1914		1	,	1	4	,	1 2	6	13	7	38	1 .	67
4	1915		3	7	1	8	"	5	12	8	2	5	1	46
Total	1911-15	3		19	14	10	17	31	-					
									- 66	33	31	ő:	,	295
Des Ave S s s s	1911	,	6	8	6	3	12	13	5	8	8	10	6	86
	1913	6	3.		7	11	3	8	11	13	3	8	5	81
W	1913	3	*	1	9	5	10	14	15	10	"	10	13	103
	1915	5	4	13	18	10	12	20	9	9	7	8	6	117
1000000		-		-		-		-						
Total	1911-15	19	31	35	47	40	47	61	58	ő:	33	40	36	498
	. 1911	797	716	709	777	79.5	815	1,023	1,051	1,055	1,211	1,240	840	11,060
	1912	589	557	591	615	649	595	937	1,052	1,098	1,140	1,051	767	9,743
	1913	613	453	515	668	786	717	284	1,173	1,199	1,311	1,188	854	10,470
	1914	883	677	850	972	870	851	898	1,153	1,436	1,678	1,317	1,054	11,980
21.1211111	1010	000	-			1,083	941	1,203	1,506	1,601	1,557	1,851	1,527	14,651
Total	1911-15	3,554	2,985	3,339	3,768	4,183	3,910	5,035	5,944	6,400	6,097	6,677	5,062	57,904
	1911	60	74	71	48	66	103	115	141	91	127	87	54	1,040
	1912	54	64	85	60	119	148	150	153	138	243	227	180	1,715
escertals origin	1913	115	97	124	145	162	233	255	288 -	250	353	155	. 177	9,375
	1914	80	71	84	119	153	183.	232	212	162	173	172	158	1,795
		_			-							_		
Total	1911-15	455	450	450	505	619	876	1,012	991	914	1,023	791	689	8,835
	1911													
PROPERTY.	1912	305	380 387	455 397	387	411	359	427	733	555	535 454	517	407	5,503
	1913	241	218	350	369	341	463	637	6:5	571	531	524	455	5,133
	1914	375	317	410	360	378	445	577	681	614	615	632	713	6,139
	1915	451	315	400	438	473	549	719	989	642	611	666	603	6,804
Total	19:1-15	1,693	1,427	1,993	1,038	2,055	2,193	2,981	3,480	1,944	2,805	2,750	2,491	18,957
	*									•				
	1161	150	195	353 188	355 284	300	315	415	595	357 381	303	331	105	3,757
	1913	187	195	343	330	302	379	377	309	303	207	248	354	3,074
	1914	208	178	300	313	315	382	411	453	333	336	283	310	3,131
	1915	227	213	847	408	379	410	467	500	436	898	383	358	4,510
/ Total	1911+15	1,003	979	1,616	1,678	1,660	1,778	2,181	1,381	1,800	1,024	1,517	1,391	19,596
The state of the s	2												171	1
	37	=												
		-	-		0.00				- 1	1		-		-

						PP							-
1	100		Death rates.	1755	1,30	3.54	3.00					_	3.08
NIA.	RTA108.		Anders molessimbA	30.1	1175	17.4	163	0.11	10,1	0 00	0,6	10.8	12.0
PNEUMONIA.	.6.		Deaths.	3	270	335	387	151	230	25	174	250	342
P.	Acteats.		Admissions.	563	1,074	1,359	1,411	1,079	886	745	250	1,105	1,433
90			Death rates.	100	2754	376	3771	3.41	3,65	3.18	1.04	3.50	3.03
TUBERCIE OF THE LUNGS.	RATIOS.		Admission rates.	9-60	7.5	**	6.6	C	10.2	9.6	1.6	8.6	80.00
LUNG	78.		Desibs.	906	980	38	348	354	355	295	184	357	332
108	Acrests		Admissions.	844	704	951	ogó	853	1,015	168	813	1,000	845
Z.	-		Death rates.	1	1	18/15	10.	50,	\$0.	3	60,	90,	10.
PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIGIN.	RATIOS	1	Admission rates.	6.4	15	+.6 .	10.8	8.4	11,0	9.81	5,76	9.81	16-2
A OF UNCORIGIN.	-		Deaths.	1	1	"		+	10	*	0	0	80
PYREXI	ACTUALS.		"eodesimbA	630	478	953	1,071	595	1,040	1,725	2,375	1,901	1,785
	2		Death rates.	3	-	1.04	1.19	3.	3	55	19.	12	08.
IIA.	RATIOS.		Admission rates.	108.7	191.3	1077	172'3	1347	11378	105,3	108 3	1173	132.1
MALARIA	4.	- 1-	Deaths.	5	18	105	118	56	93	84	9	75	88
	ACTUALS.	-	Admissions,	19,005	17,541	10,029	17,076	13,709	11,060	5,743	10,470	11,080	14,651
IR.	101		Death rates.	01.		F	16.	F		.13		97.	11.
PEVE	RATION		Admission rates.	. =	1.		0	0,	9	2			1.1
ENTERIC PEVER.	Acroam.		Deaths	161	61 19		86	83	85 21	11 11	103 19	1111 30	7 19
E3	7		Death rates.	2	-	13	60.	50.	9	13	100	-	03 117
ox.	RATIOS.	-	Aumission raties.	9		-	40	P	*	P	30		60
SHALL-POX.	-		Dearbs.	1 9	. 0	15	•	*	"	2	-	-	09
87180	ACTUALS.		.enolesimb A	0	2	133	S	32	9	12	45	38	26
	108.		Death rates,	1	05.	1,68	1.0	27.	01.	#	601.	.33	-36
RA.	RATIOS.		Admission rates.	1 8	-	1000	- 3			124		1,	7
CHOLERA.	1871		Dearline,	1 2		_		22	10	71	11	34	88
0	Acreats,		Admissions,	1 4	140	377	108	3	10	180	7	62	94
	.00		Death rates.	"	90.	70.		:	10.	10.		(0)	10.
ENZA.	RATIOS.		Admission rates.	1 5			175	1.0	?	13	0.1	170	4.7
INFLUENZA,	44.6.		Desiba.	1 :		*	1	1	-	-	1	0	1
	ACTUALS.		Admissions.	1 8	157	430	149	161	8	134	8	161	618
		t-dzgesvi	e lessane agerarA	100 30	01,165	101,336	99,104	98,032	\$11.72	989'65	96,745	103,117	110,930
DSICENTES	MOSTALITY	PLYCIPAL INKASES.	Years.	-			1	-	-	1	:	-	1
Sign	TOUTALL FROM	PENCE PA	Ye	1 ,	1001	1003	6051	016	1101	10 1	1913	1014	1016

	.	Prisoners	2	5.5	18.8	2	5.01		1.91	35.7	1	0,001
Precentable in		ladian troops.	5	9 19	I.S	2	90.00	3.0	3.3	6.50	-	0.001
Praces	INCH A	European truops	e,	9.11	6,4		6.4	E	1.3	10.4	-	0,001
1	.	‡.emonals¶	2	8	63	8	51	67	00	8,		S
RELATIVE LIABLITY	PREENTAGES.	Jedoori enibel	6	150	01	35	2	11	0.	61	1	90
RELAIN	Pinc	Eoropean troops.	2	9	1	8	*	0	•	ñ	+	81
2		Prisocent,	F	1.08	3.23	ř	30.6	.8	\$0.5	80.0	1	1874
Diep ver 1,660	AVERAGE STRENGTH.	Lodian troope.	SF.	28.1	?	7	2,62	2	P	2,36	-	8.55
Dies	AVERAGE	European troops.	945	7	97	ê	3	101	F	4.10	i	2,02
-		7 545	1	ı	1	1	-	:	,	1	1	-
1		Chuses of deaths,	- 1		19	billity			. e2an			All causes
		100	1	-	Bowel complaints,.	Assemia and debility	pula	Respiratory diseases	Tobercle of the lungs	All other causes		4
			Cholera	Feverst	Bowel	Asseml	Paramonia	Respira	Toberel	All othe		
٧.	,	Death rates.	87.	59.	55.	9	C.	25.	14.	*35	91.	.81
DESILIT	RATIOT.	Admission rates.	1073	11.1	8.11	\$.11.	9,11	10.8	9,01	9,01	8.11	14.0
ANÆMIA AND DESILITY.	-	Denths.	25	. 43	55	8	2	2	2	34	22	34
ANAEM	ACTUALS.	Administrations	1,193	1,048	1,194	1,165	1,075	1,040	282	3,036	1,105	1,650
		Death rates.	F	9.	75.	90,1	-80	-78	-70	ç,	19.	.79
EA.	RATIOS.	Admission rates,	30.1	34.4	37.0	38.6	36%	38.6	6.0	0 %	37.5	407
DIARRHGEA.		Deaths.	2	75	2	103	38	2	63	2	63	88
	Actuals.		3,734	3,107	3,806	3,840	3,616	3,757	3,814	76	100	61
		Admissions,						-		3,674	3,831	4,519
1	RATICS.	Death rates.	3715	2.22	40.0	6.10	3,40	16.5	1.50	31.10	2762	272
ERY.	RA	Admission rates,	18.0	67.9	100	20.2	57.7	\$6.6	\$57.4	35.6	1.00	619
DYSENTERY	.000	Deaths.	310	240	673	416	339	183	940	100	168	302
	Acress.	Admissions.	7,515	6,318	7,795	0,050	8,650	5,503	5,131	5,379	6,139	8,804
	i.	Death rates.	7	F	1.63	**************************************	10.	R	£	\$	£8.	-82
RESPIRATORY DISEASES.	RATIOS.	Admission rates.	151	97'5	27.3	13.3	8.98	28.3	24.0	27.0	15.7	30-8
ESPIR DISE	AES.	Desths.	8	3	101	83	8	7.6	22	88	85	10
2	ACTUALS.	Admissions.	3,400	2,163	2,365	1,311	2,632	3,747	3,331	3,378	109'6	8 850
		-	1		1	1	1	i	1	1	I	-
1		Years	9001	1001	1908	1903	1910	1161	1011	1013	1514	1015

		1911.			1912.						1914-	-		1915.	
tatistics of convicts y. Ad nission rates Death rates.	Average strength.	RATIO 1,0 OF STRE	00	Average strength.	RATIO 1,000 STREN	OF	strength.	RATIO 1,0 OF STR	00	e strength.		PER 000 ENGTH.	e strength.	RATIC 1,0 OF STR	00
Death fates,	Average	Ad.	D.	Average	Ad.	D.	Average	Ad	D,	Average	Ad.	D,	Average	Ad.	D.
(Central	10,868	305'4	12'42	10,637	277'9	22,58	11,005	271'5	17'20	10,833	275'4	19'48	11,097	313-7	1000000
" District	4,471	281'6	20'54	4,653	285'4	17'84	4,756	235'7	14'72	4,876	231'5	13'54	5,153	212-1	19.02
Eastern al up to District	5,050	1,060'7	39'95	1,625	604,0	36'92	1,698	992'3	41,55	1,797	1,1786	44'52	1,917	984.9	21.38
exclud- Cent al	7,23)	851'2	19'62	5,416	926.0	16'62	5,826	997'8	18'83	5,890	919'7	,24'79	6,419	1,186.2	
al up to District	5,208	880'2	17*28	4,675	1,083'4	29'30	4,786	1,212'7	23.61	5,144	1,260'7	19'83	5,845	1,350·0 643·0	
Orissa Central		-		3,178	700'3	16'09	2,958	579°8 834°6	17'92	3,344	599'9 834'3	19'14	3,716	829'1	
Provin-{ Central	9,952	348.0	12'96	9,133	364'1	8 98	8,835	350'2	11:32	9,757	371'9	11'99	10,855	466-2	15.4
Provin- District	11,910	498'4	15'45	11,217	463'1	11'50	10,955	426'5	11'23	12,552	404'6	10'68	13,455	405.6	
{ Central	4,872	710'4	35'71	5,898	6380	53,53	6,634	712'2	20'80	7.329	747'9	35'75	6,995	1,047.3	
" District	6,120	611'6	23.69	5,201	616.0		5,396	569.7	14'08	6,149	233.2	16.01	0,880		200
West Central District	1,076	784'4	12'08	1,090	985'3	10 00	1,426	1,093'3	16.13	2,092	714'1	15*10	1,981	764-6	18.6
Provin-{ Central	2,204	534'0	36'30	1,932	274 3		2,185	163'8	9.12	2,439	200'9	8.50	2,595	277-5	20.8
District	1,074	518'6	25'14	884	645.0	31.67	1,005	524'4	19'90	996	202.0	21.08	1,079	426-3	
y S Central	3,300	402'7	15'48	3,65	507'1	1130	10000	478'2	9'54	5,615	730'8	14'33	5,888	1	13.4
(District	5,083	464.9	20'66	7,045	389'1	1	5,657	363'4	7'97	7,169			7,810	1	11.5
s {Central District	1,950	610'7	18.83	1,52;	662*3		1,770	555'9	10'17	1,781	0.000	12'35	1,865	583	1 10
of the Central re Pro- District		-		46,46	48210			479'0	14'53	50,377		1 1000			18.
G Stati Arranged accordi	stics of co	pavicts or	aly. onfinemen	t.	1	Not exceeding six months.	Above s:x months	and not exceeding one year.	Above one year and not exceeding two years.	Above two years and	years.	Above three years and not exceeding seven years.		and insuran	Total,
Ministration of D	rength			-	-	14,80	77	9,498	8,61	88	5,830 107 18'35	7,19	1 2	2.450 05 25'53	48,
(R	trength	,000 of st	7		-	20,4	44	15'52	5,7:	35	2,742	2,25	2	492	42,
Central Jails 5 D	atio per 1	,coo of st				20,4	35	18'42 9,384 141	5,7		2,651	1,84	6	14'23 422 2	40,
(S	trength	***	***			4				10	8.63	13'5		4'74	46,
District Jails SD	eaths atio per 1	,000 of st			-	14,8		8,781	8,6	12	5,561	6,68		2,143	
District Jails SDR	eaths latio per I trength leaths latio per I	,000 of st	rength			14,8 2 15	30 33 71	8,781 132 15'03	8,6	12 46 95	15'46	6,68 12 19'0	7	39 18-20 374	40,
District Jails SDR Central Jails SE	trength beaths tatio per i	1,000 of st	rength		=	14,8 2 15	30 33 71 20 18	8,781 132 15'03 8,494 143 16'84	8,6 6 5,7	12 46 95 95 96 83	2,573 26 10'10	1,85	55 15 15	39 18-20 374	40,
District Jails SD R Central Jails SE R District Jails SE R	deaths latio per I drength deaths latio per I drength deaths latio per I drength	1,000 of st	rength			14,8 2 15 21,1 4 16,0	30 33 71 20 18 79	8,781 132 15'03 8,494 143	8,6 6 5,7 14 8,5	12 46 95 95 96 83	15°46 2,573 26	1,89 1,89 13'4 6,6;	77 55 55 56 57 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58 58	39 18-20 374 1,956 42 21-47	40, 40, 48,
District Jails So R Central Jails So R District Jails So R Central Jails So	eaths atio per 1 drength leaths Ratio per 1	1,000 of st	trength			14,8 2 15' 21,1 4 19' 16,0 1 11'	30 33 71 20 18 79 75 86	8,781 132 15'03 8,494 143 16'84 9,000 116	8,6 16 5,7 14 8,3 17 6,6	12 46 95 96 83 32 85,	2,573 26 10'10 6,430 76	1,85 1,85 13'4 6,65	15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	39 18-20 374 1,956 42	16 40, 17 48, 1.
District Jails So R Central Jails So R District Jails So R Central Jails So	eaths tatio per I trength leaths Ratio per I Rrength leaths Ratio per I trength leaths Ratio per I trength leaths Ratio per I Strength leaths	1,000 of st	rength	100		14,8 2 15,1 21,1 4 19,0 16,0 122,9 10,1 16,2	30 333 371 220 1.18 779 775 886 '57 '57 318 444 '36 325 1559	8,781 132 15'03 8,494 143 16'84 9,009 116 12'88	8,6 6 5,7 14 8,5 17 6,6 13	12 46 95 95 96 83 32 85, 51 59 885	2,573 26 10'10 6,430 76 11'80 2,717 18	1,83 1,83 13'4 6,63 13'2 1,8'3	77 55 55 51 53 53 53 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55	1,956 42 21'47 451 6	10 40, 17 48, 14 44, 16 50,
District Jails Son	leaths (atio per I decaths tatio per I decaths	1,000 of st	rength			14,8 2 15' 21,1' 4 19' 16,0 22,9 16' 15' 25,23'	30 333 371 20 18 779 775 886 57 938 444 336 325 87 87	8,781 132 15 03 8,494 143 16 84 9,009 116 12 88 10,202 172 16 85 9,348 174	8,6 6 5.7 14 8,5 17 6,6 13 8,2 22 6,5	12 46 95 96 83 32 85, 51 51 59 92 76 138 85 55 92 76	80 15'46 2,573 26 10'10 6,430 76 11'80 2,717 18 6'62 6,227	12 19'6 1,8' 13'4 6,6' 120'3 1,8' 9'4 6,8' 1,98'	77 00 155 155 155 155 155 155 155 155 155	1,956 21'47 451 6 13'30 3,000 51	10 40, 17 46, 1. 44, 10

Statement No. I.—Total Primary Vaccinations and Re-vaccinations, successful cases among childre, cost of the Special Vaccination Department, etc., during the official year 1915, 1916.

Province.	Special pensar	operations d by the and Dis- y Staffs lined.	Percentage ful cases* operat	to total		y vaccin-	s vaccinated ch vaccinated Special Staff.	Total cost of the Special † Depart- ment.	8-	by the
	Primary.	Re-vaccin-	Primary.	Re-vacci- nation.	Under one year.	I to 6 years.	Average num persons vac by each vac of the Special S	Total Spec men	Average	cinated
Delhi	12,968	2,776	99.11	70.61	9,395	1,013	1,968	Rs. 2,991	Rs	. A.
Bengal	1,261,921	369,697	08.00	67:16	375,948	703,111	1,078	195.942	0	2
P1 10-1	1,217,591	70,828	99'46	6481	626,323	545,807	1,097	112,336	0	1
	273,573	38,825	95'63	62-29	60,147	165,977	961	51,442	0	3
United Provinces of Agra as		104-711	97'34	74'46	1,018,254	406,673	1,829	214,659	0	2
Oudh. Funjab	669,236	185,812	96.21	73'22	512,098	96,062	3,093‡	140,964	0	3
North-West Frontier Province	125,177	18,527	98.62	91.31	73.456	36,410	3,714§	15,352	0	1
Central Provinces and Berar	518,088	81,871	97'57	63'71	402,140	84.150	2,049	121,858	0	3
Madras	1,532,185	268,985	87.7	757	608,401	589,298	2,083	344,407**	0	3
Coorg	8,348	4,669	96.54	89-20	707	3,922	1,388	3,143	0	4
Bombay	719.960	70,965	98:91	55-83	530,771	116,296	1,701	362,735	0	8
Burma	395,597	78,462	97'14	57-65	118,028	188,256	1,546¶	220,475	0	9
Ajmere Merwara	17,393	262	97.65	92.75	12,782	3,475	1,177	3,317	0	3
Total	8,275,693	1,296,390	95'33	66.80	4,348,450	2,940,350	1,554	1,789,621	0	3

Statement No. 11 .- Vaccination operations performed by the Special and Dispensary Establishmen separately, deaths from small-pox, etc., during the official year 1015-16.

						ER OF OPER AND RE-VAC COMBINED	CCINATIONS	per per lation,	of annual births at two of po- tucces- nated.	DEATH	s PROM
	Provid	nce.		Population.	By Special Department.	By Dispensary Staff.	Total.	Ratio of successful vaccinations per 1,000 of population.	Percentage of annual estimated births at 40 per 1,000 of population successfully vaccinated.	Number.	Ratio per 1,000 of po- pulation.
Delhi				416,656	15,744		15,744	28.83	56'37	14	-0
Bengal		•••	***	43,471,942†	1,517,551	114,067	1,631,618	32-00	21.62	32,785	7
Bihar and	Orissa	***	***	34,638,684	1,287,958	461	1,288,419	35'67	45'20	15,526	
Assam				7,059,857	310,715	1,683	317,398	41'51	21'30	4,076	6
United Pro	vinces of A	gra and Ou	łh	46,820,556	1,628,183	184	1,628,367	33.81	54'37	2,304	0
Punjab		***		19,566,432	852,477	2,571	855,048	37'16	65'43	1,694	.0
North-Wes	st Frontier l	Province		2,910,899	143,704		143,704	46'70	63'09	26	.0
Central Pro	ovinces and	Berar		13,916,308	599,959		599-959	38.71	72'24	1,151	10
Madras			***	41,473,139‡	1,801,029	141	1,801,170	35'4	36.67	24,038	4
Coorg	•			174,976	12,707	310	13,017	67'45	10.10	23	11
Bombay			***	22,643,744	782,837	8,088	790,925	29.78	58.60	1,425	.0
Burma				12,115,217	469,574	4,485	474,059	33'07	24'36	. 217	*00
Ajmer-Mer	rwara			501,395	17,655	Not avail- able.	17.655	33'44	63.43	3	.0
Pal		Total		245,709,805	9,440,093	131,990	9,572,083	34'21	44'24	83,282	'3

^{*} Excluding those the results of which were not known.

(†) Excluding Dispensaries.

(I) Including varcinations performed in Cantonments.

(§) Including vaccinations performed in Cantonments and Political Agencies.

(§) Excludes average of work done by each medical subordinate,

(§) Excluding the work done by private medical practitioners.

** Excluding Madras Presidency Circle.

For the Calendar year.
 Excludes 2,011,184 the population of other municipalities except Calcutta.
 Excludes the population of the cantonments of Bangalore and Secunderabad.

STATEMENT No. III—Vaccination in the European and Indian Armies during 1915. Effective Strength.

			1			EU	ROPEA	N TROO	PS.				15	. 1	NDIAN	TROOP	S.		
					On	ncess.		WARR	ANT AND	OFFICE RE	MMIS-	Σ	CHOPEAN	Ornes	15.	INDE	OMMISSIO:	HAPIONED NED OFFI MEN.	Non-
	Armie	4.		Non	ober.	case to	tages of casful es to tal tions.	Nes	nber.	case to	tages of essful es to tal stions,	Num	ber,	cas cas	etages of casful es to etal atlons.	1000	nber.	Can-	tages of cestul es to tal
		R		Primary.	Revaccination.	Primary.	Revaccination	Primary.	Revaccination,	Primary.	Revaccination,	Pylmary.	Revaccination,	Primary.	Revacelpation.	Primary.	Revaccination.	Primary.	Remocination,
ethern			-		67			26	3,624	99	77				-	8,712	35,548	83	61
thera	-		***	1	134	100	59	315	7,362	93	84		4		25	7,635	39,293	74	60
ra India,	not in the	Indian Co	mmand	-	-	-14	eta		-	740	-	-	6		-	35	1,515	72	68
		Total	-		201	100	61	401	10,966	94	81		10	814	10	16,384	75,455	79	61

Non-Effective Strength-Families. A.—European Troops.

				OFFICER	a, MIAES			DAMICERS,	CHILDRE	K.		SOLDIER	s' wives,			Soleten	, CHITDE	zv.
	Armier.		No	mber.	GAS E	ntages of cessful es to otal ations.	Na	ember.	cas ti	stages of essful es to stal stions,	Nu	mber.	cas to	ntages of cessful es to stal ations,	1 550	mber.	cas cas	otages of essent es to otal ations,
			Primary.	Revaccination.	Primary.	Reraccination.	Primary.	Revaccination,	Frimary.	Revacelnation,	Primary.	Revaccination	Primary.	Revacementon.	Primary,	Revacelnation,	Primary.	Revaccination,
therm	-		-	6		100	5		100	100	-	21		63	163	182	92	* 6a
thera -		-	-	6		33		-	100		. 2	66	100	50	205	100	79	69
	Total	-		12		67	6	,	100	100	,	117	100	55	318	281	85	65

B .- Indian Troops.

10			Euno	PEAN OF	CERS' W	TYES.	Eunors	IAN OFFI	CERS* Cat	LDEEN.	Ixpr	AN SOLD	itis' w	YES.	Inota	N SOLDII	ma" Carr	DREN.
	Armies.		Nu	mber.	1000 CBI	stages of comful ses to otal atlons.	Nur	n ber.	case to	stages of essful es to stal stions.		mber.	6000 618	tages of casful cas to tai thoma,	100	nber.	Case to	stages of essful es to etal ations,
			Primary.	Revaccination,	Primary.	Revaccination,	Primary.	Revaccination,	Primary.	Revacelnation,	Primary.	Revaccination.	Primary.	Revaccination,	Primary.	Revaccination.	Primary.	Revaccination,
ocra		-		-		-	5	-	100		327	518	78	67	1,160	172	88	81
iera	2 12	-		1		. 100	1		-	***	3	s 88		45	1,415	204	88	41
India,	, not in the Indian Com	mand	-	3	-	-	3		100	-	-	1	***	***	-	-	-	-
	Total	-		4	1	25	9		69		329	Buo	77	59	3,675	376	88	61

State Sound was being the will be a state of the said , ----* 1 -

ANNUAL RETURNS

OF THE

EUROPEAN ARMY OF INDIA,

OF THE

INDIAN ARMY AND OF THE JAIL POPULATION

FOR THE YEAR

1915

Returns relating to the European and Indian Armies compiled in the Office of the Director, Medical Services in India, and those relating to Prisoners in the Office of the Sanitary Commissioner with the Government of India.

1117.70

BUROPEAN ARMY OF INDIA

INDIAN ARRIVAND OF THE JACE.

SAST BILL 463

Sion

all products of their relations of the case of the cas

CONTENTS. -

Grouping of diseases in the main tables for 1915			TABLE, PAGE.
ordering or distance in the main motor or 1915			A 3
IEUROPEAN TROOPS,	1015	;	
Stations by armies			1 0
Ratios of geographical groups			11 10
Ratios of stations, groups, and armies			111 11-16
Abstract of the Cantonment Sanitary Reports of the most unhealthy stat Enteric fever by months, stations, groups, and armies	ions		IV 17-19
Malaria by months, stations, groups, and armies			VI 320-22
Pyrexia of uncertain origin by months, stations, groups, and armies			VII
Cholera by months, stations, groups, and armies Dysentery by months, stations, groups, and armies			VIII } 23-24
Diarrhœa by months, stations, groups, and armies			IX } 23-24
Statistics of regiments			XI 25-39
Statistics of officers, women, and children			XII 40
Deaths of children by ages and causes			XIII 41
II 'INDIAN TROOPS -			
II.—INDIAN TROOPS I	915.		
Stations by armies			C 44
Ratios of armies			XIV 45
Ratios of geographical groups			XV 46 XVI 47-55
Abstract of the Cantonment Sanitary Reports of the most unhealthy static	ons .		XVII 56-57
Enteric fever by months, stations, groups, and armies			XVIII)
Malaria by months, stations, groups, and armies Pyrexia of uncertain origin by months, stations, groups, and armies			XIX 58-60
Cholera by months, stations, groups, and armies			XXI
Dysentery by months, stations, groups, and armies			XXII 61-64
Diarrhota by months, stations, groups, and armies			XXIII 7 XXIV 65—84
Statistics of regiments		.}	XXIV-A 85-93
America Carlos des des des de la compansión de la compans		(XXIV-B 94
III DDICONEDC	_		
III.—PRISONERS 191	Э.		
(European, Eurasian, Indian; male, female; ad	ult, juv	enile.)	
Jails by administrations			D 96
Ratios of administrations	:		XXV 97 XXVI 98
Ratios of jails, groups, and administrations			XXVII 99-107
Abstract of the Sanitary Sheets of the most unhealthy jails			XXVIII 108-109
Enteric fever by months, jails, groups, and administrations Malaria by months, jails, groups, and administrations		:	XXIX 110-113
Pyrexia of uncertain origin by months, jails, groups, and administrations			XXXI
Cholera by months, jails, groups, and administrations			(IIXXX
Dysentery by months, jails, groups, and administrations Diarrhoea by months, jails, groups, and administrations	:		XXXIII } 114-117
and an income of the state of t			
	1		
IVTROOPS AND PRISONE	RS	1015	
	100	- 7.0.	
Detail of diseases			XXXV 118123
	-	-	

Note.—In the tables for European troops, Indian troops, and for prisoners, the months mentioned are calendar months.

B 2

TABLE A.

Grouping of Diseases in the Main Tables for 1915.

HEAD OF DISEASE.	• Includes or includes also
CHOLERA	
HEAT-STROKE	Sunstroke.
ALCOHOLISM	Delirium tremens. Alcoholic Poisoning.
TUBERCLE OF THE LUNGS .	Tubercular Phthisis, and Hæmoptysis due to tubercle.
RESPIRATORY DISEASES .	Includes Hæmoptysis and Cirrhosis of the lung not due to tubercle.
AN. EMIA AND DEBILITY .	Old age (Tables for men and women). Premature birth (Tables for children).
DIARRHŒA	BAR TRUGERS SHE
HEPATIC CONGESTION AND INFLAMMATION.	Congestion of liver, Hepatitis, Perihepatitis; but excludes Cirrhosis of liver.
VENERBAL DISEASES	Syphilis, Gonorrhœa, and Soft Chancre.
PHAGEDÆNA, SLOUGH, AND GANGRENE.	Nomenclature of 1906, Nos. 17, 954 These two head- ings appear only
ABSCESS, ULCER, AND BOIL .	Nomenclature of 1906, Nos. 953 and in jail tables.
ABORTION AND AFFECTIONS CONNECTED WITH PREGNANCY	Nos. 506 and 827 to 838.
AFFECTIONS CONNECTED WITH AND CONSEQUENT ON PARTURITION.	Nos. 839 to 870 and all other diseases stated as puerperal by medical officers.
ALL OTHER DISEASES PECULIAR TO WOMEN.	Nos. 765 to 826 and 871 to 882.

MANAGEMENT . Principles of the state of the state of the

TABLE B.

STATIONS by ARMIES.

	_	+ 1		75	#		level	+
STATIONS.	Height above sea level in feet.	Authority for height.††	STATIONS.	Height above sea level in feet.*	Authority for height.†	STATIONS.	Height above sea ler in feet.	Authority for height.†
			NORTHERN ARMY-contd.			SOUTHERN ARMY-contd.		
NORTHERN ARMY-					1000	Colaba (Bombay)	20	S. G.
Ambala	902	S. G.	†Khan Spur and Ghora Dhaka	7,500	M. O.	Deolali Depôt	1,829	
Agra · · ·	554	"	†Kuldana · · ·	7,049	S.G.	Fort Dufferin (Mandalay) .	249	23
Allahabad and Fort	298		Lahore Cantonment and	705	· n	Hyderabad (Sind)	134	I.B.
Amritsar . · · ·	756	27	Fort.	7,362	S. G.	Ibansi	860	,,
Attock · · ·	1,192		†Landour Convalescent Depôt.	7,300	0.01	Jubbulpore	1,306	**
Bareilly · · ·	560	" I. B.	†Lebong	6,000	1. B.	Kamptee and		
†Barian Camp and Khairagali	7,133	S. G.	Lucknow and Military Prison	400	S. G.	Sitabaldi	930	
Barrackpore	(7,678	3. 0.	Meerut	739	"	Karachi	28	10
	256	,,	Multan	402	"	Kirkee	1,837	
Benares	1,200	M. O.				Madras and St. Thomas'	{ 15 250	**
	417	S. G.	†Murree Convalescent Depôt and Upper and Lower	7,250	M.O. I. B.	Malapuram	500	M.O
Cawnpore	6,885	,,	Topas.	(7,320	1. 0.	†Maymyo	3,508	1. B.
†Chakrata	4,546	,,,	+Naini Tal Convalescent	6,400	S. G.	Meiktila	860	,,
†Cherat	5,982	,,	Depôt.		м. о.		5 1,903	
†Dagshai	6,732	,,	Nowshera · · ·	1,100		Mhow and Indore	1,806	
†Dalhousie Convalescent Depôt.	21/3*	1 10	Peshawar	1,165	S. G.	Mount Abu Sanatorium .	3,960	**
†Darjeeling ditto .	7,168	33	+Ranikhet and Chaubuttia .	\$ 5,983 6,942	"	Nasirabad	1,461	**
Delhi · · · ·	715	**	Rawalpindi	1,707		Neemuch	1,613	**
Dinapore	171	20	Risalpur	1,000	M. D.	Pachmarhi Sanatorium	3,481	10
Dum-Dum		***	Rurki	884	S, G.	Poona	1,909	"
Ferozepore	645	S. G.	Sialkot	829	,,	Poonamallee Depôt	50	M. O
Forts William, Fulta and	17	33	+Subathu	4,124	"	Port Blair	85	1- B.
Chingrikhal.			1		-	†Quetta	5,511	S. G.
Fyzabad	336	29				Rangoon	14	**
†Gharial	6,811	29	SOUTHERN ARMY-		0.0	Satara	2,183	"
Jullandur	900	**	Aden	26	S. G.	Secunderabad	1,732	"
†Jutogh · · ·	6,371		Ahmednagar	2,125	"	Shwebo · · · ·	600	м. О.
	57,936	1. B.	Bangalore	3,021	"	Thayetmyo	145	90
†Kalabagh and Baragali .	7,800	м. О.	Belgaum	2,473	"	†Wellington Convalescent	6,160	19
†Kasauli Convalescent Depôt	6,320	S. G.	Calicut · · · ·	27	м. D.	Depôt.	GW	-

These heights are usually those of the survey-marks or of the mercury-surface in barometer-cisterns of meteorological observatories.
 † Official Hill Stations and Hill Sanatoria and Convalescent Depots.
 † S. G. = Surveyor-General of India; I. B. = Intelligence Branch of the Division of the Chief of the Staff; M. D. = Meteorological Department M. O. = Medical Officers in charge of Station Hospitals in their Sanitary Reports.

TABLE I.

RATIOS OF ARMIES.

The ratios of admissions and deaths to strength are taken from Table III.

	40							
						Northern Army,	Southern Army.	India.
TRENGTH						23,774	20,192	44,891
THE RESERVE OF THE PARTY OF THE						The second		- Interior
CONSTANTLY SICK PER 1,000 O		CE STRENG	710			39.6	40*2	371
CONSTANTLY SICK PAR 1,000 OF	r 100 ATCAN	OS STRENO						
ADMISSION RATE OF THE YEAR	-					61	9'3	7.4
Influenza · · ·	100	1000			-	-7		'4
Cholera	and the same	-	111		-	.0	12	"
Small-pox	-			100		41	3.2	3'7
Malaria					200	166*2	145'1	154.5
Sandfly Fever						69.7	9'0	41'1
Pyrexia of uncertain origin .						117	7'5	9'8
Tubercle of the Lungs						-6	1'7	1.1
Pnesmonia						2'4	2'9	2'7
Respiratory Diseases					-	23'3	19'7	31,3
Dysentery						4'4	71	5.6
Diarrhoza						28.8	24'4	26'5
Hepatic Abscess						*6	4	'5
, Congestion and Infla	ammation .			- t		13'5	34.1	8'5
Venereal Diseases						25.2	34.	
					100	F 9 19		
			A	LL CAUSES		921°o	831 8	813.1
					-			
DEATH RATE OF THE YEAR-							All andy She	Barrell arriva
Cholera	4.		1.	1 :		*24		*18
Small-pox							44, 11	
Enteric Fever						*21		*35
Malaria						*34	.40	*36
Pyrexia of uncertain origin								4
Heat-stroke						-97	*50	'74
Circulatory Diseases .						*42	- 45	'42
Tubercle of the Lungs .						*.8	*15	*38
Pneumonia						*50	110	*07
Respiratory Diseases					-	*04	*25	*20
Dysentery · ·						*34		
Diarrhosa				The same		- '21	*20	*20
Hepatic Abscess				19.0	2/1		La Capitalia	
							The second secon	CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE

TABLE II.

RATIOS of GEOGRAPHICAL GROUPS.

The ratios of admissions and deaths to strength are taken from Table III.

		The	ratios of	admission			-							
				14	Ra	TIOS PER	1,000 01	THE A	VERAGE S	STRENGT	н.			
		Burma Coast and Bay Islands.	II Burma Inland.	IV Bengal and Orissa.	V Gange- tic Plain and Chutia Nagpur.	VI Upper Sub- Hima- laya.	VII N.W Frontier, Indus Valley, and NW. Rajpo- tana,	VIII SE. Rajpu- tana, Central India and Gujarat.	IX Deccan.	X Western Coast.	South- ern India.	XIIa Hill Stations.	XII& Hill Conva- lescent Depôts and Sanato- ria,	Ind
I.—STR	RENGTH	998	579	1,220	3,374	9,410	5.752	3,500	6,798	1,170	1,254	6,593	2,427	44.
	ONSTANTLY SICK PER 1,000 OF THE AVERAGE STRENGTH	36.7	45'1	49'7	34'0	39.4	39'2	39-5	39'4	45'6	39'9	27'9	52.8	
III.—A	ADMISSION RATE OF THE YEAR-	-					- 19	16			1	10000		8
	Influenza	***	***	5'7	11'6	8'5	2.8	4'3	17'9	10,3	7.2	4'5	1.6	ı
	Cholera					"1	1.6					.0		
	Small-pox			***			'2		1.3		.8			8
	Enteric Fever	***		3.2	11'0	3'0	1'7	10.0	1.6	1.7	4'0	3'0	4'9	ı
	Malaria	332'7	46.6	159.8	16.0	172'5	224'9	84.6	117.7	117'9	32. 7	247'5	145'4	1
	Sandfly Fever		***	***	33.5	59'3	163.0	26'9	7.2		***	3.8	*8	
	Pyrexia of uncertain origin .	1 300	2,3	13.1	6.3	7'6	21-7	10'0	3,4	3'4	73	8'0	4.5	
	Rheumatic Fever	810	13,8	8.3	7.1	8.0	4'3	11'1	13.0	21.4	38.3	17'3	16'9	
	Tubercle of the Lungs	1'0		-8	1,5	15	.2	3.6	1.0	3'4	3.3	- 8	3.1	
	Pneumonia	1,0	1.7	-8	1'8	1,0	4.7	5.0	2'4	.8	2'4	2.7	3.7	1
	Respiratory Diseases	20'0	17'3	50.8	18.4	27'1	22.6	18.6	17.1	32'5	30'3	147	18'5	-
	Diarrhea	21'0	5'2	8.3	2.0	3'7	3.1	2,1	10.0	11.1	8.0	1.5	17'3	
	Abscess		24.3	46.7	41'2	250	23.8	26.9	29'7	13'7	27'9	2117	.8	1
	Hepatic Congestion and	- 00 1								1000				ı
	Inflammation .	200.00	12.1	18.0	38.2	7.0	0.3	7'7	. 3'1	3'4	4'0	4'5	3.7	
	Venereal Diseases	22.1	34'5	43.6	16.0	38.1	33.0	44'3	257	73'5	36'7	33.0	11.1	-
	ALL CAUSES .	950'9	1,024*2	1,156.6	756'7	824'0	890'0	7137	852'3	833'3	901.9	798-3	750'7	8
											3	43	199	
1yD	BATH RATE OF THE YEAR-		5							1			199	
	Cholera					71	*70	***				'45		
	Small-pox			***	***	***								1
	Enteric Fever	***	***		*59	'11	*35	1'71	-44				'41	
	Malaria	1'00	***	1'64	.30	'21	'35	'29	'59		***	*15		
	Pyrexia of uncertain origin .		***	***			***	***	***					
	Heat-stroke		***	-82	1.79	'74	1'74	-86	'44	*85	.80			1
	Circulatory Diseases		1.73	*82	***	*32	*87	*29	.50	1'71		'45		- 1
	Tubercle of the Lungs	1	***		***			. "29	15	*85		15	. '41	
		***	***		*59	.33	1'22	*57	***			'15	*82	3
	Passintes Name	1		***	***	.11		***			.80	15	***	1
	Respiratory Diseases	1	***	100000	1								17.50	
	Respiratory Diseases	·	***	* *82	*89	*21	***		'29		*80	'15	*82	
	Respiratory Diseases Dysentery Diarrhoea			* *82										-
	Respiratory Diseases	·	***	* *82	1		1	1		- "		1		-
	Respiratory Diseases Dysentery Diarrhoea			* *82										-

TABLE III.

100	gth.			1.	ADMI	BSION	RATE									2.	DEA	TH R	ATE.		-	-		
TATIONS AND ROUPS.	Average annual strength.	InBuenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	36	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea,	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation,	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK.	Syphilis,	Soft Chancre,	Concessions
Blair	338 {					896'4		171'6	8.8	5'9	38.5	3.0	30	11.8		5'9			38.2	1,538'5}	51'24	8.8	11.8	
000	(-				5'92		3.0	7.6					24'2		28.8		3.0	63.6	5.92)		1977	18*2	25
	660 }							***												1.25	29.29			
I						3327		60.1	8.0	2.0	27'1	10	1.0	20.0		21.0		2'0	55'1	950'9)	36721	16.0	16.0	10
BAY NDS.	998* {					1.00														200	50,72			
-					18				11/9			1				i		1						
tmyo .	14 }					142.0				***	***	-	***		142'9	71.4				1, 857	21'29			14
a .	201 {							100	2.0	***				24'9	2,0	39.8		2.0	29'9	636.0 5		5'0	10.0	,
						61.3					5'10			20"2			***	306		5'10 5	34.17			
Oufferin	196								25'5				5'1			15.3				}	50'97			-
	168					77"4		6.0			17'9			17 9		11.0			59'5	1,111'9}	52.08	11.0		4
													-											
II	579• }					46.6		5'2	13'8		8.6		1.7	17'3	5'2	24'2		12'1	34'5	1,024 2	45'08†	8.6	3'4	2
A LACARDA	312 (***	**	-	***		***		***		1'73			***	***	***				1'73)	45 001	***		
William,	722 {	6-9				121'9			10,0	2'7	18.0		1'4	48.3	4'2	19.4		619		1,0945}	48'20	5'5	16-6	
grikhal.	201 {	419			9.0	427.8		19'9	9.9	1,38	4917			119'4	0.0	69.7		697	14'9	1,9507	68.81			1
	(3'4			3'4	4198		40'4			4.08				16.8	97.6		16'8	43'8	(4.85)	00 01		3'4	3
kpore .	297 {					3:97			3'4			_			3'97	Title !				6.73	40,40			2
GAL ORISSA.	1,220*	5'7	***	***	2'5	159'8		13'1	100	1'6	21'3	133	.8		8.3	46.7		18-9	42-6	9'01	49.70	5'7	10.7	ľ
									***	0.		***	***	***						300				
В						*6.												e.6.0	****	663				
ore .	458	6.2			31.8	20.4	144'1		15'3	4'37	17'5		3.18	17.5		43'7	***	56.8	30 0	1,316'6	50.46	***	12.3	1
es .	144		***			34'7					13.0			20'8	347	20.8	***	104.3	13'9	756'9	23.40		6.9	
ibad and	696	37 5	***		2.9	23.0	174	2'9	4'3	5.0	33.1	1'4	1'4	34'6	100			11'5	18.7	100	33 66	174	1'4	,
	(18.3			9"1	4.6		9.1		4.6	22.8	2.88	95'9	4.0		13'7	7.20]	-			-
ad .	219 {			***									4'57				4'37			9'13)	45'30			1
ow .	1,370 {	7.6			15'9		3.0	4'5	1174	18.5		2'3	2.3	12.1	3.0	48.5	1.2	59'8	11'4	8:33	33'54	***	1.2	
pore .	537 {					20'5	76.3			3.7	9.3		***	11,5	3'7	27*9	107	37	13,0	540.0}	19'28	1'9	***	
						1,80				1.86					1.86		***		***	1117)		***		
P V.— NGETIC IN AND	3,374	11.0		***	11.0	16.91	33'2	6.5	7.7	9.2	16.0	1'2	1.8	18'4	2.0	41'2	3	38.2	160	756.7	34'02	-6	3.3	
TIA SPUR.	1				.59	'30		***	***	1.79		-	.59		-89		'55		***	8.89		***		

[.] Derived from the aggregates.

TABLE III-continued.

	d			100	1. A	DMISSI	on R	ATE.						2. I	DEATH	RATI	R. Carl						
STATIONS AND GROUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox,	Enteric Fever.	Maleria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke,	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercie of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation,	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK,	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.
A Bareiffy	706	29.7			1'4	14'2		1'4	2519		12.7			29.7	1'4	60'9		2.8	41'1	1,039'5	39.22	4'2	979
Ruski .	96 {					183.8				10'2		1 1		40*8	: :			10'2	90'4	200.0	} 24"18		
Meesut	1,190 {	32.8			-	100'0		3'4	4'2'	- 8	5'9	-8		8:4	2'5	50*4	2*5		454	821'8 7'56	}+2-24	4'2	1'7
Delhi	829 {				1.3	319'7 1'21 45'8	57-6	11'7	6.0	. 3'2	2'4 8'5	2'4	4.8	20.1		14'5		8.6	25'3	2'41 643'9	3	4.8	6'0
B Juliander	938{					17'9	22	6.7		6.7	9.0		1.07	22'4	1'07	67'3	1.07	2.2	6.4	5'33 948'4	34.10	- 1	3,5
Ferosepore .	832				3.6	73 3	770'1	5'6	9.6	4'48		2.4	2'4	14'4	7'%	48	1.8	56	60	799'3 3'61	} 1022	-	
Ameritane	227 {				4'4	3128			13'2	4'4	8.8		4.40	70.8		30-8		30'8	8-8	1,000'4	} 417.85	Æ.	-
Lahore Canton- ment and Fort.	985 {	4'1	1.01		5.	33.8	95'4	24'4	 3.1	3.05	18.3		1'4	59°9	16.3	34'5			45'6	941°1 8°12 1,237°9	},0.01	5'7	18-3
Rawalpindi .	2,351 }	6.4		***	2.2		91'0	8.2	4'2	1'42	3,0		3,0	25'9		5'5		72	35.3	673°8	38-54	47	3'0
Campbellpore .	24{	41'7			***	1667										-		4177		200.0	}14.26	'42	-
Atlock	82 {			-	24'4		158 5	24'4		36.6				12'2		48.8			61.0	1,073'2	}24.63	-	
GROUP VI UPPER SUB- BIMALAVA.	9,410*{	8.2	1)		3,0	172'5		7.6	8.0	5'3	8.0	*5	1:9	27'1	3'7	25'0	·6	70	58.1	824°0 4°78	38-41	3,0	000
A Nowshera	1,145 {		6:1	.0	.9	252'4	286'5	4'4	4.4	5'2	9.6			38'4	6.1	21'8		7'9	45'4	1,0560	}+3.48	4'4	3'5
Risalpur	621	141	2'62	***		170'7			1.0	8'1			4-8	14'5		12'9		22.2	11'3	5'24 591'6 8'0'	1	3.5	
Peshawar	1,803 {		111		2'8	369'9	***			2'92	4.11	***	2,53	***	1.1	29'9	*5	15.0	31,1	1,168%	}50'62	3'9	44
Multan C Hyderabad .	751 {	32'3			5'3	73'1	5.1	2.1		1'33	1'33		1'33		2.7	4'3			49'5	3'99 3'24'7	}45'17]	4'3	107
Karachi	967.	1'0				90.0	***	4'1	1174	10	2,12	3,1	2'15	14'5		7'2		3.1	51.7	12'90 511'9 4'14	} 24'93	7"2	3'1
	5,752*{	2'8	1.6	'2		224'9		_	4'5	5.5	8*5	*5		22.6	3,1	23.8		9.3	33.0	8go*e	1 1 20 17	4.0	
PUTANA.	('70	***	:35	'35	***			1.74	-87		1,33	***			-11		***	8'70			

[•] Derived fapon the aggregates.

199	eth.		-	1	. AD	MISSIC	N RAT	-	,				2.	DEATE	RAT	E.	111						-	_
TIONS IND OUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Paterio Boune	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Paeumonia,	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Hepatic Abscess.	and Inflammation,	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK,	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.	Gonorrhona.
n	1	M.	1		1	-																		
	195	20	5			19	4'9 15'	4 5	1 5					15'4		5.1			143'6	815'4	35'74		1	43
						- 5	13	-			-						***			5'13				***
d .	132 {			300			2')	18			1	45'4			100	15'2	7.6	7.6	121'2	848°5 7°58	}60°83		15'2 1	106
		-	-	-				-		-	-	-		***		-	1 30			, , ,				
	-1	14	5			0.6 9	1"1 41	0 6	6 221	4 7'5	10'0	13	6.6	22'4		7'9		12'4	47'5	696.2	} 37'19	5'3	10.0	31
	757	-				-		4	. 113			1,35			***					5'28				**
	1				. 13		8.3 17	5 10	1 3	7 10	10'1	18	1.8	147	.0	35'8	.0	4.6	40'4	65919	7	148	4.6	34
	1,088		1		1	60			1	2.75	9									14'70	3974			
	413			-	- F						7 20'		2"1	31.1	10.0	34'6		2.3	23'3	739'5	1	3'0	9'0	11
ad Indose	1,325					75	4'5 30			-			1.21					75		6'02	30'51			
VIII		-		1	1	1	1	1	-	1.	1	-					1							
H-EAST UTANA, RAL	3,500	11	43	-	-	10.0	84.6 2	6rg 1	0.0 11	5	71 14	9 2	6 27	18.6	5'1	2619	1	7.7	41'3	713'7	7 79753	2.0	77	3
RAT.		1	-	-	-	1.21	'29		-	29	56	29 12	9 '5	7	***		-2	2)		8-57	J			1
A						-													4410	1,163'3			*0	2
pore.	1,036		4*2			1.89	51'1 1	6.1		4'2 2	87 33		9	7.6	1'9	46.4				473	345.30	***	***	-
e and	498	3				2'01	3.0	50'2	4'0 1		01	0 2		19'0	2'0		***	6.0	14.1	441.8	30.93	5.0	***	1
В		-				*5	27.7			7'0	1.5 8	-4	9 3"	7 24'9	27.2	36 6		4'3	30'5	824'1	1	10'3	2';	3 1
erabad	. 2,13	1								11/2 16	2	47 '4		7.1	*94			7.1	28*4	4'22	35.21		***	1
ım .	. 14	1					28'4												***	***	15.60		***	Ш
	. 3	1					100.0		300				1		***	133'3	3			366-7	}10'67		***	10
	. 1,79	36	9.2			2'3	269'4		6'9	200		13 1	5 3		6	433	7	8 2'3	22,3	3'85	}48-68	3.1	5'-	1
	. 83	5	-		2'4	3.6	194'0	2'4	3-6	14'5	3	1.0 1	*2 3	6 13'2	1	41	8	1'2	1	4.82	35170		T	П
	Sı	0					20619	633				9'4		18.5	17	2 12';	3	-	291		31121	175	9.8	8 1
dnagar	01	3											-	.9.			-				D.		-	-
P 1X	- 6,798	.5	17'9		.3	1.6	117.7	7.2	2'4	1.'9	56 2	0'0 1	.0 .3.	4 17	1 10'6	5 29"	7	1 3	25"	7 852'3	30.4	4	4	4 2

TABLE III—continued.

-	th.			-	1. A	DMISSI	ON I	RATE.						2.	DEAT	R R	TE.				77		1
STATIONS AND GROUPS.	Average annual strength.	InBuenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	y Disea	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK.	Syphiffs.	Soft Changre.
Colaba	977 { 50 { 143 {	4°1 55°9			20	141°2		41	14'3 80'0 49'0	20.00			100	19'4	9°2	100'0		7.0		624'4 4'69 1,000'0 20'00 2,202'8	}46°53 }25°40 }45°31	12'3	12'3
GROUP X WESTERN COAST.	1,170* {	10.3			1'7	117'9		3'4	21'4		197	3'4		32.5		13'7		3'4	73'5	833'3	}45'61	10'3	15'4
A Bargalore	842 {	10'7	: : :		3.6	40*4	***		49"9	1	24'9		2'4	1.10	1,10	1	1.10		47'5	5'94	}41"13	7.1	7"
Madras and St. Thomas' Mount.	412 {	72		2'4	4.8	32'7		9'7	38'3	2'43		3'2	2'4	34'0		27'9	2.43	4'0	36-7	1,055'8	37'11	4.8	4.8
SOUTHERN INDIA.			-					-		*80	-			*80	180		1.20			8-77	39'89		-
Ranikhet and Chaubuttia.	321 {		10.1			15.6	3'1		28.0		3.1			3'1		8019		51	31,1	900'3	144'36	3'1	3'4
Chakrata	312	9.6	5.08		6.4	32'0		916			22'4	3'2	***	12.8	6'4	35'3	-	38.5	6.4	8:46 548:1	}28.23		
Dagshai Subathu	371 {				8.1	35.0	9.6	10'8	5'4	2.7	26.9		2.7	26'9		13'5	-	27	S*1	404'3 8'09 2,259'6	}22.61		
Jutogh	279	14'3			3.6	7'2	17'9	3'6	376		3.28 3.28		3.6	7'2						308'2	}14.80 }:03.80	-	
Kalabogh and Baragali,	101	9.6			19'2	557'7	9.6			9'6	-			38.2	9.6	9'4		9'6	19.5	903'8 9'61 540'9	26.83	96	
Kuldana	318 {				71	321.8			-		3'5		3'5	14'2				7'1	39.0	599'3	}22°80		106
Camp Barian and Khairagali.	174 {					183.9	57	5'7			57			5'7	17.2	17'2		28.8	80'5	626'4	}101'90	22.9	11'5
Khan Spur and Ghora Dhaka	124 {									-			-	16-1				8.1	48'4	8:06	}26'93	8 1	-

-	th.				1. A	DMISSI	ON R	ATE.			3 1/6			2.	DRAT	H RA	TR.				h T			
TIONS ND DUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.		Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lengs.	Pneumonia,	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES,	CONSTANTLY SICK.	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.	Gonorrhosa.
		-				489°2	26'0		4'3			***				30.3	13'0	4'3	8.6	Soory	} 16:10	4'3		4'3
	231 {	717			2.8	352'5	2'4	6.6	29'3		12.2	1.0	4'9	18.8		13.6		1.0	24'1	972'8	}45.13	3.8	6.3	13'
	2,868 {				-			1	15'6		52'5	*35	.32		1'9	25-3			35'0	2.79	,	7-8	3.9	23
	514{		-	-	3.9	99'2		200			1.94			1'94	1'94	+				7.78	2 43 07	-	***	
HILL tons.	6,593*{	4'5	·9		3'0	217-5	3-8		17'3	·3	18'2	·8	2'7	14'7	1.2	31.7		4'5	2279	798:3	3 22 88 T	4'5	4"1	14
																							-	
ing	158 {				12'7	69.6		1910	25".		57 0	6.33	6.3	44'3	3\$-0	38.0	6.3	12'7	31.6	763°8	1 20.00	6-2	6.3	19
ral .	81 {	12'3			12'3	24'7		12'3		1 1	247		12.3		12.3	37'0			12'3	12'3		-	-	12
ar	63					142'9		15.9			15'9			15'9		47.6		15'9	63.2	714	3 }41'27		-	61
	272	-			3'7	448-5	-	3'7	11.0		22'1	3'7	3'7		33'1	33.1	3'68	7.3	92"1	886	\$88.01	14"		1
usie	427	-			100	117	2'3	7.0	7.0		2374		4'7	21'1	9'4	16.4		23	5.3	969	\$ 58.66		-	1
e and Lower Upper pas.	481		100	15		147	6		2'1		2"		4'2	4'2	416	1	-	4'2	6.2	270	37:23			1
t Abu .	92		100	13		54"	3	21.7	21.7		21"	7		21'7		21:7		10-9		1,119	34-67			
narhi .	143	{ ···	1		100		8 7.			7'	284	14'0		2810		2810				13'5	\$ 27.69		-	
ngton	710	{				1	9		39'4			2 1%	2-8	28'3	21"	70	1.		979	S77	> 55'58	2:	8 15	4
r X116		-	-	-	1	1	-		1		1	7 2"		18.		3 16		8 3	11-	750	(7)	2'	9 .	8
l Convale nt Depôts Sanatoria,	7,427	{ '.	6			9 145	4	1000	16'9	1	4 22	7 2		18.	17			1			59 } 52.81	1		

TABLE III-concluded.

	th.					1.	AD	MISSI	on R	ATE.			2.	DRAT	n Ra	TE.							
STATIONS, GROUPS AND ARMIES.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK.	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre,
Troops marching	925 {					58:4	76	10.3	1,1	20'5	4'3	2.3	3 '2	4'3	4'3			1.1	9'7	282°2 432	1'20		3'2
N. W. F. Opera-	1,143	-				42'9	80.2		1.7	13'2	7.0			11'4	18'4	10'5	-9		11'4	308.1	}10.11	5'2	•9
Deolali Depôt .	293 {			3'4	13'6	208.2	***	10'2	23'9		6-8	3'4	17'1	27.3	17-1	44'4		3'4	34"1	1,126:3	259'18	6.8	6.8
Poonamalles Depôt .	"{											-							90.0	272'7	}529,09	90.0	
Extra India.	587 {					54'5 3'41	102'2			5'1	5'1	3333	-	11'9	6.8	54'5		5'1	17'0	838.2	29.80		5'1
INDIA .	44,891* {	7'4	°4		3'7	154'5		9.8	11'5	4.6	14'7	1000	2'7	21'3	5.6	26'5	*5	3	29'1	823'1 5'95	\$ 39.08+	4'0	
NOSTHERN ARMY	23,774* {	6.1	'7	- 13	4'1		100	11.7	7'3	5'0	12'3		2'4	23.3	4'4	28 8	·6	13'5	25 5	921'0	} 39.63	3'2	4.4
SOUTHERN ARMY	20,192* {	9'3		-2	3'5		3	75	16'9		18'0	1'7	2'9	19'7	7'1	24'4	120	150	34"1	\$31°8 5'40	} 40°16	5'2	6-2
Constantly sick for India.	44,891	35	*02	'01	-61	5'61	1.01	*80	1"12	:28	1.03	'34	-24	-79	*39	-83	.03	-38	4'29	39.08	39'0\$	'44	-6:
Peshawar! .	1,803	***	'07		'40	13'03	6'31	-52	.53	*24	.58	***	.21	'94	*22	'97	.03	'63	3'75	50.62	50.62	'21	*35
Rawalpladi‡ .	2,351	18		***	-86	6.60	2*94	1'20	'76	*04	*25	'06	.16	10.	*22	'28	*04	*42	6.61	38'55	38.22	-81	'22
Quetta;	2,868	.56			.50	8.55	'06	.89	3.89	***	1.01	'20	*55	.83	*06	.38	.10	109	2-80	42'12	42'12	'33	.30
Secunderabad‡ .	2,132	***		.08	'04	1,30	***	***	.83	.10	.70	*25	'25	-87	1'90	-69	***	14	4'20	35'51	35'51	'95	.54
			- 1		1										-								

Derived from the aggregates.

[†] Worked on the aggregates.

Constantly sick rate per 1,000 by diseases at the largest stations.

TABLE IV.

STRACT of the CANTONMENT SANITARY REPORTS of the most UNHEALTHY STATIONS AND SANITARY DEFECTS.

(The ratios of sickness and mortality will be found in Table III.)

NORTHERN ARMY.

Peshawar .- Malaria and sandfly fever were the prevalent diseases from April to October and September to November, respec-

The drainage in some cases is defective owing to kutcha drains being used instead of pucca ones.

The regimental bazaars are overcrowded. Efforts are being made to remedy this as funds and opportunities allow.

The sewage system is partly removal and partly incineration. Nightsoil is trenched when it can not be disposed of by incineration. e Assistant Director, Medical Services, of the Division suggests that, in order to remedy the insanitary condition of the cantonment, the owing measures should be adopted:—

- (i) In order to suppress the respiratory diseases which are due to dust, a more thorough and up-to-date system of watering cantonnt roads is required. The present system, that of water carts drawn by bullocks or by hand, is inefficient.
- (ii) Incineration should be adopted throughout the cantonment.
- (iii) Kutcha drains should be made pucca.
- (iv) Regimental bazaars should be abolished at once. They are a grave source of danger to the health of the troops.

Nowshera. A proper drinking water supply by pipes is an urgent need throughout the cantonment. The present site of the ale Corps lines is a bad one from the sanitary point of view.

The sullage water from the suddar bazaar continues to be trenched with the approval of the Sanitary Officer. A drain down the lish to the river would be washed away during floods.

A pipe water supply should be introduced.

Sialkot.—Malaria was prevalent amongst British troops from April to November, which is undoubtedly due to the large mber of mosquitos breeding in open wells when not in daily use. The Officer Commanding suggests that landlords be comled to provide covers for wells in compounds when bungalows are unoccupied. This would necessitate the temporary removal of the rains wheel. The catch pits for watering gardens are also fertile sources of mosquito breeding. These should also be emptied and rered in when bungalows are unoccupied or abolished entirely. The collection of water in pools during the rains is another source of squitos, but these are treated with kerosine oil by the mosquito brigade. No excavation of any kind should be allowed in cantonment thout the sanction of the cantonment authority.

The water supply which is entirely from wells is not satisfactory in quality and sometime deficient in quantity. As long as the supply rom wells, contamination is bound to occur.

The General Officer Commanding of the Brigade remarks that the requirements of the Sialkot Cantonment are :-

- (i) A pipe water supply.
- (ii) Filling up of tanks.
- (iii) Covering of wells in order to prevent mosquito breeding.

Lahore .- Sandfly fever was prevalent between April and July, causing 94 admissions, but no deaths.

One case of cholera (fatal) occurred of which the source of infection could not be ascertained.

The pucca drains in the British Infantry and Royal Artillery lines are satisfactory. The drainage in the suddar bazaar is not satisfactory. There are no jheels or marshes except during the heaviest rains, when owing to the impermeable nature of the soil, a large rt of the cantonment is under water. There are numerous brick fields and other excavations in the vicinity of cantonment, which sume the character of jheels and marshes during the rainy season.

The blocks at the taps on which the bhisties place their mussacks should be made pucca. At present where there are blocks made of ricks, these are separated from each other so that water can accumulate and mosquitos breed. There might be better arrangements for lling the water carts at the wells.

The General Officer Commanding the Division remarks "that a scheme for the supply of electricity to the hospitals and hot weather urisons is being carried out. It is a pity that the electrification of the whole cantonment cannot be considered as the remunerative resures of street, and bungalow lighting would decrease cost. With the introduction of electricity the question of water supply must be considered. The present piped water supply is from wells on the grass farm to the east of cantonments. The pumping plant about a mile from the nearest barracks and the supply to cantonment could always be cut. In addition to this, the water is most satisfactory. It contains a large quantity of saltpetre and is bad for gooking. Good tea and coffee are impossible. A few tube wells orked by electricity would give a cheaper and better supply of water.

The Commissioner of Lahore is being addressed regarding the brick field nuisance.

With an improved income from the irrigation scheme in process of construction, the drainage generally must be taken up and improved invally on a pre-arranged system.

Multan.—The prevailing diseases were, malaria, tonsillitis and pyrexia of uncertain origin. Practically all malaria cases were the infections contracted in the station and the majority were men of the I-5 Devonshire Regiment and 77th Battery, Royal Garrison rtillery. The prevalence of the disease was, however, less than in the previous year. Strict anti-malarial measures in addition to an anomally low rain fall were responsible for the mildness of the epidemic.

Tonsillitis is attributable to the great variation that exist between the day and night temperature in the early months of the year.

85 of the 107 cases of pyrexia of uncertain origin occurred during the period from June to October. This coincides with the period prevalence of malaria. The cases chiefly occurred amongst Territorials.

The drainage system in the suddar bazaar is not satisfactory, and an improved drainage scheme is under consideration. The cantonment ommittee reports that the renewal of carts has been carried out during this year. Want of drainage is still the chief difficulty. A roper drainage scheme would cost Rs. 90,000, and under present circumstances cannot be thought of. The gradual improvement of the resent drainage system in the suddar bazaar is, however, to be taken up and it is hoped that considerable amelioration may thus be flected.

The need of a Government dairy has been represented repeatedly during the last 3 years.

Incineration difficulties are being inquired into.

Meerut .- The drainage is not satisfactory owing to the flat nature of the land. The diggies are satisfactory, mosquito larva do not reed in them.

TABLE IV .- continued.

ABSTRACT of the CANTONMENT SANITARY REPORTS of the most UNHEALTHY STATIONS AND SANITARY DEFEC

(The ratios of sickness and mortality will be found in Table III.)

NORTHERN ARMY-contd.

The Cantonment Committee suggests that the following improvements should be made in order to improve the sanitary condition the cantonment.-

(i) The surface of the maidan to the north of the British Infantry lines and to the south of the Ammunition Column lines require improved drainage. New diggie tanks are suggested one in each of these areas.

(ii) Modern kitchen ranges and modern accommodation for hot baths in the cold weather for British troops are needed.

The provision of a central military dairy for the whole cantonment in place of the present regimental dairies is an urgent necess. These dairies constitute a grave nuisance in the lines with their attendant evils:—quantities of animal excreta and the consequence of files.

Provision of a steam disinfector for the British Hospital is required.

The extension of the incineration system for excreta to the British Infantry and Royal Artillery lines is recommended to ensu uniform system for the station; it would also effect an economy.

Proper washing up facilities for dinner utensils are needed for British troops.

Calcutta.—Dengue and malaria were the most prevalent diseases amongst British troops. Dengue from June to October epidemic form, malaria [throughout the year with an increase in the number of admissions in March and November. Many case dengue occurred in the Infantry Battalion.

The existing drainage system is satisfactory.

The mode of disposal of the sewage is by carts to the municipal depot, except in the case of two large native latrines in Fort Will which are dealt with by a septic tank which is satisfactory.

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, of the Division remarks :-

The ventilation in the casement barrack is poor and could be much improved by the installation of exhaust fans,

The provision of a water sewage system would be a great improvement in the sanitation of the Fort.

The silted up portion of the moat should be dealt with. Some scheme to prevent this constant silting up seems desirable; the experience of continually taking away the silt is very considerable and sufficient money is never available for this purpose.

Thinning of the trees near the Infantry Barracks is desirable.

The drainage of the Ballyganj lines is very poor.

SOUTHERN ARMY.

Jubbulpore.—Influenza, sore-throat, tonsillitis and heat-stroke were the prevalent diseases in Jubbulpore. The cause of t prevalence was undoubtedly due to the arrival of fresh troops from home. The casual organisms of these diseases are present in naso-pharynx and throat and the incidence of the diseases usually depends on exciting causes such as a sudden fall of temperature, of fatigue, etc. The causes of the unusual prevalence of heat-stroke were the exceptionally high atmospheric temperature and inexperi of fresh troops.

In spite of the heavy rainfall during the year only 54 cases of malaria were admitted to hospital amongst British troops and disease cannot be said to have been prevalent. It is, however, mentioned here as malaria is usually the most prevalent disease in station. The highly satisfactory reduction in the incidence of malaria was chiefly due to the use of mosquito nets by all British troin the garrison. Some credit must also be given to anti-malarial measures which were vigorously carried out, so long as the money glasted, and also to the prophylactic issue of quinine.

The drainage of the suddar bazaar is not satisfactory, but the matter is under consideration. A large amount of money allotted this purpose has been expended. The septic tank which deals with the suddar bazaar sewage has lately been cleared out and impresents are in hand. During the rains there are innumerable small jheels, and much marshy land throughout the cantonment.

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, recommends that there should be universal incineration throughout the cantonment. Medical Services are required. The drainage as it at present exists is not at all good, specially as regards large nullahs. The grass far and dairy farm lands have really no drainage at all. In the rains these places are full of pools of stagnant water in which mosquibreed.

The present sites of the meat, fish and vegetable markets in the saddar bazaar are not satisfactory, and are not suitable.

The General Officer Commanding the Division agrees with the suggestions made by the Assistant Director, Medical Services, and opinion that anti-malaria measures are urgently required. The introduction of incineration for the whole station seems desirable.

Poona.—Malaria was chiefly prevalent amongst men of the British troops. The 2nd Dorset Regiment from Mesopotamia badly infected with this disease.

There is no trenching system in vogue in the cantonment.

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, of the 6th Poora Divisional Area is of opinion that the general sanitary condition of cantonment is satisfactory.

Kirkee .- Malaria was less prevalent than last year, the highest number of admissions were recorded in the month of July.

Mosquito breeding was marked during the rainy season and some special measures were taken to check the prevalence of mal A malarial gang of four British soldiers and 20 coolies were employed from 14th July to 31st October with satisfactory results. The coccurred mostly in the guard room whilst the men were on guard duty at the arsenal and factory barracks. Mosquito nets were employed it is execeedingly difficult to make the men (Territorials) realize the importance of them.

Owing to the nature of the country it is impossible to cultivate the whole trenching ground. A large portion, however, was put un crop and proved successful. The deep trenching system is in vogue for the majority of the area.

A drainage system is essential and a scheme for the same has been submitted for sanction. Pucca drains are required in Regimental lines and Bazaar in East Kirkee,

The vicinity near Harris Bridge is in an insanitary condition and steps have been taken to remedy it.

The Officer Commanding Station Hospital states that a marked improvement in the sanitation of the bazaar and cantenment gener has taken place during the year. There is a scheme for the reconstruction of the drainage for the bazaar, which has been submittee sanction to the higher authorities. A vegetable and fruit market for the bazaar is desirable.

A system of pucca surface drainage round the arsenal and factory barracks is required.

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, of the Division remarks that the incidence of malaria is heavy in Kirkee; this is duthe general configuration of the ground, which it is practically impossible to improve at any reasonable cost,

Bombay.—Malaria has been prevalent amongst men of the British troops. Anti-mosquito measures were vigorously prosecuted.

The drainage for sullage water is inadequate.

TABLE IV-concluded.

BSTRACT of the CANTONMENT SANITARY REPORTS of the most UNHEALTHY STATIONS AND SANITARY DEFECTS.

(The ratios of sickness and mortality will be found in Table III.)

SOUTHERN ARMY-concld.

The building used as a regimental bakery is very defective, especially the condition of the floor which requires immediate repairs, situated too near some native latrines. Improvements have been carried out, but it is far from being a suitable building for a bakery. The Cantonment Committee suggests as follows:—

- (i) That the use of mosquito nets be enforced amongst troops at the Arsenal forming the guard there.
- (ii) That the Secretary of the Colaba Board of Health and his staff give their particular attention to keeping existing drainage clear.
- (iii) That the sewage ventilation be moved away as far as possible from any dwelling house.
- (iv) That if practicable the Indian latrines be removed elsewhere.

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, states that water carriage system of drainage should be extended to the whole of the Govment buildings in Colaba and that the pail system be abolished.

There is not sufficient head of water at present to fill the tanks at the top of high buildings at all times.

The General Officer Commanding the Division concurs in the remarks of the Assistant Director, Medical Services, and adds that an proved head of water has been provided since the commencement of 1916. A new chawl which is approaching completion will allow small quarters for menials to be abolished before the rains begin.

TABLE V.

TABLE VI.

TABLE VII.

stations, groups, and armies.

groups, and armies.

ENTERIC FEVER by months, MALARIA by months, stations, PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIGIN by months, stations, groups, and armies.

	groups, and armies.	groups, and armies.	ontas, stations, groups, and armies.
	Admissions from Enteric Fever in each month.	Admissions from Malaria in each month.	Admissions from Pyrexia of uncert origin in each month.
STATIONS * AND GROUPS.	January. February. March. April. May. June. July. August. October. November. December.	January. February. March. April. May. June. July. August. Soptember. October. November. Torat.	February. March. April. May. July. September. October. November.
Port Blair Rangoon		2 2 2 7 6 1 2 1 5 1 29	1 1 9 36 10 1
Thayetmyo Meiktila Fort Dufferin (Mandalay) Shwebo		2 1 1 7 1 12 .	
GROUP IIBURMA		2 1 2 6 1 1 1 8 5 27	
Forts William, Fulta and Chingrikhal . Dum-Dum Barrackpore	2	6 2 6 7 3 12 7 4 11 15 13 86 -	2 2 3 5
GROUP IV.—BENGAL AND ORISSA	3	11 3 21 15 19 9 24 14 5 18 35 21 195	3 9 3 7 1 1
Dinapore Benares Allahabad and Fort Fyzabad Lucknow Cawnpore GROUP VGANGR- TIC PLAIN AND CHUTIA NAGPUR.	1 1 3 1 1 2 1 10 1 1 2 1 10 2 2 2 2 2 4 1 5 3 3 1 3 3 1 1 21 4 5 6 7 2 1 3 4 2 1 2 37	2 1 1 1 1 2 6 2 16	3 1 2 1
Bareilly Rurld Meerut Delhi Ambala			3 1 2
Ferozepore Amritsar Lahore Cantonment	1 3 1 1 3 9 1 1 4 1 2 1 1 1 6 1 1 2	1 1 8 4 1 7 3 3 3 9 17 4 61 2 6 7 6 16 8 7 2 8 4 5 71 5 1 7 2 5 1 1 3 4 53 31 21 26 45 63 43 46 50 60 63 83 34 36 35 35 12 26 23 33 20 28 39 40 47 53 33 389 3	9 3 1 1 3 2 3 2
GROUP VIUPPER SUB-HIMALAYA .		98 50 71 116 176 120 121 147 157 221 236 110 1,623 1;	
Nowshera	2 1	23 23 15 20 57 60 65 47 29 109 163 56 667	2 1 2 1 2 1 1 3 2 1 1 1 3 6 9 1 13 23 13 10 24 5 1
Hyderabad		15 2 1 3 15 7 6 5 8 13 12 87	4 12 11 3 14 24 15 10 24 6 2

STREET, STATE	Admissions from Fever in each M		Арм	188100	S F	ROM N	IALA	RIA I	N E	сн	MONTH	-	ADI	4158	ORIG							ERTA	IN
TIONS AND GROUPS.	January. February. March. April. May. June. Iuly. August. Sendember.	October November. December. Total.	January.	March.	April	May.	July.	August,	October.	November.	December.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.
B sich	1 1 5 7 1	4 1 20 3 2 1 12	5 3 6	1 2	-	4 1 3 5 1 3 1 3 1 4 1 1 1 2 10	2 1 2	6 1.	3 55	16	13 13	9 3	-	1 2	-	2	2		1 6 9			3	5 11 18 35
B derabad um danagar p IX.—DECCAN	TITI	1 1 3	4 1 3 2 1 11 2	5 3 1	2 8 2	7 3 28 5 7 29 6 6 6 6	3 57 40 10 110 1	7 60 6 24 1 11 2; 15 10;	37 37 37 83 47	53 5 35 112 8	9 5 1 33 33 21 16 7 16	8			3	3	2	1	3		1 1111111		2 2 2 9 3 166 4
A alore	1	1 1 3		2					8 8		3	-	2 1	-		+		-	-		-		5
120		1	3 2 8 12 7 4	7 13	7	20 1/ 13 1/ 34 13 1	7 17 17 17 18 20 14 15 35 35 190 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	6 7 31 9 18 7 17 50 171 17	1	9 12:3	82 1,	58 2 32 32 32 32 79			1111 1111 1111	1 1 3	3	4 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1					16 3 4 2 1 2 1 2 1 19
celing i Tal four iuli iousic ree and Lowe d Upper Toppa at Abu marhi lington OUP XII5.—Hit ONVALES C E N ENTERS AN ANATORIA	1 1	1	1 10 2		8 4	9 1 5 2	3 3 3 4 14 14	2 3 17 16 22 6	114 11 8 5 1 5	4 6 1	7 2	2 9 122 30 71 5		-	1		2			100		11 1111 1	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

TABLE V-concluded. TABLE VI-concluded. TABLE VII-conclude

ENTERIC FEVER by months, stations, groups, and armies.

MALARIA by months, stations, groups, and armies.

PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIG by months, stations, groups, and armies

	-								TER TH.		-		A) MI	SSIC	NS	FRO	м М	ALA	RIA I	N EA	CH A	ON	тн.		ADI	MISS						MO MI		
Stations, GROUPS AND ARMIES.	January.	Merch	April.	May.	June.	July.	Sentamber.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	Max	lune.	July.	August.	September,	October,	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.
Troops, marching . Deolali Depôt .				2			1				4		52		10		7 10	18	6 5		8	112	2 2	54		3	_		3	11		11		_	41
den		-			-						1	17	4	8	1	2		-	*					32						-					
NDIA	10 7	Io	24	25 2	0 1	8 12	16	11	8 10	16	7 2	96	166	197	257	516	604	865	872	755	849	1,007	550	6,934	32	17	34	44	77	51	47	41	41	30	16
ORTHERN ARMY .	6 6	9	19	9	9 4	6	6	7	511	90	7 1;	76 1	01 1	30	191	181	356	473	486	351	462	589	245	3,951	22	9	19	25	27	35	40	33	28	27	10
			9	П		п	П				ш								100	1111		100		2,929										3	2

TABLE VIII.

TABLE IX. TABLE X.

CHOLERA by months, stations, groups, DYSENTERY by months, stations, groups, DIARRHEA by months, stations, groups and armies.

7		At										ER/				A	DM				ROM			TES	ev t	N		8	A	DMIS	ssto	NS I					ŒA	IN	EACI	н
ONS * AND ROUPS:	lanuary.	rebruary.	1		May.					October.		December,	TOTAL.	annary.	February.	March					July.		September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March,	April.	May.		July.	August.	September,	October,	November.	December.	TOTAL.
ir														-			1											3	1	2		-	4	-	T	T	1		1	-
IBURMA	-		-			_	-		_	-	-		-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
	-	-			***		-	-	-	-		-		-	1-	-	-	**			*	***		***				3	4	2	1	1	4	1	1		2	1	1	-
ferin (Man-													***	-						***	1	***		***			1					ï	2	3		-				
	-			1 1											9800						***									***	***		1							
IIBURMA									-			1 1							-		1		1	-			3			1		1	4	3		,	2	2		
illiam, Fulta hingrikhal .						-								-				-	-			1		-	1	1	3 2	1	1 6	9 5	1 1				1	1	1			
ore : :	=									-			-	1::				1	-	2	2	-					_ 5	-	3	11		1	-	-	2	2	5	2		-
V.—BENGAL DRISSA										-17					-			1	7.0	2	3	1	-	1	t	1	to	1	10	25	4	1		2	3	3	6	2	-	B
	1						1	1	Ī	r	1					I	1				100			The second	-			-					1		1	T	T	1		Ī
B																		***		1			-	***			1 5	2		1		***		5	4	1	4	2		
d and Fort					- 41				-			100					2					2 :: : :	3 : : :	11 11 11			5	1 1 3	2		1 2 7	1 5 4	4	5 4	6 4 4	3	1 1 3	2		13
VGANGE												13.5		1		-	-	-		-		1	1070	-			-2	-	1	5	6	2	-		-		-		=	
PLAIN AND	380								1					2	1	1	,	1		2		4	4	-	1	1	17	7	1 3	30	1:	12	7	17	1	4	10	7	1	F
^ :																1						1			2	-	3		2	13	10	8	4=	5 :		1	3 8	100		
: :													-			1		3	***		41							3	2	5	2 2	2	1			100			2	
B ore .																	400				-					3	6	1	111100	0.00					-			. 1		
Cantonmen																1	1	5	3	1	2		1	1	1		. 16			. 3					3		- 1	0	. 2	-
			-		4 -				4 6	4 0						2	***	***		1							1			. 5					1				-	
VIUPPRI		-	-			1				1		1	-	1		- 4	1	7	3	2	4	1	2	1	6	3	11	1	3 5	,	9. 5	1 1	7 1			3 1	7 1			
																	1				1.							3						1			3			
	10		100						10 1		2		100	2		***		2								. 2							-							_
bad :													-						-			. 1							1	1	1 .							1		
VIINW			-	1	1			-	1			1			-							1	1/	1	1				1				1 6					2 2	19 7	
AJPUTANA		-	1	1	T	7 .		-		-	2	-	I	9		1	1	2	-	1	. 3	1	1	1	1	1	1 1:	N H	T	1	T	T	T	T	Ī	T	1	1	T	1
B ch .	1	1	1	-		1												1																						
ad :					-		-			-				-		***	-					-						1	2 2	3	6	4	4	-	9	4	3	3	: ;	
and Indore												-		-							- 3			5 1							+	10		1	3	9	3	5	3 1	1
VIIIS	4-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-	-	-	+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
L INDIA, AN						***										3		. 1	1			3	3	5		1		18	6	4	11 1	5 1	1		12	3	7	8	4	2

TABLE VIII-concluded. TABLE IX-concluded. TABLE X-conclude

CHOLERA by months, stations, DYSENTERY by months, stations, DIARRHŒA by months, station

groups		_		_	_								_								rm										g	rou	pso	ind	arn	nies			OMI
	-	AD:							NI		LE	RA		AD	MIS	SIO	NS	FR	юм	Di	SE	TE	RYI	N H.	ACH	Mo	NTH	ADI	4188	ION	SF	ROM	D	ARE	HŒ	A IN	2/	CH	MO
STATIONS, GROUPS, AND ARMIES.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	lone.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	anuary.	February.	March.	And	April .	may.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	Torat.	January.	February.	March,	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.
A Jubbulpore Kamptee and Sita- baldi													1			-	1							1			2			10	2	100		2	6	9	3		To be a second
Secunderabad							10.0 10.0											11	1		4	***	"1	5 :: : :	4	2 :- : :	58 9	4				5	9	17	19 3 7 2		5 6	120	
GROUP IX.—DECCAN Collaba	1111						1							1 3					2	2	1	2				3	3		13	1	1				2 : :		1	-	1111
Bangalore Madras and St. Thomas' Mount .	-	-		*	**								-	13		1	1				1	2				4	8	7	5	3	3	1	3	4	-	-			-
GROUP XI.—SOUTH ERN INDIA	1 1								[Ī	1					1	T	3 2	,	Ī	100	10	1.	5	I	1		10	4		2			1
Lebong		11111							***				6 : : : :					1111 -1		-								11:::::					2	5 1 1	2 2	2		1111111	11:11:
Khairagali . Khan Spur and Ghora Dhaka. Cherat		1111	-										11111							 I I							11111	:				1.		3	3	10			
GROUP XIIa HILL STATIONS					6								6					1	3	2			_	1			8	1		,	1	1	0 20	26	12	16	2	2	
Darjeeling												-	11:11:11					1 1 2	1	3 1		-	2							1111111111	11171 1111			3 3	1 2	4	2	1111	111 1111
GROUP XIIb.—HILL CONVALESCENT DEPOTS. AND SANATORIA .	-			-	-	1	-				-				1	1		4	3	1 7	1 2		4 8	8	1 2		4	2	-		,	-	-	1.	7	8	4		-
Troops Marching Deolali Depôt .		11											11			910			1.					1			10.3	.:			11100		2 2			2	2 1	-	1.1
Aden	100					-	-		-			1			-	1		1		2			•••						5 8	3 4		1	3 7						-
INDIA .			-		14			-		2		-	16	1	0 1	15	10	29	13	21	27	3.5	39	20	20	14	253	55	67	138	124	134	94	144	: 26	98	82	98	2
NORTHERN ARMY . SOUTHERN	1								100				16		160	6	5 5	14	8	103	16		14 25	11	16		38		30	13	1	1		186		52 46		100	100

TABLE XI.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

IPS.	Average annual strength.	Classifica- tion,	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	ever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Poeumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoea.	Hepatic Congestion and	Inflammation,	Venereal Decases.	All Causes.	sick.	Arrivals in India in	Stations occupied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in India
JLAR ALRY.	531	Admitted Died . Invalided					10							1	6	3			400	39	260 1	15.26		Secunderabad, 1st January to 10th Deem ber. Merut 11th December to 31st December.	Y. M. 1
	469	Admitted Died Invalided		- 1			50	111					1		2 ::	1	16		-	24	296 2 4	15'4'		Mecrut, 1st Janu- ary to 5th November. (Left for Active Service on 5th November.)	9 2
ocers .	531	Admitted Died . Invalided					89	10	111	1	24 4	-			7	111			4	6	317 6 5	18'4		Risalpur, 1st January to 31st December. Detachment at Murree from 9th May to 6th November.	3 3
CAVALRY	1,511	Admitted Died Invalided	-				149		111	9 ::		5			15	4			6	69	873 9 9	49*1	7		
ULAR LLERY.	P. In																					-			4 41
Battery, Herse ery.		Admitted Died . Invalided	-				26					1		3		=	***		10	2	99 1 2	4.0	2	Risalpur, 1st January to 31st December.	9 6
	16	Admitted Died Invalided	1				3			111				=					=	2	10	*63		Secunderab a d, 1st January to 31st January; (Left for Field Service on 31st January.)	8 11
	152	Admitted Died Invalided	***	11		***						1		-						0	107 2	50	14	Mecrut, 1st January to 27th October; Delhi, 28th October to 31st Decem-	8 1
munition nn, Roya e Artil-	1	Admitted Died Invalided		100		***	-		***						111	111	::				5	14		Campbellpo r e, 1st January to 3oth April, Risalpur, 1st May to 31st December.	
,, ,,	15	Admitted Died Invalided							***	***	***						***		***		3 1		43	Meerut, 1st January to 31st Desember.	7 0
fery,Roy Artillery		Admitted Died Invalide				***		4		1							1 10000		***	6 1		3.	57	Rawalpindi, 1st January to 31st December	100
	144	Admitted Died Invalided				111		-			1	1							***	7	89 2	3	81	Rawalpindi, 1st January to 31s December. Detachment at Khan Spur, 21s April to 14th October.	t

TABLE XI-continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

											AC	tual	5.	and the same		No.			-	-			
CORPS.	Average annual strength.	Classifica- tion.	Influenza.	Cholera	Su all-pox.	Malaria,	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of un certin	Rheumatic Forer.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora,	Hepatic Abscess.	Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases,	All Causes.	numb sick,	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation, Last move.
REGULAR ARTILLERY, —contd. 74th Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	166	Admitted. Died Invalided.		111			1 90	3	100	2 1	1		3	8	= ,	6		3	11	240 3 2	10'07		Jhansi, 12 months, De- tachment at Peshawar, 23rd April to 31st December.
77th ,, ,,	210	Admitted. Died Invalided.					8 13							*!!	-			4	23	148	8:43	-	Agra, 12 months
78th ,, ,,	132	Admitted. Died Invalided.		11	: ::	100	2 12			-	***	-							***	t	4'55	-	Rawalpindi, 12 months.
79th ,, ,,	186	Admitted Died . Invalided	***		= :		5	=			1	-		6	111		-		30	133 3 5	9.85		Jhansi, 12 months,
89th ,, ,,	119	Admitted Died Invalided				1	6 3			1	***			2 :::	111	-			***	78 1 2	4'53	400	Nowshers, 12 months. De- tachment at Peshawar, 22nd January to 24th April.
90th ,, ,,	106	Admitted Died Invalided				***	6 9			111	1		***				-		3	60	2.68	-	Nowshers, 12 months.
91st ., .,	101	Admitted Died . Invalided		1	- :	191	8 8					-		2	2			1	1::	73 1	3'42	-	Do.
totst " "	119	Admitted Died . Invalided	4					=		1		-		4		:::			8	44	4'47	-	Hyderabad, Sind, 12 menths.
tornd , ,,	134	Admitted Died . Invalided	7					::			1			3			***		9	49 2 1	4.66	-	Do
rst Ammunition Column, Royal Field Artillery.	37	Admitted Died . Invalided							: : :		1			::	=			-		20	*70		Nowshera, 12 months.
and ,, ,,	55	Admitted Died Invalided	1::			***	 	=		- 1				-					3	52	2'22		Rawalpiedi, 12 months.
4th ,, ,,	35	Admitted Died Invalided		40.0		100														9	*26		Hyderabad- Sind, 12 months.
rith ,, ,,	32	Admitted Died Invalided											-	::						6	.46		Jhansi, 12 months.
rst M. D., Royal Garrison Artillery.	128	Admitted Died Invalided	-				1		111	1	2		1	2		111			3	51 1 1	275	-	Rawalpindi, 52 months; Kala- bagh, 52 months; mar- ching, 2 month.
3rd " "	128	Admitted Died Invalided		-				2	1 : : :	-			1	=	-	2	***	-	2	85	2'97		Quetta, 12 months.
4th ,, ,,	119	Admitted Ded Invalided				***	::		=							=			4	104	3'27		Do

	Average annual strength.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Small-pox.	Enteric Feyer.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke,	Tubercle of the luner	Pneumonia.	Bespiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Heratic Congestion and	Venereal Discases.	All Causes.	number co	Arcivals an India in	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in	and the same
AR ERY td. Royal a Artu-	85	Admitted Died . Invalided				7 :::	2						111	1		- 4		36	1.61		Rawalpindi, 1st January to 7th May, march- ing 8th May to 11th May. Barian, 12th May 10 2;th October, Rawalpindi, 28th October to 31st Decem- ber.	30	M. D
"	115	Admitted Died . Invalided Admitted Died . Invalided			-			1	1	1	-	;	2	911-11	1		3 4	132 5 1 40	7.06		P. shawar, 12 mo. ths. Rawalpindi, 61 months; Barian 5 months; marching, 4	31	0
mpany. Garrison y.	99	Admitted Died Invalided Admitted Died Invalided Admitted Died . Invalided	2			20	11, 111	1 111 1			-		4		3			24 1	172		month. Allahabad, 12 months. Colaba, 12 months. Jhansi, 18 January to 22nd March; Rurki, 23rd	13	11
	52	Admitted Died Invalided									1						2 2				from Jul Field Return i in force).	1- 16	
, ,,	\$8 82	Died Invalided Admitted Died Invalided				. 1	4 -				3						:	2 30			months,	2 11	1 0
	ç2	Admitted Died Invalided		1-1				5		1						3		1 59 2 2 2	5"	14	January 26th March Cawnpore, 27 March to cot Novembe Marching	th h	
	108	Admitted Died Invalided	i :::			: :		2	-		243					1000		3 25		43	months,	2 21	
	54	Admitto Died Invalide							- 10		-	-						- 3	11	52	from Ju Field Service	ne y	5
	83	Invalide			ine	410 0		-			-						***	2 72	3'	32		d	1 1

THE STORY WEST BUILD

TABLE XI—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

Coars,	Average annual strength.	Classifi- cation.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Malaria.	Sandily Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain	Rheumatic Ferer.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa,	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation,	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number con- stantly sick.	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occupied during the year with dates of occupation, Last move.
REGULA ARTILLERY- concld. 73rd Company Royal Garr son Arbiliery.	127	Admitted Died . Invalided	***			***	,			111			1	4		1		3		106	5'57		Lahore, 12 months. Do- tachment at Amritar, 1st January to 31st Decem-
74th ,, ,,	m	Admitted Died Invalided	2					111	111				:::				111	.4	7115	64	3'05		Agra, 12 months. Detachment at Delhi, 1st January to gast December.
75th ,, ,,	89	Admitted Died Invalided	=======================================	-	10 141		H			111	3								14	47	249	1	Rangoon, 12 months,
76th	49	Admitted Died Invalided		101		etc.			-									111	7	1	** \$405		Aden, 1st January to 30th June. (From July Field Service Return in force.)
77th " "	77	Admitted Died Invalided				***	. 3	- 4		***	3 1	-				-		111		90	4'47	-	Rurki, 1st Jan- uary to 4th March, Multan, 5th March to 18th Decem- ber. (Left for Active Service on 18th De- cember.)
70th ,, ,,	112	Admitted Died . Invalided	111				111				2								5	43 2 1	2'10		Colaba, 12 months.
82nd ,, ,,	103	Admitted Died Invalided					2 :: ::		1	2				2 ::	1111			2	3	61	2'53	-	Ferozepore, 12 months.
85th ,, ,,	104	Admitted Died Invalided	***			21	141						•••		3	9 :: ::	***			1	2.65	-	Colaba, 5th Oc- tober to 31st December. (Last Station
86th 4, 11	14	Admitted Died . Invalided	***	***		1				: 1 :						***				16	*60		Multan, 1st January to 26th February. (Left for Active Service
94th », »,	94	Admitted Died Invalided	***	*** **		34	12	***		***	***								2	77	3'54		on 26th Feb- ruary.) Rawaipindi, 12 months.
101st ,, ,,	77	Admitted Died Invalided	de.	181 44		=	1111	***						=						5 2	'34	-	Karachi, 12 1 months.

Corps.	Average annual strength.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fover.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the tungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Hepatic Abscess.	Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number con- stantly sick.	Arrivals in India in	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in India,
Hampshire, tery, Royal d Artillery.	130	Admitted. Died Invalided	***				41	5		3		-	***	7	2				5	176 1 1	6192		Lahore Canton- ment, 1st January to 31st December	Y. M. D.
	142	Admitted. Died Invalided.				3 31	3 10		***		3			6				16		161 1 5	6		Nowshera, 19th January to 24th April. Sialkot, 25th April to 31st December. Detachment at Peshawar, 25th September to 15th October.	0 11 13
	194	Admitted. Died . Invalided.	***	1		2 11	24	3	=======================================				***	5	-	3	1	=		118	5:86		Lahore Canton- ment, 1st January to 31st December 1915.	100
	107	Admitted. Died Invalided.	***					1.5	i.					2				10		85	4.0	-	Lucknow, 12 January to 30th August 1915. (Left for Field Service on 30th August 1915.)	
	38	Admitted. Died Invalided.	***				111						***	,					1 1 1	16	1.00	8	Lucknow, 1st January to 14th March 1915. (Left for Field Ser- vice on 14th March.)	0 4 2
	124	Admitted Died Invalided				***						1	101		=======================================		111		- :-	83	3'77	5		1 0 17
: Dorsetshire attery, Royal eld Artillery.	122	Admitted Died Invalided		1111			3			01200				3		***				2	5.0	1		
: Wiltshire attery, Royal eld Artillery.	140	Admitted Died Invalided		100			1	***									6 1	***		199 2	8-7		- State Shares on	
t Hampshire attery, Royal ield Artillery	135	Admitted Died Invalided												***				***		139	573	16 14	Kirkee, 7th January to 31st December 1915. (Arrived i.om England, 7th January 1915.)	

TABLE XI-continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

Coars.	Average annual strength.	Classifica- tion.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	ever.	Pyrexin of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Dis	Innercie of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diamboa.	Hepane Abserts.	ricyatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	sick.	Arrivals in India in	Staticas occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.
TERRITORIAL ARTILLERY— centd. 2-2-2nd Hampshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	136	Admitted Died . Invalided		DO: 4		8	1	1			***			4		2			7	118-14-4	4*56	140	Kirkee, 7th January to 31st December 1915. Arrived from England on 7th January 1915).
2-3rd ,, ,,	134	Admitted Died . Invalided			-	10			2		4						1:1	**3	3	138 1 7	6.02	140	Kirkee, 7th January'to 31st December 1915. (Arrived from England on 7th January 1915.)
2-6th ,, ,,	133	Died , Invalided		100000	A 100000	5			2	111		111		411	3	7	111	-	3	114	4.10	140	Secunderab a d, 9th January to gest Decem- ber 1915. (Arrived from England on 9th January.)
2-1st Dorsetshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	137	Admitted Died . Invalided					=	=======================================						5	5	8	111		3	120	476	140	Secunderab a d, 11th January to 31st Decem- ber 1915. (Arrived from England on 11th January.)
2-1st Wiltshire Battery, Royal Field Artislery.	134	Admitted Died . Invalided	***				-			1:1	***			3	-	8			3	116	4*98	143	Secunderab a d, toth January to 31st Decem- ber 1915. (Arrived from England on toth January
1-1st Devonshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	276	Admitted Died . Invalided				4	=	-	7	111	***	111		12	1	11		7	14	262 3 8	11-63	168	Allahabad, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Detach- ment at Banga- lore, 12th Janu-
1-2nd 29 29	264	Admitted Died : Invalided	111			2	25	1	3	2 2		+1:		9 1		12			12	283	10-82	140	ary 1915 to 2nd December. Dinapore, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Detach- ment at Banga- lore, 11th Janu- ary to 3rd De- cember 1915.
it-gred in so	243	Admitted Died . Invalided				8 1	=	5	2		1	1		5 :: :	4	13		::	19	196 2 4	9:28	185	Bangalore, 12th January to 31st December, Detachment at Barrackpore, 14th November to 31st December to 31st December to 3nst December to 31st
1-1st Sussex Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	107	Admitted Died , Invalided				18	2	2 :: ::	111		1			1	4			1	3	77 1 2	3,40	-	Kamptee, 1st January to 220d February, Mhow, 23rd February to 26th Novem- ber 1915, (Left for Active Service on 26th November.)

rs.	Average annual strength.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrevia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-strole.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhota.	Hepatic Abscess.	0	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occupied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in India
ORIAL ERY— Sussex , Royal rtillery.	147	Admitted Died Invalided			4	32 ::	5	4::-	3			-		5		5			- !!!	116	5'11		Mhow, 1st January to 28th November 1915. (Left for Active Service on 28th November.)	Y. M. I
"-	123	Admitted Died . Invalided		110 (14) 110 (14)		8	4	-	-					2	1 .	3		1	3	77	4'94	-	Mhow, 1st January to 4th Dece m be r 1915. (Left for Active Service on 4th December 1915.)	1 0
	153	Admitted Died Invalided	-			10	12				2			3 :::	3	13	10.00		===	125	6'33		January to 16th March, iullundur, 17th March to 20th A u g u s t; Rawalpin d i, 218t August to 31st Decem-	1 02
. "	123	Admitted Died Invalided	***				-			-			***			6				124	5	e	Multan, 1st January to 31st Decem- ber 1915.	1 0 :
	122	Admitted Died Invalided	***			=	4							- ::	. : :		1::1			162 2 	60	i2	Ferozepore, 1st January to 31st Decem- ber.	1 0
Kent Royal	137	Admitted Died Invalided			-	***	8	3			***	5	1111				-	-		200	8.4	99	Jubbulpore, 1st January to 31st Decem- ber 1915.	11
	121	Admitted Died Invalided	***			-	4		***	2 2		3 1					1	=	-	9	47	54	Jubbelpore, 1st lanuary to 1st September; Lucknow, 2nd September to 31st Decem- ber 1915.	
	153	Admitted Died Invalided						3		5 6	-	3	111		==		-			193	7':	38	Jubbulpore, 1st January to 31st December 1915 Petachment at Ranikhet, 29th April to 5th September	
rtillery .	8302	Admitted Died Invalided		5 2	1 3	2	9 41	9 7		6 2	3	0 1	24	156		21	2		350	03	307	21 133	1915.	,
ompany, Engi-		Admitted Died Invalided				-	1 ::	:	-							-	-		=	17 1	14	65	Rurki, Cal- cutta, Karachi, Kirkee, Colaba, Secun- derabad, Bas galore, Wellington, Mandalay, Meiktila, Rangoon, and Aden.	

TABLE XI—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

																							Company of the	
CORPS.	Average annual strength.	Classifi- cation.	Inguenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pacumosia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoa.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases,	All Causes.	sich	Arrivals in India in	Stations occupied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	
TERRITORI- AL. H. Company, Royal Engi- neers.	18	Admitted Died . Invalided					11			1	***			2					111	20	.54	4	Nowshera.	Y.
Tetal Royal Engineers.	95	Admitted Died Invalided			101	5								2 ::					:::	37 1	2,10	4		San Marie
INFANTRY. 1st Durham Light Infantry.	595	Admitted Died . Invalided			***	147	75	4	331	111		111	111	31			2 ::		32	507 3 12	30"70		Nowshera, 12 months. Detachment at Peshawar and Cherat.	13
2nd R. W. Kent Regiment.	160	Admitted Died . Invalided			***	35		-		111		6			***		1		20	132 3 11	12'00		Nasirabad, 12 months. Head-Quarters of the Batta- lion left for Field Service on 28th Janu-	
and Loyal North Lancashire Regiment.	106	Admitted, Died . Invalided.	***		111	1	1111	111		-	100	111	111	3				2	11	103 8	5.89		Banga'ore, 1st January to 31st Decem- ber.	1
and Liverpool Regiment.	686	Admitted Died Invalided			***	281	147			3 2	1 1		***	10			1	9 ::	30	723 5 10	34'46		Peshawar, 12 months, Deta- chments at Cherat and Nowshera.	6
and Dorsetshire Regiment.	210	Admitted Died Invalided			1	215		- ::		1	5 2		-	6	3	5		3 1	15	352 1 9	22'40		Poona Depôt 12 months (Head-quarters left for Field Service.)	
rst Oxford and Bucks Light Infantry,	109	Admitted Died . Invalided				54		111						5	111	1			14	98 5	5'47		Amednagar, 12 months.	12
rst South Lanca- shire Regiment	853	Admitted Died Invalided	1		- 11	224	***	2			4			14		6			64	547	27'48		Quetta, 12 months Wing at Kara- chi, 1st January to 18th Octo- ber.	
and Norfolk Regiment.	134	Admitted Died Invalided			***	3				111		2							6	28 4	2'17		Belgaum, 12 months.	

75.	Average annual strength.	Classifica- tion.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Rever	Total Control of the	Maiaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke,	Circulatory Diseases.	Describe of the imags.	racamount.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number con- stantly sick,	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in India
LAR TRY—					-	-							-	1000		-									Y. M. I
kshire at.	927	Admitted Died Invalided	***				259	138	::		3					2	7 ::		13	33	777 4 2	35'59		Rawalpindi, 12 months. De- tachment at Attock, 1st May to 31st December.	3 11
Sussex nt.	719	Admitted Died Invalided	1110		-	1	311	126	-11	1 11				1		-	16		3	15	655	33,08	-	Peshawar, 12 months. De- tachment. at Cherat 7th May to 29th August.	13 0
setshire ifantry.	848	Admitted Died . lavalided	2	-			356	2	1	5 ::		9 3		2	9		6	1	***	35	637 2 8	26'11	-	Quetta, 12 months. De- tachment at Hyderabad, 26th January to 19th October.	2 1
th Sta- re Re-	833	Admitted Died Invalided	100	1		2	175	21	3	3			-	4	24			1111	***	38	323 2 6	29.30		Rawalpindi, 5 months, Gha- rial, 4 months, Nowshera, 1 month, mar- ching 2 months.	12 2
Riding ent.	866	Admitted Died Invalided				1	710	19		***		100			to	6	6	-		54	1,048	44*8		Sialkot, 12 months. De- tachment at Peshawar and Kalabagh.	
ORIAL CTRY. son Bat- Lincoln ent.	17	Admittee Died Invalide				***		***		***										<u>.</u>	6	*00	6		-
son Pat Norfoll ent.	23 k	Admitte Died Invalide				***	===		-			1000	2		1						14	.3		Karachi, 23rd December to 31st December Arrived from England on 23rd December	
Borden tent.	74	Admitte Died Invalide				***	5	_					7								364 4 6	26-03		Maymyo, 1st January to 31s December 1913 Detachment al Mandalay, 1st January to 31s December.	t

ASMANNA IX BIRT.

TABLE XI-continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

Actuals.

CORPS.	Average annual strength.	Classis- cation.	Influenza,	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoss.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number con- stantly sick.	Arrivals in India in	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.
TERRITORIAL INFANTRY. —contd. 2-4th Border Regiment.	541	Admitted Died Invalided	***		***	112		3		1		***		5	2	1000		11.	2	325 2 2	17'19	1,113	Poona, 1st April to 30th November; Kamptec, 1st December to 31st December 1915. Detachments at Kir- kee and Alla- habad (arrived on 1st April 1915).
1-4th Duke of Cornwall's Light Infantry.	749	Admitted Died Invalided	14		***	9			19	11			111	20		44			33	787 2 6	31.12	Section 1	Bareilly, 1st 1 January to 31st December 1915. Detach- ment at Rani- khet, 16th April to 24th October 1915.
2-4th ,, ,, .	749	Admitted Died Invalided	100		100	133	4	8	1111		***	1	2			233				9.6 4 15	3879	233	Karachi, 9th January to 25th March: Quetta, 26th March to 15th October; Ra- rachi, 16th October to 22nd Decem- ber 1915; Mul- tan, 23rd De- cember to 31st Dec e m ber 1915; Detach- ment at Hy- derabad (ar- rived from England on 9th January).
1-4th Devonshire Regiment.	735	Admitted Died . Invalided		-	-		103	2	***		***	1	-10		.4			: : :	3 :-	559 2 11	23'68		Ferozepore, 1st I January to 31st December. Detachment at Dalhousie and Amritsar.
2-4th ,, ,, .	- 333	Admitted Died . Invalided	7111		100	13		1	1	1			***		***	10			***	758 4 10	29"11	3 785	Wellington, 11th January to 31st December 1915. De- tachments at Madras, Cali- cut and Mala- puram (arrived from United Kingdom on 11th January 1915).
1-5th ,, ,,	722	Admitted Died Invalided			***					3	12		1	-				***		675	28.49	-	Multan, 1st January to 24th December: Lebong, 25th December to 31st December 1915. Detachment at Dalbousie, 10th April to 31st December.

34

175.	Average annual strength,	Classifica- tion.	Influenza.	Cholera. Small-pox.	bateric Fever.	Malaria,	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number con- stantly sick.	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in India
ORIAL NTRY etd. conshire ent.	753	Admitted Died Invalided	***		-10	41	27	17	9		19 7		2	45	11	***		3	12	735 5 12	38:58		Lebong, 1st January to 31st Decem- ber 1915. De- tachments at Dalhousie and Amritsar.	Y. M. D
, .	722	Admitted Died Inv-lided		- 1	-	118		7	. 3		15	2	The state of	20				2 1	40	651 2 37	35'58	807	Bombay, 6th Jan. to 31st Dec. 1915. Detachment at Declali, 8th January to 31st December (arrived from England on 6th January).	0 11 26
rse'shire	744	Admitted Died Invalided			**	33	36		***	1		-	3 1		110	***		5 :: :		414 2 11	25'05	-	Mhow, 1st January to 22nd February; Ambala, 23rd February to 6th Acril; Marching, 7th April to 9th April; Dagshai, 10th April to 17th July. Ambala, 18th July to 31st December, Detachments at Jutogh, Ahmednagar and Kasauli.	1 119
,,	649	Admitted Died . Invalided	1			118			20		31			10	1	8	111	-	5	551	23'33	678	Poona, 9th January to 15th February; Ahmednagar 16th February to 31st Decem- ber (arrived from England on 9th January 1915).	0 11 23
ampshire tent.	282	Admitted Died . Invalided	***			228		4::			5	-		11				=		20	18'54		Rawalpindi, 2 months, Quetta, 2 months; Su- bathu 3½ months; Chak- rata, 2 months (left for Field Ser- vice in Novem- ber 1915).	1 0 20
	714	Admitted Died Invalided		5							2	7	-	18	111				0 1 1	740	34'32	131	Quetta, 11th January to 31st December 1915. (Arrived from England, 11th January. A detachment of 100 men left for focce "D" on 14th October	0 11 21
, .	714	Admitted Died Invalided	1			::	2		1					26	100		1110000		9	513 6 19	21'54	4	1015. Allahabad, 1st January to 3rd December; Lucknow, 4th December to 31st December etachments at Benares, Cawnpore, Ranikhet and Labong.	and the

35

TABLE XI—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

Corrs.	Average annual strength.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases,	All Causes.	num sick.	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move,
TERRITORIAL INFANTRY- contd. 2-5th Hampshire Regiment.	692	Admitted Died Invalided				30	111	111	ine		***		5	14	24	26		3	7	719 1 36	27.89	738	Secunderabad, 9th January to 31st December 1915, (Arrived from England 9th January.) Detachments at Wellington and Madras.
3-6th ,, ,,	710	Admitted Died Invalided			***		15		1	4	13	1		13		20		12	18	499 3 9	26.65	50	Agra, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Detach- men's at Chakrata, 12th April to 26th October.
1-7th	772	Admitted Died . Invalided		6 3		97	2	14		1				10	1	33			21	615	28.33		Meerut, 13th January to 31st December 1915. 'Arrived from England, 13th January). Detachments at Delhi and Chakrata.
2-7th ,, ,,	737	Admitted Died Invalided	-		-		171	:::		9	12		1	23	25			2	10 1	650 6 43	30'19	850	Secunderabad, 9th January to 31st Decem- ber. (Arrived from England, 9th January.) Detachment at Wellington, 1st January to 31st Decem-
1-sth East Kent Regiment.	459	Admitted Died . Invalided			5	= 1	24		11		11 5			7	2		ia.	==	4	257 2 10	16'45	1	Mhow, 1st January to 24th July, (left for Active Ser- vice on 24th July).
1-5th ,, ,,	626	Admitted Died . Invalided	***		1 1	21	29	3	8		3	3				6 ::		2	8	378 7 17	16.08	-	Kamptee, 1st January to 27th Novem- ber (left for Field Service, 27th Novem- ber 1915). Detachments at Mount Abu and Pach- marhi.
Kent Regi- ment.	754	Admitted Died Invalided	111			38	11		10	2	6			8 2 .		44			15	836 4 61	30°20	-	Jubbulpore, 1st January to 31st December 1915. De- tachment at Ranikhet, 29th April to 1st October 1915.
1-5th Royal West Kent Regiment,	753	Admitted Died Invalided			16 5		16	6		8 3	1 .	1 .		36	***	28			9	510 12 11	25'17		Jhansi, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Detachment at Rani- khet, 20th May to 23rd October 1915.

RPS.	Average annual strength.	Classifica- tion,	Influenza.	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Pever.	Pyrexia of uncertain	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke-	Circulatory Diseases.	Pneumonia,	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.		Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number con- stantly sick.	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in India.
ORIAL eTRY— efd. iddlesex ent.	723	Admitted Died Invalided	***		***	107		20	12 2		1	-					-		953 4 10	38-63	-	Dinapere, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Det-ch- ments at Dum- Dum and Barrackpore.	Y, M. D
	583	Admitted Died Invalided				43	-	2	3		3							11	651	25'45		Calcutta, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Detachment at Darjeeling, 15th April to 30th October 1915.	1 0 27
merset Infantry.	707	Admitted Died . Inval ded				==	125		11 2	1	9 2	. 2		11	::		14	8 :: ::	959	36:28		Calcutta, 1st January to 18th January; Jullundur, 19th January to 21st August 19 Pesha- war, 21nd August to 31st December 1915- Detachment at Amritsar, 25th February to 0th November.	1 119
	753	Admitted Died Invalided	***		***	338		60	***	10	29		26	9 ::	24	1		36	1,063 3 28	42'98	800	Pangalore, 11th January to 23rd August; Port Biair, 24th Au; ust to 31st December. Detachment at Ma'a-puram, 19th January to 19th August. Arrived from England on 11th January.	0 11 2
	731	Admitted Died In valided			***	20	19	10		3	8 1	1		1.	-		4	2	391 8 14	18-38	-	Ambala, 1st January to 11th July; Dagshai, 12th July to 2nd November; marching, 3rd November to 3rd December, Ambala, 4th December to 31st December.	1 11
	674	Admitted Died Invalided	***			18		6	7		11 1		16		25			32	547 3 7	24.83	415	Meiktila, 1st February to 31st December. Detatchment at Shwebo, 3rd February to 31st December, (Arrived from England, 1st February.)	011
hropshire Infantry.	128	Admitted Died Invalided				5		2	***			1						8	117	4.89	***	Rangoon, 1st January to 17th February, (Left for Singa- pore on 18th February.)	0 2 ;
st Surrey nent.	742	Admitted Died Invalided		2		6,	303							41			8	10	745	23'87		Cawnpore, 1st January to 23rd August, Nowshera, 24th August to 31st December, Detachments at Lebong and Peshawar.	1 0 25

TABLE XI—concluded.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

Sickness and Mortality.

											A	ctuz	ils.										
CORPS.	Average annual strength,	Classifica- tion.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	ever.	Pyrexia of uncertain	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	A STATE OF	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number con- stantly sick.	Arrivals in India in 1915.	Stations occu- pied during the year with dates of occupance, Last move,
TERRITORIAL INFANTRY – concld. 1-6th East Surrey Regiment.	1,049	Admitted Died Invalided			6			7			***		4			9		1	9	383 2 5	19'56		Ferozepore, 1st January to 14th March; Rawalp in di, 15th March to 2nd May; Kul- dana, 3rd May to 24th Octo- ber; Rawal- pindi, 25th Oc- tober to 31st December.
s-4th Royal West Surrey Regiment.	724	Admitted Died : Invalided			. 1		2	3		12	9	-	4		3	No.		***	9	445 6 13	22.20	1000	Lucknow, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Detach- ment at Lebong.
1-5th ,, ,,	649	Admitted Died Invalided						3		8 11					5	43			7	517 4 13	20'92	1	Lucknow, 1st Jacusry to 29th November (lef for Active Service on 29th November).
1-4th Wilt-hire Regiment.	727	Admitt-d Died Invalided		1	. 2	188		4 :::			4		2 1	10		51		4 : 1	8	412 3 4	16-76		Delhi, 1st January to 31st December 1915. Detach ne nt at Chakrata, 10th April to agth October.
2-4th ,, ,,	708	Admitted Died . Invalided				101	111	6			***	2		10		25			. 7	632 2 11	28 61	1,185	Poona, 8th January to 31st De- cember. De- tachment at Kirkee. (Arri- ved from Eng- land o: 8th January.)
1st Brecknock- shire Battalion.	706	Admitted Died Invalided				'	11	-	-		3		1 1	11		44		11	***	3 14	25.64		Aden, 1st January to 30th June (after 30th June Field Force return was in force).
TOTAL INFANTR'S REGULAR.	31,726	Admitted Disd Invalided	77.	6		- 0	1,373		38	3.9	507 8 162	2	83	736	9	915	131	2	8 2	27,874 162 629	1241'91	7,789	
Men of the small Detach- ments. TERRITORIAL- Men of the small Detachments.	37	Ado itted Died Invalided Admitted Died Invalided		11			111 111	3							111 111				111 111	6	*01	1 1	
Total .	54	Admitted Died Invalided		1000		4	1:1	3						:::		1			111	14	*04		***

38

PS.	Average annual strength.	Classifi- cation.	Influenza,	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever,	Pyresta of uncertain origin.	Rheumatic Fever.	Heat-stroke.		Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa.	Hepatic Abscess.	Inflammation.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.		Arrivals in India in	Stations occupied during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.	Period of service in India.
AR— staff and ments.	2,723	Admitted Died . Invalided	11		1	330 4 3	27	5	***	2	21 5 10		9 1 1	42 1 2	23 3 2	18	41	15	78 5	1,254 29 78	93*84			Y, M, D.
ORIAL- staff and ments.	470	Admitted Died . Invalided	3		. 1	51	4 : :	3 :: ::	4	1			2	6	7	11	200	4	6	352 4 20	59:83	-	-	
Fotal .	3,193	Admitted Died . Invalided	411		15	3	***	8 ::	***	3	33 5 12		11 1	48 1 3	30 3 2		50.00	19	84	1,636 33 98	153'67			
otal .	(44,891	Admitted Died . Invalided	334	16 8	10		***	438	3	33 7	660 19 213	5	119	3	13		9	381	1,305	35,95 267 889	1,754'19		200 mgs, 3	

TABLE XII.

STATISTICS OF OFFICERS, WOMEN AND CHILDREN.

SICKNESS and MORTALITY among OFFICERS, WOMEN and CHILDREN of the BRITISH ARMY in 1915.

			OFFICERS.			WOMEN.	-		HILDREN.	
		Northern Army.	Southern Army.	India.	Northern Army-	Southern Army.	India.	Northern Army.	Southern Army.	I
- 1		1,028	963	2,080	823	750	1,570	1,453	1,472	
Cases Remaining From 1914		21'4	17.6	18.7	7'3	16'0	11'5	41	14'9	
Cases Remaining The Type										-
CONSTANTLY SICK		25'75	25'77	24.67	1872	1981	19'24	8-64	19'42	
INVALIDING		11'67	31.12	20,10	2'44	14.67	8.58	***	2.72	
								1333		1
Admissions,			0 0		2 19	100		144530		ı
fluenza		10'7	18'7	13'9				***	4'1	ı
easles		***	1,0	.2		4'0	1,0	5'5	19.0	ı
/hooping cough		***			***	***		2'7	4'1	ŧ,
nteric Fever • • • •		5'8	2'1	3.8	1'2	1'3	35'7	24'8	44'8	ı
alaria		58.4	46.7	51'0	34'1	37'3	3.3	1'4	The state of	1
andfly Fever		82.7	24'9	52'4	4'9	1.3	1.0	41		ı
yrexia of uncertain origin		97	8.3	10.0	1'2	2.7	38			
ubercle of the lungs		1.0	2'1	1'4	4'9		1,3			
oberculosis Diseases		1'0		'5	2'4	2.7	1.0		1'4	
neumonia		2.9	26'0	1'4	1.5	28.0	172	3 3	61.8	
espiratory Diseases		41.8		32.7	7'3	27	1'3	4'1	41	
ysentory		7'8	14'5		9.8	10'7	10*2	25'5	29'2	
iarrhœa		46.7	45'7	44'2	100	1 2020				
eratic Abscess		1'0	***	'5	1,5	4.0	2'5			
" Congestion	2012 100 100	4'9	4'2	6.7	1'2	6.7	3.8	2'1	7.5	1
ye Diseases		3.0	10'4	1 1 1 1 E E E E		116.0	144'6	35.1	31'9	1
næmia and Debility		8.8	12'5	10,1	158.5	21'3	22,3			H
bortion and other affections .			***		33.3	27	3'2			١
ffections connected with and parturition.	consequent on			***	3'7	307	26-8			ı
Il other diseases peculiar to women			42	3.8	23"2			7	-	١
enereal Diseases		3,9	"	30		-		7		
										ı
	ALL CAUSES .	72616	7217	694.5	402'4	537'3	459'9	259'5	421'9	
									Contract of the last	
DEATHS.									P. Santa	1
Diphtheria			***	***		***			1'36	
Interic Fever		'97	tor.	*43	1'22		-64	*69		1
feat-stroke		1195		.96						
Circulatory Diseases					2'44	***	1.52	- 169		
ubercle of the Lungs				***	3.65		16,1			
Convulsions								1,38	4'76	
Respiratory Diseases								413	444	
Dysentery			1'04	'48		***	***		-68	
Diarrhœa • • • •			***		i			1.38	2'72	
Hepatic Abscess					***					
Anzemia, Debility and Premature birt								1.38	3.13	
Abortion and affections connected wi: parturition.	h and consequent on			-	1'22		.64			
										Į.
							1 1			1
	ALL CAUSES	7:78	7.27	7'21	9.76	2.67	6.37	22'71	15.08	
	ALL CAUSES	7.78	7.27	7.21	9.76	2.07	0.37	22.71	19,98	L

TABLE XIII.

DEATHS OF CHILDREN BY AGES AND CAUSES.

AGE AT DEATH.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Diphtheria.	Enteric Fever,	Malaria,	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Tubereular Diseases.	Convulsions,	Respiratory Diseases.	Teething.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Anaemia, Debility and Immaturity at birth.	ALL CAUSES,	Average Annual Strength	Death rate per 1,000 of strength.	Liability. (The pregous columns expressed in percentages.)
sonths			***			***	***	5	2	***	***	3	6#	24	243	98'77	42'81
6 and 12 months	***	***	1	441		***	***	2	3	2		2		17	326	52(15	22760
2 and 18 ,				***				2	***		,			5	310	16'13	699
8 and 24 ,,			***									1		2	341	5.87	2'54
a years and 5 years					***			-							684		
5 ,, and 10 ,,		-	1						1					6	653	9,10	3.08
10 , and 15 ,			***											2	275	7.27	3'15
is ,, and upwards				1										2	93	21.2	9.32
	1		IIG.	183			-	1		1							
		-						-									-
	1	-	13.														
							1										
						1											
	1																
	1															-	
																	-
	-				-			-									
							1		-							-	
	1								1		-			1			
								-									-
												-					
	-	-	-		-	-	-		9	6	2	1	6	6 5	8 2,9	25+ 19	y'8s 8

[•] Premature birth.

† Includes none, not classed on the line of march.



TABLE C.

STATIONS by ARMIES.

Automorphism and the second					
STATIONS.	Height above the sea- level in feet.* Authority for height.+	STATIONS.	Height above the sea- level in feet.*	Authority for height.	Height above the sea-
Abbottabad Agra Allahabad Allahabad Allahabad Allahabad Allahora Ambala Ambock Bakloh Baksa Duar Bannu Baragali Bareily Barian Barrackpore Benares Campbellpere Cawapore Chakdara Changla Gulli Cherat Chirral Dacca Dargas Dehra Dun Delhi Dera Ismail Khan Dharmsala Dibrugarh Dinapore Drazidda Fatehgarh Ferozeoore Fort Abazai Fort Cavagnary Foet Jamrud Fort Lockhart Fort Shabkadar Fort William Fort Zam Fyzabad Gantok Gyantse Hangu Jandola Jatta Inelum Jullundur Khairagali Khajuri Katch Kila Drosh Kohat Kohat Kohima Lahare Cantonment Lanadowee Lucknow Malakand Fort Manipur Mardan Meerut Miran Shah Multan Nowahera Peshawar Ramalpindi Risalpore Rarki Shillong Sialkot Simla Solon Takdah Tank Thal	4,166	SOUTHERN ARMY:— Aden Agar Agar Ahmedabad Ahmednagar Ajmer Aurangabad Bangalore Baroda Bolgaum Bellary Bhamo Bolarum Bombay and Deolali Bushire Chaman Charbar Deesa Deoli Eriapura Fort Sandeman Goona Gumbaz Hindu Bagh Hyderabad Japur Jask Jhanni Jubbulpore Kamptee Karachi Khormaksar Kila Salfulla Ktrkee Kotah Loralai Madras Mandalay (Fort Dufferin) Mäymyo Mbow Murgha Musa Khel Muscat Myinkyina Nasirabad Neemuch Nowgong Ootacamund Pishin Poona Port Blair Ouetta Rangoon Robat Santa Cruz Satara Saugor Secunderabad Shelabagh Sibi St. Thomas' Mount Sumerpore Thayetmyo Trictionopoly Trivandrum	1,613 7,70 7,216 5,157 1,909 85,5;11 14 2,183 1,753 1,733 1,733 489 274	S. G	Extra India not in the Indian Command. Colombo Diyatalawa Hoog-Kong-(China). Singapore

These are usually the heights above sea-level of the survey-marks or of the mercury-surface in barometer-cistorns in the stations.

† S. G. = Surveyor-General of India; M. D. = Meteorological Department; I. B. = Intelligence Branch of the Division of the Chief of the :

M. O. = Medical Officers in charge of Station Hospitals in their Sanitary Reports.

TABLE XIV.

RATIOS of ARMIES.

The ratios of admissions and deaths to strength are taken from Table XVI,

				1	RAT	10 PE	R 1,000 OF THE AVERAG	E STRENGTH.
					Northern Army		Southern Army,	Army of India.*
RAGE ANNUAL STRENGTH		1.00			71,842	100	42,631	119,985
NSTANTLY SICK PER 1,000 O	THE AVERAG	E STRENGTE			34"4		34 9	33'9
				13	100	100	The same	and a bound of the
DMISSION RATE OF THE YE	A2			10				POSSESSE AND A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR
Influenza					1'9		-8	2'4
Cholera	e		4.		- 11		'0	
Small-pox	e	1	12		12		.3	3
Enteris Fever	1001-100	1300.	170.0		279		111	2'2
Malaria	en 121	170.			137'3		166'9	148.5
Sandfly Fovor	6 01	Die .	200		18'3		7'6	13,0
			2		30°3		7'5	22'3
Digrexia of uncertain origin		1	100				'2	'9
Plague			-		3'2		912	28
Tubercle of the Lungs .				1	16.0		8.7	12'9
Presmonia	and the			1			45'6	42'2
Respiratory Diseases .	0.00		1.		40'4	15		22'6
Dysentery · · ·	10 .00		6.51		27.5		15'1	18.2
Diarrhœa · · ·					15'9		22'9	The state of the state of
Hepatic {Abscess	Inflammation	: ::::	1	: .:	.9 -		1.7	1.2
Scurvy	W21 10	100	100		1'8		2'5	2'0
Venereal Diseases	DAY CH	1 1011		1000	27'5		38.7	31'3
Venereal Diseases		At	L CAUS	ses .	740'4		771'9	741'4
SEATH SATE OF THE YEAR-	6				1 4 500			'38
Cholera					-64			
Small-pox	14			1	-		*14	'51
Enteric Fever	14 1		17.0	1	1'38		*66	1.08
Malaria	1			1	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR			-
Sandfly Fever			100	1 1	129		*12	'22
Pyrexia of uncertain origin			180	1	'03		14	*07
Plague · · ·	30 19		1 19		'22		*40	.28
Circulatory Diseases	100 100		1 300				*21	. 32
Tubercle of the Lungs	130-13		170	13	3'26		1'71	2 62
Pneumonia .	1 19			1	-33		*38	. 33
Respiratory Diseases	1				*24		'16	. 20
Dysentery · ·				4 9	35		*05	.23
Diarrhosa				1	149			'04
Hepatic Abscess .				1	110		'09	.11
Anemia and Debility	11/2				-10			-

TABLE XV.

RATIOS of GEOGRAPHICAL GROUPS.

The ratios of admissions and deaths to strength are taken from Table XVI.

Lalands		re taken from Table XVI.	The same of the sa
Burna Coast			W . W . W
Harden Sick Per 1,000 OF THE AVERAGE STRENGTH THE AVERAGE STRENGTH		NW. SE. Rajpu- Indus tana, Valley, and India, NW. and Raj- Gentral and Raj- Gujarat.	West- South- Hill Ar
THE AVERAGE STRENGTH	-Average Annual St	51 28,791 7,570 11,009 1	1,192 2,896 24,896 119
Influenza	-CONSTANTLY SICE PER THE AVERAGE STR	2 35'0 33'3 43'5	40'3 33'1 30'3
Cholera	-Admission Rate of T		
Small-pox	Influenza	2 '2 1'2 2'4	45
Enteric Fever	Cholera	3 1'2 '1	'3 1:3
Malaria	Small-pox .	2 2 7	2.2 1.0 .3
Sandfly Fever	Enteric Fever	1 44 11 10	17 21 11
Pyrexia of uncertain origin . 109'2 4'0 85'0 159'1 110'7 36'5 30'6 5'9 4'2 1'7 '7 8'1 Plague	Malaria .	7 144'1 65'5 104'7 1	199'7 69'1 201'3 1.
Plague		2 38.8 15.1 1.2	8-6.
Tubercle of the Lungs	Pyrexia of uncertain	5 30.6 5.9 4.2	1,2 ,2 8,1
Paseumonia	Plague	5 0 1 4	'7 '0
Respiratory Diseases		3 3.4 3.0 3.9	50 28 24
Dysentery 8'1 10'3 22'7 55'5 9'9 20'4 37'2 14'3 21'6 45'3 3'5 15'6 Diarrhœa 1'3 25'7 35'2 8'3 11'1 13'9 17'2 12'0 19'5 23'5 11'7 19'5 Hepatic {Abscess		0 18.7 10.8 6.5	13.6 3.3 13.8 1
Diarrhoza		9 47'4 55'2 53'2	46-1 25-6 38-8
Hepatic {Abscess		4 37'2 14'3 21'6	45'3 3'5 15'6 2
Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation . 1'3 1'8 2'5 1'6 .9 '7 1'1 1'5 2'5 2'4 1'1 Scurvy		9 17'2 12'0 19'5	23.2 11.7 19.5 1
Scurvy	Hepatic & Congestio		
Venereal Diseases . 71'4 49'6 29'7 61'3 25'0 36'9 23'8 29'2 55'0 82'2 62'5 18'6 ALL CAUSES . 913'7 994'5 660'1 988'4 463'3 685'6 811'5 772'3 804'4 820'3 673'3 688'2 IV.—Death rate of the year— Cholera	Scurvy		
IV.—DEATH RATE OF THE YEAR— Cholera	Venereal Diseases		
Cholera	ALL CA	6 811'5 772'3 804'4 8	820'5 673'3 688'2 74
Small-pox	-DEATH RATE OF THE		
		2 '49 '13	1'00
Enteric Fever		2 1'04 '13 '18 .	*32
Sandilly Favor		7 '90 '26 '27 .	2'85 1
Pyrexia of uncertain origin			
Plague			100
Circulatory Diseases	The state of the second st		
Tubercle of the Lungs		40 33	
Pneumonia	-		
Respiratory Diseases	Respiratory Diseases	- 32	
Dysentery	Dysentery		
Diarrhoea			
Hepatic Abscess			
Ansemia and Debility			
ALL CAUSES : 6'74 12'50 1'42 3'31 8'00 7'11 10'11 4'36 5'81 3'36 4'14 12'41	ALL CAT	10'11 4'36 5'81 3:	3'36 4'14 12'41 8'3

TABLE XVI.

RATIOS of STATIONS, GROUPS, and ARMIES.

	it.					1. A	DMIS	SION	RATI	£.			191001110	Y.		14-	170	- 3	2. Dg	ATH	RATE.				
TATIONS AND GROUPS.	Average annual strongth.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fover.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoga.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anæmia and Debi- lty.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK RATE.	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre,	Gonorrhera.
Blair	190{			. ::		1,110'5				26.3		5'3	21'1			5'3				31.6	1,489'5 }	57*9		5'3	26.3
09 -	552{			1		16.3		1467		1'8	1.8	1'8	7'2	10.0	1.8		1'8		36.5	85'1	715'6 }	27.2	19'9	39'9	25
1Bur-)						206.2		109'2		8-1	1.3	2'7	10'8	8.1	1.3	1'3	1.3		27.0		011'7)		148	31.0	
SLANDS.	742 {					2,70	=										1.32	-			6.743	35.0			-
myo	423 {				::	431°6 4'73				11 8 4'73			23.6				4'7	=	4-7		1,189'1 }		23%		1
	1,268 {	-	-8			281°5 '79 316°7		14'7	2.0	3,0	179	7'3	63.0		24'9	-	4'4		17.6		9,46	41'8		337	**
yina	343 {					508-6		1'47	1'47	2'9	30	28.7	46.0	-						5.8	7'33 } 1,000°0 } 34'48 }	34'5		5-8	
P II.—	2:721 {		-4			342.9		4'0	.33	3.3	3.6				100000		1.8	1000	10'7	49.6	994'5 }	43'0	9,5	16.3	24
AIRCARD						3.31		'37	1 30	110	37	104	'37	-				-			11307				
ur · ·	65{	46.5	=			384.6		76%	-			-	107"7		15'4					=	907.71	61.2	-	::	
	559 {	=	=	-	5'4	37.6		96.6		10'7	3.6				46'5	179		***	5'4		645'8}		161	-	
ach	82 {	4'2			4*2	68.0		850		8.2	2.8	2.8	-		38.2	1'4			4*2	12'2	561.0}			1'4	12
им}	706 {	-														1'42					1'42}	32.6			-
William .	879 {	4.6	=		=	62.6	=	196'8	::	1,1	::	5'7	87.6	43.0	10*2		3'4	2'3	56-9	64'8	3,41 }	69°4	12.2	18-2	34
	312 {	3.5	=		=	737	::	57*7	::	3'2	=	3.51	99*4	70.2			::	::	160	54'5	3'21 }	41.7	19'2	16'0	19
ckpore .	s{	=	=		18	5000		125'0			::		125'0	2500	1250		::	::	==		1,50000}	125'0			
Duar	8 {	=	=				::	=	::	::	-			=	::	::	::		::	=	50000}	125'0	1.1	111	
P IV.—	1,207	4	-	-	-	67.0	10000	159'1	-	17		6.6	100	55'5	8.3		2'5	17	45.6	61'3	988.4 }	63.0	141	17'4	29

TABLE XVI-continued.

RATIOS of STATIONS, GROUPS, and ARMIES.

	4 1		_	_	-			SSION			-		JPS, c		-	903	-	DHAT	TH BA	TE.			
	strength	1		-		1		uncertain		21	the		cases.	1	15	.50	ation.		P	ses.	H	SICK	
STATIONS AND GROUPS,	annual	-		S.	Fever.		Fever.	42		ory Dise	jo o	nia.	ory Disease	9.	7	Absort	Congestion.		y. and	J Disea	CAUSES.		,
	Avérage	Influenza	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever,	Pyrexia origin.	Piagoc.	Circulatory Disease	Tabercle Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory	Dysentery	Diarrhosa	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic and Inf	Scurvy.	Anaemia Debility.	Venereal Diseases	ALL CA	CONSTANTLY RATE.	Syphilis.
В	(24	2'4	29'1	2'4	2'4		73	2.4	2.4	65'4	48					41'2	41'2	556.0}	31'5	
Dinapore Benares	902		1'1	1,1	1,11	610	***	171		111	2.2	6.7	22'2	45'5	16.6				#8 8 4'43	23.3	603.1 }	36.6	210
Allahabad	1,150	1'7			1.7	31'3	***	226		5.3	4'2	12'2	41'7	9.6	2.6		3.2		19"1	34.8	544'3 }	22.6	5'2
Fyzabad	736 {				6.3	14'9	***	53.1		2.7	8.3	8.3	40'8	8-2	6.8		6.8		49.0	316	6.79}	24'5	8*2
Lucknow	1,598 {					3.1		10.0		3.8	1.0	6°9	30'7	3.1	1811	-			***	***	405'5}	19'4	
Campore	929 {	:::	3.2		1.1	38-8	2'2	11.8			1.08	3.3	51.8	1.1	12.0		2.3		12.0	16.1	920.2	19.4	***
GROUP VGAN-	1,025 {		=			68	-			5'98	3.0	1.82	30.5	1.0	10'7				19'5	10.6	4.88	27'3	
GROUP V.—GAN- GRTIC PLAIN AND CHUTIA NAGPUR.	6,753 {	.3	·6 -44		1.2	24'0		10.7		3.6	3'4	6.7	33.8	970	11,1		1'6		21.5	25.0	463.3 }	24'7	3.3
							1	F		-		-					-	-					
A Bareilly	1,240 {					30.6	.8	*8		4.0		7'3	66'1	16.0	24'3		1.6		15'.	53.3	534'7 }	45'2	7'3
Rtrki	1,051			1'0		1'0	3.8	1'0		1,0	1.0	10.5	13.3		1154		3.0		7.6	10'5	244'5 }	13'3	2'9
Dehra Dun	2,894		·7 ·35		1'7	133'7				411	7'9	16.6	37'7	14'5	17.6				20'0	41.8	9'675	38.4	11'4
Meerut	1,776	11	1'1		-6	49'0		16'1		1,1	2.8	7'3	21'4	8.4	3'9				8:4	33'2	528.5}	26'5	8*4
Delhi	1,651	-	1,3		3.6	222'9		.61			1'2	26°0 6.06	46'0	9'7	321				51'5	26-6	771'7 }	30'3	12'1
Ambala	2,107				1'4	123'9		10,0	.5		1.9	18.0	29'9	21.8	2.3			1'4	11.0	64'5	3.80}	35'6	7.6
Jullandar	2,158				3'2	1257		-5		178	1.8	21.0	33'8	8.3	9.6		3.7		68-1	21'5	7:3'0 }	32'4	475
Ferozepere	1,046	170			3.8	78.4		35'4		29	1'9	15'3	14'3	30.6	7.6				18.2	25'8	557'4 }	21.0	6.7
Lahore Cantonment	2.254 {				1'3	53'4		587			5.5	15'5 4'86	51'2	6.6	'44	***			1914	30'9	10.60 (2916	
Sialkot	1,923 {	***			5'7	102'4		8.3	.52	***	2.6	3,15	24'4	101	3.6	***			11'4	16.1	532.0}	21.8	.5
Jhelum	3.125	1.0			.64	1696		113.0	***	10'6	7'4	21'0	43'2	***	.35	***	1.6		***	53'4	972'5 6'72} 853 8 {	47'7	6'01
Rawalpindi .	2,319 {			1 1		31.3	111	110'0	40	400		4.76	45'8	.40	*40					6.2	8'34 }	46'1	
Campbellpore .	124 {			-		33'6					8.1				***					8'1	629.0 }	13.1	-
GROUP VI)	- ('2		*2	271	8'06		***		5'5	4.0	16'0	34'9	20'4	1379				23.3	3619	8.06 }		8.1
UPPER SUB-	24,051		'12		162	'37		36.2		100		2.78	.29	-08	'12						7'11}	34'0	-
A Mardan					5.3	****	85'2	10	-1	110	10.6	2000	129'7		4.5		-8		40*7	158	973.63		3.0
Noushera	3,382	1.8	8-6		1'51	50,0	77	23'1		1'5	1.3	5'28 11'8 2'37	75 24.5	2.6	4'5 5'3		-6		13.6	18.6	8'29 (459'0 (3,5	4'4
Risalpur · · · Peshawar · ·	4,416			***	2	66.8	53'7	37'9 '88 34'0		1.8	5'2	9.3	62.6	6-6	10,0				47.6	340	2.62 } 825.0 }	35'3	2.6
	1	***	'23					.45	***	45		3.65)					'45	23	7'475	1	.53

	t.		7177,E	HYS	oct to	1	ADMI	SSION	RAT	E.	yod	11111	minh	1		2	Des	тн Б	CATE.		1				
IONS D UPS,	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandily Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague,	ry Dise	Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debi- lity.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK RATE.	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.	Gonorrhora,
ed .	168 {			-		120'4	27.8	55'6	700			18.2	37.0	11	55.6		::	:::	=	18-5	9'38'9}	27'8	9"3	9'3	***
	3,510 {				51 57	151.6	35.6			2'8		16.2	35'6	11'4	23.0	·6			10'5	137	6368} 7.69}	16'5	4"3	1.7	7
-	99 {		11					200	1000		=	=		101.0	10,10				30.3	20'2	20.30}	30'3			20
	3,577 {		·6		13.7	226'4	72"1			1'7	3.6	31°3 6'43	28.2	53'4	1279			111	21'8	26.0	859'7 }	37'5	5'9	7'0	12
il Khan	2,292 {			.4	2'2	159'7		THE REAL PROPERTY.		8.3	2.6	8.39 30,2	33.5	38-8	61			3'1	14.8	35'3	778'4 }	54'1	13.1	6.1	11
	1,658 {			::	1.3	434'3 1'81	1	93.0		2'4		26'5 6'03	29.6	1.51				9.0	44*0	7'2	1,416'2 }	47'0	1.8	-6	1
	59 {	-		::	33-9	830'5	=	33.0	=				16.0	271.2	=	::	=	::	67-8		1,66110)	16'9			
	57 {	=	1.1			35'1	2				=		::	105'3		::	17.5	-		=	189.5	35'1	-	11	
	112 {	=		=		151.8	=	So-4 	=		=	44°6 26°79	17'9	91	17'9		1.7		27'3	21.6		316	3'4	97	
	1,756 {	=	-			49.0	-	1'14	-			1'71	647		64.7			-	-57		2.693	-			
ai .	139{	=		-	=	244'6		14'4	=				-						7.0	***	1,154'9}				
kadar .	142	-	31.13	-	=	303.0		1.04					-	35.2			-		34"2	***	1,543'5				
h B.	1,288		=		31°8 776	6.51		18.6		.8	8	8'54		250.8	87'0	.78	-	6014			1,491'8				
	138		=	-	6.1	347.6	-	103'7		-		42'7	7'25	176'8	24'4			42'7			7°25 1,176'8 67'07	16.6	18.3	-	
Cach .	64	-			10000	453'1				156		31.3	265'6		46.9				31.3		31.52)	15.0		150	-
C. ad (Sind)				1	1.0	44'3		4.8	1-0	6-7		1.0		1'9	4*8				10.6	30-5	349'4	23"	1.0	11'5	
	2,331					55.8	==	12'0		211		9'4			19";			7 12'9		517	828-83 6'01)		1073	18.0	
VILN, RONTIER, VALLEY, NORTH- BEN RAJ-	28,791	{	2 1.	9	2 4'4		38-8	301	5	27		4 18"		4 37	2 17	4 0	7 '0	7 5	3 11	8 23"	8 811'5	35"		3 .7	

TABLE XVI-continued.

RATIOS of STATIONS, GROUPS and ARMIES.

	_	T	é			84		AIIO	-				RATI		181	-	ga .		2. Di	EATH	RATE		1			-
STATIO: AND GROUP	NS S.	1	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES,	CONSTANTLY SICK RATE.	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre,
A	120	-									100				100000000000000000000000000000000000000		1	THE PERSON NAMED IN		The state of the s		The same of			The second second	Salation of the last
Decsa .			35 {		11.	11	::		57'1	11		11	11	11	114'3	28.6						111	600'0}	28.6	11.	
Ahmedabad			15 {	111	- 11			2,133'3		200'0	-	::	11	::	66:7	11 2			-			11	3.331.3}	66'7	11 :	11
Baroda			625{	11		11	1.6	190'4		::	11	3'2	1.6	6:4	70'4	51.5	17-6	::			28.8	88'0	6.40}	43'2	48	
B	111		236{		-	-		8.3			1	4'2	4'2	21'2	237'3	25'4	25'4	-	-	4.5	42'4	25'4	644'1 }	21'2		
Neemuch	-		291	3'4	-	-	:	85.0	96-2			6.9		13'7	51'5	3'4	17.2			-	3'4	41'2	773'2 }	27'5	137	-
Dedi .		1	44 {			1 11 1	1		-			-	1 1	68-2		227	1		-	-	:	-	204'5}		:	-
Nasirabad			448 {					24'6	-		3.3	31'3	11'2	3.3	29 0		13'4		3.5	-	40.3	31'3	544'6}	29'0	6.7	
Ajmer			428 {	18.7		-		7*0		2.3			47		18 7	47	11.7		1	117		23'4	397'2}	187	187	
Jaipur		-	29 {					69.0			1	1	1			-		-	-	-	1	34'5	12	34'5	11	1 11
Agra .		-	498-{	11	2'05	-	200	47 1		12.3		10'2		10'2	38'9		12'3	-	2'0		18.4				6:1	20'5
		-	1					-	***			- 03			-	-		-	-	-	-	-	0.5)	16		

	gth.	10	14.8	11/1	11.1		t.	ADM	118810	N R	ATE.	1210		12.0	1	. Di	EATH	RAT	re.		1				
FATIONS AND ROUPS.	Average annual strength,	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs	Pneumonia,	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anæmia and Debi- lity.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK RATE,	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.	Gannerhana.
6	2,573 {				1.6	16.7	31'5	8-6	16 1.0	3'1	1'9	4'7	39'3	18.3	74	:	4		326	28 8	825°5 } 5.83 }	41'6	3.2	9'7	15
ng	87 {				-	57°5	-		11			11.2	46'0	=	23'0	::		-	33.0	23.0	724"1	34'5	::		23
120 000	326{			-	3.1	79'8	-	3"1	::	6.1	6.1	6°s 3°07	36.8	9'2			3.1		3'1	27.6	705.2 }	30"7	6.1	9'2	12
	220{	111	::	:::	11	140'9	=			4'5	4'55	4'55	36.4	4'5	18.5	::	4'5		27.3	22.7	9'09}	40'9	 9'1	4.2	9
ur	93{		=		=	494-6		21.2		I		21'5	43'0	86.0	129'0			-	=	21'5	967.7}	10*8		21'5	
-	14{	11	==	-		71'4	-	::	11	111		-	71'4				=	-		-	214'3}	71.4		::	
	1,618{	11			-6	78.5	1.0	6-2	=	117	3.1	22'2	79"1	2.2	9'3		1.0		40.8	8.7	3.71	26.0	=	3'7	
EASTERN FANA, AL INDIA, UJARAT	7,570{	1"2	13		113	65.2	15'1	5'9		7'1	2'9	1.35	55'2	14'3	12'0		111		28*4	2972	772'3 }	33'3	4'5	7'4	1
	1739																	-					H		
100	1,541 {			1.3		38.0			-65			9°1	13.6	1,30	7.8		1'3		2816	20"1	371.8		5'8	10'4	
pore .	1,771 {	1"1			1.1	37*8	2.3	10,5		2.3	4'5	7'9	47°4 '56	13.6	5.6			1.7	31'1	41.2	273.0}	52.2	10"7	13.6	1
ee	155{				6.3		6.2	116 1	=	6.2			45°2	6-5	6.2	::	=	::	58°1 6°45	12'9	7226}	32.3			1
			-						1								The same of								
B gabad	115	-				200'0						8.7	43'5	8.7	8-7			8.7	870	60.0	1,139*1	34'8	8.7	26'1	100
inagar .	1,018	2'0			-	99'2		27		7'5	3'9	12.8	103,3		26*5		3.8	15'7	15.7	54'0	825°1 7'86	42"1	246	5'9	
m .	627	:			-	108'5		1.5			17		44'7		20'7	-:			15'9	3.3	623.6	25'5		:::	-
derabad	. 1,874	111	2		-		3	'5	3	2.1	3 '5	3 1'07					1.6	-	127	*53	6'40	5 34.	14'4	1	
um .	. 668	1	-	100		1017	0		1.3	5 19	0	3.99				-		-	1	1	1000		3 22"		
	. 131	1 7				335	76		6				917	5 7	A 10 CO CO		THE REP.			43	7.63	} 38	2 7		1

TABLE XVI-continued

н 2

TABLE XVI—continued.

RATIOS of STATIONS, GROUPS and ARMIES.

	eth.		-17			-	1. A	DMISS	non l	RATE		100	or to			2.	DEA	TH I	RATE.		*			-
STATIONS AND GROUPS,	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoea.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anaemia and Debi-	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.
Pocna	1,586{		=======================================		41	289.0	11 11		'5 '8 '82	6.4	1.6	5'3 1'66 4'9	56.7	20'4	38.2		'5 '8	1'6 '53		74'8	1,120°9 2°65 928.0 7°36	50%	25.	
GROUP IX}	11,009 {	3°4 		7	10	104'7	1.2	4.3	.4	61	2.6	6.2	23,5			-	1.5	2.7	19'7	55.0	804'4	43'5	14"	17'1
Bombay & Deolali Santa Crur Trivandrum GROUP X.— } WESTERN COAST.	807 { 326 { 59 { 1,192 {			3'7	1'2	275°1 42.9 33°9	=======================================	2'5	=	6.5	3'7 9'2 5'0	12'4 3'72 15'3 	50°8 30°7 67°8 	45'8 1'24 52'1 45'3 '84	32.2		2.2	2'5	27'3	79'8	1,002'5 } 4'90 } 4'90 } 820'5 } 3'30 }		1273	491
Bangalore	26{ 1,704 { 389 {		2.6	1'8		91'0	11 11	1'2	1'17	12'3	2'3	 11.7 '59	38.2	1'2	15'3		2.3		-	66'3	230°8} } 667°3 } 4°69}	38 5	11.7	204
St. Thomas' } Mount. Madras	700{		-			28'6			=	7'1	5.7	10.0	31'4	7'1			1.4		"	42'9	5'145 374'3} 2'86} 844'2}	22'9	57	71
GROUP XI.— SOUTHERN INDIA.	2,896{	=			2'1	69.1		7	.71		2.8	9'3	25.6	3'5	000000		2.4		21.8	62.5	673'3}	33.1	11.0	24'5
Maymyo	1,335 {	=		00001		225'5	11	1.2		7.5		3.7	33'7	4.5	200			212	15'7	26.	681-6}	32'2	8-2	11,3
Kohima	3 {	=			=	=	=		N1550-41	=		-	333.3		10000	=				=	6667}	333.3	-	=
Shillong Gantok	731 {	58-8	1'37		6.8	618-3	= -	66-7		2.7	174	13'7	43'8	94.4	'	37				-	396-7 }		-	10'9
Gyantse	146 {	20'5			=		=	27.4			3	10"5	13'7	6.8	6.8				1		260'3}	2006		
Almora	348 -	=			1'2						4'7 1	4"2	-4-12	4'2		12					389'2 }		4'7	27"1

	th.	-	51.01	120	A		1. A	DMISS	ION I	RATE		M'HI	(Mills	and it		10	2. D	EATH	RATE						
STATIONS AND GROUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera,	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	2	Inbercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debi- lity.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK-	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.	Gonorrhæa,
sdowne	1,660 {		*6	1'2		16.0				.60 3	4'2	14'5	34'9	4'2	600	.6	1.5	=	3.6	12.0	371'1 }	22'9		4.8	6-6
dah .: ·	206{		::			58.3		34'0			977	14'6 14'56	14.6	49	97			=	146	4'9	737'9}	340	4'9		
n	389 {		5"14		15'4	110'5		56.6			==	10'3	5'1	15'4	28'3		::		20'6	38.6	1,028-3}	50'1	3.6	18.0	18'0
	140{	:-				1500	:	T:		-		7'14	28'6	57"1		::		:::		100'0	7'14}	21'4	7'1	35"7	57'1
rmsala	827 {	13'3	12'1			1197		10.0		4*8	2'4	26.6	174'1	3.6	15'7		1"2		8.2	32-6	736-43	35'1	10'9	4.8	16'9
loh • •	867 {	61.1		1.3	2'3	291'8	=	12'7		2'3	6'9 3'46	25'4 2'31		21'9	13'8	::	=	:::	4'6	12"7	820'1}	42'7	5.8	2'3	4.6
iragali	89 {	11'2	23'5		11.3	33'7				11'2		22'5	33'7	22.5		::	-				359'6 }	22'5	:		=
agali · ·	98{					40.8		::					=		::		=	:	40"8	10°2	387.8}	20'4	=		10'2
anglagali .	40 {		-		:		-	25.0	==		=		25'0	::	25'0			::			1250}	25'0	::	=	
ian · ·	88{	-	=	::	-	56.8	11'4	::		11'4		-:	34'1	11'4	11:4		-	::	=	::	318.5	22'7	=		
tral	153{					13.1	294'1	26'1	==	::		13'1	6.2	::	13.1		=		19.6	6.2	810.25	19'6	=	6.2	0
Drosh	740 {					10.8	140'5	16.5	=	=	1.4			-:	36.2		2.7		10'8	4'1	708:1}	21.6		1'4	2.7
lakand	931{				-	132'1		5'4		3,1		1973	24.7		19'3	-	-		17*2	11.8	762.6 }	25.8	2'1	4'3	5'4
rgai	484 {		2'07		-	53'7	2.1	2-1		2"1	::	127	99**	::	4"1	=	12.4		62	4'1	634.3}	20'7	=		2'1
akdara	405	3.7			-	61'7	4'9	74				7.	71'6		3.2					::	233.3	22.2			-
bottabad .	3,246		4':		.31			6.3	=	1.8							-		5'9	25'3	37'58)		2'2	10.8	12,3
erat .	. 78 {	=				51';		25.0	=			=	12'8		12.8		=	***	16.0	***)		12.8		40
ert Lockhart	. 500		=		- 10	3060		4.0	-	0 9.8		0 13	8 135	45:2			3.00		13.8		2'00 1,457'8 5'89	40*			7'9
et Cavagnary	. 509	1		-		177		-		-			209*	1	16-	-	-			16-		16.			
ort Sandeman	. 906		1		27		4	161		100	2 1	40.0		3 77	86					***	322°6	,		***	6.6
indebagh .	. 31-		-		-	388	***	32.	-		-				-				22"		755'6	1 3.	2		-10
lusa Khel .	90-		-			96	8	129	0									100	32"		354.8	} 32	3		
ila Saifulla Iurgha	. 133	5				210	5	15	0				. 22	6 30	1 30	1		7	5 15		B1 85		0		
	1				_	1	_	-	-	-	-	3		-	-										

TABLE XVI-concluded.

TABLE XVI-concluded.

RATIOS of STATIONS, GROUPS, and ARMIES.

	ą.	-	150	HM	15.		1. /	DMIS	SION	RAT	E.	all a		OA.		1	2. I	DEAT	H RAT	e.	4			To the same
STATIONS AND GROUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	y Dise	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Angemia and Debi- lity.	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK RATE.	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.
Loralai	1,121 {	=			1.8	34572		:0.6	::	1'8	-89	4'5	12.2	3.6	12'5		4'5		35.7	7'1	939'3 }	35'7	1.8	1 6
Gumbaz	20 {	:::	::			100.0			::				::		11			***	500		250.0}	500	***	110
Quotta	6,232 {				·6	132'1		2,1		7.1	1'4	3'37	26.8		16.9		-5		16.0			24'2	2.6	
Robat	306 {		=		=	228.8				13.1	3'3	3'3	26.1	35'9	16.3	::	3.3		6.5	22'9	784'3 } 6'54 }	35'9	6.5	1
Pishin	452{		-			88.2	17.7	3.3	11	3.31		50°9	59'7		17.7				24'3	24'3	11.00} 012.0}	15'5		177
Shelabagh	77 {	=		,: 1		155-8	::						13.0		51'9		-	::	64'9	-	389.6}	13'0		11
				1.7								0		-		*	1						E. S.	1
Chaman	822 {		=		-	20'7		3.6		-	1.3	15'8	122	-	15'8			3'65		3.6	10.32 }	12'2	1'2	-
Ootacamund .	70 {		=		11	312,0	11	-				42'9	42'9	42'9	-	-			14'3		700°0 } 28'57 }	14'3		101
GROUP XII HILL STA-	24,896{	4.5	1,3		1'1		8.6	8.1		41.	2.4	12.8	38-8	15'6	19'5	'2' '08	111			18'6	68842 }	3073	3'1	6.4
Marching in India	1,362 {	::			773		279	147		6.6	::	4'4		18.4	13"2		1.2	1'5	8.1	19'8	450'1 } 5'87 }	6-6	2"2	7-3 1
Thal Operations .	1,152	33'6				448:4	8-6	2.6	::	3'4		3.4	20'7	31.0	31.8		1 1		6.0	9'5	850.3 }	15.2		
EXTRA INDIA. (a) In the Indian Command .				-			No.					1000					The state of		1		200		1	3
Charlar	90	-			::	S11'1						:		100'0					33'3		55'56}	33'3		
Jask	165	=	::		-	739'4	-	::		18'2		6.1	6.1	109.1	12"1			54'5	12"1	18:2	1,333.3 }	30'3		
Muscat	882 {	-			12.5	1,654'2		23 8		2.3	3.4	5'7		40"8	254'0 1'13		14'7		55°6 1'13	12'5	2,480'71	49'9	1.1	2,3
Bushire	205	::	-			58.3	14'6			9.8			9.8		4'9			4'9	9.8	43'9	365'9}	19'5	19.2	9.8
Aden	541					273'6	310'9	1	=	1.8	-		46.5	20.3	38.8		11	14'8	3'7	20'3	1,266'2 }	35.1	7'4	7-4

-	gtb.				1. A	DMISS	ION F	ATE.	10				100	2. 1	DEAT	H R	TE.								
TATIONS, AND GROUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera,	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria,	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	23.5	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhona.	Hepatic Abscess.	Hepatic Congestion	Scurvy.	Anaemia and Debi-	Venereal Diseases.	ALL CAUSES.	CONSTANTLY SICK RATE.	Syphilis.	Soft Chancre.	Gonorrhat.
naksar -	46 {			I	-	43'5	130'4	21-7			217		87.0	-	11.		***	1.1		21'7	587.0}	43.5	217	-	
lot in the ian Com-	430{			11	11	16'3	11	125'6	::			-	72'1	9.3	4'7	No. of Lot	11	11.	16.3	67:4	846*5}	30.5	7'0	30'2	30.5
alawa 1ylon)	312 {		11 2		11 Bu	3'2		83'3	THE SHAME		128	9.6	38'5	12'8	25'6	11	11 21	-	16'0	25°6	541'7}	22'4	9.6	11	160
spore	105		-			9'5		11		11			56-7		19'0		11	NA II	85.4	28.6	361°91 9°52}	28'6	9.5	9'5	9'5
g-Kong,	2,141		1 15	1		10.00	-	36.9	1.1	4'2		6.1	57*4	11'7	2'8		.2		35'5	22'9	488°6} 5°60}	26'6	.9	6.5	15'4
MY OF	119,985	2 "	2 1	738	3 27		13'9	22'3	.07	4.6	2'8		42*2		18'2	11	1'2				744'4}	33'9	6.5	10'2	14.6
iA	115,835	1	5	7	3 2"			21'7	.'07	4'6	3.		42'1								748/6 }	34'3	6.7	10"3	14'5
ATHERN ARMY	71,842	{ !!	9 1	4	3 1"	137	7.6	*29	'03	6.1	2"	3,30	45.6	151	32,0	.0	1.7	2.2	.10	337	740'4 10'08} 771'9 6'52}	34'4		9'1	

TABLE XVII.

ABSTRACT of the CANTONMENT SANITARY REPORTS of the most UNHEALTHY STATIONS, SANITARY DEFE

(The ratios of sickness and mortality will be found in Table XVI.)

NORTHERN ARMY.

Fort William and Alipore.-The diseases which have been most prevalent were :-

- (1) Pyrexia of the nature of '3 days' fever' occurred in the months of June, July, August and September.
- (2) Malaria-in January, February, and March; and again in October and November.

The health of the 16th Rajputs, stationed in Fort William, was bad for the first nine months in the year; fair in October and government and December. The bad state of health may be attributed to climatic rather than to any special insanitary conditions. in November and December.

The cavalry lines in Alipore (Ballygunge) have drains which are for the most part kutcha. Where there are brick drains require repairs, and where there are kutcha drains they should be made pucca. The matter has been represented to Officer Command Royal Engineer.

The drainage of the Indian troops hospital at Alipore is unsatisfactory. The ground around the building and within the hospital of pound is generally a swamp in the rains. Nothing has been so far done to remedy this defect. Jheels and tanks are abundant, and cavalry lines are breeding places for mosquitos.

Shillong .- Malaria was most prevalent during July, August, and September, and was due to the men having to march a great

Dejecta is partly incinerated and partly trenched. Urine is trenched. The Senior Medical Officer remarks:—"The lines have been declared unsafe for human habitation. They are damp and difficult to disinfect. The suggestion for remedying this state of affairs is reconstruction throughout, any other means are metalliative."

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, remarks as follows :-

"The barracks are so dilapidated that I consider it advisable on medical grounds to give them up altogether and only occupy Happy Valley camp which is most satisfactory in every way except in its water supply. This should be piped from the Shillong water wo The site of the present barracks has become so surrounded with native "busices" that infectious disease easily finds its way into

Dera Ismail Khan .- (1) Pneumonia is the most prev alent disease amongst the troops. The marked deficiency in the rainfall and consequent increase in dust has been suggested as the cause of prevalence.

(2) The water supply is sufficient but contains a large quantity of salts, and is derived entirely from shallow wells.

Some of the defects pointed out by the Assistant Director, Medical Services, in his last year's reports have been removed, but want funds made other improvements impracticable. Latrines have been kept in good repair. The new cattle shed was completed durithe year under report. It is supervised by the cantonment staff and inspected periodically by a Medical Officer. A kutcha floor been made for the present but a pucca floor will be provided later if funds permit. Owing to the increased garrison, tempor latrines have had to be constructed, no funds being available to provide iron latrines of ordinary type.

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, of the Brigade, states :-

- (1) "The provision of the increased latrine accommodation in place of the temporary latrines is essential to meet the increastrength."
- (2) " There is room for improvement in carrying out the detailed work in the dairy."
- (3) "Trenching of urine requires closer supervision."
- (4) " A destructor for sweepings and garbage is needed."

Jhelum .- Malaria, venereal and dysentery have been the most prevalent diseases during the year.

Incineration is carried out as far as the limited supply of litter permits.

There has been very little trouble with drainage this year owing to the small rainfall.

The cavalry lines are the worst, being very old. The Hydaspes lines are also in bad condition and require rebuilding as soon as mo becomes available.

SOUTHERN ARMY.

Belgaum.—Night-soil is destroyed by incineration at latrines sites. No land within cantonment limits is manured with sewa There are several large burrow pits in cantonment, which are gradually being filled in. There is always stagnant water in the Fort m in which mosquitos breed. This is difficult to deal with owing to its extent. Water supply is entirely from wells. There is a lanumber of wells in the bazaar and all are liable to pollution. Drawing and distribution is by hand. The cantonment boundary is near the various barracks, and rice cultivation is carried on immediately outside the boundary near the Indian Infantry lines. It suggested that the general question of the drainage of cantonments be held in abeyance till the water supply scheme is considered.

Trichinopoly. - Scabies and dengue fever to a certain extent are prevalent among the Indian troops.

The drainage carries the surface sullage to a septic tank, This septic tank as such is useless and a misnomer. This was point out to the Deputy Assistant Director, Medical Services (Sanitary), during his recent inspection. The septic tank has now been clouded and the surface sullage is being utilized for the purpose of cultivation.

The Senior Medical Officer remarks:—

"The new barracks badly require stone flooring. The school building requires reroofing with tiles. The present drains requirement and proper repairs. A new main drain must be constructed to carry the surface and sullage water to the posed area of cultivation, as the septic tank has been odered to be closed."

Kirkee .- Malaria is the prevailing disease in the station and is largely due to imported cases amongst recruits.

Owing to the nature of the ground it is impossible to cultivate the whole trenching ground. A large portion was, however, put uncorp and proved successful. The deep trenching system is in vogue for the majority of the area.

Incineration is carried out throughout the cantonment except for servants' latrines in officer's compounds, the contents of which removed by carts.

TABLE XVII -- concluded.

STRACT of the CANTONMENT SANITARY REPORTS of the most UNHEALTHY STATIONS, SANITARY DEFECTS, IMPROVEMENTS, SUGGESTIONS, ETC.

The Officer Commanding the Station Hospital remarks:—"A marked improvement in the sanitation of the bazaar and cantonit generally has taken place during the year. There is a scheme for the reconstruction of drainage for the bazaar which has been
mitted for sanction to the higher authorities. A vegetable market for the Bazaar is desirable. A system of pucca surface drainage
and the arsenal and factory barracks is needed."

The Assistant Director, Medical Services of the division is of opinion:—"That the incidence of malaria is heavy in Kirkee, but the ce to the general configuration of the ground which it is practically impossible to improve at any cost.

Port Blair.—Malaria in the station was worse than usual during the year. The mainland, where two companies have been quartered lose to the sea but lies between two salt water swamps. The Indian troops are quartered in three barracks formerly occupied by the tary Police. These lines also lie close to one of these swamps. Besides this the Police occupy lines close to them and they uselves suffer badly from malaria. One swamp is being slowly reclaimed but it will be a long time before the work is completed.

Poona.—Malaria was chiefly prevalent amongst men of the to2nd Grenadiers who had returned from Muscat and the Persian f. The drainage of the lines of the 7th Hariana Lancers is bad. The drains are old, indifferently constructed and broken in places.

The lines of the 7th Hariana Lancers are bad. The huts are old, and dilapidated. Walls of kutcha bricks are crumbling away at es. Floors are of mud. The lines are said to be infested with fleas. The followers' lines of the corps are even worse. They can only described as deplorable.

Latrines and urinals are good. The removal system is adopted and disposed of outside cantonment limits.

Jubbulpore.-Malaria was one of the most prevalent diseases in the station. Mosquito nets are not used by the Indian troops.

Incineration is carried out at the latrines. From some of the smaller latrines and from private latrines the night-soil is removed to nearest incinerator. There are no trench latrines.

The bazaar markets are not satisfactory; surface drainage also is unsatisfactory. These and many other minor defects have been cussed by the Cantonment Committee, but no money is vailable for new work.

Incinerators and soak pits are in use. The former are fairly satisfactory except for the smoke and smell. The soak pits were not isfactory, but most of them now have been filled in with stones and are satisfactory where the soil is suitable.

The Assistant Director, Medical Services, of the Brigade recommends as follows:-

- 1. That there should be universal incineration of night-soil throughout the cantonment and no trenching.
- Many surface drains are required, the drainage as it at present exists is not at all good, specially as regards three large nullahs.
 The Grass farm and Dairy farm lands have really no drainage at all, in the rains these places are flooded with stagnant water in which mosquitos breed.
- 3. A cantonment bakery is very urgently required.
- 4. The meat, fish and vegetable markets are not satisfactory, their present sites in the suddar bazaar are not suitable.

Bhamo.-Malaria was most prevalent during the months from June to October, owing to the presence of infected cases and infected osquitos.

Removal system and incinerators are in use. Urine is collected and carted to soakage pits

The presence of jheels and marshes in the cantonment and its vicinity affords innumerable breeding grounds for mosquitos, which is ejudicial to the health of the troops in the fort.

Excreta is burnt in incinerators, urine is deposited in soakage pits which are far removed from dwelling places. Both incinerators id soakage pits are working well.

Unoccupied compounds and open spaces require periodical clearing of jungles. There are no pucca drains leading from the Indian ficers' quarters to the main drain. This leads to fouling of the surrounding ground and therefore the construction of pucca drains at an rly date is essential.

The Cantonment Committee considers that the following measures should be carried out as early as possible :-

- 1 Extension of the pucca drain behind the Commanding Officers' quarters.
- 2. Extension of drains behind the Indian Officers' quarters, to meet the main drain.
- 3. Drainage of the nullah south-east of the married quarters.
- 4. The substitution of a brick culvert for the corrugated iron culvert east of Barrack No. 1 and another north of the Fort in the
- 5. Adequate means of disinfecting clothing.
- 6. A drain from the bakery to the Kubba main drain west of the Fort.

TABLE XVIII.

TABLE XIX.

TABLE XX

ENTERIC FEVER by months, stations, groups, and armies.

MALARIA by months, stations, groups, and armies.

PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIGIN months, stations, groups, and armies.

	stations, groups, and armies.	stations, groups, and armies.	months, stations, Storys, and armies,
	ADMISSIONS FROM ENTERIC FEVER IN EACH MONTH.	Admissions from Malatia in each month-	Admissions from Pyrexia of uncerta origin in each month.
Stations* and GROUPS.	January. February. March. May. May. July. September. O cto ber. December.	January. Rebenary. March. April. May. July. August. September. October. November. Torat.	Janeary. February. March. May. June. June. July. September. October. November.
	January. Pehenary March. April. May. Inne. July. Septemb O ctober Novembu Decemb	January March. April. July August. Septemb October. Novemb Decemba	Janeary Narch. April. May. June. June. July. Septemb October. Novemb
Port Blair		14 11 11 21 4 3 7 11 25 37 32 35 2.1	
Rangoon		2 1 1 2 3 5	24 14 10 23 7 2 1
GROUP I,-BURMA			
COAST AND BAY		14 11 11 21 4 5 6 12 27 37 32 3- 220	24 14 to 23 7 2 1
Thayetmyo		1 1 1 1 16 37 13 8 7 4 4 183	
Fort Dufferin .		9 6 6 1 8 112 78 54 27 15 15 26 357	
Bhamo		7 3 5 2 3 110 48 8 9 12 5 4 216	2 1 1 2 1 2 1
Myitkyina		42 39 38 27 35 177	
GROUP IIBURMA		58 49 44 31 59 298 183 75 44 34 24 34 933	1 1 2 1 2 1 1
Manipur		8 14 3 25	5
Dacca	3 3	2 7 3 6 3 21	12 7 21 8 1 5
Dibrugarh		1 1 2	1
Grove III Assau		9 15 5 7 3 6 3 48	
Fort William		10 2 5 7 2 1 4 3 10 11 55	
Barrackpore		4 2 9 2 5 1 23	
RETURN BUR ASSESS			
GROUP IV BENGAL			
AND ORISSA .		14 4 14 7 2 1 4 3 1 13 18 1 82	4 5 39 4 51 32 10 2
Dinapore		1 3 1 3 4 12	
Benares		1 1 2 3 4 3 25 2 11 1 1 1 55	1
Allahabad		1 2 1 3 6 7 6 8 2 36	3 8 10 3
	1 2 1 5	2 1 4 2 2 13	7 5 4 1
Cawnpore		1 1 3	3 3 3 5
Fatchgarh			1 2 3 2 1
GROUP V GANGETIC PLAIN			
AND CHUTIA	1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 10		
		5 5 3 5 11 9 40 20 26 15 14 9 162	13 11 17 20 10 1
Bareilly			
Rurki		1 1 2 3 1 2 6 4 2 8 1 7 38	I
Dehra Dun		18 7 5 25 14 28 88 52 47 25 16 10 .0	
Meerut		3 3 4 6 1 6 6 11 5 18 12 12 87	8 6 2 2
Delhi	2 2 6	23 11 7 11 27 17 15 16 29 50 20 20 20	
Ambala	1 1 1 3	12 18 17 22 21 15 8 0 22 22 22 22	1 4 6 1 8 3
Jullundur	1 1 1 2 2		
Ferozepere .			
Lahore Cantonment.	1 1 2 4	11 1 8 15 6 17 5 5 3 2 6 3 82	1 2 3 4 3 4 7 10 3
Sialkot	1 1 5 2 1 1 11	1 1 5 8 22 12 10 11 11 11	12 16 15 17 14 23 12 5 9 7 3
Jhelum		10 55 14 20 48 47 49 54	5 2 3 2 2 2
Rawalpindi		5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	11 24 9 16 37 16 27 54 41 37 59 31
Campbellpore			3 7 7 37 37 41 44 11 9
- 1			4 3 0
GROUP VIUPPER SUB-HIMALAYA .	3 4 5 4 2 7 3 9 2 2 6 4 31 19		
Stations where no	THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY OF T	6 107 143 143 197 157 206 186 187 319 410 261 2,472 4	19 57 58 62 84 72 78 104 97 9 74 46 1

TABLE XVIII-contd. TABLE XIX-contd.

TABLE XX-contd.

ENTERIC FEVER by months,

MALARIA by months,

PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIGIN by

1200 TO 110								TERI STH.		100	120		ADM	ISSI		FR				A			A	DMI	8510							F U	NCE	RTA	AT!
TONS AND	36	April.	-		T	1		November.	T	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	-	1	it.	er.	T	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.					st.	er.	October,	1.	December.	Parent.
A		1	1		1	1	0	-	-	-	H	~	4	2	-	7	1	S	1	21	1		-	-	-	41	~			×	S	0	4	-	-
				571		1	100		3					17	18		1		13		3	98				•							***	200	
			16	100		100	104		100			18	2	39	8	5		3		13		69		-	13		5	12	13	133	823		27	-	
	1000001	00400				10		100	,		-	1 3	1000		- 64	1000	10.3		3	230	3	295	600	115	203	17	100			10.3	300		26		
rud		88	10	ĸ.	80	100		130			150	173			3	888			9	3.10	5	13							2		321		83		
		4 -	4	1 -		-			18	41	19	26	17	28	43	65	55	48 :	16	42	22	532	8			3	4	4	2	2	2				
					_					11	-23	1000			8000		5			31.	8	11													
	2	20		881	38	10	100	100	1000	54	1000	17700	1000	100		000	200					810	100		2		15		5		2				
	. 2			SI.				2012	4 133	83	100					2.3			000	200	20	3/16	13	12			533	12	3		1	-	4	8	
		80		80		1 60	100		100					33	40		233	1	133		4	720	3			362	66		7						
		919	166	000		Ha.	100		1	-	100	150		2					13	3	8	2	-	1	-	-			"			1		3	
		810	188	1998		1400	160	85 45			100			-	-				3	4		17	3										2	3	
							1	4	1	1							1		1	78	5	86	8	1					2	9	4	7	1		
ai						-	-			5	4	1	3	3	2	1		2	4	5	4	34			10						1		1		
kadar .						8 109						2		F.9.					346	24	6 0	44	7	2	1				200					-	
			5	10	4	5 1	3	8	5 41	-	***	8	2	18	51	201	68	56	79	37 .	"	611	-				***		16	6	1	1	-	-	
В										3		-	1			1		3	3	7 1	2	34									***				
Cuch			-		-	1			1	2	2		-	30	3	6			1	2 1	10	57	2	1		1	2		6	3	2				
		-		**								***					-		-	5 2	14	23			"					***					
d	1								. 1	1	2	5	7	3	2	1	1	1	10	9	2	46	2	2	1		-								
			-			-				10	3	6	8	4	12	17	8	24	7	15	16	130	26	,			1				-				
VII				1								100																				-			
IER, INDUS Y, AND I-WESTERN				1	1		Н	1	10								1		1	9	F				4	1	i		1				1	1	
ANA .		411	2 17	18	92	7 10	7	10	8 126	240	118	106	86	338	296	559 4	113	29 5	57 6	87 4	3 4.	150	75	3.5	32	71 2	75	104	89	46	16	29	62	46	
A	-	1							1						111		3	6	17	6	1	32	1			1				3					
	-			H					. 1	11	14		5	9	9	13	16	11	14	2	,	119								-					
В		-				ħ.	K			1			12.19					2				-		1											
	1		1		1	1				1	***	700			***					-	1	2		**		401		-		-	-	-	"		
							-	-				100	1	1	1	2	2	6	4	1	1	25		-01	-			-				4	-	**	
d .		F								1		18			1	1		-	201		-	11			65		-	***		-		-			
				1		-							1					2				3				***		-				100		-	
										1 1		1										23			2	3		101	1						
			1			Ш					7 (1100	1	5		2	1		2	43			2			1		***					
		-			4					-	4 .	1				1		3				5	***						***			-			
				1		-	1	-			1	2 1	1	3		1	2	4	4	5	3	26	-				-		-			.1			
								-	-	-	1 :	3 2	3	1	1		11	6		9	-	31			80				***		***	-		***	
par .		-			1						103		1	100	100			16		5	2	46		***		***			***	-	***	-		2	
		1		-					-			1 11	3		10.			10	29		***	127	3			-			***	4	***		***	***	
						-	1		1	1	9	1	1"	1	-	1	3			-	20	/	3	1	1			1		-	**		***	***	
VIII		-		1		7		1				1	1	1					1		1			1										1	
H - EASTERN TANA, CEN	8	-	-	-	-	-	1		-	1		1	1	1	T		-	T		7-		-	T	-		-	-	-	-		-	-	-	18	
INDIA, ANI	N. 188								100					1		1																			g#

TABLE XVIII—concld. TABLE XIX—concld. - TABLE XX—concld. ENTERIC FEVER by months, stations, groups, and armies. MALARIA by months, stations, groups, and armies. PYREXIA OF UNCERTAIN ORIGIN months, stations, groups, and armies.

	anı	1 0	rm	ie	5.												ano	l a	rmit	es.										_			_	_		d ar	100	
Earth Division in Control	1		DM								RIC L		AI	эмп	5510	ONS	FR	ом	MA	LAI	RIA	IN	EAC	н	MON	тн.	-	ADM	1188	ION	RIG	ROM IN I	Py N E	REX	MON	TH.	NCE	RI
STATIONS, GEOUPS AND ARMIES.		February.	March.	April.	May.	une.	August.	ventember.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	anuary.	February.	March.	- inc	May		June.		August.	september.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	Secember.
A		-		1	1	T	1	T	1	1	1		-	T	T	1	T	T	1	T	1	1		1				1		1	1	I	1		1 1		-	-
Saugor Jubbulpore Kamptee						1 .		. 1	1			3 1	6	10	9	6	4	3	777	-	3		11	6	10	60			13	1								
Aurangabad . Ahmednagar .												***	6	1	3	2 .			2			9	6	4 21	2 15	23											***	
Bolarum	-					1 .	-	1	-			2	9 2 8	3		9 1	0 1	4 8	6	2	5	5	4	4	3 4	68						-		***				
Belgaum Satara			2000											1 2						8	2	10	23	5	8 7	68		1			11000	100			_	***		
Poona					-			1 .				5	17	7								16		16		545 141											***	-
GROUP IX DECCAN	× ==	-1.0	!	9.		3	1		2 1			*1	49	35	3	8 9	5 23	5 10	01 6	2	87 11	031	54	So.	98	,153	1	1	17	4	3	11	1 5	2	1		1	
Bombay and Deolali . Santa Cruz . Triwandrum .				40								1	12 6	1			2	6 3	1 .			38		11	12	222 14 2												111
GROUP XWES- TERN COAST			-			-		-	-		2	2	19	10	T	7	7	9	6 3	0	80	39	8	11	12	238	***				-		-	2	-			100
Bangalore B							1					1	2	1	4 :	2 2	1 1	6	5 2	s	34	4	9	5	15	155		1	1	1							1	-
Trichinopoly St. Thomas Mount Madras	-					in .						2	4	-	100	1		2	4	-	-	2 2	2	36	1 1	18		-		1000				180	1000			11
GROUP XISou-	-		-	-		-13	2	+	40	-		6	2	-	-	-	-	0	-	-	35	8		14	3	7 200							-		-	***		-
Maymyo Shillong	-	1					-1-		40	400	100	5	2.	1 2	8 1	5 1	1 1	6	23 1	6	33	23	11	67	53	301		1 2	***	-		1	***	-				
Gantok Gyantse		16																		-		65		72	***	452	2	1	2 1					***				
Almora Lansdowne				-		1						1			ı	1 .			10	9	19	10	24	45	: 150	124			400	1000			***			-		
Takdah Solon				-									1:		-	2	7 .	-10	200	-		2.4	4	5 : 2		12 43		2				1	***				-	
Simla Dharmsala	-									-	-	4.6				-	4	4 9	3 4	5	2.4	-4	4	17	32	21 99	2		3	1	-	-		***		-	-	-
Bakloh Khairagali	:				1		2 .					1	5	10	0	9 1	0 2	8			26	13	9	31		253			***	***							-	-
Baragali Chhanglagali	:		40						-	100			1					-		1	3					4		***	***				***				-	-
Barian Chitral																		1	3 .	-	1	-	0000	-		5 2		"1					1	1			100	-
Kila Drosh Malakand Dargai				20 1								***	1						11	6	6	9			38	8		***	1	***	1		4		1	2	-	
Chakdara Abbottabad						-							200	1		1 -		1	-	1 1	3	2 7	968	4 5	3	26 256	***	1	1	***					-			1
Cherat Fort Lockhart				***									12						92 14	91	-	673		***	***	4			5	4			1			***		4
Hangu Fort Cavagnary	. 3	-										2	3	1			-	0 1		97	3	16	140	87		153	1	**		-				1			-	
Fort Sandeman Hindubagh	-					1	-	1				2	13		188	-	3 1	0 1		5	1	5	23	6	9	129		2	3	6	2		111		-			
Musa Knel Kila Saifulla			-									-			100				5 .	4	7	5	5	7	2	35		"	***	***	***		***			-		
Murgha	-											***		1					5	5	4	4	6	2 536		28	1 2		1 0	I			-	**				***
Gumbaz Quetta			1000						. 22		100	2	17								2			26		387	7	10	8					-		_		
Robat Pishin								3100				4	57	***	10	9	5	0 1	1	8	27 14	8	11	53	1	70	***											
Shelabagh Chaman						-	-	910							-				1	1	12	9	4 2 2	5 6	2	12				2000								
Group VII VIII		-					-						2				2			2	3	5	1	7	3	24_						3	_	-				
GROUP XII,-HILL STATIONS	2			1	7	2	2 1	8 3	,	1		27	155	131	14	7 14	6 23	• 35	00 55	8.6	53 78	33 7	77 6	703	71 5	110	17	26	45	26	28	15	18	12	2	5		7
Marching in India .									1			1	7	2	1	7	6 2	5	5 1	3	. 3	18	4	42	11	170			2		1	2	5			-		1
Thall operations .			,							-		1	17		1		7 .	8	10 8	8		12	50	20	15	F24				,	1				,	2	1	
EXTRA INDIA. (a) In the Indian Command:— Charbar			1										35		-	1		1	0	1	1,		3	1	1	-			-		1	***		-	1	-		
Jask						98		-	100				1				1 2		-	8	5	300			12	73											-	
Muscat			2	1			:			3		11	238		25		13	4	9 6	0 4	48 3	3	38		48 1,	459	-	8	10	1	1			***			-	1
Khormaksar	100			10.0					100				28	30	29		3 2	9	4					-		45									-			
(b) Not in the Indian Command :-	1			-	-		1	1									1					1	1	1											-	-		
Colombo (Ceylon) Dayatilawa (Ceylon)			:::										2						1	31100				1	3	7	15	3		2	5	2	8	7	4	5	4	
Singapore Hong-Kong (South China)		***		7	**	-				***			1	***	***			2	1 -			22	- :	200	-	1	-			10	4	4			-	4 .		
	I			1		1	-			=	-	1	28	15	8	-	-	-	6 12		-	+	_	7	-	32	2	=	\$	29	13	7	11	2	6		-	
ARMY OF INDIA	-	98	1	1	4	1	1					258		366			-						2,149	1											6.			
SOUTHERN ARMY	5	7 1	5 5	20	37	13	6	13	3	7 4	3 20	00	7 3	42 5	1271	311	6899	606	678	570	1 105	2 14	41 15	46 2	68 7	865	38 1	13 1	471	75	399	225	240	112	48 1	42 13	8	7

TABLE XXI.

TABLE XXII.

TABLE XXIII.

CHOLERA by months, stations, groups, and armies.

DYSENTERY by months, stations, groups, and armies.

DIARRHEA by months, stations, groups, and armies.

	an		_					12	0.11	, ,	7.00	or	ER		1								arn	=	=						_		-		-	-	nies	_		-	
	-	^	DM				CH						ER	A	1	DS	1185	ton	SF	ROM	Dy	CSEN	TER	Y 11	N E	ACH	MO	NTH.	ADI	MIS:	SION	SFI	ROM	Di	ARR	HŒ	A 17	EA	CH	MON	TI
IONE AND	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	lune.	Inly.	Australy	August	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	-	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	Angust.	September.	October.	November.	December.	
	1		-		1	-	1	ı	-										-	1	2	2	1			-		6												1	
I.—BURMA T AND BAV	-		-		-		-	-		-		-	-							1	2	2	,	21			-	6												1	
nyo fterin (Man-								-		1			111		1					***	?		4			- :::	2	24 	1 11 1	2			2		,			, ;;	1 4 1	1 3	
II.—BURMA			1	-	-		-	-	-	1	-			1			1	2	,	2	7	8	4				2	28		2	6	4	5	31	8	•	2	1	2	5	
: : :								-				1				2	3	8				2	::		1	11		16		1 2		6						11			
III.—Ass^N	-	-		-							-		-			2	3	8	-	-		2				-		16	1	3	10	6	4	,	2	-		-			
lliam .			101		1			111		1:1						4 :::	6 1			-		2	***	-	2		***		1		1111				***		***	2		2	1
V.—Bengai Drissa .					-		-			-	-					4	7	20	1:		-	7				5		67		-				-		,	-	2	-	3	-
id i			11111			-								1 1 1 1 1 1	3		2		11.	2 3			10		7	1 1		2 41 11 6 5 1	111111	1 1 1 1		1 1 4 1	1 1 1			2	1	1 2 2	1		
V.—GANGR- PLAIN ANI IA NAGPUR	38	-	-	-	1.	-	-		-	- 2	-	-			4	2	-	0	-	3	3	2 14		,	9	5	2	67	-	-	7 10	9	-	-	3 10			1 3	7	,	
Oun :					2.	1						-			2 2 2	3 3				4		5	7 1	to note !	1 11 11 11	-	2	42 15 16		3			1	1	3 10	1	3 2 3	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	12	2 2 2 2	
or core Cantonment																10	1		2 2 3 1 2 1	3 4 0	8 1 4 1	1	4 14 7 1	5 1	2 20 20	2 2 11	3 3 7 5	32 15 32 137 168	-	8	1 :	4	1 1 1	3	3	3 10	5 1	1 11	131	7 2	2 7 7 1
	1																1			1	-	1	1	1						1	-							1		1	1

TABLE XXI-contd.

TABLE XXII-contd.

TABLE XXIII-contd.

CHOLERA by months, stations,

DYSENTERY by months, stations, groups, and armies.

DIARRHŒA by months, stations, groups, and armies.

	пр.	-	MI	551	ONS	FI	ROS			LEI	KA.	10	Da	1188	102	IS F	ROM	Dy	SEN	TE	Y 11	N K	сн	MO	NTH.	AD	wiss	ION	SF	KON	D	IARI	RHO	A II	N E	ACH
STATIONS AND GROUPS.	lannary.	February.	T	T	June.				October.	November.	Torat.	-	1		March.		May.		Tuly.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	Torat.	January.	ry.	March.		May.		1	T	er.	1	November.
		1	-	1	1	1				I			1	1			-	-			-	-														
A Jardan , lowshera , lisalpore eshawar ort Jamrud , lohat Thal Janeu Jera Ismail Khan Jank atta					8			31			29		1 2 11 7 6 2	11:12:4-0	1 1 1 1 6 1 6 1 4 1	7 1 2 1 12 112 112	3 6 2 13 7 36 2	1 10 14 28 7 37 3	10 7 23	29	5	::I ::: 7 1 50 8 26	40 5		272 16		6 2 2 1 3	7	3 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	5 6 11 5	1 4 12 1 2	2 : 6 : 6 : 6 : 11	14 . 7	14 14 1	1 551 9 - 41	0 : -6 :8
ort Zam fultan fort Abazai							2						1	1	1 1 4			23		48	-	3 53	12		5 16 5 3 ² 3	114111	***			8	5 1		. 3	. 33 : 2	3	1 5 - 1 -
								-	***				1 2			1000			- 7		1	1		2 - 2	4 29 ::					1		1	_		0 ; ;	1111
Hyderabad				-	-									3	1 1		1							1 2	16		1 2		2 10				14	6		- 3
GROUP VII.—NW. FRONTIER, INDUS VALLEY, AND NORTH-WESTERN RAJPUTANA		-			9 :		2	22			35	3 = =	17	14	26	42	88	101	136	107	99	163	165	94	1,072	21	17	13	36	48	68	50	45	45	56	1
A Deesa												- 11	1 2	5	3	1	3	4			. 3	5			32		-	2								The same
Neemuch Deoli Nasirabad Ajmer Agra Jhansi Newgong Goona			111111	1									5		1		1 5	2 1	1 6	19					6 1 1 2 2 47 3			3 5	2 3 1	1			1 1 1 2 1 1 2	1		1 10 1
GROUP VIII.— SOUTH-EASTERN	-						-	100	-						***					3		111		***	8 4		-					to		1	3	
RAJPUTANA, CEN TRAL INDIA, ANI GUJARAT .					1	-	-	-					10	6	5		13	7	8	23	8	9	9	6	103	2	2	10	10	6	2	16	10	7	8	17
Sauger													4	1 2	1	2	2			7	12	2		1	24		2	1	3			1	-			***

TABLE XXI — contd. TABLE XXII — contd. TABLE XXIII — contd. CHOLERA by months, stations, groups, and armies. DYSENTERY by months, stations, groups, and armies. DIARRHEA by months, stations, groups, and armies.

	_	gr		=		-	=	=	=	=	=	- 100			-	-							rm					_			_	_	_	, a	_		_		-	
		AD	MI			ACI						ER	A .	1			-	ADM			S FE			SEN	TER	Y		-	3	ADI	IN	EA	CH	MO	NTI	H.	RH	EA		
GROUPS.	January.	February.	March.	Man	may.	Jape.	Jusy.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL,		January.	February.	March.	April,	May.	lune.	July.	August	September.	October,	November.	December,	TOTAL,	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September,	October.	November,	December.	TOTAL
nagar										•••			***	-	-			2				7	7	11	10	5	1 45				***		4	4	4	5		100		3
erabad .	+ + + + +						-							1	3		: : : : 3		3	12		1	2 :	2	8	2 4	9 1 85	1 10 1	1		1		8	7 2 4 2	9	3	5	1 8	101	1
ix- }	-			-		-	-					-	-	-	8	6	10	11	9	19	35	44	28	26	27	15	238	12	11	13	15	21	27	21	26	16	23	14	16	2
Cruz :	1:::										2		111	911	7	3 3	4			1	10			3		***	37	3	***	1		2 1 1	***		***		2			
X RN COAST.		-		-	-				-		-				5	6	5	-	5	2	6	4	4	3	2	2	54	3	5	t		4	-	1	3	3	2		5	2
A	-	-			-					-			-		-									1	water.	2	2		4	2	2		3	7	4	-	-	1	1	The state of the s
B opoly)	m)	-		- 10		***	1		1	***	1	1	1			- 10	1	793	**		5	3					10.		***	-		2	***	
XI.— HERN INDIA	- 1			-	-	-								-	-		2	2	1	-		-	1			2	10	3	4	2	3	1	3	7	4	1	-	3	1	3
: : :	1111				-		-					*	1				3	8	8		3 111			5	3	1	6 69 1	111	***		1 1 1	12 16	4 4 16	4 7 2	3	2 3	3		1	
ala .											****		1 10 10 2					1	: : : : : : : : :	7 1	3	1		2 1	4	10	7 1 6 8 3 19 2		1111.111		1	3 1 1	7 5 4				1	4111111		
osh nd ra ibad									-	7							4			1	15	1::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	44.	13	12	1111114	1						32 ::-	1 2 2	11114	1 2 3	33	3 1 8		5
vagnary ndeman	11111												1116			1	I	531:	74	3	5 2 2	2	2 2	1 3	7 2		24 23 3 7 8	11:11			3 3	9 8	4 2	1 1 1	14	36 8		8 : 9 :	3 :8 2	2 2

TABLE XXI-concld.

TABLE XXII-concld.

TABLE XXIII - cond

CHOLERA by months, stations, groups,

DYSENTERY by months, stations, groups, and armies.

DIARRHEA by months, stations, g and armies.

- 0	ind armi	es.			11	-	33.00	arn			;			-				Serve		arı		-	200	
			MONTH.	LERA	-	A	DMI		S FRO			NTER	Y		-	AD	MIS				ONT	ARRH	ŒA	
STATIONS, GROUPS AND ARMIES.	January. February. March.	May.	August. September. October.	December. Total.	January.	February.	April.	May.	June.	August.	September.	October.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	may.	Jule.	Augusi.	September.	October.	November,
Murgha			0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		3	6 6	7 1	2 57 :::	7 (5 1 3		2 2 4	3 1		111111		2	-	3		12 1	3 2	14 2	3
GROUP XII.—HILL STATIONS.		3 12	10 8.	33	3	8 13	31	54	58 54	39	34	40 3	16	388	5	3	6	17	63	66	45 5	8 57	81	22
					-		2	12			3		3	25 36	4	-	1		1	2 2	2	6 9		5
EXTRA INDIA. (a) In the Indian Command: Charbar Jask Muscat Bushire Aden			10 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20		9	9 4	-		1	-	2 5 1		4 1 2 1 1 10	18 36	32 4	41 6	50	21		3	4	6 9		19
Singapore Hong-Kong (South							2		1	-			3	4					-			3		-
ARMY OF INDIA .	2	41614	236 8.	82	13	92 13/	6 158	246	50 31:	299	248	326 3	2S 187	2,712	122	121	150	157	112	136 1	94 20	12 177	254	19
Northern Army	1	4 16 14	235 8	80	68	50 8	8,119	177 1	99 23	199	178	255 20	62 143	1,975	55	46	60	811	24 1	37 1	11 10	5 86	15:	116
SOUTHERN ARMY				2	57	39 4	0 35	55	47 7	86	58	54	57 43	643	62	75	85	70	36	95	79	71	86	8

TABLE XXIV.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

The state of the s			2 000							A	ietua	ls.				0100		_	_		_	_	_	_		_	
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9 10	0 1	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Chashication,	Influenza,	Cholera.	Enterio Feate.	CHANGE COM.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pacumonia	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.		Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes,	dumb	Died absent. Invatided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments and detachments are with dates of occupation. Last move.
werner-General's Body Guqrd,	121	106	6	Admisted Died Invalided				4	1		***		1111	111	2 P		5					2	3 1	146	5'4	1	Dehra Dun, April 1912, D. tachments at Simla and Delhi.
overnor's Body Guard, Madras, lovernor's Body	72	62	9	Admitted Died Invalided Admitted Died	111			-	Ie-			-	111	::: :::			4	-		:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	-		-11	32	2'0		Medras. (local). Bembay (local).
Geard, Bombay.	70			Admitted Died Invalided		-			7		3			-		9	-	***					5	70			Calcutta (Alipore).
st Duke of York's Own Lancers (Skinner's Horse).	762	624	24	Admitted Died . Invalided					39	3			3	3	1							7	3		23'	4	Peshawa March 1912, from Dera Ismail Khan.
and Lancers (Gard- ner's Horse.)	25	223	12	Admitted Died . Invalided	***				92			1	***				in		1	***	111		5	157	8.	S	Saugor, Dec ember 1908 from Fyza bad.
ard Skinner's Horse.	250	22	2	Admitted Died Invalided	***				4 1						-	1 11			6			1	***	119	5	S	Bareilly, Nov ember 1914 from Meerut
4th Cavalry .	205	188	4	Admitted Died Invalided				-			1			***	2	***		0.00			1000	5		100	7	9	Bareilly, Jan- uary 1914 from Fyza bad.
5th Cavalry .	1,0*9	522	17	Admitted Died Invalided				***	60		5	1		-	1	2			100			4	16	28		8	Rawalpindi, November 1909, from Meerut. De tachment a
6th King Edward's Own Cavalry.	275	3 260	9	Admitted Died Invalided							***	1				5	***	9			441		-	171		3	Kohat,
7th Harriana Lan- cers.	400	5 370	17	Admitted Died Invalided			-	***	27				· ···	***		4 2	0 2	1				3	100	357	14	\$	Poona, Novem ber 1914, from Ferozepore.
8th Cavalry	67	0 60	3 18	Admitte Died Invalide					1	1	-	3		5		5 1		111	6	100	111	28	14	489	23	5	Jhanshi, Janu ary 1912 from Amba la.
9th Hodson's Hosse.	24	5 - 20	0 8	Admitte Died Invalide										101	-	1	200	4		***	100			6 10:		5	Ambala, Janu ary 1912 from Cawn pore,

TABLE XXIV-contd.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

-	-										Actu	als.					11									
,	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	0 10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22 3	23 24	25	26	27	28	-
Serial sumber.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Seat on sick leave.	Classification.	Influenza.	Cholera,	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia,	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Convention and		Anæmia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick	Died absent, invalided on account of old age.	Sta occup regime detac during with d occup Last
14	roth Duve of Cambridge's Own Lancers (Hod- son's Horse).	1,035	607	16	Admitted Died . Invalided	***				:::		1111		1 1		7	3	***			- 1	4		18-9	17	Lorala embe from tr. ment Musa
13	rith King Ed- ward's Own Lan- cers (Probyn's Horse),	737	673	19	Admitted Died Invalided	***		2	129		***				5 2	8	3				***	20	388 6 8	181		Guni Murg Delhi, ber from pindi.
16	12th Cavalry .	68o	571	30	Admitted Died . Invalided		2		38		1					6			100		7		239 6 5	11.3		Meerut ember from
17	13th Duke of Connaught's Lan- cers (Watson's Horse).	954	593	43	Admitted Died . Invalided		3	***		17	16				3	35	***	3	** **	111	101	***	540 4 13	22'5	-	Risalps ary from l Detac at Fo
18	14th Murray's Jat Laucers.	782	590	10	Died .				***		26		**		3			***		111		***	407 2 22	16'4	-	Risalps ember from Detac at Dar Chake
19	(Cureton's Mul- tanis)	263	254	6	Died .				110	***			3		2		***				***		150	6.8		Sialkot, cemb from dur.
20	16th Cavalry, .	301	300	5	Died									1				1		111		3	139	6.5	2	Luckno April from
21	17th Cavalry .	1,008	547	18		3		***	144		11					25	100	1		200	11 4		303	15'1		All hab Janua 1914, Bareill tachms
22	78th King George's Own Lancers.	258	249	10				***	20	200	1				1111		2			100	***		121 5	4.7		Alipon Sialkot, ember from N
23	rgth Lancers (Fane's Horse).	263	253	9					51					1 2			-				***	4	154	4'7		Sialkot, ary from Q
24	20th Deccan Horse	290	224	2	Died .					***						15		me . 50		1	111	12	9	6.8	3 1	Neemuc ember from
25	21st Prince Albert Victor's Own Cavalry (Fron- tier Force) (Daly's Horse).	1,083	725	29	Died .	gan			3	-	34			2	3					***	12	9 :	55 4 28	14'8	8-16	Lahore tonmen May from M

																							2			
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17:	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classification.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.		Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anaemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes,	Average number constantly sick,	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments and detachments during the year with dates of occupation, last move.
d Sam Brow- 's Cavalry rontier Force.)	785	627	16	Admitted Died Invalided				68				4 3		1111	28	1111	13				10	2	391 4 14	1615		Bolarum Nov- ember 1914, from Jacoba- bad.
Cavalry rontier Force.)	753	412	24	Admitted Died . Invalided				4		1		1	1	2 1				-			11		323 4 11	14'3	4	Kamptee, Octo- ber 1915, from Lahore Can- toament
h Cavalry Frontier Force).	774	725	33	Admitted Died Invalided		1			17			5 3		15	100	46			*		18		3°3 8 16	17'9		Bansu Nov- ember 1911, from Risal- pur. Wing at Miranshah throughout
Kieg George's lwn Light avalry:	467	456	17	Admitted Died Invelided				12			2 2 :	3		s 		***		111		111	10	15	236	13 (Bangalore, March 1913, from Poona.
th Light Caval-	724	546	11	Admitted Died Invalided	20		2	8				8 4	***	2				7	3	111	10	16	386	18'9		Secunderabad November 1914, from Neemuch.
th Light Caval-		510	21	Admitted Died . Invalided				1				1	***	1	29	1			***	1111	6	14	273 4 12	15'7		Quetta, November 1913, from Multan. Detachment at Chaman.
th Lancers Deccan Horse .		222	12	Admitted Died Invalided		100		4.00	200	***	100	111	***		5	1		100		100	111	1	115	7'1		Sangor, Janua- ry 1915, from Poona.
th Lancers (Gor lon's Horse).	225	207	8	Admitted Died Invalided		int		1 11	222	944	7			2		***	111	1111		100		8		6.2		Ambala, Janu- ary 1912, from Jhansi.
st Duke of Con- eaught's Own Lancers.		545	15	Admitted Died Invalided	100			100	6 11	***					13			***		-	3		374	13'7		Kohat, Janu- ary 1911, from Mecrut. Detachment at Hangas.
and Lancers	. 686	61:	14	Admitted Died Invalided	100	-	191	2 2		141	2	***	4 3	1	6		-	144		164	481		312 6 15	10:1	***	Jubbulpore, February 1911, from Siatket.
ard Queen Vir toria's Own Lig Cavalry.		245	4	Admitted Died Invalided		+	1	-	2000	***			101		10000	1				100	100		116	5'7		Saugor, Janua- ry 1915, from Aurangabad.
sath Prince Alber Victor's Ow Poona Horse,		5 216	5 12	Admitted Died Invalided					29	-			***	1000			***			100		100	157	8.1		Ambala, Octo- ber 1914, from Secun- derabad.

K 2

TABLE XXIV-contd.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

-		3	4	5	6	7	8 0	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22 3	3 24	25	26	27	28	20
Serial number.	Cerps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classification.	Influenza,	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercie of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.		Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Discases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age.	Static occupier regimeni detache during the with da occupa- last m
38	35th Scinde Horse,	658	599	35	Admitted Died Invalided		. 1	2		2	23							***	-	-90	3	***		31,4		Dera Khan, 1912, Peshar Detach
30	36th Jacob's Horse	262	216	8	Admitted Died Invalided				30						*:		6			_		-	143	6.8	-	at Dra Jandol Jatta, Tank. Ami ala ember from pore.
40	37th Lancers .	878	629	27	Admitted Died Invalided			***	104	: : :					14 2		14	7				-	507 5 17	20.7		Multan, ry 1913 Juliune
41	38th King George's Own Central India Horse,	243	220	41	Admitted Died Invalided				30				3	1 1 1			***	4	-			3 3	161	8.7		
42	39th King Georpe's Owe Central India Horse,	678	549	16	Admitted Died Invalided				42	111			5	2	3 2	32	11	-						23'€		Goona, ry 191; Agar, at Poe
43	Aden troop .	100	45	1	Admitted Died . Invalided			101								4 : :							27	1.0	-	Khorma
44	Queen Victoria's Own Corps of Guides (Frontier Force) (Lums- den's Cavalry and Infantry).	1,940	1,298	78	Admitted Died Invalided		. 41	3							7	174		3				4 21	1,275		2	Mardani Det ei at Feet zai.
45	21st Kohat Moun- tain Battery (Frontier Force).	131	100	11	Admitted Died Invalided	***		***	***		331			***		6	***	-11	2			***	65	4'4	-	Ambala ber from Dun.
46	22nd Derajat Mountain Batte- y (Frontier Force).	422	314	13	Admitted Died Invalided				60		***		***								0 100	9	226	12'4	3	Maymyo March from E
47	23rd Peshawar Mountain Bat- tery, (Frontier Force).	151	139	3	Admitted Died Invalided				63			***		2	2 2		12				-	3 4	159	10.0	3	Abbotta Nove 1 1913, Noush
48	24th Hazara Moun- tain Battery. (Frontier Force).	695	195	3	Admitted Died . Invalided				191		400		2 1	***		***	17	***				6 11	441	10'0	-	Newsher Neven 1915, f Abbott and (Hongal
49	25th Mountain Battery.	335	261	4	Admitted Died . Invalided		***		10	***			***	***			-	***			-		155	6.6	-	Quetta, ry 1913 Nowsh Detacl at Dro

2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	22	22 2	3 :	24 :	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.	Number borne on the rolls,	Average strongth present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever	Malaria.	Sandily Fover.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tabercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Dis eases.	Dyseatery	Diarrhea.	7	Inflammation.	Scury.	Anaemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	4	ber constant	Died absent. Invalided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments and detachments during the year with dates of occupation. Last move.
Jacob's Moun- in Battery.	127	93	6	Admitted Died . Invalided	111		111	6					***		3 1	7 1		***	***		3		51	28		Ambala, October 1914 from Dehri Dun.
Mountain	87*	103	1	Admitted Died Invalided				29				***			2							2	6	2.0		Abbotta b a c January 191 from Bham
Mountain thery.	67*	101	2	Admitted Died . Invalided		1 .	111	31		111			=			6		-				2 ::	\$4 1 2	4.6		Abbotia b a Decemb 1913, fro Bannu.
Mountain attery.	373	336	36	Admitted Died . Invalided			21	91	***	4				11 2		62	10			1		12	453 5 14	18	3	Fannu, No ember 191 from Abb tabad. Wi at Mira shah.
h Mountain	*96	117	5	Admitted Died Invalided			***	32			- 111			1111		3						6	103	6.	2	Abbott a ba o Februa 1913, fr Kohat,
t Mountain	181	178	6	Admitted Died Invalided			***	36		3	1		1 1	2	6					1 1 1	3	6	170	7-	5	Kohat, Feb ary 19 from De Dun.
d Mountain attery.	373	271	8	Admitted Died Invalided				58		21	-100			6 3		32				-	5	7	306	14"	0	Tank, Ja ary 19 from D Ismail Kh Detachme at Dera mail Khar
e Frontier Gar- son Artillery.	210	225	7	Admitted Died Invalided				1						2							4 1		107	4	6 i	Kobat. Detachme a at Chakda Fort Jamr Mala k a t Pe s h a w Fort Locki and My shah.
Battery, Royal Horse Artillery.	25	14		Admitted Died Invalided				***		111	-						***						8		5	Risalpu January 15
Battery, Royal forse Artillery.	25	20		Admitted Died Invalided		100			***						***		-	-		-						Delhi, 1915.
Ammunition Column, Royal Horse Artillery.		3	3	Adm'ttee Died Invalided	***			01	1 1000	-						8	-								2	Risalpur, 1915, Campkell
. Ammunition	5	2 4	8 1	Admitted Died Invalide								1000	***	***							***				. 0	. Meerut.

STATISTICS OF RECIMENTS!

The decrease in the enrolled strength was due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiments were either located out of India or proceeded on field service towards close of the year.

TABLE XXIV—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

170											71000	ials.									_						
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Serial attmber.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classification.	Influenza.	Cholera, Small-pox.	Enteric Pever.	Malaria,	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonta.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysontery.	Diarrhoa.		Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anaemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Died absent, Invelided on account of old age.	during th
62	r-rst Hampshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	21	21	1	Admitted Died . Isvalided			111								2 1	1111		111				1	3 1 1	74	1	Lahore
63	2-1st Hampshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery,	12	8		Admitted Died Invalided		100 -00					111			***		1		111					10	,		Kirkee.
64	2-2nd Hampshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	11	10	2	Admitted Died . Invalided	***		***	4										111					16	*5		Kirkee,
65	2-trd Hampshire Battery, Royal Field A-tillery.	10	8	.1	Admitted Died Invalided		100 100 100 100 100 100	***		111		1 - 1												6			Kirkee,
66	1-1st Dorsetshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	11		***	Admitted Died . Invalided	***		***	111	111		111		***				744						4 : "			Bareilly.
67	t-1st Wiltshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	15	85		Admitted Died Invalided				11		***		111		;					111			1111	4	'1		Dethi, D ber 191
68	t-1st Devonshire Battery, Royal Field Artillery.	12	10	1	Admitted Died Invalided													***	1111					7	4		Allahaba
69	1-yrd Devonshire Battery, Reyal Field Artillery.	11	7	2	Admitted Died Invalided				4						111		2				100			10	4		Barrackp
70	38th Battery, Royal Field Artil- lery.	186	170	10	Admitted Died . Invalided				***		111	****		111	4-		5	100					17	153	8.8		Rawalpin
71	74th Battery, Royal Field Artil- lery.	42	15	494	Admitted Died Invalided	***			5				***	111	=	1111		***				***		7	-3	1 20	Peshawai Japuary 1915, Jhansi.
72	77th Battery, Royal Field Artil- le y.	18	14	٠,	Admitted Died Invalided	***		193		1111			141						***				_	6	-5	-	Agra.
73	79th Battery, Royal Field Artil- lery.	16	14	1	Admitted Died Invalided	***				::		***			111				-				1	6	-3	1	Jhansi.

2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	1.4	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifica-	2	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin,		Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.		Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anzenia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Dred absent. Invalided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments ai detachment during the ye with dates occupation Last move.
Battery,	16	6		Admitted Died Invalided	***									-			: 1 :					111	4	'1		Nowshera.
Battery, byal Field Artil-	13	9		Admitted Died Invalided			1000			111														12		Nowshera.
Battery, oyal Field Artil-	12	,	-	Admitted Died Invalided			0000										1111							12		Nowshera.
t Battery, yal Field tillery.	n	11	1	Admitted Died Invalided					:::											111		5 1	12	.9		Hyderabad.
nd Battery, cyal Field illery.	13	13		Admitted Died . Invalided	:::				::::					***	:::								6 2	*6		Hyderabad
Ammunition lumn, Royal eld Artillery.	250	89		Admitted Died Invalided	:::		-	-	::	-				1									73	2*2		Nowshera.
Ammunition lumn, Royal eld Artillery.	142	124	1	Admitted Died Invalided						111	1					2 : :						11	4	56		Hyderabad March 19 Detachme at Kirke
Ammunition Jumn, Royal	49	9		Admitted Died Invalided				1111													2	5 2	9	1.6	2	Kirkee, Ju
Ammunition lumn, Royal dd Artillery.	45	10		Admitted Died Invalided					-		-	1						17.1		1			. 3	'7	1	Kirkee, Ja- ary 19 f.om Secu derabad.
Ammunition lumn, Royal ild Artillery.	21	3		Admitted Died Invalided				1						::	2 1			- 60	-				9 3	*8	1	Kirkee, Jar ary 19 from Bang lore.
Ammunition lumn, Royal	104	109	3	Admitted Died Invalided		(m)									3							4	98	4"1	-	Jhansi, Nove ber 1902.
Mountain ittery, Royal urrison Artil-	247	98		Admitted Died Invalided			***	4										111	-		1		38	2'2	191	Baragali, Ap 1915, fro Rawalpind
Mountain attery, Royal arrison Artil- ry.	37	30		Admitted Died . Invalided			1				111										1	3	7	14	-	Ambala, Ap
Mountain attery, Royal arrison Artil- ty.	209	180		Admitted Died Invalided			1				111	3	***	2	3	1111	***						112 3 4	5.0	***	Quetta, Ma
Mountain attery, Royal arrison Artil- ry,	209	171	7	Admitted Died Invalided				43			4 1 1	3		2 2		***	3				2 1	1 11	116	7.3	(***	Quetta, Ap 1913, fre Rawalpind

The decrease in the enrolled strength was due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located lose of the year. 71

TABLE XXIV—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

											A	ictu	als.			0.0						.,-1					200
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	1.4	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	25
Serial number.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifica- tion.	Influenza.	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Ferer.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercie of the Lungs.	Pacsmonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoea.	ш	Inflammation.	Scutvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Died absent. Invalided on account of old age.	Stati occupio regimes detacht during it with da occupa Last r
89	5th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artillery.	43	35	1	Admitted Died Invalided								-			-			1111	***				9	3	-	Ambala March from
90	6th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artillery.	254	89	2	Admitted Died . Invalided			***							1							-		37	2.1	-	Barian, 1915, Rawa
91	8th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artillery.	265	138		Admitted Died . Invalided			***	6	200	1			-	2	3			10.1					130	6.1	-	Peshan Nove 1914 Quett
92	9th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artil-	849	474	14	Admitted Died . Invalided	***	2	1111	5				2		5 1		5						11	137	9'4		Rawals Octob
93	6oth Heavy Battery, Royal Garrison Artil- lery.	121	101	1	Admitted Died Invalided			***	4			111	***	::					-				4	40		1.	Rurki, 1915, Jhans
94	68th Heavy Battery, Royal Garison Artil- lery,	241	98	***	Admitted Died Invalided	181		***	2	2				1			2						3	37	1.8		Rurki, ber 19 Jhans
95	72nd Heavy Battery, Royal Garrison Artil- lery,	*29	107	8	Admitted Died . Invalided	***		***				-			1							111	2 1	47	3.2		Quetta, ber 10 Nowg
95	77th Heavy Battery, Royal Garrison Artil- lery.	118	115	4	Admitted Used . Invalided	***		***								7						12		57		-	Multar ary from
97	86th Heavy Battery, Royal Garrison Artil- lery.	29	26	***	Admitted Died . Invalided						***				1				111	2000	1111			9	73	-	Roorki, 1915. Multi
98	104th Heavy Battery, Royal Garrison Artil-	40	3		Admitted Died . Invalided		4.												111						-1	-	Campb Febru
99	Royal Garrison Artillery Coast defence.	73	70		Admitted Died Invalided	100		101						'-			1					111	-	19			Rango
100	1st King George's Own Sappers and Miners.		1,247	21	Admitted Died Invalided	***		***	12		***				18	***	3			4		400		366 3 13	20.3		Roceki Detac at Per
101	and Queen Vic- toria's twn Sap- pers and Miners.	1,392	1,127	27	Admitted Died Invalided					3	3	5	4	2			1	-		344		12 5			30.4	-	Bangal Detac at Quett Soura and I lay.
102	3rd Sappers and Miners.	1,172	1,074	27	Admitted Died Invalided	***			***			1		1	5	111	14	***		-			39		54'3	-	Kirkee. Detac at Ada

^{*}The decrease in the enrolled strength was due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field service the close of the year.

* D C	3	4	5	6	7	89	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick teave.	Classification.	Influenza,	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria,	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin,	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases,	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pacumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	П	Hepatic Congestion and In- flammation.	Scurvy.	Anaemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	quan	Died, absent. Invalided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments and detachments during the year with dates of occupation, last move.
Rai'way mpany, Sap- rs and Miners.	•16	22	2	Admitted Died . Invalided				111	111	111	111	:::	111	111	9								31	10		Rurki, Nov ember 1915 from Sialkot
Railway mpany, Sap- s and Miners-	9	5	2	Admitted Died . Invalided			Tan.					:::						-						*2		Kirkee, March 1915, from Que:ta.
Divisional nal Com, any, opers and ners.	78	38	-	Admitted Died Invalided				- : :	1			:::	111	111	111	:::			:::				4 : 1	'2		Barian, Apri 1915, fron Rawal, indi.
Divisional cal Company, opers and Mi- s.	•41	75	10	Admitted Died . Invalided				9	:::			-:	111	111	4::	1	1				-	1	38 4	4.8		Quetta.
Divisional nal Company, opers and Mi- s.	6	6	1	Admitted Died . Invalided			***		:::	=	200		:::	111	3	111		1 . 1					5	1.0		China, Apri 1915, from Ahmedna gar.
Orahmans .	1,47	1,062	7	Admitted Died Invalided	***			43	72	1		2 2	1 1								22	20	9 24	40*5		Drosh , July 1915, from Pes ha war Wing a Jhelum. De tachments an Chitral an Fort Jam
Queen Vic- ia's Own jput Lignt antry.	493	474	15	Admitted Died Invalided	***					***				42	9 ::	2					9 3		174 9 7	7'1	18	rud. Lucknow, No vember 191. from Bu shire.
Brahmans .	718	379	21	Admitted Died Invalided				***	111	32	-	***	1111	2 : :							***	21	334 1 43	13.8		Jhelum, Au gust 191; from Fyza bad.
Prince Albert tor's Rajputs.	566	483	18	Admitted Died Invalided			***	1	:::		111	2 1 2	***	7						2	16 4		211 11 22		35	Lucknow, March 191 from Mu tan.
Light Inf-ntry	329	2,7	14	Admitted Died Invalided			1000				200				13	1111	***		***		13	6 3		10.0	2	Fatchgarh, Februar 1914. fro Nowgong.
Jat Light antry.	442	408	5	Admitted Died Invalided				4 1	24			::	2		8 ::	12					8 1				2	Jhansi, December 191 from Secus derabad.
Rajputs .	694	43	9	Admitted Died . Invalided			1						1 1	111	9	0	***	-	***	111	2	10	330 6 14	2015		Banaros, De ember 191 from Ahm dabad,

the decrease in the enrolled strength was due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field service towards to of the year.

TABLE XXIV-contd.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

								_		Acti	uals.	-	_	_				_	_		-				
1	10 2 2	- 3	4:	-5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13 1	4 1	5 10	17	18	19	20	21	22 2	3 24	25	26	27	28	
Serai Number.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Pever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Underels of the Lungs.	in.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoea.	Hepatic Abscess.	nation.	Anaemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average Number constantly sick,	Died, absent. Invalided on account of old age.	S occi regii deta durie with occ La
115	8th Rajputs .	1,524	1,053	6	Admitted Died Invalided			***	94	36	1		2	3	6			1,100	21			S11 11 26	21.0		Pesh tob tro des De
116	9th Bhopal Infac-	615	508	12	Admitted Died Invalided				5				1	6 1 3	5 22		3		4		8	216	lt.i		Ab Sh Sh Fyza
117	roth Jats	1,336	1,067	:61	Admitted Died Invalided									. 1	1	174	37			3 27	***	1,306 25 13	\$1.2	1 1 1	Ban en fre ba
118	11th Rajputs .	1,607	596	19	Admitted Died Invalided			-	28				3		1	28		1			4	286 5 19		1	B e M
119	12th Pioneers .	1,561	951	-11	Admitt d Died Invalided	1111		-	S:			0.00	6 .		6 1	101	27	2		4		471 9 23	3312	1	Qui
120	13th Rajputs (The Shekhawati Re- giment),	310	248	6	Admitted Died . Invalided	-			=	-			= -	1	3 1	-	131		See .		5	101 2 21	5'2	78	Lu
121	Depôt 14th King George's Own Ferozepore Sikhs.	1	240	7	Admitted Died Invalided		1 1							: :			5			-	***	97	8.0		Mu
122	Depôt 15th Ludhi- ana Sikhs.	393	393	8	Admitted Died Tevalided						3				7 2		8			-	9	197	15'2	1	M i
123	16th Rajputs (The Lucknow - Regi- ment).	1,121	940	78	Admitted Died Invalided	-	1 0				183	-	- :			1		00				1,006	65'0	-	For A fr
124	17th Infantry (The Loyal Realment)		211	2	Admitted Died Ir valided			5								5	-				3 3 3	83	3.6	42	Lu
125	18th Infantry .	1,336	869	13	Admitted Died Invalided	-	8		68		6-				5						2	612	26.3	-	Chi Ti
126	19th Punjabis ',	1,525	886	0 5	Admitted Died Invalided				131	111			6	5 1 2	3 3	1	3	1-1				\$51 10 10	28.7		Que 19Ci
127	20th Duke of Cambridge's Own Infantry (Brownlow's Funjabis).		285	8 20	Admitted Died Invasided			- 1	***		0::			1	-		-	-				2.6			Fire No

2	-	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	1.4	15	16	17:	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.		Number borne on the rolls.	Average strongth present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classification.	Influenza.	Cholera, Small-pox,	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Poeumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhoa.	П	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	27	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments as detachment during the ye with dates o occupation. Last move.
Punjabis	-	914	826	25	Admitted Died Invalided	111	1	111	88		***	200	13	96				484	-	2			31	4	3175	140	Peshawar, November 1911, fro Bannu,
d Punjabis		529	52,	2	Admitted Die 1 . Invalided	1111	-		20 1 4		3		3		1		2	***				5 2	6	134 2 28	8.7		Hyderabad (Sind), No ember 19 from Benar
Sikh Pionee	ers.	496	468	14	Admitted Died Invalided			111	73	-	***				10 2	20					***		33	380 2 29	17.7		Ambala, No ember 191 kom Lahe Cantonner
Punjabis		840	471		Admitted Died Invalided		-	***	18 2		===		2			***	111		-		***	6	6	195 3 23	117	6	Hyderabad, February 1915, fr Nowshera
Punjabis		1,330	1,013	33	Admitted Died Invalided			3 3	***	***	7		15 7	4 2		35	33		200			18	20	604	23		Bannu, I cember 19 from Ch and Lah Cantonno
Punjabis		1,496	73	31	Admitted Died Invalided					7				111	8			20			4	23	15	497 4 18	25	3	Bannu, As 1915, fr China, a Ferozepor
Punjabis		4,6	422	59	Admitted Died Invalided		200	111	***			5		111	8 3					111		16		5	16%	214	Lahore C tonment, November 1914, fr
h Punjabis		1,390	914	14	Admitted Died Invalided					1115	1	111111111111111111111111111111111111111		7 3	3	56			I		-	18	26	450 6 24	251	111	Lahore Comment, Jaunary 1910, fr. Lucknow, Wing Colombo : Diyatalaw
h Punjabis		442	5,3	7	Admitted Died Invalided	==			10000		***				3		160	***	3		-	12	4 2	224 3 15	10'0	,	Jhansi, No ember 10 from C man,
h Punjabis	-	1,220	807	59	Admitted Died Invalided	1111	1		163					,	31 4 2			***			111	59	14		25"		Delhi, Feb ary 19 from Jhan Wing Tank.
t Punjabis	1	1,621	860	14	Admitted Died Invalided			11.	1	=	111	5			16						1111	1)	9 2	6	19"		Rawalpindi December 1915, fr Fort San man.
d Sikh Pione	ers	1,063	907	22	Admitted Died Invalided	111	-					5	***	2 2	1								15	420	19	-	Sialkot, N ember 19 from Lah Cantonme
d Punjabis		540	484	19	Admitted Died . Invalided			-					***	4		25	***		3	***		***	***	218	201	,	Bareilly, Orber 19

TABLE XXIV-cont.

L 2

TABLE XXIV-contd.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

										Ac	tuals	s.				-			-								-
,		3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	1.4	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Serial number.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classification,	Influenza.	Cholera, Small-pox,	Enteric Fever.	Malaria,	Sandfly Fever,	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Н	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	~	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age.	Station occupied regiments, detachme during the with dates occupatio Last mos
141	34th Sikh Pioneers	464	421	8	Admitted Died . Invalided				40 I					111	10	17	2 :: ::	2 ::	111		1	4	51	299 1 6	15.0	-	A m b a l Nove m 1913, Sialkot.
142	35th Sikhs	1,106	755	2)	Admitted Died . Invalided		***		35		60		16	1	13 3	15	24	9 1 1		3		21	18	849 5 39	38'4	-	Abbotta b Dec e m 1915, 1 Rawalpin
143	36th Sikhs	1,495	716	2	Admitted Died Invalided	34	1				4		7	3	9 2	43	2	1			111	17 2	15	559 6 7	30'2	1	Peshaw July t from Fa garh China.
141	37th Dogras .	1,365	847	52	Admitted Died Invalided			5	269 3 4	44	65	1.1	3	5	25	30	31	47	111		11	3	20 I	908 8 45	547	1	Jhelu Novem 1909, Nowgong
145	38th Dogras .	1,285	836	17	Admitted Died Invalided				113	51	5 1		2		17	22 		18			-	14	10	661 12 12	22'7	-	Malaka Februs 1014, I Nowshers
146	1st Battalion, 39th Garhwal Rifles.	578	508	2	Admitted Died . Invalided			1000		:::	::	101		2 2	4	11 2		4	- 10		-	1 . 2		169	11'2		Lansd o w Nove m l 1906, d Kila Dro
147	2nd Battalion, 39th Garhwal Rifles.	520	437	3	Admitted Died Invalided	::			4 2		1		::	2 1 2	8 1	9	:::	3				2		154	9.0	-	Lansdow Noven 1907, I Kila Dro
148	40th Pathans ,	*439	483	18	Admitted Died . Invalided Admitted	***			15	11:			3	3 : 2 8	3	21	4			-	-	7		163 3 12	12'9		Fatehg April 1 from Alig
149	41st Dogras	302	270	22	Died . Invalided	-			13		:::		4	9 1 90		36	3	2		111	111	5	13	54	1977	-	Bareil Nover 1912, Cawnpon
150	42nd Deoli Regi- ment.	1,153	605	42	Admitted Died Invalided		====	-	53	=======================================	21		2		4	29	17	12	-	***	-		21	395	19.6	1	C h a m January: from La Cantonn Detachm at Devli.
151	43rd Erinpura Rogiments.	1,558	758	23	Admitted Died . Invalided				7	=	2			1	12	65	6		100				8	198	6.8		Erin pu January) from man. Det ment
15:	44th Merwara Infantry,	693	463	14	Admitted Died Invalided	8				2				2 2	7	12	3	5	111	:::			10	189	9.0	-	Ajmer, 1871, Beawar.
153	45th Sikhs , ,	1,948	1,001	41	Admitted Died Invalided				***		36	-	1	2 :: 1:	3	41 5	79	12	-			24		928 13 53	5000	-	Tank, M 1915, Dera Is Khan, W at Ismail K

^{*} The decrease in the enrolled strength was due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field service tow the close of the year.

2	3	4	5	6	7	8	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classification.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever,	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever,	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	3	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation,	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments an detachment during the ye with dates o occupation, last move.
Punjabis .	1,138	745	49	Admitted Died Invalided		21		49	***	***		1	3	- 2	***	***	***				4	2	336			Nowsher
	118			Admitted				3			-	3	2		7		4				5	8	51		60	from Bann
iikhs	549	4*3	12	Died . Invalided				-	-	and .	-	1			-	::							4		1	Fatch g a r Nove m b 1914, fro Jullundur.
ioneers .	462	450	8	Admitted Died Invalided					4		-	1		4	14	3	***				21 6	,	1	24'3		Jhansi, Jar ary 19 from Kirke
akhs (Fron- Force)	535	418	12	Admitted Died . Invalided				31 3		111		3 3	-	4	14			1 1 1	-		44	7 2	285 1 116	10'0	101	Jul 1 u n d o October 19 from Pest
Sikhs stier Force.)	•96	1,078	192	Admitted Died Invalided			. 0	355	***				7 3	41 15	28	114	20				26	74	1,194 20 41	49'1		Baenu, Ma
Sikhs stier Force.)	447	325	10	Admitted Died Invalided				54	-	,	+	17		10			4			111	52	6		15'9		Juli ndur, i
Sikhs ntier Force.)	1256	1,117	33	Admitted Died Invalided				489				5 24		8	114 2 5		1	111			18 23		1,313 7 102	44'2	31	Fort Lockh January from Han Wing Hargu a Detachme at Thal
oke's Rifles stier Force.)	1,305	792	21	Admitted Died . Invalided	***				4:1		=	7 1	441	20	23	1			***		***	16	253		-	Fort Cava nary. Kohat, I vember 19 from Ban
Ponjabi s (Frontier	842	442	21	Admitted Died . Invalided	-		. 1		111	***		17	-		440		4				36		316 1 153	14"7	-	Jullund Novemb
Wilde's (Frontier	610	413	7	A !mitted Died . Invalided	***		* ***	27		17				10							6 1	***	174 2 3	73	3	Saman (Hangu.) Ferozepo March 19 from Ban
Vaughan's s (Frontier e.)	651	345	45	Admitted Died . Invalided	-			***					***	11.	***	***		2.01	***				180 2 4	6-1	3.	Firoz e p o i Nove m b 1014, fr Quetta.
icinde Rifles atier Force.)	587	432	18	Admitted Died . Invalided		100	-		===					**		1		-			10 7	4		13'8		Juli u n d i Dece m b 1913, Samara.
ing George's Pioneers.	217	215	12	Admitted Died . Invalided				100					111		***		***	-				18	235			Bang a lo March 19 from Sec

he decrease in the enrolled strength was due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field service toward ; e of the year.

TABLE XXIV—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

										100	Actual	s.			-										
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	13	13	14 1,	5 16	17	18	19	20	21 2	2 23	24	25	26	27	29	- 2
Serial number.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present-	Sent on sick leave.	Classifi- cation.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa.	Hepatic Congestion and	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constant- ly sick.	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age.	Statioccupi regim and de ments of the year dates of tion, last
167	62nd Punjabis .	550	475	6	Admitted Died Invalided		3		24				-	***	18					***	7	3	97		Ca wa i Nove a 1912,
168	63rd Palamcottah Light Infantry.	374	263	5	Admitted Died . Invalided	***	- 1		12	=		-	1000		2		***			9	32	185	8-3		Bang a Dec e :
169	64th Pioneers .	1,815	863	65	Admitted Died Invalided		1	111	513	***				12 4		17					35	1017 21 5	44"1	4	Mandi June from kyina
170	66th Punjabis	550	550	60	Admitted Died . Invalided				***	***	89.		***		39	6	***		-	3	48	447 2 92	2419		Jhelum, embers from
171	67th Punjabis .	1,251	749	24	Admitted Died . Invalided				231	***	12	-		2 1		13	***			34	4	641 2 27	25.0	100	goon. Loralai, gust from C Detach
172	69th Punjabis .	662	256	2	Admitted Died Invalided				1 11 1	111	13		3		5	4	-			_	7	73	3.6	10	Agra, /
173	72nd Punjabis .	*513	777	36	Admitted Died . Invalided	-		4	34	19	65		111	10	in a		1	=		_	18	540 3 3	26.6		Pesha October from Ismail.
174	73rd Carnatic Infantry.	547	515	28	Admitted Died . Invalided	=	1	***	39 2	***	-		111	3	1					3	34	532	23'1		Trichinos Janu 1912, Canna Detachi at Tre
175	74th Punjabis .	1,090	928	14	Admitted Died . Invalided	***	!-	1 1	61		26		111	2	30				111		10	297	15'5	-	Agra, 1915, Attock
176	75th Carnatic In- fantry.	1,039	804	12	Died .					3	5	100		6 1	49		****				58	916	29.2	Tank of	Quarter China. Baroda C Sept e m 1914,
	To a second		-		2 12	-	100	01					1			1	100	1000	1	-	0			-	Fort lam. tachmer Neems Jaiper, merpur,
177	76th Punjabis .	450	388	7	Died .						9	***					4			5	6	122	7'2		Cawnpo January from Jhe
178	79th Carnatic In- fantry.	943	716	30	Died .						79	7		2	8		7 1				56 6	6 11	27.0		Rango March 1 from Au gabad
179	Soth Carnatic In- fantry.	1,632	693	13	Died				-9000		9						14		-		6		33'7		tachmen Port Bla St. Thom Mount, I ember I from Bha Wing Colombo

The decreese in the enrolled strength was due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field set owards the close of the year.

2 % .	3	14	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	2.1	22 1	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps,	Number borne on the rolls.	Avorage strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifi- cation	Influenza.	Cholera, Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever,	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tabercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhota.		Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anacmia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	nambe	Used absent Invalided on account of old age.	Stations occupied by regiments an detachments during the ye with dates o occupation, last move.
Pioneers :	1,528	913	30	Admitted Died Invalided		8		18 2 2		44		9 . 1 . 7	***	18	- 1		7				17	37	468 14 55	24'5		Nowsher Februar
d Punjabis .	1,210	719	12	Admitted Died .	6	-		13	3	10				18	17	1	,				6		303	19*8		1915, fre Belgaum. Nowshera,
las de	-			Admitted Admitted	1				-			6	2	3	21	-		1 - 1			10		514		19	February 1910, fr Malakand
habad Light fantry.	F43	725	"	Died . Invalided		-			11			3	2	-	2		11		=		6	12		24.0		October 1 from Thomas Mount.
Punjabis .	920	832	55	Admitted Died . Invalided	***	- 1		72						16		56	A117	-			26	43	6	33'1		Rawalpindi March 10 from S ana. Wr at Fort Se
Carnatic fantry.	1,049	737	13	Admitted Die1 Invalided							1	6	- 4	10				1 1			41.	***	280 4 10	15%		Mount, O ber 19 from Sec
				Admitted	1		2			141		2				110				309	100	-	1,311		1	Detachment Bhame
S Punjabis: .	*1,145	1,183	74	Died . Invalided							-	1		3	11					1	A	2	25	527	-	Jhelum, Wing Dehra Ist
Carnatic fantry.	813	614	18	Admitted Died . Invalided	***							11 3		2 1			10		10000000		***	***	316 3 43	217	7	Secundaral January 1014, f Cannano
h Punjabis .	527	e415	11	Admitted Died Invalided	***							3		7.0	7.0		1111	4 1 1		111		17	232	13%	1	Dinapore, April 1 from M
b	557	448	16	Admitted Died Invalided	=	-		" 1				14	5 5		13	***					18		34	127	1 76	Nasirabad Novembe 1971, fi Bhamo.
t Punjabis light Infantry).	1,367	993	60	Admitted Died . Invalided	***			189				3	4 3	2		***					13	***	802 7 47	381	1	Mandalay, February 1911, fi Meiktila tachment
nd Punjabis .	461	420	49	Admitted Died . Invalided				11	2		-	2 1	2 2	***	22 1 3	***		111	10000	111	20	10	274 3 15	16"		Juubbulpor January 1915, fr Benares.
d Burma In-	407	325	57	Admitted Died Invalided	***					12	1.1			3	28	***					15	***		25"		Jubbulpore, October 1914, fr Barrackpo
th Russell's	1,105	802	25	Admitted Died Invalided			-				1 1 1			3					***	1111		25		163	41	October

The deceases in the enrolled strength is due to the fact that the head-quarters of regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field service towards the fact the year.

79

TABLE XXIV—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

,	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9 10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	6 8	19	20	21	22 2	3 24	25	26	27	28	29
Serial number.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifi- cation.	Influenza.	Cholera,	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhota.	Hepatic Abscess.	Inflammation.	Anzenia and Debility.	Venereal Discases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Died absent. Invalided on account of old age.	Static eccepies regimes detache during the with da occups last m
93	95th Ressell's Infantry.	1,624	1,168	11	Admit: ed Died . Invalided				4 960 1 3 34		1			3 2	9 1	19	63	144	1	1	52	12	1602 12 108	36.3		
94	96th Berar Infantry.	597	591	6	Admitted Died Invalided	***				-			-4	4 2	5	23 3	***	- 4			5	42 9	312	16-9	-	Detach at C and Ja Santa Nove r 1914, Mhow.
0.5	97th Deccan Infantry.	,6:6	1,012	53	Admixted Died Invalided						155		3		25		68			1	. 19	***	1063	59"1		Jhansi cembe from T
96	oSth Infantry .	556	357	12	Admitted Died : Invalided		100				***				5 2	***	15	***				***	8/ 3 13	5'7	-	Sauger, 1914, Colom
97	99th Deccan Infantry.	1,152	954	43	Admitted Died Invalided				2 14		***				15 2	***	74	28	,	2	5 29	28	80°	30.5	-	Tank, (
9*	101st Grenadiers	235	213	34	Admitted Died . Invalided		1							1	2	200		***	-			16	233	19.4		Jubbul Dec e 1914, Bargi
99	toand King Edward's Own Grenadiers.	1,508	813	214	Admitted Died Invalided		-	-	7 1,01	7 13		-	3 2		. 3	37 3	39	104	-		2 10	32	1707 7 56	42'8		Poona, 1915, Muser
00	103rd Mahratta Light Infantry.	460	261	3	Admitted Died . Invalided							100	3	2 1	4 1	43				2		***	4'6 2 31	26.6	1	Belgau c e r 1914, Amed
1	to4th Wellesley's Rifles.	591	468	4	Admitted Died Invalided						-	-			9			***	- 0		2	***	372 2 25	12'4	39	Mhow, cembe from l
02	105th Mahratta Light Infantry.	1,821	990	9	Admitted Died . Invalided		-		1	4	1				7 2		14	***				-10	607 6 27	29'7	5	Lahere, Augus from I
03	100th Hazara Pioneers.	1,761	764	5	Admitted Died Invalided					***			8	2	6 4	21	8					16	8	14'1		Quetta, 1906, Sibi.
104	107th Pioneers .	477	373	11	Admitted Died Invalided					2	**		=		4 1	13	3	***	100			21		15'4	 1 42	Meerut - March from

2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	14	1.5	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Corps.	Number borne on the rolls,	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifi- cation,	Influenza.	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Hague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhœa.	F	Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scury.	Anaemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	number	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age,	Stations occupied by regiments and detachments during the year with dates of eccupation, last move.
8th Infantry	839	770	48	Admitted Died Invalided		3	***	208	111	2 ::		5 4	3	3	41 6	38	26			2	23 4	70 7	781 4 48	39.0		Bombay, Ccto- ber 1914, from Banga- lore,
9th Infantry .	1,410	506	6	Admitted Died Invalided		===		140	161	3					27	10	21			7	2	14	652	1976		Depôt at Jubbulpore, January 1915, from Aden.
oth Mahratta Light Infantry.	261*	253	4	Admitted Died Invalided		2	***	1 1			-		2 2	-1	4		4 :::		2			35	2 ⁴ 1 2 17	20%		Belgaum, October 1910, from Ahmed- nagar.
2th Infantry .	1,080	931	18	Admitted Died . Invalided	1	1		56	3	4		1		7	23			111	-::	*	3	3	4 ^S 7 1 30	187	-	Lahore Can- tonment, January 1915, from Dargai. Wings at Chakdara and Dargai.
3th Infantry .	2,205	1,059	13	Admitted Died Invalided	3		1	40		29		6 3	5 4	17 3	8	12	5		6	111	11 8	26	554 9 41	217		Allahabad, February 1915, from Dibrugarh. Detachments at Gyantsi
4th Mahrattas .	1,095	758	28	Admitted Died . Invalided	=	3		132	4	114	-		5 2	14 4	50	19	91	111			8	66	785 6 23	31-5		and Dargai. Jhelum, January 1915, from Bannu.
ofth Mahrattas .	•894	955	28	Admitted Died . Invalided		1 2		354	361	16			3 2	15	37	80	15			111	18	27	1,257 5 35	34":		Bannu, Octo- ber 1914, from Jhansi. Wing at Miranshah,
7th Mahrattas	340	325	25	Admitted Died . Invalided				74	=		111	- : :	1	1	15	15	10			2 - :	***	33	356 2 32	23"	3	Poona, May 1911, from Persian Gulf.
oth Infantry (The Multan Regiment).	834	532	23	Admitted Died . Invalided		-		19			+ ! !	6 5	3 3	S	64	25	8		2	3	***	18	399 3 62	197	3 37	Ahmednagar, January 1912, from Bangalore.
soth Rajputana Infantry.	601	486	17	Admitted Died . Invalided	2			82 1 3	=	2	-	3 1 2	1	8 3	40	20	19		2	13		37	443 63	23"	5	Ahmedeagar, December 1914, from Belgaum.
Frst Pioneers .	1,352	986	20	Admitted Died Invalided				***	2	60		1 1	1 2	24 8 	46	46	14			1		46	961 11 32	45"	2	Dera Ismail Khan, July 1915, from Jhansi.
22nd Rajputana Infantry.	1,499	1,075	14	Admitted Died . Invalided	400	=			-			2		19 4	32	2	18	1	12/0		***	. 7	451 7 2	12"		Kohat, Janu- ary 1913. from Fort Sandeman.
23rd Outram's Rifles.	1,575	1,138	11	Admitted Died . Invalided			. 3			15		7 1		23	86	63	33					17	1-330	55*	65	Baroda, December 1915, from Manipur. Detachment at Shillong.
24th Dutchess of Connaught's Own Baluchistan Infantry,		1,206	30	Admitted Died Invalided		-					-			13 3				-	1000			26	8	22'	9	Quetts, June 1914, from China.

^{*}The decrease in the enrolled strength is due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field service dathe close of the year.

TABLE XXIV—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

Actuale

											Actu	als.						_	_								
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	1.1	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	2.4	25	26	27	28	
Serial number.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls,	Average strongth present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Chotera, Small-pox.	Enteric Fever,	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague,	Circulatory Diseases.	Tabercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.		Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Anamia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick,	Died absent, Invalided on account of old age.	during with o
19	125th Napier's Rifles,	431	401	2	Admitted Died . Invalided			***		***		-		2	8 2			1116	111	ties.	113	23		2,3	8%	49	from
20	196th Paluchistan Infantry.	1,1;6	76	25	Admitted Died Invalided			***	137	***		111	3 1 2	44	4	14		1		16		20	18	572 7 7	16-0	-	Pishin, 1911, Hare tache Musc
11	127th Queen Mary's Own Ba- luch Light Infantry.	1,340	1,202	23	Admitted Died Invalided		-	***	***	***	3		3 3	***	2	187	***	***	***		14	43	58	844 6 40	39'2	-	Karaci ruary from
12	128th Pioneers .	417	350	8	Admitted Died . Invalided	2			17		***		2 1	***		12		***				4 3	14 6	1	11.2	111	Meer- ber from
13	connaught's Own Baluchis.	815	505	5	Admitted Died Invalided	***	-	***	***		***				4	1	-			:::	4	14	11	381 5 22	16.6	-	Karac embe from pore
4	George's Own Baluchis (Jacob's Riffes).	561	435	4	Admitted Died Invailded			***	32		16				3	60	***	***			9	15	37	426	23.2		Karac cemi from
5	ist B ttalion, 1st King George's Own Gurkha Riffes (The Malaun Regi-	402	401	12	Admitted Died Invalided		1		52									3				4	- 8	286 4 8	15.7		Dharn Dece 1905 Chit
6	2nd Battalion, 1st King George's Own Gurkha Riffes, (The Malaun Regi- ment).	1,302	953		Admitted Died Invalided	***	9		63	115						113	***	***	-11				29	725 8 4	21.1	-	Dharn Janu 1915 Kila
17	ist Pattalion, 2nd King Edward's Own Gurkha Rifles 'the Sir- moor Rifles).	1,434	1,161	7	Admitted Died Invalided		1						3 1			1	11					***	36	12	40'5		Dehra Mare from
8	2rd Battal'on, 2nd King Edward's Own Gurkha Kifles (Tre Sir- moor Rifles).	688	486	4	Admitted Died Invalided		==	3 3	98			***		5 3 1		31		***					7	3.7	20'1		Debra Nove 1007, Chitr
2	ist Battalion, 3rd Queen Alexan- dra's Own Gur- kha Rifles.	1,912	908	3	Admitted Died Invalided	1111	2	1	128	111				2	3		12	15					60	So: 15 3	43'5		Almer em' e from
0	and Bettalion, 3rd Queen Alexan- ora's Own Gur- kha Riffes.	584	362	1	Admitted Died Invalided	111	1	::	2000	1111				3	2					2.			10	138	8.3		Lansde Dece 1890 Chitri

Number borne on the rolls. Average strength present. Sent on sick leave. Cholera. Sandily Fever. Circulatory Diseases. Circulatory	ent. Invalided on of old age,	Stations occupied by regiments and detachments during the year with dates of
ret	ent. Invalided of old age,	occupied by regiments and
Number berne on the r Average strength prese Sent on sick leave. Sent on sick leave. Cholera. Small-pox. Enteric Fever. Malaria. Sandfly Fever. Pyrexia of uncertain of Plague. Circulatory Diseases. Tuberic of the Lungs. Pacumonia. Respiratory Diseases. Hepatic Congestion Inflammation. Seury. Anæmia and Debility. Vener cal Diseases. All Caeses.	Die	occupation, Last move.
t Battalion, 4th 535 512 Admitted 17 1 147 2 4 6 9 17 5 1 5 387 Gurkha Rifles 1 1 2 1	1.3	Bakloh, Sep- tember 1912, from the China Expe- ditionary Force.
ad Battalion, 4th 749 742 13 Died 3 2 1 1 2 20 30 3 14 10 11 768 Gurkha Rifles.	4.4	Daltak
Gurkha Rifles Frontier Force).	3.8	Abbottabad, November 1904, from Kila Drosh.
Gurkha Rifless [Frontier Force).	0	Abbottabad, February 1903, from Kohat.
# Battalion, 6th 1,137 414 2 Died 3 15 6 4 79 2: Gurkha Rifles. 1,137 414 2 Died 3 15 4 11	75	Abbotabad, November 1901, from Chitral.
ad Battalion, 6th 1,361 914 6 Ded	7	Abbottabad, November 1913, from Kila Drosh.
Admitted	0	Quetta, April 1907, from Lansdowne.
od Battalion, 7th 608 590 3 Died	9	Quetta, last move not available Shillong, Nov-
# Battalion, 8th 998 902 25 Died 1 2 2 1 1	1	ember 1904, from Tibet Mission. Detachments at Solon and Simla.
ed Battalion, Sth 354 325 2 Died	3	Lansdowne, May 1906, from Madho- pur.
st Battali on 9th 780 450 4 Died 69 8 2 6 28 3 6 14 31 347 17 Gerkha Rifles.	8 2	Dehra Dun, October 1911, from Kala Drosh.
nd Battalion, 9th 1,724 954 9 Died 1 5 221 1 28 42 15 32 1 28 53 753 Gurkha Rifles.	[Dehra Dun, January 1915, from Delhi.
st Battalion, 10th 1,412 1,054 6 Died		Maymyo, April 1905, from Fort Sandeman.
mt Battalion, 10th Gurkha Rifles. Admitted	74	Takdah, February 1912, from Almora. Detachment atlansdowne.

The decrease in the enrolled strength is due to the fact that the head-quarters of the regiment were either located out of India or proceeded on field service is the close of the year.

TABLE XXIV—continued.

STATISTICS OF REGIMENTS.

A .- Sickness and Mortality.

Actuals.

											Actua	aro.												100		_	
-	2	3	4	5	6	7	8 9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
Serial number.	Corps.	Number borne on the rolls.	Average strength present.	Sent on sick leave.	Classifica-	Influenza.	Cholera. Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria,	Sandily Fever.	Pyrexia of uncertain origin.	Plague.	Circulatory Diseases.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.		Hepatic Congestion and Inflammation.	Scurvy.	Ansemia and Debility.	Venereal Diseases.	All Causes.	Average number constantly sick.	Died absent, invalided on account of old age.	Static occupies regiment detache during th with dat occupa- last mo
245	Details	2,230	1,514	110	Admitted Died . Invalided	***				18	27	78.0	8 2	***	1		6:	***			5	50	***	1.335	75'4	-	
246	That Operations .	(a)	1,162		Admitted Died . Invalided	1		***	521	10	***		4		4	24	***		-	***	111	7		988	17	-	
247	Marching	(a)	1,362		Admitted Died Invalided	***		1		4	***		9		6 1		25	13	8		0 ::		27	613	9	-	
	Northern Army.	101,609	71,842	3,668	Admitted Died . Invalided	***	80 17 46	209 53 8	9865 92 127	1331	2174	14 2	267 16 142	231 29 148	1148 234 5	2899 24 182	1975	113	8 5 5	67	137 1	1456 7 345	1978	53191 724 2777	2470	42 808	
2	Southern Army .	5922	42,631	1,451	Admitted Died . Invalided	111	2 14	6	7116 28 67	***			261 17 106	95 9 56	73	1943 16 74	-7	1 3	5 2	71 2 3	106	927	1651	31900 278 1600	1489	20	
3	Extra India not in Indian Com- mand.	4493	2,988	41	Admitted Died Invalided	***		1	141		159	111			5	173	***		_	***		2		1517			- sulfa
. 4	Thal Operations .	***	1,162		Admitted Died . Invalided			***	521	10					4		3		-	-		***		988		111	
5	Marching		1,362		Admitted Died . Invalided			1	170		20	-	9			30	2		8	***		11	27	611		111	-
6	Army of India .	165,834	119,985	4,160	Admitted Died Invalided	1	82 31 46	258 61 9	178 3 129 194	1671	2675	24	550 33 248	332 38 204	1547 314 7	5069 40 256	2711	218	7 10	141	3 5 9	2498 13 470	3750	8931 1026 438	406	1036	

(a) Already included in figures given above for the various Corps.

TABLE XXIVA.

1		Nace	comp	SIEION,	017104 1	opus.	on of	terue-	a margar	193.			7		_	_	
	Corps and its detachments.	Rajputs.	Sikhs.	Dogras or other Hill Hindus,	Gurkhas.	Garhwalis.	Other Hindus.	TOTAL HINDUS.	Rohillas.	Panjabi Mussalmans,	Trans-Indus Pathans.	Other Mussalmans.	TOTAL MUSSALMANS.	Native Christians.	Burmans.	Jews.	TOTAL.*
1	Die Cont Die			-	100				1	1			200	15300			
1	Governor-General's Body Guard, Dehra Dun, with 20 men detached at Delhi and Simla	1	55					56		49		16	65	***			121
1	Governor's Body Guard, Madras	12					4	16				52	52	4			72
ı	Ditto ditto Bombay		32				1	33		33		4	37				70
ı	Ditto ditto Calcutta (Alipore) .	35						35		35			35			:	70
ı	est Duke of York's Own Lancers (Skinner's Horse), Peshawar	4					7	11		ç3		658	751				762
H	and Lancers (Gardner's Horse), Sauger .	62	47	***	***		90	199	***	2		49	51	***			250
ı	3rd Skinner's Horse, Bareilly	62	63		***		62	187		60		3	63	***	***		250
	4th Cavalry, Barcilly		50				50	100				105	105				205
	5th Cavalry, Rawalpindi, with 186 men de- tached at Kohat			-			563	563		11		495	506	***			1,069
,	6th King Edward's Own Cavalry, Sialkot .	85	83			-		168		51		56	107				275
	7th Hariana Lancers, Poona	167	57	76				300		19		86	103				405
2	Sth Cavalry, Jhansi	192	27				98	317	***	82		271	353	141			670
3	gth Hodson's Horse, Ambala	***	80	28	***			108	***	96	44	391	1.40				248
	toth Duke of Cambridge's Own Lancers (Hodson's Horse), Loralai, with 76 men detached at Musa Khel, Murgha and Gumbaz		367	297				664		291	80		371				1,035
5	11th King Edward's Own Lancers (Probyn's Horse), Delhi		359	158			9	526		114	97		211				737
6	12th Cavalry, Metrut		321	181				502		163	10	. 5	178			***	680
7.	13th Duke of Connaught's Lancers (Watson' Horse), Riselpur, with 43 men detached at Fort Sandeman		241	289			9	539		415			415				954
8	14th Murray's Jat Lancers, Risalpur, with 16 men detached at Dargai and Chakdara		***	-			781	782				:					782
9	15th Lancers (Cureton's Multanis), Sialkot.				***		4	4		200	59		259		***	***	263
20	16th Cavalry, Lucknow		141	65	***	-	90	296		3		2	5	***			301
21	17th Cavalry, Allahabad, with 155 men de- tached at Alipore		1				4	5		514	136	353	1,003				1,003
22	18th King George's Own Lancers, Sialkot		50	5			2	58		198	1	1	200				258
23		-	8;	47			***	134		84	41	6	1 2 16				100 00000
24	20th Deccan Horse, Neemuch	. 59	4	•	-		96	199		1	444	90	91		-		295
25	(Frontier Force), Lahore Cantonment		34	198	-		111	545		23	248	267	538	-			1,083
26	22nd Sam Brown's Cavalry (Frontier Force) Bolarum	. 122	25	3 1				376		159	150	100	409				785
27	23rd Cavalry (Frontier Force), Kamptee		22	7 102			15	344		97	103	219	419		-		763
25	a5th Cavalry (Frontier Force), Bannu, with a wirg of 773 men at Miranshah	h	16	9 181	-			350		225	93	105	424				774
25		. 51	,				172	229		60		167	227	11			467
	District Control of the Control of t				1		405	376		144	187		331	17			724
3			-	***	-	-											
0	detached at Chamaa	. 38						385		64		106	170	1	-		555

TABLE XXIVA-contd.

_									-	-	-						
Serial number,	Corps and its detachments.	Rajputs.	Sikhs.	Dogras or other Hill Hindus,	Gurkhas.	Garhwalls,	Other Hindus.	TOTAL HINDUS.	Rohillas.	Punjabi Musalmans.	Trans-Indus Pathans.	Other Musalmans.	TOTAL MUSALMANS.	Native Christians.	Burmans.	Jews.	TOTAL
32	29th Lancers (Deccan Horse), Saugor .	1	32				180	213				41	41				254
33	30th Lancers (Gordon's Horse) Ambala .		93				45	138	***	-		87	87				,552
34	31st Duke of Connaught's Own Lancers, Kohat, with 22 mes detached at Hangu .	8	177				284	469		14	108	42	164	2		-	635
35	32nd Lancers, Jubbulpore	179	149				6	334		5		347	352	-	-		686
36	33rd Queen Victoria's Own Light Cavalry, Saugor		57	***			86	143				1.40	140	2	100		283
37	34th Prince Albert Victor's Own Poona Horse, Ambala	105	6		-		18	129		97	-	-	97	-	1		226
38	35th Scinde Horse, Dera Ismail Khan, with 205 men detsched at Draxinda', Jandola, Jatta and Tank		257				3	260		260	138		398		710		658
39	36th Jacob's Horse, Ambala		123	***				123		85	54		139	in 1			262
40	37th Lancers (Saluch Horse), Multan .		182	410				182	***	507	189		696	***			878
41	38th King George's Own Central India Horse, Agar		105	1			2	108		53	65	.17	135				- 243
42	39th King George's Own Central India Horse, Goona with a wing of 235 men at Poona	***	357					357		187		131	321				678
43	Aden Troop, Khormaksar	12	2				***	14	***	23	4	59	86				100
44	Queen Victoria's Own Corps of Guide (Frontier Force), Mardan, with a detach- ment of 46 men at Fort Abazai	8	411	272	152	1	103	947		356	592	45	993		2		1,940
45	Force), Ambala		55				12	67		64			64				131
46	2:ed Derajat Mountain Battery (Frontier Force), Maymyo		165					165		257	Tana .		257				422
47	23rd Peshawar Mountain Battery (Frontier Fo.ce), Abbottabad		43	1		300	11	. 55		96			96				151
48	24th Hazara Mountain Battery (Frontier Force), Nowshera		310	5			6	321		374			374				695
49	25th Mountain Battery, Quetta with 97 men detached at Drosh		116	77			2	195		134		1	134	***	6		335
50	26th Jacob's Mountain Battery, Ambala		63				11	74		53			53				127
51	27th Mountain Battery, Abbottabad		24	12			4	40		47			47				87
52	28th Mountain Battery, Abbottabad		16	13			2	31	***	36			36				67
53	29th Mountain Battery, Bannu, with wing at Miranshah		176				3	179	-	194		2	194			-	373
54	30th Mountain Battery, Abbottabad		21		-		2	23		73			73				96
55	31st Mountain Battery, Kohat		8.4				1	85	-	96	:	in	96				181
56	32nd Mountain Battery, Tank, with 87 men detached at Dera Ismail Khan		195				5	201		172		-	172	-	-	10	373
57	The Frontier Garrison Artillery, Kohat, with 145 men detached at Chakdara, Fort Jamrud, Malakand, Peshawar, Fort Lockhart, and Miranshah		90	. 8	-		19	117		88	-	35	123	-	-	1 11 1	240
38	M. Battery, Royal Horse Artillery, Risal- pur	-		-			***			24	1		25	-	-	4	25

Corps	and its detachments.	THE REAL PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PERTY ADDRESS OF THE PERTY ADDRESS OF THE PERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PERTY ADDR		H H			-						- 4				
		Rajputs.	Sikhs,	Dogras or other Hindus.	Gerkhas.	Garhwalis.	Other Hindus.	TOTAL HINDUS.	Rohillas	Punjabi Mussalmans	Trans-Indes Pathans.	Other Mussalmans.	TOTAL MUSSALMANS.	Native Christians,	Bormans.	Jews.	TOTAL.
W. Battery, Roy	al Horse Artillery, Delhi .					***	6	6		18		1,	19				25
A. Ammunition Artillery, Risal	Column, Royal Horse	***		15				-		45			45				45
F. Ammunition Artillery, Meer	Column, Royal Horse			197					***	41		11	52				52
1/1 Hampshire	Battery, Royal Field re Cantonment.							-		11	3	7	21				21
2/1 Hampshire Artillery, Kirk	Battery, Royal Field		3				1	4		. 6		2	8				12
2/2 Hampshire Artillery, Kirke	Battery, Royal Field		***				***			11			11				11
2/1 Hampshire Artillery, Kirke	Battery, Royal Field							***				8	9	1			10
1/1 Dorsetshire Artillery, Barei	Pattery Royal Field									11			11		***		п
1/1 Wiltshire Artillery, Delh	Battery, Royal Field		-				3	3		11		2	12	107			15
1/1 Devonshire Artillery, Allah	Battery, Royal Field		1				1	2		10			10		-		12
1/1 Devonshire Artillery, Barra			2					2	***	9			9				11
38th Battery, Ro	oyal Field Artillery, Rawal-		42				9	. 51		135	***		135	-			186
74th Battery, Ro	oyal Field Artillery, Peshawar			***	-					41	,	1	42				42
77th Battery, R	oyal Field Artillery, Agra .			-			***			18	***		18	,		***	13
70th Battery, R	oyal Field Artillery, Jhansi		***	4.			***			16			16				16
Soth Battery, Ro	oyal Field Artiffery, Nowshera						***			16			16				16
5 goth Battery, Re	oyal Field Artillery, Nowshers		2					2		11			11				13
5 grst Battery, Ro	oyal Field Artillery, Nowshern		3					3		9			9				12
7 101st Battery, Hyderabad	Royal Field Artillery,									11			11				n
	, Royal Field Artillery,	2					. 3	5		4		4	8	***			13
	on Column, Royal Field									200	***	50	250				250
o 4th Ammunit	ion Column, Royal Field derabad, with 39 men irkee .	10	2				34	46	+	93		3	96	-			142
Marie Control of the	on Column, Royal Field		1			-	17.	18		27		4	31				40
	ion Column, Royal Field		3				11	14		25		6	31				45
3 toth Ammunit			3				6	9		12		2.	12				21
84 12th Ammonit	ion Column, Royal Field		37					37		67			67			-	104
THE RESERVE OF THE PARTY OF THE	Battery, Royal Garrison		76				58	134		111		2	113				247
	Battery, Royal Garrison			18		-		:8		-	19	120	19			100	37
	Battery, Royal Garrison		104				2	106		103		4.0	103			-	209

TABLE XXIVA-contd.

		- "			10/11, 11	,,,,,	o cueror	,		Mento		-	-	-		-	-
Serial number.	Corps and its detachments.	Rajputs.	Sikhs.	Dogras or other Hill Hindus.	Gurkhas,	Garhwalis.	Other Hindus.	Toral Hindus.	Rohillas.	Punjabi Mussalmans.	Trans-Indes Pathans.	Other Mussalmans.	TOTAL MUSSALMANS.	Native Christians.	Burmans.	Jews.	TOTAL
88	4th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artillery, Quetta		66	35			2	103		106			105			1	209
89	5th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Arti- llery, Amba'a		18				. 3	21		22			22				43
90	6th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artil- lery, Barian	***	106	13			22	141		113			113				254
91	8th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artill- ery, Peshawar	***	133				12	145		120			120				265
92	9th Mountain Battery, Royal Garrison Artill- ery, Rawalpindi		76			***	310	386		453	10		463				849
93	60th Company, Royal Garrison Artillery, Rurki	3	31				35	69		27		25	52	-			121
94	68th Company, Royal Garrison Artillery, Rurki	9	27	13			86	135		78		28	106		-		- 241
95	72nd Company, Royal Garrison Artillery, Quetta		3	10			4	17		12	***		12				. 29
96	77th Company, Royal Garrison Artillery, Multan	1					30	31		4		83	87			***	118
97	86th Company (Battery), Royal Garrison Artillery, Rurki	2	***					2		2		25	27				29
98	to4th Company, Royal Garrison Artillery, Campbellpore	***					28	28		12			12		-		40
99	Royal Garrison Artillery, Coast Defence,		4				34	38		29		4	33	2			73
100	tst King George's Own Sappers and Miners, Rurki, with 210 men detached at Pesh- awar,	89	323	8	19	36	309	784	***	668	46	86	803	10		-	1,594
101	and Quren Victoria's Own Sappers and Miners, Bangalore, with men detached at Drosh, Quetta, Secunders bad and Mandalay	2	7				905	914		20	1	155	176	114			1,392
102	3rd Sappers and Mirers, Kirkee, with 48 men detached at Aden	22	185				234	441		698		28	726		5		1,172
103	25th (Railway) Company, Sappers and Min- ers, Rurkee									16	***		- 15				16
104	26th (Railway) Company, Sappers and Miners, Kirkee									9			9				9
105	31st (Divisional Signal) Company, Sappers and Miners, Barian	8	11	4	12		16	51		15	4	7	26	1			78
106	33rd (Divisional Signal) Company, Sappers and Miners, Quetta		-				28	28				s	8	5			41
107	34th (Divisional Signal) Company, Sappers and Minery, China											6	6				6
108	1st Brahmans, Drosh. with a wing at Jhe- ln m and detachments of 249 men at Chi- tral and Fort Jamrud				1	100			-			1	28		428		1,172
109	2nd Queen Victoria's Own Rajput Light Infantry, Lucknow	467					996	997 469		14		19	19	5	435		493
110	3rd Brahmans, Jhelum					***	327	377		-		37	3.7	- 4	350		718
111	4th Prince Albert Victor's Rajputs, Lucknow	511	9				18	533		3		22	25	3			366
112	5th Light Infantry, Fatchgarh		***	-			1	1	1000	10		318	328				320
113							419	419			***	23	23				412
115	8th Rajputs, Peshawar, with 292 men detach- ed at Fort Jamrud, Fort Abazai, Fort	655	***				6	661				33	.33	-			694
116	Shabkadar and Cherat 9th Bhopal Infantry, Fyzabad	1,444 265	93	,		1	113	1,474 472	***	15 98		35 42	50 140	3			615
117	roth Jats, Bannu	1	1		4		1,351	1,357		11		12	23	6			1,386
118	11th Rajputs, Benares 12th Pioneers (The Kelati-Ghilzie Regi-	1,512	***				4	1,516				90	90	1	-	***	1,607
120	ment) Quetta 13th Rajputs (The Shekhawati Regiment)		603				1,037	1,540			***	21	21				1,661
-	Lucknow	277	3			8	1	289		4		. 17	21				310

-	- Alexander						1					-				
Corps and its detachments.	Rajputs.	Sikhs.	Dogras or other Hill Hindus	Gurkhas.	Garhwalis.	Other Hindus.	TOTAL HINDUS.	Rohillas.	Punjabi Mussalmans.	Trans-Indus Pathans.	Other Mussalmans.	TOTAL MUSSALMANS.	Native Christians.	Burmans.	Jews.	TOTAL.*
The second second																
4th King George's Own Ferozepore Sikhs,		-16	The last			719	2.6	100			11000		1000			246
sth Ludhiana Sikhs, Multan		393					393	***								393
at least the same will be a said	Low	393	-				030	200			To be		410		1	ofen or
6th Rajputs (The Lucknow Regiment) Fort William .	1,036	32				19	1,087		4		29	33	1		-	1,121
7th Infantry (The Loyal Regiment), Lucknow.	1115					2	2		102		133	235	4			241
8th Infantry, China, with 73 men detached			***	***	***		110	-			-33	200				and a second
at Nowgong	***	***		***	***	8	8		906		422	1,328	***	***		1,336
oth Punjabis, Quetta with a wing at Robat	***	714	***	***	***	***	714	***	521	290	***	811	***	***		1,525
oth Duke of Cambridge's Own Infantry (Brownlow's Punjabis), rerozepore		94	151		***		245		1	148	30	179		***	101	474
est Punjabis, Peshawar	***	334	113	-		9	456	***	115	339	4	458		***		914
and Punjabis, Hyderabad (Sind)		155		***		***	155		360	14		374				529
13rd Sikh Pioneers, Ambala	***	473			***	12	485		11		***	11		***		496
14th Punjabis, Hyderabad (Sind)		299	67			105	471	***	291	78		369		***		.810
15th Punjabis, Bannu		482	349	***			831	***	308	191		499		***		1,330
16th Punjabis, Bannu	***	687		-		8	695		620	173	6	759	2		-	1,495
17th Punjabis, Lahore Cantonment	**	152	66	***	***	11	229		179	48		227				455
28th Punjabis, Lahore Cantonment, wing at Colombo and Diyatalawa.		478	174	276.			652		270	468		7.38				1,390
29th Punjabis, Jhansi		116	70		***		186		247			247	9			442
10th Punjabis, Delhi, with a wing at Tank .		542	292			6	840		369	2	9	380				1,220
31st Punjabis, Rawalpindi	***	648	398			14	1,060		531		28	559	2			1,621
32nd Sikh Pioneers, Sialkot	-	1,035				2	1,037		26			26				1 053
33rd Punjabis, Bareilly		71			-		71		377	93		469				540
34th Sikh Pioneers, Ambala		456				-	455	-	8	***		8		***		464
15th Sikhs, Abbotabad		1,106		***			1,106			***	***	pag (***		1,106
16th Sikhs, Peshawar		1,480				13	1,493				2	2		***		1,495
37th Degras, Jhelum		1	1,300			2	1,363		2			2				1,365
18th Dogras, Malakand			1,253			8	1,272		5	***	4	9	4	***		1,285
est Batralion, 39th Garhwal Rifles, Lans-		Tarana a	1		578		578									578
and Battalion, 39th Garhwal Rifles, Lans-				***	3/0	***	5,5	-	-						130	A IN THE
downe					520		520				***	***	-	***	***	520
40th Pathans, Fatchgarh		3	97	***		1	101		139	197	,	338		***		302
41st Dogras, Bareilly			302	***		***	302	***				***	***	***		-
42nd Deoli Regiment, Chaman, with 44 men detached at Deoli	259	8	***			£56	1,123				30	30				1,153
43rd Erinpura Regiment, Erinpura, with 45 men detached at Shelabagh	***	6	1		1000	690	1,000		3		554	557	1			1,558
44th Merwara Infantry, Ajmer	304	100				438	441	-			252	252				693
45th Rattray's Sikhs, Tank, with a wing at	1	-	1		-	4,5"	1-54		140	12-	1 1/2	16	-	120		1,948
Dera Ismail Khan		1.925		***		7	1,932		15	***	1	843				1,138
46th Punjabis, Nowshe a		289		***		6	295		705	138	2	7				549
47th Sikhs, Fatehgarh		539		***		3	542	-	6			6				462
48th Pioneers, Jhansi		292	***	***		164	456	-		1		1	1	1	-	
* This t	otal sho	ould ag	ee with	the to	tal no	amber l	oorne o	n the	roll of	the reg	iment.	0	-			**

TABLE XXIVA—continued.

To Corps and its detachments. To To To To To To To T	_		A	ace con	m posit	ion, a	ma t	ocarro	n of a	zerarc	nment	8.			1			
135 Sand Sikha (Freetier Force), Banna	Serial number,	Corps and its detachments.	Rajputs.	Sikhs.	r other	Gurkhas.	Garhwalis,	Other Hindus.	TOTAL HINDUS.	Rohillas.	Punjabi Musalmans.	Trans-Indus Pathans.	Other Musalmans.	TOTAL MUSALMANS.	Native Christians.	Burmans.	Jews.	To
150 Systh Sikhe (Frontier Force), Juliandar. 151 Systh Sikhe (Frontier Force), Fort Lackbart, with a wing at Hanga and 148 mean detached at Thai and Fort Cavagnary 152 Systh Koke's Rifles (Frontier Force), Kokat 153 Systh Wide's Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 154 Systh Walde's Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 155 Systh Sikhe (Frontier Force), Juliandar 156 Systh Sikhe (Frontier Force), Juliandar 157 Systh Sikhe (Frontier Force), Juliandar 158 Systh Skindes (Frontier Force), Juliandar 159 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 151 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 152 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 153 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 155 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 156 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 157 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 158 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 159 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 157 Good Panjakis, Campore 158 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 159 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 151 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 152 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 153 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 154 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 155 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 156 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 157 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 158 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 159 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 151 Systh Sciade Rifles (Frontier Force), Juliandar 150 Systh Sciade Rifles (Front	157	51st Sikhs (Frontier Force), Jullundur .	***	252	66				318		110	107		217				
160 sth. Sizho (Frontier Force), Fort Leckbart, with a wing at Hanga and 148 mean detached at Thal and Fort Cavegnary	158	52nd Sikhs (Frontier Force), Bannu		192	318			***	510		318		148	466				ŧ.
160 seth Sikhe (Frontier Force), Fort Leckbart, with a wing at Hanga and 148 men detached at That and Fort Cavagnary	159	53rd Sikhs (Frontier Force), Jullundur		135	57				192	***	170	85	***	255			100	
162 sich Penjabi Rifles (Frontier Force), Jallunder Gar Sth Wilde's Rifles (Frontier Force), Fereze-pore	160	with a wing at Hange and tax men		629	155				784		313	159			1		100	
163 Syth Wilde's Rifles (Frontier Force), Feroze- 164 Sth Vaughan's Rifles (Frontier Force), Feroze- 165 Syth Vaughan's Rifles (Frontier Force), 156 Syth Scinder Rifles (Frontier Force), 157 Syth Scinder Rifles (Frontier Force), 158 Syth Scinder Rifles (Frontier Force), 159 Syth Scinder Rifles (Frontier Force), 159 Syth Scinder Rifles (Frontier Force), 150 Syth Scinder Rifles (Frontier Force	161	55th Koke's Rifles (Frontier Force), Kohat .		257	223			6	486		317	505		822	-	-	***	1,
150 170				169	141		191		310		310	222		532		2	-	
Ferozepore	163			130	170	***			300		249	61		310				1
166 6:st King George's Own Pioneers, Bangalore	164	Horoxenove		186	53				239		245	167		412		-	1	
lore			***	97	106				203		144	240		384				
168 6grd Palamcottah Light Infantry, Bangalore	166					***		157	157		-		27	27	33			
168 63rd Palamcottah Light Infantry, Bangalore	167	62nd Punishis Campoore		-								13	*	19	-			
169 64th Pioneers, Mandalay, with a wing at Thayetmyo	1986	63rd Palamcottah Light Infantry,									328	-			Sept.		-	
170 66th Punjabis, Jhelum	169	64th Pioneers, Mandalay, with a wing at				***				***	200				240	-		3
171 67th Panjabis, Loralai, with 72 men detached at Musakhel 281 304 585 644 25 669 124 60 88 272 390 380 380 25 669 124 60 88 272 390 380 263 250 250 250 250 133 130 263 263 250 250 250 250 133 130 263 263 250 250 250 250 250 133 130 263 250					-			903	202	***	-	-	575	575	255			1,5
at Musakhel	170	(6th Punjabis, Jhelum	125	125					250		250		50	300				1
173 72md Punjabis, Peshawar	171	67th Punjabis, Loralai, with 72 men detached at Musakhel		281	304				585		644	-	25	669		-		1,:
174 73rd Carnatic Infantry, Trichinopoly, with 133 men detached at Trivandrum and Ootacamund 175 Depôt, 74th Punjabis, Agra, Head Quarters at China 176 75th Carnatic Infantry, Baroda Camp, with 170 men detached at Neemuch, Jaipur, Sumerpur and Kotah 177 76th Punjabis, Cawnpore 178 79th Carnatic Infantry, Rangoon, with 190 men detached at Port Blair 179 8oth Carnatic Infantry, Rangoon, with 190 men detached at Port Blair 170 8oth Carnatic Infantry, St. Thomas Mount, with a wing at Colombo 14 9 805 828 4 4 650 658 146 1,6 180 81st Pioneers, Nowshera 181 82nd Punjabis, Nowshera	172	69th Penjabis, Agra		124	60			88	272	***	390			390				
133 men detached at Trivandrum and Octacamund	173	72nd Punjabis, Peshawar		250					250		133	130		263				3
176 75th Carnatic Infantry, Baroda Camp, with 170 men detached at Noemuch, Jaipur, Sumerpur and Kotah 1	174	133 men detached at Trivandrum and			-			239	239				230	230	78			1
75th Carnatic Infantry, Baroda Camp, with 170 men detached at Neemuch, Jaipur, Sumerpur and Kotah 1	175	Depôt, 74th Punjabis, Agra, Head Quarters at China	1000	***	0					100								
177 76th Punjabis, Cawapore	176	75th Carnatic Infantry, Baroda Camp, with	-		218		30					-			7 00		-	1,0
178 79th Carnatic Infantry, Rangoon, with 190	- 3						-	472	4/3	***		***	380	380	186			1,0
179 Soth Carnatic Infantry, St. Thomas Mount, with a wing at Colombo	177			107				116	223		221			221	6			
180 S1st Pioneers, Nowshera		men detached at Port Blair						452	452			-	394	394	97			. 9
181 Sand Punjabis, Nowshera	179	Soth Carnatic Infantry, St. Thomas Mount, with a wing at Colombo	14	9	-			805	828		4	4	650	658	146		-	1,6
	180	Sist Pioneers, Nowshern.			-		***	1,145	1,145		1		277	278	105			1,5
	181	82nd Punjabis, Nowshera		264				384	648		527		3.5	562				1,21

	-	-	_			-	-			-	15.	-		_	-	
Corps and its detachments.	Rajputs.	Sikhs.	Dogras or other Hill Hindus.	Gerkhas.	Garhwalis.	Other Hindus,	TOTAL HINDUS.	Robillas.	Punjabi Musalmans.	Trans-Indus Pathans,	Other Musalmans,	TOTAL MUSALMANS.	Native Christians,	Burmans,	Jews.	TOTAL.*
and Wallajahbad Light Infantry, Secun-	5					161	166				193	193	384			743
th Panjabis, Rawalpindi, with a wing at	195	243			-		438		492		.,,	482	2004			920
6th Carnatic Infantry, St. Thomas' Mount, with 58 men detached at Bhamo	1		-			501	502		6	-	400	406	141	1		1,049
7th Punjabis, Tank, with a wing at Dera- Ismail Khan	-	342				441	783		362			362		-		1,143
8th Carnatic Infantry, Secunderabad .	4				-	337	341				179	179	293			813
ogth Panjabis, Dinapore	83	140	-			21	244		281			281	2			527
oth Punjabis, Nasirabad		194	1			207	402		155			155				557
ist Punjabis. (Light Infantry), Mandalay, with 234 men detached at Thayetmyo	1	441	348	1		2	793		430		141	571	3			1,367
and Punjabis, Jubbulpore		206					206		250			250	5			461
ogrd Burma Infantry, Jubbulpore		191			-		191		216			216				407
oth Russell's Infantry, Nowshera oth Russell's Infantry, Saugor, with a wing at Muscat and 310 men detached at Char-	282				-	563	845			-	260	260				1,105
bar and Jask	270		88			38	1,245 396	-		8	199	199	3			597
orth Deccan Infantry, Jhansi	576	8				611	1,195	***	208		223	431	1			1,625
Sth Infantry, Saugor	41				-	386	427			1	121	122	7		-	555
99th Deccan Infantry, Tank	363					456	819				333	333				1,152
totat Grenadiers, Jubbulpore tound King Edward's Own Grenadiers,	272	2			-	109	109		60 536		69	129	3		2	1,503
Poosa		-			-	362	362				104	104	10.3			466
104th Wellesley's Rifles, Mhow	98					352	450		141			141	***			591
tosth Mahratta Light Infantry, Lahore		-	-			1,373	1,373				448	448				1,821
to6th Hazara Pioneers, Quetta		6				3	9		23	1.728		1,751		1		1,761
toyth Pioneers, Meerut	-	119	-			90	209			130	127	257	11		-	477
108th Infantry, Bombay			311		***	95	406		292		139	431	2		-	839
togth Infantry, Jubbulpore	***					683	683		359		368	727				1,410
110th Mahratta Light Infantry, Belgaum . 112th Infantry, Lahore Cantonmeat, wings						166	166			-	92	92	3			261
at Chackdara and Dargai 113th Infinitry, Allahabad with 361 men detached at Gyantsi and Dargai						75 ² 497	752		326 484		5	326 489	12		2	1,080
14th Mahrattas, Jhelum		-				850	850			***	245	245				1,095
116th Mahrattas, Bannu, with a wing at Miranshah						694	694				194	194	6			894
117th Mahrattas, Poona 119th Infantry (The Multan Regiment),						259	259			-	80	80	i			340
Ahmednagar	89	***		***		591 436	524		-		154	154	- 6	-		601
	1	1			1			1						1	1	
* This tot:	A obout	dance	a with t	ha total	Lame	har hos	me on	the r	all of th	o reale	ient.	BIG T				

TABLE XXIVA—continued.

100000		race	- Comp	-		- 1	-		-						1		
Serial number.	Corps and its detachments.	Rajputs.	Sikhs.	Dogras or other Hill Hindus,	Gurkhas.	Garhwalis.	Other Hindus.	TOTAL HINDUS.	Robillas,	Punjabi Mussalmans.	Trans-Indes Pathans.	Other Mussalmans.	TOTAL MUSSALMANS.	Native Christians.	Burmans.	Jews.	Tor
01							.			-							
215	121st Pioneers, Dera Ismail Khan	345	1	***			237	583		394	363	3	760			9	1,3
216	122nd Rajputana Infantry, Kohat	286	***	***	***		883	1,169		13		312	325	5			1,4
217	123rd Outram's Rifles, Baroda, with 462						818	818		293		462	755	2			1,5
218	men detached at Shillong						-	.0.	100	455	242	45	1,243				16
	chistan Infantry, Quetta	147	385				16	385		257	743	3	260	6		2	4
219	125th Napier's Rifles, Mhow									200			-	13.63	100		1
	men detached at Muscat		454		***		***	454	***	202	202	278	682		-		1,1
221	Infantry, Karachi		1	***		***	2	3	***	814	392	129	1,335	1		***	1,3
222	128th Pioneers, Meerut	***	116	***	***	***	65	181		9	103	123	235	b plak		-	4
223	120th Duke of Connaught's Own Baluchis, Karachi			***						605	206	4	815				8
224	130th King George's Own Baluchis, Karachi.	***		1			2	3		310	244	4	558				1 3
225	ist Battalion, 1st King George's Own Gurkha Rifles (The Malaun Regiment), Dharmsala				402			402		***	***						1
226	and Battalion, 1st King George's Own Gurkha Rifles (The Malaun Regiment), Dharmsala			4	1,297			1,301		1				-		-	.1,2
227	ist Battalion, 2nd King Edward's Own Gurkla Rifles (The Sirmoor Regiment), Dehra Dun				1,434			1,434							-		1,4
228	and Battalion, and King Edward's Own Gurkha Rifles (The Sirmoor Regiment), Dehra Dun				687		1	688		-					-		
229	ıst Battalion, 3rd Queen Alexandra's Own Gurkha Rifles, Almora				1,912			1,912		***						***	1,9
230	2nd Battalion, 3rd Queen Alexandra's Own			4	534		-	584		***							
231	Gurkha Rifles, Lansdowne		2		532		***	534	-	1			1				
232	2nd Battalion, 4th Gurkha Rifles, Bakloh,							-		-		1	100	-			
233	with a wing at Kohat				748	***	- 1	749		***	***						
	Force), Abbottabad	1			1,196		7	1,204		2	***	8	10	***	***		1,2
234	2nd Battalion, 5th Gurkha Rifles (Frontier Force), Abbottabad				1,010		6	1,016		1	***	1	2				1,0
235	ıst Battalion, 6th Gurkha Rifles, Abbotta- bad		***		1,121		6	1,127		10			10			***	1,1
236	2nd Battalion, 6th Gurkha Rifler, Abbotta-		2		1,316		6	1,354		6		1	7			500	1,3
237	1st Battalion, 7th Gurkha Riffes, Quetta .		3	***	1,727	2	***	1,732		2	***		2	***			1,7
238	2nd Battalion, 7th Gurkha Rifles, Quetta .	****	2		6:6			668	100		***			.46	***		6
239	1st Battalion, 8th Gurkha Rifles, Shillong, with 522 men detached at Solon and Simla				998			998			***						9
240	2nd Battalion, 8th Gurkha Rifles, Lans-				354		-	354					-				11
241	1st Battalion, 9th Gurkha Rifles, Dehra			-											100	***	
242	2nd Battalion, 9th Gurkha Rifles, Dehra	***			780			780				***	***	***	***		1
	Dun			-	1,724	***	***	1,724			•••						1,7
243	rst Battalion, 10th Gurkha Rifles, Maymyo		2		1,409	1		1,412	1		***				***		1,4
244	2nd Battalion, 10th Gurkha Rifles, Takdah, with 52 men detached at Lansdowne		1	***	921	6	14	942		,			1				9
245	Details	525	137	61	13		474	1,210		594	31	383	1,008	12			2,2
_			1	1											5 0	-	1

TABLE XXIVA—concluded.

Corps and its detachments.		Rajputs.	Sikhs.	Dogras or other Hill Hindus.	Gurkhas,	Garhwalis.	Other Hindus.	TOTAL HINDUS.	Rohillas.	Punjabi Mussalmans.	Trans-Indus Pathans.	Other Mussalmans.	TOTAL MUSSALMANS.	Native Christians.	Burmans.	Jews.	TOTAL.*
NORTHERN ARMY	. 10	,3811	9,266	7,145	17,243	1,150	15,327	70,512		18,022	5,637	6,430	30,089	212	785	11	101,6-9
SOUTHERN ARMY	3.	,583	7,196	2,117	3,746	3	16,501	33,146		10,715	4,521	9,126	24,362	2,010	200	4	59,722
EXTRA INDIA NOT IN THE INDIAN (Сом-	1	1,551	249	-		367	2,168		1,458	315	489	2,262	63	-		4,493
ARMY OF INDIA .	. 13	3,065	28,013	9,511	20,989	1,153	32,195	105,836		30,195	10,473	16,045	56,713	2,285	985	15	165,824

^{*}This total should agree with the total number borne on the roll of the regiment'

XXIV-B.—Deaths* (Actuals).

			Extra India	-	
	Northern Army,	Southern Army.	not in the Indian Command.	Thal Operations.	Army of India,
Rajputs	68	13	1 1849	or or other	
appus			***		- 86
ikhs	103	41	5	,	150
	300				
	Calabara .				
Dogras or other Hill Hindus	Torre love	6		1 . 2005	
Jogras or other Hill Hindus	43	0	100 1040	the section of	49
Gurkhas	225	18			244
					-44
Garhwalis	3			ALSWALE.	O YEAR
Other Hindus	112	82	-		191
				M HALL	
TOTAL HINDUS	554	165	5	2	720
- 47				- 49	
Punjabi Mussalmans	117				
runjani arassamana		42	8		16)
Trans-Indus Pathans	. 31	15			40
Other Mussalmans	. 20	55			7
TOTAL MUSSALMANS	168	112	8	1	28;
The second second second second					
Native Christians	2	7			9
Burmans	1			12	
Dutinalis		1		-	
The second second second					
		NAME OF THE PERSON OF THE PERS	100		
TOTAL .	725†	285†	137	3	

^{*} Deaths among the Indian officers and men present, excluding men on sick leave or furlough, † Including deaths on the line of march.

III.—PRISONERS, 1915.

TABLE D.

JAILS by ADMINISTRATIONS

-			Juice of inclinion					-37
JAILS.	Height above the sea-	Authority for height.†	JAILS.	Height above the sea- level in feet.	Authority for height.†	JAILS.	Height above the sea- level in fact.	Authority for height.+
Andamans :			BIHAR AND ORISSA :-contd.			PUNIAB:-contd.		
Port Blair Convict Settlement	85	S. G.	Gaya, Central Bhagalpur, Central	375	M. D. S. G.	Mianwali	655	I. B
BURMA:- Mergui Tavoy	14 60	S. G.	Monghyr	148 167 ,217	"	Montgomery, Central	600	I. B
Moulmein	288 128	"	Muzaffarpur Patna (Bankipore)	179	"	Dera Ghazi Khan	395	5. 0
Rangoon, Central, Europeans	156	"	Arrah (Shahabad)	191	M."D.			
Maubin . Indians .	,		Buxar, Central	204 500	S. G.	NW. F. PROVINCE:-		
Myaungmya, Central Bassein, Central	40	s. G.			1	Peshawar		S. 0
Henzada	44 74	"	UNITED PROVINCES OF AGRA			Dera Ismail Khan Abbottabad	571 4,166	10
Sandoway	***	***	Korantadih (Ballia)	227	S. G.			
Akyab Paungde	32	S. G.	Gorakhpur	255 292	"	BALUCHISTAN :-	489	S, I
Prome Thayetmyo, Central Taungdwingyi	149 145 492	S. G.	Sultanpur	336	1. B.	Quetta	5,511	-
Magwe	653	s. G.	Rai Bareli	351	S. G.	RAJPUTANA :-	1,627	S. C
Meiktila	860	"	Jaunpur Benares, Central	263	33		1	-
Myingyan, Central Mandalay	240	S. G.	Mirzapur Allahabad, Central (Naini)	283	10	CENTRAL PROVINCES:-	1,753	S. 0
Monywa Shwebo Mogok	600	м."о.	Karwi District	298	"	Jubbulpore, Central Narsinghpur Mandla	1,305	1. i
Bhamo Katha	351	S.G.	Banda Fatehpur	415 373	S. G.	Bilaspur Raipur, Central	1,487 887 968	3.4
Kindat	361	"	Hamirpur	367	s. G.	Balaghat (Burha) Seoni		S.
Assam :- Cachar (Silchar) . , .	104	M. D.	Unao Lucknow, Central	417	S. G.	Chhindwara Hoshangahad	2,236	
Jorhat Dibrugarh Tezpur	4.75	S. G.	Barabanki	378	33	Nimar (Khandwa) Betul	1,042 2,189	1. S. 0
Nowgoog Gauhāti	208	L.B.	Gonda	398	S. G.	Nagpur, Central Bhandara Chanda	1,025 861	-
Dhuhri Sylhet	158 257	м."р.	Kheri	471 449	25	Yeotmal Amraoti	658 1,476 1,194	-
Aijal . Kohima	3,917 4,500	S. G. I. B.	Etawah	462 498 511	"	Akola Buldana	920	M.
Shillong BENGAL:-	4,987	,,	Etah	3 550	"			
Mymensingh	59 20	M. D.	Shahjahanpur	507	I. B. S. G.	HYDERABAD RESIDENCY JAIL :-		00
Tippera (Comilla) Chittagong	36 87	27 p1	Pilibhit Bareilly, Central	7 614	**	Secunderabad	1,732	S. C
Noakhali Bakarganj (Barisal)	43	"	District Juvenile Budaun	} 560	**	BOMBAY 1-		1
Khulna Jessore Baraset	} 33	.,	Aligarh Bulandshahr	544 610 727	"	Shikarpur Sukkur	194	S. C
Presidency, (Central Europeans)	} 17	S. G.	Moradabad	655 772	"	Sind Gang Hyderabad, Central Karachi	134 28	1. B S. C
Presidency Central (Indians) Alipore Central (Europeans).)	J. G.	Dehra Dun	903	"	Rajkot Ahmedabad, Central	414	. 20
Alipore, Central (Indians) Juvenile Howrah	} 21	I.B.	Muzaffarnagar	790 739	29	Yerrowda, Central (Poona)	170 842 1,951	I.B S. G
Hooghly Burdwan	34 07	s. G.	Agra, Central	§ 576	"	Decean Gang	1,998	S. G
Krishnagar (Nadia) Faridpur	97 32 22	13	Lalitpur	860		Dharwar Thana	2,385	S. G
Murshidabad (Berhampore)	67	M. D.	Almora Pauri	5,494	S. G.	Bombay, Common House of Correction Ratnagiri	} 20	M. D
Rajshahi, Central (Rampur Boalia)	70	"	Naini Tal	6,400	M. D.	Karwar Aden	110 12 26	S. G
Bogra Malda Dinajpur	72	s.'č.	DELHI PROVINCE :-	No. of the last of				
Rangpur Jalpaiguri Suri (Birbhum)	108	**	Delhi	715	S. G.	MADRAS: Cannanore, Central	47	S. (
Bankura	298	M. D.	Punjan:- Rohtak	712	S. G.	Bellary Salem Coimbatore	919	**
Midnapore, Central Darjeeling	7,168	M. D. S. G.	Hissar Ambala	689 902	I. B.	Palamcottah Madura	1,433 129 438	-
BIHAR AND ORISSA:-	121	S. G.	Ludhiana Jullundur Ferozepore	806	"	Trichinopoly, Central	193	,,, ,,,
Naya Dumka Balasore Cuttack	489 59	M. D. S. G.	Lahore, Central	706	.,,	Cuddalore Vellore, Central Madras, Civil	698	
Puri Angul	74	. 6	Gurdaspur .	700	"	Rajahmundry, Central	15	M. D
Chaibassa (Singhbhum) Perulia (Manbhum)	745	s.G.	Gujranwala Sialkot	829	S. G.	Vizagapatam "Berhampur .	14 79	S. G.
Ranchi (Lohardaga) Palamau (Daltongani)	2,164	S. G.	Jhelum Rawalpindi Campbellpore	827 1,707	M."O.		"	
Hazaribagh, Central .	1,997	S. G.	Shahpur	644	M. O. S. G.	Coorg:- Mercara	3,803	S. G
These are not the exact belief	Charles and the last						-	

These are not the exact heights of the jails themselves above sea-level, but usually those of the survey-marks or of the mercury-surface in baromet isterns in the stations in which the jails are situated.

† S. G. = Surveyor-General of India; I. B. = Intelligence Branch of the Division of the Chief of the Staff; M. D. = Meteorological Department M. O. = Medical Officers in charge of Station Hospitals in their Sanitary Reports.

TABLE XXV.

RATIOS of ADMINISTRATIONS.

The ratios of admissions and deaths to strength are taken from Table XXVII.

	104 9	119		RA	TIOS PEI	R 1,000 O	F THE AV	VERAGE S	TRENGTH				
	Burma.	Assam.	Bengal.	Bihar and Orissa,	United Pro- vinces.	Punjab.	NW.F. Pro- vince.	Central Provin- ces.	Bombay.	Madras.	India.	Anda- mans.	India.
PERAGE ANNUAL STRENGTH .	17,474	1,901	13,435	7,146	27,020	15,895	2,724	4,004	10,214	9,810	110,930	12,239	123,16
STANTLY SICK RATE OF THE	15'7	511	55'8	31.2	21'0	41'3	22'8	11'2	19'2	12'9	27'5	58'3	301
FING SUBSIDIARY JAILS AND KUPS	-	49"0	53.1	30.1	-	39'7	22'5	104	18'2	13.1	26.7	30 3	29.
MISSION RATE OF THE YEAR-						-				E VICE	100000	Divisor of	CA-
nfluenza	3'7	237	2'2	7	6'0	'3		9'0	3.3			and a	
Cholera	.,	'5	.3	2.2	'1			1.0	.1	3.3	4'7		4
Small-pox			.5	1'3	'2				.1	.3	-4		9
Enteric Fever	27	*5	. '8	3.1	.3	-8	1'5	'5	"	.6	171		4
Malaria	30'7	69'4	332'0	123'3	93.3	1648	340'7	47'5	161.8	17'9	1321		1
Sandfly Fever	***		***					3.2	Sec.		1321	1,343'1	252
yrexia of uncertain origin	30.1	138.3	'4	48.6	2'8	17'4	7	17'7	2.8	17'4	16.2	22'1	
Tubercle of the lungs	- 7.8	37	10,0	9.0	6.8	17.8	70	47	3'3	6'5			16
Pneumonia	3.0	7'9	9'5	6.4	11.3	34'3	28.6	8.5	16.3	4.3	8.2	5.2	. 8
Respiratory Diseases	11'4	29.5	35'1	28'4	23,3	70'9	27.5	13'7	34'2	15'0	30.5	53.3	13
Dysentery	24'3	137'8	215'5	123'8	28.0	46.7	46.6	347	30.2	21,0	90.3	50'4	32
Diarrhœa	7'2	132'0	138.3	82'4	170	43'3	220	18.3	27.0	5'9	40.4	43.8	64
Spleen Diseases		***			"	1,0	-4				-3	.6	41
Scurvy	-6		6.	.3	1.4	7	111		2'9		1.0	19'9	
Angemia and Debility	5.0	6.8	23'0	26.7	7'2	38'5	9'2	4'5	37	4'9	14'0	.99	
Abscess, Ulcer and Boil	30.0	48'9	72.6	37'1	75.4	82'8	4)*2	36.7	42'7	19'2	58.5	71.8	59
ER 23 313 EE	-	-	-		-						302	/10	39
ALL CAUSES .	291'3	965.3	1,245'9	742'4	433'3	755'9	675'1	300'4	521'3	248.3	586'1	1,876'3	714
DING SUBSIDIARY JAILS AND		960'3	1,223'1	731'0		740'8	687'3	309.5	544'7	352'8	594'3	200	
	-	-		-	-		-	-		3300	3943		715
	121					F F	-						
		1	1200	10	30	19. 30			13.7	5.	1	111111	A
EATH RATE OF THE YEAR-	138	10	Marie II	-	13	100			1 13				100
Cholera	*80		.0.	*84	.07			.20	,10	'31	*26	***	1
Small-pox		***	*15		***						'02		1
Enteric Fever	*57	***	.12		.04	.10	'37		.10	'10	'17	*65	1
Malaria	.30	1.23	1.71	*84	1'04	*38	1,10		*88	'20	.80	3'27	17
Sandfly Fever					***			***			***		
Pyrexia of uncertain origin		1'05	.07		.07	.06	-	'25	.10		*07	'49	
Tubercle of the lungs	4'86	2.10	2.83	3'78	2'44	4'28	1,10	2'00	*78	2'55	3.02	4'00	3
Pneumonia	1.50	1.28	3.08	3.20	247	1	6-24	1'50	4'90	1'02	3'08	10-62	3
Respiratory Diseases	'97	.23	*97	.84	'41	1'26	1'84	1'25	.39	'71	*82	3.76	1"
Dysentery	11111111	4'73	6.10	7.00	2.12	5.23	2'57	3,32	'98	'51	2'72	3'84	2"
Diarrhopa	.11	'53	1.21	1.68	.95	*44	'73	1'75	.69	10	79	1'14	1
Hepatic Abscess	.11		.07		.07			***			'05	.33	1
Anæmia and Debility	.11		*37	.08	19	.31	*37	*75	*20	.31	.31	.16	
Phagedena, Slough, and	·		·		'11	.06		*25	110		*05	'41	
Gangrene	16	1 = 1	1	1000	100		1 -101			-		In The	11
Gangrene								101		-			
Gangrene	1			127	100	100	THE PARTY	1	1 2	-	Barrier II	ALC: UNITED BY	100
File Em Sal	2.'0)	21'57	21.21	25.25	14'58	25190	10'00	18108	13'80		18:74	45'02	21
	-	21'57	21,51	2575	14'58	25'79	19.09	18.98	13.80		18-74	45'03	21"

Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad, Mercara and excluding Andamans.
 † Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad, Mercara and Andamans.

TABLE XXVI.

RATIOS of GEOGRAPHICAL GROUPS.

The ratios of admissions and deaths are taken from Table XXVII.

Cho Sma Ente Mal San Pyre	AGE ANNUAL STRENGTH STANTLY SICK RATE OF MISSION RATE OF THE YE luenza olera all-pox teric Fever daria diffy Fever rexia of uncertain origin			Burma Coast and Bay Islands.	Burma Inland. 5,350	Assam. 1,808	Bengal and Orissa.	Gange- tic Plain and Chutia Nagpur.	VI Upper Sub- Hima-	VII NW. Frontier, Indus Valley, and NW. Rajput- ana.	ana, Central India	Dec- can.	West- ern Coast.	Southern India	Hills,
Cho Sma Ente Mal San Pyre	STANTLY SICK RATE OF MISSION RATE OF THE VI Juenza olera all-pox teric Fever diffy Fever			Coast and Bay Islands.	5,350	1,808	and Orissa.	and Chutia Nagpur.	Upper Sub- Hima- laya.	Frontier, Indus Valley, and NW. Rajput- ana.	Rajput- ana, Central India and Gujarat.	can.	ern Coast.	ern India	- 10
Cho Cho Sma Ente Mal San Pyro	STANTLY SICK RATE OF MISSION RATE OF THE VI Juenza olera all-pox teric Fever diffy Fever			16.9				23,347	16,357	12,198	4,703	8,810	1,980	9,071	(65
Cho Sma Ente Mal San Pyro	STANTLY SICK RATE OF MISSION RATE OF THE VI Juenza olera all-pox teric Fever diffy Fever			2.1	13'1	53"1	10000						_		-
Cho Sma Ente Mal San Pyre Tub	MISSION RATE OF THE VI			2.1			54'2	24'5	31'7	31'9	25"1	14'3	16'2	13'1	36.1
Inflo Cho Sma Ente Mal San Pyro	olera					-				-					
Cho Sma Eete Mal San Pyre Tub	all-pox				5'2	24'9	2'1	5'5	9*2	.2	1'1	4'5	9.1	3'5	***
Sma Ente Mal San Pyro Tub	all-pox				3-			-			*2	*5	.5	.3	
Ente Mal San Pyro Tub	daria			'2	3.1	-6	.0	'5	'1			3	,		
Enter Mall San Pyro	daria		170				1.0	. 3	'2	*1				7	
Mal San Pyro Tub	laria	1					*8	1'0	'5	1'0	*2	14	2'0	-2	6.0
San Pyro Tub	adfly Fever		0	5.0	2.3	-6	.9	10	,					1	
Pyro				27'0	39.1	64.5	318-7	98'1	138'5	222'4	181.1	81.3	-85.0	19'1	341'4
Pyro								- t			***	1.6	***		-
Tub	rexia of uncertain origin								1		'4	1171	10	18'7	35'1
				37'9	12'3	133'3	3'5	16.1	5'3	18'0	1				
	bercle of the lungs .			10'1	2'4	3'3	10'7	7.2	9.6	15.0	7'0	4'1	5.6	6.3	7.2
Pne				2.3	47	8.3	0.3	7'9	24'0	35'8	13'8	9'5	5.6	4'3	30.1
	eumonia				4/	-				3	2006	18:2	13'1	15'5	37'6
Res	spiratory Diseases .			10.8	12.9	30'4	35'4	22.0	46.6	65'1	34.6	10.2	-3.	.55	-
Dys	sentery			24'0	24'9	133'8	209'2	53.8	29.8	46'5	28'1	32.3	57'1	22.0	1263
-						1220	1200	33'6	28.8	368	36'3	21'3	33.3	6.4	99'2
Dia	arrhona			6.0	3.0	123'9	134'3	330	-			17.23	ONE N	14	
Sple	leen Diseases							1	1.7	.3	.5	***	-	****	-
Scu				.0			*8	1.6	.6	3'0		*2			
										26.7	14'9	3.7	*5	5'3	19'5
Ana	æmia and Debility .			59	3.0	7.2	25'9	9,1	23,1	207		-	1	2	-
Abs	scess, Ulcer and Hoil		-	27'9	37'8	48'1	73'3	73.6	77'9	63.8	78.6	43'4	13.1	30.1	60.3
						_				-	-	-	1	-	
	ALI	CAUSES		286'5	302*2	947'5	1,223'5	5107	598*8	713.0	595'3	396.6	3F9'7	255.8	1,042'1
DEA	ATH RATE OF THE YEAR-				-		-							11/49	14
Che	olera			*16.	2'24	***	'14	*21	*06		'21	'23		.33	
Sm	nall-pox						*14	***	***	***	***	***			
Ent	teric Fever			-66	*37		'14		18	.16	***	.11	·51	*22	0,03
Ma	alaria			***	*93	1,11	1.60	1'07	.61	1.07		.53	3.		
	ndfly Fever				***		-			*08			- 19	-	
-	rexia of uncertain origin			1 1199		1'11	*07	.69		2'13	2'13	1'50	100	2'43	3,01
	bercle of the lungs .		:	6.35	1.20	1,00	000	10000	3'85	0.03	1	1'70		1,10	6.03
	eumonia	-			2.43	.22		'47	*98	'08	1	-68		.77	3.01
	sspiratory Diseases .			1	1 - 110	100	ant in	1	1.83	2'38	10	1.20	'51	'55	12'03
1000	arrhora							1 120	'55	'25	1	1'14	'51	ii	4'51
	epatic Abscess			1	100		.07	.01		-	*21				
	næmia and Debility .		1	1	10000		-56	*34	*06	*49	'21	'45	'51	.33	
Ph	agediena, Slough and Ga	ingrene .						.04		*08	'43	'23			
				- 9			1	-	4	1	1	1	The second	1	4
				-		-	-	-		-	-	1	-	-	-

TABLE XXVII.

RATIOS of FAILS, GROUPS, and ADMINISTRATIONS.

4				KA	TIOS	of FA.			E.	ana .	AUMI	2. Du	ATH R	ATE	PER	1,000	OF 51		TH.		Per per
UPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.		ever.	cigin.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa.	Hepatic Abscess.	Spleen Diseases.	Scurvy.	Anæmia and Debility.	Abscess, Ulcer, and Boil.	Phagedaena, Slough, and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES.	Average number constantly sick per
ETT.	92 {	11				76-1		::			43'5	32.6								402'2 21'74	} 21
100	164 }		-			18'3				-	6.1	36.6		6.10			6.10 15.5			219'5	} 12
in .	763 {				28'8	10.2		35'4	18'3		79	68-2			72		2.5	14'4		262°1 44.56	} 24
in .	191 }				6.22	41'9				5'24	****	2.5						41'9		162'3	} 10
0 .	686 {		2.0			37.9	-	17.5	3.0	7.3	11'7	24'8	5.8		11			30'6	=	281°3 17°49	} 14
n, Cen-	17 {		2.02			58.8		117.6			58.8	58-8								1,000'0	1 5
o, Cen-	2,716	66		***	.4	27-6		86*5	8.1	2,5	12'9	34'6	19'1	·4 ·3?		4*1	6.6	37.2		454.0	} ,
	195					46.3		-				20'5				-	30'8	66:7		292'3	} :
mya,	1,508	-				7.3		8.6	6.6		1'3	11'9	.7					15'9		98'1	}
mya, al.	1,430				7'7	44'8		48.3	10'5		4'9	14'0	17'5				174	41'3		311'9 17'48	}:
Central	2,789	6.9	-		'70 '4	9'7		35'5	19'4	1.4	18'6	31.3	8-2				13.6	:51		261'0	}:
Central	640-	-			.36	3.1		47	3.1		1.26	3.1	1.6				::	6.3		123'4	}
	99	-		-								10'1					10'1	10,1		131'3	}
ng .	83	-				36'1				-	12'0						12-0			96°4 12°05	}
му .	146					41'1			6.8		61.6	20,2	13'7		:::			47'9	::	397°3 6°85	+
yu .	603		-			127'3			5.0	5'0	6.6	16'5	1'7					31'4	=	314°0 18°18	t
1	12,124	3.1	12		2'9			37'9	3'31 6'35	2.3	10'8	24°0 1°90	90	'2 '16		·9 ·08	5'9	27'9		286.2	}
T AND SLANDS		(78'3	***			9.2	4'6	4.6						23'0	::	342.9	}
	311		7.83			54-8			1'96	2'0	2.0	2.9					2.0	33.3		215'3	}
myo,	1,037	-	1.0		1.0	6.8		31.3	2'9	4.8	6.8	17.4	1'0				1.0	16'4		145°6 9°64	}
al.	73		1.03			41'1											13.7	27.4	=	109'6	3 :
wingyi	208	1 -	-			4.8	***	-	-								9.6	23.8		91.3	1
in .	166	1			60	12'0		12'0									12'0	42'2		186.4	}
a .	129	5			7.8					7.8		7-8						31'0		7'75	
	103				7.75				-			9'7					::	97	::	116·5 58·25	}
yan,	1,156		2 1'7			56.2		33.2	6.1	12'1	41'1	76'1	.9	.9			3.2	90'8		731.8	1
day,	1,024		100		78	68.4		7-8		1'0	3.9	13'7	2.0		-		1'0	4'9		171'9 20'51	1
rai	120				98	52.0 5.03		16.7					33'3		***		8-3	116.7	=	341'7 8'33	1
	240	5 -	1200			4.0		24'1			4'0	8.0	4'0				80	24'1		212'9	3
		1				17'1			8.22			8.5	25°6 8°53							102.0	1
	90	1 -			1111	55 6		-	11.11		11.1	22'2						66.7		222'2 22'22	3
•	84	1 -			(1)	59'5			=	11'9	35'7	52.8	35'7					47'6	::	381°0	3
	66		. 15						-			15'2	15'2	***			15.5	45'5		212 I 45'45	3
P11	3	-	2 2'	OF REAL PROPERTY.	2.3	39'1		12'3	2'4	47	12'9	24'9	3.0	1 .			3.0	37-8		302'2	1

TABLE XXVII—continued.

RATIOS of FAILS, GROUPS, and ADMINISTRATIONS.

		_			RAT	I. ADM		S, GRO	OPS,	ana	ADM		H RATE		000 OF	STI	RENGT	TH.	10-27	13
JAILS AND GROUPS,	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of un- certain origin.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Spleen Diseases.	-	Anzenia and Debility.	er,	Phagedama, Slough and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES,
Cachar	75{					26'7		66.7	-	13'3	26.7	13.3	26.7			-		13.3	-	413'3
Jorhat	229 {					4'4		205.3			8.7	78.6 4.37	56.8				21.8	39'3	-	834'1
Dibrugarh .	127 {	204'7				173°2 7'87		78.7		7'9	55'1	346.5	78.7				15'7	31.2		1,653'5 }
Tezpur	262 {		3.8			61.1		187.3	7'6	76	191	57'3	171'8	=			11'5	114'5	-	1,1145 }
Nowgong .	73 {	-				41'1	-	137		41'1	13.7		13.7					95'9	-	342'5
Gauhati .	297 {	64.0	-	+	**	158'2		3'4		10'1	13.2	333,3	158.2	-	-			30'3	-	486.2
Dhubri	42 {				-	166'7	-	71'4		23.8	71'4	23.8		-	-			238	-	690'5
Sylhet	703 {		-		1'4	25.6	-	179'2	5'7	5'7	44"1	8.23	150.8				4'3	37"0	-	913'2
GROUP III	} 1,808 {	24 9	.6	=	*6	64'2		133'3	3,3	83	30.1	131.8	123'9	-	==		7"2	48"1		947'5
Mymensingh .	678 }	=	1.2		=	150'4			4°4 1°47	2'9	10'3	162'2	268.4		-	147	10'6	81'1	-	1,013'3
Dacca, Central	1,305 {	=		-		326'4	-	-	6.9	3.1	54'4	134'9	181.6				56.7	105.0		1,517-2
Tippera .	348 {	=	-			149'4		-	5.0	57	57	204'0	43'1				14'4	57'5		6897
Chittagong .	278 {	-			3.6	54'0			3.6	14'4	39.6	32.4	71'9				10'8	7'2		363'3 }
Noakhali .	94 {		-			276.6				10.6	31.0	489.4	148'9				12.6	138'3		1,585"1
Bakarganj .	867 {	=	1'2	4.		149'9				8.1	5'8	56:19	62'3				1'2	39.3		2,08300
Khulna	200 {	=				100.0	-	=		10,0	30,0	245'0	70'0				150	25'0	-	665'0
Jessore	371 {					485.3		=	2.7	13'5	35'0	312 3	444.7			2.7	5'4	110'5		2,01018
Baraset Presidency,	120		=	8.33 8.3		1,116.7			8.33	25.0	16.7	558'3	191'7 8'33				8.3	20.0		2,3500
(Europeans) Preside cy,	51					***		=		***	***				=				=	200'0
Central (Indians) Alipore, Central	1,932 {	 6.v.e		'5		304'9			3.11	.23	23'3	3.11	3.62				9.3	78.2		987 1
(Europeans) Alipore, Central	1,555	17'4		13	==	315.2			17'4	12.0	367	417	01.6		-		30.5	20.8	=	1,145'8
(Indians) Alipore, Juvenile	257 {			-64		164 4202 3'89			3.51	11.7	15 6	32.0	31.1	***			3.0	856		18'01 }
Howrah .	110					236.4			18.3		***	351.8	18'2				-	90'9	-	1,003.6
Hooghly . Burdwan .	381 }			5'2		3,3.5		3.63 5.6	27/2		2'62	7.87	44'6				- 111	118,1		808°4 1 23°62 1
Krishnagar .	247 {		***			3:3.0	***		16'19	12'9		307'7 4'05	219'8			***	10.3	40.5		28.34
Faridpur .	401		**		12'5	9651			8.62	31		8'62	4°31 164°6			3		44'9		30,14 }
Pabna	157	-	-		4'99	458-6			19'1	4'99		127'4	114'6				12.7	51'0	90000	1,254'8
Murshidabad	253 }		-			9.37	-	4'0	6'37	4.0	7.9	0'37	83'0	4.0			3.7	63.3	1000	31'85 5
Rajshahi, Cen-	882 {		-		4'5	480.7			5'7	19'3	56.7	17679	22.3	3.95		:	100000	38.5	120-1	3'95 }
Bogra	154 {	-	-			690.3			27.2	5'4		179'3	315'2				13.2	10.0	10000	9'07 }
Malda	135 {				-	800'0			16'30	7.4	Maria Control	348.1	251.9			90720	74	81.2	10000	1,874"1
Dinajpur .	315{					225'4			15'9	24.0	100	590.5	88'9				8.1	79'4	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	1,352'4
Rangpur .	246 {	-	-		-	369.9	-		3'17	12.70	81.3		9'52		-	1		813	-	1,227'6
	-			1						"	4'07	10.50					4'07		-	27.21

	- 1					. ADMIS	STON F				2. DR	ATH R	TE, PER	-	-	REN	1				100
ILS ND OUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of un- certain origin.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Paeumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess	Spleen Diseases	Scurvy.	Anæmia and Debility.	Abscess, Ulcer, and Boil.	Phagedaena, Slough, and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES.	Average number constantly sick per
uri .	167 {		-		6.0	215'6		18.0	29'4	29'4	59'9 5'99	586·8 5'99	35'9	***			4119	71.0		1,550°9 29°94	2
	232 {	-		***		271-6	=		8.6	4'3 4'31	60'3	120'7	142°2 4°31				60.3	99"1		1,004'3	} 30
umka	98{	=	10'2	30.6		295'9	=	10. 5	=	10'20	30'6	153'1	163'3					102'0	-:	979 6 20'41	} 40
233.	236{	=	=		=	169'5	=			12.7	21'2	97'5	50°8 4°24				16'9	114'4	::	661°0 8°47	} 2
000	262 {					1756			11.2	-	3.85	382	209'9 7'63				19'1	61.0		961'8 22'9	} 5:
ore,	1,071	=				282'9		-	5.6	8.4	317	200'7	254°0 1'87				28%	81'2		1,405'2	1 5
1.	191 }	-		157	=	214.7	=	-	73'3	2.5	78°5 5°24	151'8	31'4	-				109'9		78'53	1 4
1	373 {		2'7	2'7		18.8		48.3	5'36	2.7	24"1	75"1	37.5				115'3	49'2		581.8	2 -
	132	-	22.7		=	213.1		197'0			22.7	181.8	166'7				30.3	151.2		1,363.6	1 4
	40 }		=			61.2		=			81.6	102'0	102'0				122'4	40'8		714'3	1 2
IV.—	}14,412 {	2'1	·6	1'0	·8	318-7	=	3.2	10'7	9'2	35'4	6.29 200.5	134'3	.07	-	*8	25'9	73'3	=	1,223'5	} 5
100	162				6.5	926			24.7	12'3	12'3	265'4	172'8				6.3	129'6	6.5	1,061-7	} 3
	281 {		3.6	3.6		234'9			0.12	3.9	3.6	64'1	35%			***	28.5	74'7		811'4	,
Par I	151		3.26			145'7			6.6	6.6	33.1	3.26	185.4				33.1	99'3		966.9	,
Mil.	83 {		6-62	-	-	204'8	-	-			12'0	19'8;	96'4				12'0	96'4		795'2	1
igh.	484 }		3.1	-	21	113.6	-	57'9	10'3	471	49.6	64.0	101'2				39'3	80.6		981'4	
1.			-	-	-	202'2			6.8	10'9	6.8	4'13	99'7			1'4	17.8	33.6		22'73	,
intral	732 {		4.0		118	22,1		157'5	6.3	4'10	36'2	158.9	104'5				18.8	71.1		20'49	3
1.	1435{	3.9	1'39	-	3.9	2'09	***	164.1	4'18	8,36	46.0	7.67	2'09			3.9	35'2	58.6	***	26'48	1 3
	256 {		3.91			183.6	-			3.91	33.8	7'81	53'1				33'8	62.8		1,222.7 19.53 816.4	
ga .	207									4.83	***		***				4.83			19:32	
run .	203 {	-	=	-	4.0	192'1 4'93			4.9	4'93		315'3	44'3					59"1		39'41	
rpur .	255	-		=	3.0	3.93			78	3.9	19.6	15'69	54'9				3'92	47"1	-	35'29	} 5
· ai	245 {					28·6 4·08			8.19		204	44'9	0.503		**		16.3	8.3	:::	216'3	} ,
1	133{	=		-		225.6		45'1	15'0		22.6		180'5 7'52				33.6	102.3		30.08	} 3
1	195{					255.4			=	10.30	20.8	112'8	20'5		-		20.2	25.1	-	20.21	} 2
Central	1,079					41'7			3.41 3.41	4°6 2°78	17.6	4"6	11,1				7'4	4.6		17.61	} :
adih .	51	=					:::		==				19.61							98°0 39°22	} 4
ur .	269	-	=	3'7	-	29*7			11'2	7'4	-	3.45	3'7					14'9		174'7	},
arh .	218				=	100,0	-			13/8	45'9	32'1 4'59	32'1	***			18-3	102,2	4'6 4'59	564°2 22°94	} 3
pur .	457			2.3	-	140'0			2'2	4'4	17.5	109'4	19'7				15.3	107°2		674°0 31°82	1.4
	303	-				9.9		26'4	3.3	6.6	6.6	16.2	23'1				3'3	***		257'4	
ad .	577	=	=		=	31'7	=	3.2	1'7	1'7	15'6	67.6 6.93	22'5	-		***	1'7	123'1		422 9 12 13 218 8	3
	361		440	110	-	38.8		***	5'5		2'77		2 77	***	***		2.3	4979		13.85	1

TABLE XXVII—continued. RATIOS of FAILS, GROUPS and ADMINISTRATIONS.

		•			RAT	OS of	FAIL	S, GA	OUP.	S and	ADI	2. DE	THRA			1,000	OF STE	RENGT	н.	-
JAILS AND GROUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncer- tain origin.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Paeamonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Spleen Diseases.	Scurvy.	Angenia and Debility.	Abscess, Ulcer, and Boil.	Phagedana, Slough, and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES.
Partabgarh .	216 }			9'3		69.4		11		13.0	4.6	32'4	9'3				9.3	55.6		296'3
Jaunpur .	279 {	57'3				121'9			3.6	25'1	3.6	118.3	68.1					57:3		32.36
Benares, Cen-	1,544	3.9				47.0 3.24		·6 ·65	3'9	3'24	10'4	22.0		-		23'3 1'30	3'2	100		23.70
Benares, Dis-	390 {					100,0	-		5.1	12'8	2.26	100	2.26			=	5'3	148.0		325'6 10'26 606'4
Mirzapur .	188 {		:::			74'5			10.6	53	21.3	37'2				-				10.64
Allahabad, Central.	1,712	::				103'4			5.84	1		64'8 1'75 36'4	5'3			-		39-6		333'9
Allahabad, Dis- trict.	632 {	71'2				6.3		1.6	47	1.28	9.5	3.16						27.0	-	7.91
Karwi	37 {					459'5					***	94"1	***					86'3		1,396-1
Banda	255 {	530.5			3.0	302.0		3,05	8'5	58.8	33.8	784	3'92				8.5	114'4	=	31'37
Fatehpur .	236 {	=				80'5			4'24	4'24		11'5						103.4		8'47
Hamirpur .	87{	=			=								27'3	***			9.1	18'2		272'7
Orai	110{	=	::			90'9		9,1	187				3.3			-		46.7		219.6
Cawnpore .	428 {					9'3	=	***	4.67			6.1	2.34	***		***		121.6		9'35
Unao	329{	=			-	3			25			8.0					3.0	90.0	-	395'7
Lucknow, Cen- tral.	1,688 {					91.8		2'4	2'37	1'8	1.18	1.18	2'37	-			*59	1.18	2000	15'40
Lucknow, Dis- trict.	610{		::		::	36.3		-	9°8 4°92	3'3	11'5	3.3	13'1				1.6	24.6		180.1
Barabanki .	433 {	=			=	18'5			4.6	25'4	4.6	39°3 4°62	9.3		***		6.9	55'3	=	11'55
Gonda	434 {	=				23.0		6-9	2.30	6.91	***	4.61	***				3.30	30.0	***	23.04
Bahraich .	308 {	=	==	3.5		139°6	=		3.52	3.52	16.5	19'5	19'5				19.2	113,1		597'4 22'73 784'8
Kheri	330 {	:::			=	242'4			6.06	3.03 3.1	31.3	2.0	48'5	***						33'33
Sitapur	€90 {	=	1'4	::	:::	28.0	::	30.3	5'8	7'2	7.2	17'4	5.0			***	7.2	36.2		328.7
Hardoi	356{	=			=	50%			2.6	2.81	33.2	8'4	11'2					•••		5.62
Etawah	319 {	=			::	3013	=		6.3	3.1	12.2	3'13						34'5		12'54
Mainpuri .	340 {	=				103,0		11.8	5'88	5'9	2.0	20.6	79'4			-		20.0		529'4
Etah	329{		3.0			3,04		6979	15.5	6.1	39'5	30.5					15.6	36.2	=	352'6
Fatchgarh, Central,	1,984 {					187.5		1.0	4'5 2'02 2'8	2.8		1.21	26.7 .30 8.5		1'0	=	14'1	53'7		10'58
Fatchgarh, District.	354{					271'2			2.0	***	16'9			-		=		33 /		2'82
GROUP V GANGRTIC PLAIN AND CHUTIA NAGPUR.	23,347 {	5.2	·5	.3	1'0	98'1		16.1	7'2	7'9	22'0	53.8	33'6	.04		1.6	9"1	73'6	'1	510'7
A Shahjahanpur	348 {	-	::	11		129'3			5'7 5'75	17*2	40'2	23°0 5°75	33.0	-			40"2	46.0	11	402'3
Pilibbit .	8o {	=				37.5	***	==		20.0			12'5					:	::	175'0
Bareilly, Cen-	1,980 {	10'1			1'0	48.5			8·1 5°56	7'1	30.3	17.7 3.54	9'1				4.2	70'2		327'3

	lai l						- 1	1 1	SION R		1	. DEAT		100	45.1				70		Q E
JAILS AND ROUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of un certain origin.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess	Spleen Disease	Scurvy.	Anzenia and Debility.	Abscess, Ulcer, and Boil,	Phagedaena, Slough, and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES.	Average number
, District	627 {	::				67'0			4.8	25'5 6'38	22'3	12.8	3°2 1 59			:::	53.0	33'5		33811	} '
, Juvenile	252 {	7'9				194'9	-	79	-:-	7'9	19.8	51.6	11.0			::		202*4	=	726.2	} '
in.	404 {		-			123.8			9,9	29'7	99°1 2°48	39*6	52'0			2.2	9.0	767	=	6881	} :
	428{	2.3			2.3	47			7.0	28'0	7'0	16.4	=					7.0		165.0 162.0	}
ahr .	262 {		3.83		=	76.3			3.83	11.2	3.8	45'8	33.6		=	:::	3.8	49'6		458°0 15°27	} :
ad .	418 {					£2.39			2'4	33'5 4 78	4'8	4'8			=	:::		71'8		294'3	}
	269 {	::				63'2			377	37'3	22'3	29°7 3°72	=				7.4	11'2		26°02 26°02	} 1
un .	93 {	-				365'6		10.8		10'8	10'8	10.8	32.3				10.8	107'5		849'5	} 2
pur .	295{	-				240'7		=	3'4	30,3	27.1	23'7	37'3				23'7	88-1	=	844'1	}:
rnagar .	221 {	-	-			158.4		=		13.6	27'1	18.1	13.6				4'5	31'2	=	524'9 9'05	},
· mic	634 {	17'4	-	=		3,12 123,0			1.6	13.6	3.5	23.7 1.28	14'2					124.6	=	5°4'7 4'73	} .
	652 {	17779				696°3 4°60		32.5	3'07	18.4	38.3	39"9	92.0		1.23		12'3	170'2	=	1,599°7 24°54	}:
	238{					218'5			4.30	42'0 4'20	21'0		100.8					33.6		487.4	}
	342 {	-:			=	8.8		84'8	8-8 2'92	26'3 5'85	50.5	3.03	2,92			:::	14'6	55.6	=	14-62	} :
	951 {	=	-	=	1'1	77'8	::	9.5	8°4 5°36	11.6	89'4	21'0	35.8			4'2	22'1	23'1		551'0	} :
			1	12		-		133				16.8	26'9				67	43'8		316.5	1 .
	297	-			=	26.0		***	3'4	3'37	70'7	70'4	3'37		7.5		5.0	103'0		741'2 12'56	3 .
ır .	398 {	=				203.2		2.2	2.0	151	2.21										
ore .	481 {	-			2'1	33.3	=	24'9	2'1	54'1 10'40	4.16	12.2	2.08				2,1	26.1		332°6 24°95	} '
Central.	2,224					180°3 '45			15'7	25°6 4'95	53'1 1'80	188	43'6		8.1		102.2	76'0	=	737'9	
Borstal Central.	1,661			*6		228:8		=	662	25°9 6'02	86.7	38'5	34'9				15'7	121.6		1,025'3 23'48 1,052'8	3
Female	265				=	184'9			26'4	18'9	3.77	7.22	37'7		22.6		49*1	56.6	=	33.96	3
pur .	268	-			3'7	7'5		37	14'9 7'46		48.5	3'7	11'2					22.4	=	164'2	5
wala	472	===	=	-		44'5	=	::		27.5	25'4	10.6	4.5		-		3.1	38.1	::	10.39	}
	468	! ::	=			72.6		=	8.5	34'2	79'1	76.9	1972			3,1	15'0	130.3	211	656°0 19°23	3
	283					166-1	***	-		31.8	28'3		35'3				14'1	127'2	=	597°2 28'27	3
pindi	. 832	{		2.4	0.00	39'7		72	1	68.5	66'1	36'1	50.2			1.3	7.2	75'7	-	543'3 45'08	} :
bellpore.	. 214					68.1	1 75	18.7	1	9'3	187	100	14'0				***	60.7		373'8	1
	-		2 35	1	1		1	-			46.6	29'8	28.8		1.7	1.	23.1	77'9		598'8	1
OUP VI UPPER HIMALAYA	(10,357	{ o.	200	06		8 138"		10000	3'8	5 45		8 118		3		6		6, 0		18'5	15

TABLE XXVII—continued. RATIOS of FAILS, GROUPS, and ADMINISTRATIONS.

				- 1	RAT	The state of the state of		ILS, G	-	S, an	d AD	2000	STRAT		2/	1.000	OF S	FRENG	TH.		
JAILS AND GROUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenta	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of un- certain origin.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Paeumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess.	Spleen Diseases.	Scury.	Anaemia and Debility.	Ulcer,	Phagedana, Slough, and Gangreee.	ALL CAUSES.	constantly sick
A				07		~	52	-		633		-		H	00	00		-		-	-
Feshawar .	1,175 {		==		***	1.70	=		7.7	48.5	28°t 2°55	48.5	\$0.4 \$0.4		-	2.5	12'8	35'7	11	925°1	}26:
Kohat .	222 {		***			90'1				13'5	13.5	27.0	27.0				4'5	40'5		297'3	} 9
Bannu .	316	-			3.3	120'3	**			3,16	15'8	3.19	31.8				6.3	53.8	***	9'49	}==
Shahpur .	162 {					617		172'8	6.17	43"3	30.0	18.2	37.0					123'5		802°5 37'04	} 37
Mianwali .	275 {					69.1	***	18'2	3'64	18'2	29'1	14'5	3.6		-		10.0	65'5		349'1	}14
Lyallpur	401 {				7'5	99'8	***			10'0	17.5	42.4	7'5	-				97'3	=	458'8 4'99	}15
Jhang	484 {	10'3				121'9			4"1	45'5 18'60	22.7	57'9	28.9				8.3	55'8		59019	16
Montgomery, Central.	2,195 {					406.8		1°8 '46	35.2	54°7 15°03	75'2	82'0 8'20	51'5		·5 ·46		2'28	113'4	*5 *46	1,1526	
Multan, Cen-	1,809 {				.6	1650		91'8	41'5	39°2 7°19	181'9	86°2 1°66	120'5		.6	·6	10.0	1117		1,264'2	}0
Multan, Dis-	1,0 7				4'0	22.8		10'9	3.0	38.7	20'9	15'9	1'0	***	1.0		40	34'8		237'3	1.0
Dera Ismail Khan.	792 {				3.8	116.5			10.1	2'53	39,1	35'4	16'4		1'3		7'6	61.9		481'1	2
Dera Ghazi Khan.	169 {	-		::		278'1		11	5.9	41'4 5'92	35.2	76'9	35'5	***		L.	11'8	76*9		781'1	310
B Sibi	63 {					95.5				317	15'9	111'1				47 6	15.9	317		761'0	
C Shikarpur .	171 {					239.8				99'4	163.7	40'9		***	***			17'5		742'7	325
Sukkur	453 {					28.7			11.0	15'5	13'2	3371 4'42	6.6		***	8.8		-		150'1	2
Sind Gang .	Son {			1'2		360'8 3'75				32'5	59'9	12.5	1112			11.5		16.5		585'5	
Hyderabad, Central.	1,246 {	-8				61.8			-8	25'7	27.3	-8				12'0	1.6	23'3		283'3	3
Karachi .	457 {		-		-	70"0		13'1	2.2		116.0	15'3	46.0				6.6	24'1		407.0	1-17
CROUP VII.— NW. FROM- THER, INDUS VALLEY, AND NW. RAJEUTANA.	12,198 {	*5	-	7 :	1'0	222'4	-	18 0	15'0		65'1	46.2	36.8	-	.300	3'0	26.7	63-8	1 '08	723.0	
A Rajkot	61 {			11		26213	1.1	-	=	32 8	11,'8	=	=				::	16'4	-	852.5	} 16:
Ahmedabad, Central,	1,129{					455'3	-	1.8	62	16·8 3'54	46'9	53'1	87.7				15'9	127.5	1.8	1,183'3	} 42'5
Ajmer	391 {	10.2				51'2	11		2'56	26	5'1	10'2	30'7					21.5	2.6	368°3 7°67	} 123
Muttra	279 {	-		=	3.6	32,3		=	3.28		2.3	7°2 3'58	3.6	3.28				18'7	10.8	220'4	
Agra, Central	2,000					127.0			11'5	17'0	42°5 1°00	27'0	19.0				23.0	86.2		501'0	
" District	574{		1.74			62.7			3.5	10'5	22.6	8.7	34'8		1.7		7'0	36.6		292'7	
Jhansi	223 {		=			13'5				9'0	4'5	22'4	4'5				9.0	13.2		130.0	
Lalitpur	48	=		::		=		-		=		41.7	-				4'48		-	-2717200	} 411
GROUP VIII.— S. E. RAJPU- TANA, CEN- TRAL INDIA, AND GUJA- RAT.	4,705	171	'2	1.1	'2	1811		*	7'0	13.8	34.6	23.1	36'3	12	, n		14'9	73-6	1'3	595'3	}25"

The second secon	7	-				I. ADMI	SSION I			2,	DEATH	RATE,	PER I	-	OF ST	RKNG	-	-	100		ber
AND LOUPS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria	Sandfly Fever.	Pyrexia of uncer- tain origin.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pacumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhora.	Hepatic Abscess	Spleen Diseases	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Abscess, Ulcer, and Boil,	Phagedaena, Slough, and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES.	Average number constantly sick per
A						135 10		121			-										
	89 {	-				67.4		33'7			11'2	56-2	33'7					56.2		359*6	} 11
pore,	1,081	29'6	2'8			34'2		13'0	74	8.3	6.2	25'9	8.3				***	23.1		244°2 12°95	200
al.	145 }	-			6.9	20'7					20'7						6.9	20*7		103'4	1 6
	56 {					178.6	-		-	17.9		71'4					17'9	160*7		678.6	} 35
	132{					60°6		30.3	7.6	7.6	60°6 7°58	121'2	15'2					53'0		30.30	1
pur .	170{		-			52'9			5.88	5'9	23.5	229°4 5'88	105'9					23'5		611.8	}23
Central	615{					63'4		1.6	1.63	3.3	9.8	50.4	37'4			-	4'9	19'5	1.63	276'4	} 8
ıt .	41{					170'7		24'4				::						122'0	:::	585*	}2
	54 {					222'2		18'5		37°0 18°52	18.2	111.1	37.0				•:-	166.7	::	796°3 74°07	} 37
wara .	65 {				=	15'4				=	15'4	46.2	30"8				:::		:::	138.2	} 5
gabad .	73 {		=			68.2				13.7	27.4	123'3	41'1	=	::		41'1	153,3		657'5	} 27
	61 {		=			16'4					16:4	16.4							:::	114'8	}.
	55 {	=	=		-	54'5					18.3	***	18.3	-	::	=	=		::	200'0	};
Central	1,003{	4.0	1.00			36.9		39'9	2.00	15'0	12'0	20'9	18.0 18.0	=		::	1,88 8,0	33.9		300,1	}"
ra .	54 {		=		=	74'1			=			37.0	370		::			55.6		333'3 18-52	}18
	63 {	=	-			79'4				:::	15'9	47.6				:::		127'0	=	365°1 15°87	} 13
S.E.	311					P		199		18				3	- 1				12.51		
100	4													13						Mali	1
В		-						13													
erabad .	84		=			154'8		83.3		11.0	33.8	11,0					11'9	226.2		893.0	23
u . T.	68{		=		-	14'7	::		44'1	=	14'7	73'5	73'5					39.4			} .
	148{					13'5	=	33.8	6.46	6.8	13.2	6.8	==					40.2		13'51	
	140 {		::		::	28.6	100,0	21'4	:::	7'1	28'6	21'4		=			7.1	28%		357'1	} 14
	61{	-	=			32-8		35.8	=	16.4	65*6	16.4	33.8				=	98.4	***	16'39	
	462{		::			75'8		6.2	6 5	6.3	49'8	58.4	8.7	-			5.3	10.8		326.8	
da, Cen-	1,753					124'9			1'71		11'4	16.0	16'5				57	21'7		419'9 8'50	
	341 {	11.7	::	::		311.1	***	41'1	2'9	5'9	26.4	23.2	20.2			-	2'9	58'7	20'5	841.6	,
Gang .	1,635		::	==	-61	83.8		1.8	1.8	25°7 5°50	16.5	1.83				1,3		61.8	.61	394'5	
ar	361 {	-	=			113.6	=	=	2.8		55'4	30'5	24'9		1 1		13.9	133.0		\$11.6 \$.24	19
	\$8,810	4'5	1 .2		14	81.3	116	11'1	4'1	9'5	18'2	32"2	21'3	-		'2	3.7	43'4	I'o	396.6	1.

TABLE XXVII—continued.

					RA:			ILS, C		PS, a		BATH R				OF ST	RENOT	н.			100
JAILS AND GROUPS.	Ayerage annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria,	Sandfly Fever,	Pyrexin of un- certain origin.	Tubercle of the lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhea.	Hepatic Abscess.	Spleen Diseases.	Scurvy.	Anzemia and Debility.	Abscess, Ulcer, and Boil,	Phagedaena, Slough, and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES.	Average number
Thana	399{	-	1.1			135'3	11.		3.21	2.2	15.0	172'9	12.2		-		2.2	100		43111	
Bombay, Com-	453{		***			203.1	:	2'2	6.6	6.6	15'5	4110	86.1		11	11	2.31	24'3	=	607'1	}
Bombay, House of Correction.	165{	=				151,5		=	6.1		36.4	54'5						42'4	=	6000	
Ratsagiri .	79 {	227.8			7	12.7				12'7		126-6	12.7				=	::	=	683.2	}
Karwar .	145 {		6.00							27°6 6°90	6.9	=	6.9		-		-	6.9		20 69	3
Cannanore, Central.	739 {	=			5'4	41	-	1'4	9°5 4°06	2.7	8-1	8.1			11.			4"1	-	18.04	}
GROUP X WRSTERN COAST.	} 1,9%0 {	6.1	·5 .51		200	85'9	:-	1'0	5'6 2'53	5'6	13'1	57'1	23"2	1 1 1		11	.5	13"1	=	369°7 14°65	+
A Bellary,Central	695{	-	::			119'4	-	-	5.8	8°6 1°44	12'9	53'2	=	11			10.1	83.2		594'2 8'63	1
Salem, Central	526 {					1.0			3'80 3'80	1'9	15'2	11'4	3.8		-		1.9	1174	=	148'3	}
Central.	1,148 {		2.6 2.61			13'9		6'1	a-6 1-74	2:6	11'3	20'9	61			-	1'7	9.6	11	195'1	}
B Palamcottah .	382 {	::				18.3		7.0	2.62	5°2	33.6	2.5	10.2		::	=	10.2	13"1	=	267°0 785	}
Madura .	356 {	=			=	16'9	-	16.9	28	5'62	8*4	70°2 8°43	5.6		=	::	8:4	++	=	25.38 313.2	}
Trickinopoly, Central.	1,145 {		=			3'5		51.2	1)'5 3'49	1.1	8.7	14'0			::		5'2	5 2	=	247°2 9°61	}
Tanjore .	302{	106'0	-		3.3	13.3				3'31	23.2	30'7	33.1	11		-	13'2	33.1		410°6 3°31	
Cuddalore .	318{					9'4		47:2			34'6	157	13.6				6.3	18'9		9.39 186.8	}
Vel'ore, Cen- tral.	1,366 {	***				6.6		25.6	5'1	7.3	33.0	14'6			-		2'2	33'7		243°0 12°45	}
Madras, Civil	30 {					33.3			33.3			-				***				66'7	}"
Madras Peni- tentiary, Central.	923 {				1.1	15.3	::	4'3	4'33	4'3	2016	31'4	8.7		***		8.7	3.3	-	17'33	}
C																					
Rajahmundry, Central. Vizagapatam,	1,022 {					10 8		49'4	2°0 1°96 4°8	1.6	9'8	22.3	127	1 1 1			5.0	3'9		114'5	
Central. Berhampur	628 {			4'3	-	60.0		43'5	3°18 8°7 8'70	1.20		30.4					4'3	52'2	-	14'33 556'5 21'74	
GROUF XL- SOUTHERN INDIA.	}9,071 {	3'5	°3 °33	-1	*2	19'1		187	6'3 2'43	4'3	15'5	22°0 '55	674		111		5'3	20.4		255'8	}.

The state of	-	-	-		1	. ADMIS	SION R		43-	2, Di	EATH R	ATE, PR	R 1,00			NOTH		-			uper
GROUPS ADMINIS- TIONS.	Average annual strength.	Influenza.	Cholera.	Small-pox.	Enteric Fever.	Malaria.	Sandily Fever.	Pyrexia of un- certain origin.	Tubercle of the Lungs.	Pneumonia.	Respiratory Diseases.	Dysentery.	Diarrhosa.	Hepatic Abscess	Spleen Diseases	Scurvy.	Anamia and Debility.	Abscess, Ulcer, and Boil.	Phagedrena, Slough, and Gangrene.	ALL CAUSES.	Average number
	3 }					333'3		1,000'0					333'3							3,333'3	3 60
	26{	-	-			423'1		153'8				***	115'4	-				38-5		1,076'9	33
the cap	645	7				15.63		234'4	15.6		15.6	265.6	350'4			-		78-1	***	13.63	13
ling .	- 98 {	1.2	-	=		387.8					91.8	91-8	10319				30.6	102'0	***	1,265'3	35
	75{	-		-	400	93'3			13'3	13'33		Se'o	13'3	***			***	267		533:3	}4
BOOK T	12 }	13	-			83.3		***	83'33						***					333'3	33
fal .	52 {					692'3			1	153'8	38.2	173'1	38.5					19'2		1,365'4	} 3
		***		-		76'92		9:1	911	18'3	137	109'6	19'23				4.6	77.6			1 2:
soad .	2193			-		843'1			***	98.0	4'57	13'70	4'57				137'3	58-8		36'53	13
The same	51 {			***								***					***	***			1
2	65 }				15'4	15.38		-		30.8	46.3 12.38	46.12	30.8				30.8	15'4		707'7	\$4
The state of	Name of Street	24	1000	Paris	5	Electric and	2000	1 1	nois)	Inte	1000	Star S	D. V.D.	5		65.	2	1	11/1-	Lucia de la constante de la co	
XII	1 445				6.0	341'4		36.1	7.5	30.1	376	126'3	99'2				19.5	60-2		1,042'1	30
ILLS.	} 665{			-		9'02			3.01	6'02	3.01	12'03	4'51						***	45'11	-
INDIA-		7 mg			1					9.7	97	Semi-	9-7							58.3	},
den	103 {					Contract of		-		9'71		1	9:71	-	-			- 440		29'13	2.
A (a).	110,930 {	4'7	·4·	'2	1'1	1321	.1	16-2	8-	12'9	30.5	61'3	40'7	105	3	10	14'0	58*2	'2	586-1	3
A TOTAL OF															-	-6	710		Tiene I		
	17,474 {	3'7	.80		*57	30'7		30"1	7.8 4.86	3,0	'97	1'66	7.2	111		*06	2.0	30.0		30,0	3
	1,901	23.7			'5	69.4		138'3	3'7	7.0	29'5	137-8	132'0				6-8	48.9		955.	3
BROKE S	-								1000		9719			-70	100	0		1002			1
	13,435 {	3.5	.07	15	15	332.0	***	'07	10,0	9.2	35'1	215'5	1,21	.07		-07	23'0	72'6	111	21'21	3
AND SSA,	7,146 }	1	212	1.3	3'1	123'3	200	486	950	64	28*4	1238			-	.3	26.7	57'1	*3	742'4 25'75	2
ED .	300.00	1	bre.	30,1	***	0 1000	P	1	378		1			21	Linn	2.3			-3		
GVINCES.	27,020 {	6.0	.07		13	93,3		2.8	2'44	2'07	23'2	58.0	17'0			'07	7.3	76.4	711	433'3	1
An	15,896	'3	-	12	-8	164'8		17'4	17.8	34'3	700	46.7	43'3		179	.7	38'5	80'8	. 1	755'9	1
		-			119				4'28						.00			00	05	25.79	1
WINCE.	2,724			***	1'5	340'7		.7	1,10	6.14 58.0	1.84	45.57	22-0		*4	'37	9'3	49.2		675'1	1
WAL DVINCES.	4,004	9'0	1'0	-	.5	47.5	3.2	17'7	4'7	815	13'7	34*7	18'2			1	4'5	35-7	12	300'4	12.
	T. S. SERVI	5,3	.20	+1	7	161-8	-	3.8	2'00	16'2	34'2	30.2	27'0	-	***	3.0	3.7	42.7	1'0	20110	13
	10,214		,10		.10	-88	***	.10	-78	4,00	*39	.68	'69		***	*20	-20	***	.10	13'80	3
LAY	9,810	3.3	.31		.10	17-9		17'4	5.22 5.22	1,03	15'0	31'0	5.9			***	4'9	10.3		248.3	1
LAS	3,010 3	1000		-	1	1	10	1	-	0214	52'4	5012	43'8	'3	26	1919	14	71.8	-		1
					CI	1,343-1	-	2271	5.3	23'3			430	0					'5	1,8763	12
AS	12,230 {	-12	74		111	1,343·1 3'27		16'8		10.63				-33		'57	16		141	1,876°3 45°02	5

^{*} Worked on the aggregates.

(a) Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad, Mercara, and excluding Andamans.

(b) Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad, Mercara and Ardamans.

107

TABLE XXVIII.

ABSTRACT of the SANITARY SHEETS of the most UNHEALTHY FAILS, SANITARY DEFECTS, IMPROVEMENTS, SUGGESTIONS, etc.

(Jails with constantly sick rate of above 30 and with average daily strength of over 200).

DELHI.

Delhi.—Average strength 652; constantly sick rate 50.6; admission to hospital rate 1,599.7; death rate 24.54. Sleeping accommodate for adult prisoners was insufficient as also the supply of water for bathing purposes. There were epidemics of malaria and influenza.

ASSAM

Jerhat.—Average strength 229; constantly sick rate 39'3; admission to hospital rate 834'1; death rate 13'10. There were no pacular causes to account for the sickness and mortality.

Tezpur.—Average strength 262; constantly sick rate 45'8; admission to hospital rate 1,114'5; death rate 15'27. The hospital which badly lighted will be abandoned when the population of the jail is reduced as intended.

Gauhati.—Average strength 297; constantly sick rate 70'7; admission to hospital rate 986'5; death rate 10'10. The dysentery woof the hospital is not fly-proof. The jail surroundings are bad. There are no other special defects.

Sylhet.—Average strength 703; constantly sick rate 58'3; admission to hospital rate 913'2; death rate 22'76. The hospital accommention is insufficient and the ventilation defective. There was overcrowding for a good portion of the year.

BENGAL

Mymensingh.—Average strength 678; constantly sick rate 487; admission to hospital rate 1,013'3; death rate 28'02. There was or crowding in the segregation ward. The drainage within the jail is good but the kutcha drains running along the west and no boundary of the jail need to be made pucca. The chief causes of disease were malaria and bowel complaints.

Dacca, Central.—Average strength 1,305; constantly sick rate 55'2; admission to hospital rate 1,517'2; death rate 0'96. There vovercrowding in some of the wards and the accommodation in certain wards was insufficient. The sickness and mortality was primare due to malaria, pthisis, dengue and chicken-pox; infection in the case of the two latter was conveyed from outside and by prisoners in other jails where the disease was prevalent.

Barisal.—Average strength 867; constantly sick rate 113'0; admission to hospital rate 2,083'0; death rate 13'84. There was overcrowd throughout the year. The cells and the sleeping barracks on the ground floor are damp. The surroundings of the jail are insanitary d to dead khals on the east and south sides. During the year a corrugated iron shed was erected for infectious cases and a municipal water pipe connection laid.

Jessore.—Average strength 371; constantly sick rate 99'7; admission to hospital rate 2,010'8; death rate 18'87. Separate accommodat is needed for the segregation of infectious cases. The silted up and stagnant Bhairab river is insanitary and believed to have a demental effect on the jail.

Presidency, Central.—Average strength 1,932; constantly sick rate 38'3; admission to hospital rate 987'1; death rate 20'70. There we overcrowding in all the wards except the civil jail. The water supply was unsatisfactory: there is no continuous supply.

Alipore, Central.—Average strength 1,555; constantly sick rate 45'0; admission to hospital rate 891'3; death rate 18'01. There we overcrowding throughout the year. There are no special defects to account for the sickness and mortality.

Alipore, Juvenile.-Average strength 257; constantly sick rate 35'0; admission to hospital rate 1,027'2; death rate 7'78. No defects.

Hooghly.—Average strength 381; constantly sick rate 73'5; admission to hospital rate 808'4; death rate 23'62. The sickness a mortality is attributed to a certain extent, to overcrowding and to the transfer of sickly and old prisoners from other jails. The jail surrounded on three sides by crowded bustees.

Burdwan.—Average strength 247; constantly sick rate 40'5; admission to hospital rate 1,008'1; death rate 28'34. There was par overcrowding throughout the year. The site of the jail and its surroundings are low and the old barrack is dark and damp.

Krishnagar.—Average strength 232; constantly sick rate 86'2; admission to hospital rate 1,982'8; death rate 30'17. The jail were covereded for the second half of the year. There were no special defects.

Faridpur.—Average strength 401; constantly sick rate 1147; admission to hospital rate 2,2195; death rate 1746. The quest of improving the drainage which is defective is under consideration. There were five cases of enteric fever the origin of which cannot accounted for.

Murshidabad.—Average strength 253; constantly sick rate 35'6; admission to hospital rate 1,134'4; death rate 3'93. There were particular causes to account for the sickness and mortality.

Rajshahi, Central.—Average strength 882; constantly sick rate 420; admission to hospital rate 1,0737; death rate 9'07. The dracutside the jail are defective and the water supply insufficient during the dry season. The chief causes of disease were malaria a dysentery.

Dinajpur.—Average strength 315; constantly sick rate 921; admission to hospital rate 1,3524; death rate 10794. There were overcrowding in the jail but this has been remedied by the opening of a new sleeping barrack. There is no separate accommodation for segregation of infectious cases and the buildings are ill-ventilated and badly lighted. Administrative sanction has been accorded to construction of a new hospital building.

Rangpur. - Average strength 246; constantly sick rate 77'2; admission to hospital rate 1,227'6; death rate 32'52. The jail situated on low water-logged soil. Malaria was very prevalent owing to the excessive rainfall.

Bankura.—Average strength 262; constantly sick rate 53'4; admission to hospital rate 961'8; death rate 22'90. The situation the jail is unsatisfactory, being in the centre of the town and with railway burrow-pits and paddy fields in close proximity.

Midnapore. Central.—Average strength 1,071; constantly sick rate 54'2; admission to hospital rate 1,405'2; death rate 33'61. There a no particular causes to which the sickness and mortality could be attributed.

BIHAR AND ORISSA.

Purneah.—Average strength 232; constantly sick rate 30'2; admission to hospital rate 1,004'3; death rate 47'41. The ventilation the buildings is defective: a new drainage scheme has been prepared.

Hazaribagh, Central.-Average strength 484; constantly sick rate 51'7; admission to hospital rate 981'4; death rate 22'73. The were no particular defects.

Gaya, Central.—Average strength 732; constantly sick rate 31'4; admission to hospital rate 769'1; death rate 20'49. Accommodation was insufficient in the segregation and undertrial wards and in the hospital.

Bhagalpur, Central.—Average strength 1.435; constantly sick rate 30°0; admission to hospital rate 841°1; death rate 26'48. The vetilation and drainage are defective. The keeping of cattle within the jail compound is suspected to be the cause of much bowel couplaints.

Monghyr. - Average strength 256; constantly sick rate 35'2; admission to hospital rate 1,222'7; death rate 19'53. No defects.

TABLE XXVIII-continued.

BIHAR AND ORISSA-contd,

Darbhanga.—Average strength 207; constantly sick rate 33'8; admission to hospital rate 816'4; death rate 19'32. No defects.

Champarun.—Average strength 203; constantly sick rate 39'4; admission to hospital rate 758'6; death rate 39'41. Except for overvding in the segregation ward throughout the year there were no particular causes to account for the sickness and mortality.

Muzaffarpur.—Average strength 255; constantly sick rate 51'0; admission to hospital rate 662.7; death rate 35'29. No defects.

UNITED PROVINCES.

Azamgarh.—Average strength 218; constantly sick rate 32.1; admission to hospital rate 564.2; death rate 22.94. The drainage is unfactory when the river is in flood. There are no other particular defects.

Gorakhpur.—Average strength 457; constantly sick rate 41.6; admission to hospital rate 674.0; death rate 32.82. There are no special ses to which the sickness and mortality could be attributed.

Allahabad, Central.—Average strength 1,712; constantly sick rate 42'1; admission to hospital rate 710'9; death rate 15'77. No defects: principal causes of mortality were dysentery and malaria.

Banda.—Average strength 255; constantly sick rate 39'2; admission to hospital rate 1,396'1; death rate 31'37. No defects.

Fategarh, Central.—Average strength 1,984; constantly sick rate 31'2; admission to hospital rate 591'7; death rate 10'58. No defects.

Saharanpur.—Average strength 295; constantly sick rate 30'5; admission to hospital rate 844'1; death rate nil. The drains are and defective. There are no special causes to account for the sickness and mortality.

PUNJAB.

Ambala.-Average strength 951; constantly sick rate 32'6; admission to hospital rate 551'0; death rate 14'72. No defects.

Lahore, Central.—Average strength 2,224; constantly sick rate 72'4; admission to hospital rate 737.9; death rate 18.44. There was rerowding throughout the year: the accommodation for the present population is inadequate.

Lahore Borstal, Central.—Average strength 1,661; constantly sick rate 57'2; admission to hospital rate 1,025'3; death rate 23'48.

accommodation is insufficient and the drainage defective. The water supply is deficient during most part of the year.

Lahore, Female.—Average strength 265; constantly sick rate 49'1; admission to hospital rate 1,052'8; death rate 33'96. No special

Montgomery, Central.—Average strength 2,195; constantly sick rate 71.5; admission to hospital rate 1,152.6; death rate 42.37. No cial causes to account for the sickness and mortality.

Multan, Central.—Average strength 1,809; constantly sick rate 43.7; admission to hospital rate 1,264.2; death rate 32.61. There was recowding throughout the year. The sickness and mortality is attributed to the large number of feeble and decripit prisoners received outbreak of cerebro-spinal meningitis added considerably to the death rate

BOMBAY.

Ahmedabad, Central.—Average strength 1,129; constantly sick rate 42'5; admission to hospital rate 1,183'3; death rate 15'94. There is overcrowding throughout the year. There were no other special defects.

MADRAS.

Bellary, Central.—Average strength 605; constantly sick rate 40.3; admission to hospital rate 504.2; death rate 8.63. The water ply was deficient in the hot weather. There was an outbreak of malaria and dysentery in an epidemic from due to the unusual heavy ns.

TABLE XXIX.

TABLE XXX. TABLE XXXI.

ENTERIC FEVER by months, Jails, MALARIA by months, Jails, Groups, and PYREXIA of UNCERTAIN ORIGINS, Groups, and Administrations.

Administrations.

PYREXIA of UNCERTAIN ORIGINS, months, Jails, Groups, and Administration.

Groups, and	d Administrations.	Administrations. m	onths, Jaits, Groups, and Administration
	Admissions from Enteric Fever in each month.	Admissions from Malaria in each month.	Admissions from Pyrexia of Uncertain ORIGIN IN EACH MONTH.
JAILS AND GROUPS.	lanuary. February. March. April. May. Inne. Isla. July. September. October. December.	January. February. March. Mav. June. July. August. September. October. November. Torat.	January. February. March. May. June. July. August. September. October.
Mergui Tavoy Moulmein Shwegyin Toungoo Rangoon, Central (Europeans) (Indians) Maubin Maubin Myaungunya, Central Bassein Insein Henzada Sandoway Kyaukpyu Akyab GROUF L— BURMA COAST AND BAY ISLANDS	1 2 3 3 1 2 3 6 2 1 2 22 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	5 8 5 4 3 6 13 6 2 8 11 4 75 16 3 1 3 2 2 2 2 64 1 1 3 1 3 2 2 2 2 64 1 1 3 1 3 2 2 2 3 4 7 27 1 1 3 1 3 1 3 2 2 2 2 3 4 7 27 1 1 1 3 1 3 1 3 2 2 2 3 4 7 27 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	25 16 7 9 30 23 33 16 18 19 17 22 2 1 6
Paungde Prome Prome Thayetmyo, Central Taungdwingyi Magwe Yamethia Meiktila Myingyan, Central Mandalay Monywa Shwebo Megok Bhamo Katha GROUP II.— BURMA INLAND		2 1 2 4 1 1 1 4 1 17 3 3 3 2 2 1 4 2 3 2 4 2 28 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 7 2 1 3 2 1 3 2 1 3 2 1 3 2 1 3 2 1 3 2 1 3 3 3 4 3 10 4 8 8 5 6 6 65 1 6 1 4 3 1 7 5 10 9 12 11 70 1 2 1 1 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3 2 1 2 9 4 1
		5 3 1 1 2 2 3 3 2 22 1 2 1 1 16	1 1
Mymensingh Dacca, Central Tippera Cautagong Noakhali Bakarganj Khulna Jessore Baraset Presidency, Central (Indians) Alipore, Central (Europeans) "(Indians) Juvenile Howrah Hoophly Burdwan Krishnagar Faridpur Pabna Murshidabad Rajshabi, Central Bogra Malda Dinajpur Rangpur Jalpaiguri Puzocah Naya Dumka Suri Bankura Midnapore, Central Balasore Cuttack		0 3 13 10 12 4 8 18 3 5 7 10 102 2 9 17 12 14 20 10 9 8 66 149 100 426 11 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 15 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	10
Inite when with	56	66 190 282 255 290 368 406 508 426 459 632 571 4,593	4 4 1 7 3 11 8 7 2 1 2 1

April - 1											TH.				-	AD	MIS				MOM			RIA	IN			A	DM		ONS							NCE	RTA	IN
JAILS AND GROUPS.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	Torn.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	lune	Jane.	Joly.	August.	September.	October.	November,	December,	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November	December.	Тотак.
bassa in this in the control or the							-		1					1	1 2 2	2:224	10 = 40	1			3 4 2	: 4631	5 24 3 1 4	1 8 2 1 12	5 3 9	2 7 2 	15 66 22 17 55	11111							14	5	11111		11111	28
ralpur, Central . ghyr banga . mparun . affarpur . h . ira .		1	2	1								3 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3 2 3 3 3 4 2 1 2 1	1422 - 52 : 6 34 : 22 : : : : :	106213722674:5:1:2	99331166	100	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3 1 2 5 1 1 4 2 1 2	7 1 4 3 1	10 52 51 5 : 46 3 : 38 1 1 2 : ::	36 8 5 12 2 1 4 4 3 5 15 2 4 3	11 4 6 4 2 9 4 6 1 4 10 1 2 1 1	86521211333134	4 2 2 5 3 3 3 14 1 2 1 1 1 1	148 79 37 38 39 53 7 30 50 45 8 22 64 3 20 14 17	1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1	72	10 4	5	7 4	14	497 100	21 8	27	21 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3	20	226 42
abgarh pur ares, Central District apur abad, Central District la hpur arrpur opore onow, Central District thanki da raich				1										1 2 3 7 4 2 2 1 1	61 3 1 2 1 1 7 1 1 5 1	16 1 13 13 11 12 11 11	2 4 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	100	6	6 3 1 1 1 8 1 1 4	5 3 6 5 2 1 10 4 3 5	10 11 41 77 50 2 5 4 8 6	10 12 2 4 21 6 6 3 4 1 17 1 2 6 11	39 : 38 : 8 5 4 : 2 : : : 14 2 : 2 4 : 10	33 4 2 10 1 2 9 3 1 2 1 17 3 13 2 7	3 4 3 3 8 8 9 1 6 333	34 74 39 14 177 77 77 77 10 4 155 16 8 23 80						111111111111111111111111111111111111111					2		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
per doi														3 2 . 7 2	1 : 1 : 40 .	3 15 3	30	3	4 .		2 1 1 22	3 4 28 9	5 21 89 46	9 3 7 84 8	3 0 :: 2 6	16	40 18 18 69 1 372 16		3	4	9	3					2	111111		14 23 2 2
D CHUTIA		3	2	12	1	1			1		1	3 2	24 10	8	86	134	150	15	7 14	161	36	278	418	294	198	179	2,290	10	15	23	43	21	26	70	48	35	27	36	22	3,6
tea Dun saraspur zawarnagar erut lhi biak sar ibala													2	4 7 4 3 3 3 2 4 3		2	77 55 11	3 7 7 3	53334112 584774 4	5 4 4 2 27 5 1 4	2 4 3 1 5 1 1 1 2 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8		8 1 4 3 1 10 34 4 19 17 	4 3 3 3 1 9 8 6 6 12 12 11	1 :22 :2 :2 : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	7 8 4 6 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	20 26 17 34 71 33 97 454 52	1 2 2	1	5	100	1 1 4 4	77	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		4	1			21 29 9
hore, Central ,, Borstal, Central			20111						1				1	2 2 13 13 4 5			5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	5 3 2 1 6 3 2	13 1 45 30 4 2 2 7 8	8 3 18 19 12 5 2	10 1 44 44 7 1 1 5 3 4	47 1	27	7 69	S	33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33	384 45 45 45 384	00214731		3			3						2	1 12 6

TABLE XXIX—concld.

TABLE XXXI-concld. TABLE XXX—concld.

ENTERIC FEVER by months, Jails,

MALARIA by months, Jails, Groups, and PYREXIA of UNCERTAIN ORIGIN by

		AF	ME	8SI ER	ON	SF	RO	M	EN	THE TH.	LIC	1	AD	MIS	810	NS	FRO	М	MA	LAS	A	IN	EAC	н э	ON	TH.	A	DMI							LON		NCE	MI
AILS AND GROUPS.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	nae.	August.	August.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	And.	May	Tune	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.
yallpur hang dontgomery, Central dultan, Central District Dera Ismail Khan Dera Ghazi Khan B B C chikarpur							2	3		1		3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	78 4 4 3 3 1 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1	3/4	5 2 2	4 3 11	9 5 5 9 5 5 7 2 1 1 2 2 2	4 3 3 4 3 3 1 4 3 3 3 5 2 1 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	38 3 5 3 4 6 6 9 9 1 1 3 3	53 4 4 4 83 40 2 3 3	47 2 4 3 52 3 3 4 6 8	67 1 3 4 1 1 4 3 1 7 1 1 5 5 1 3 6	501 3 5 401 1 6 1 5 23 21	3 10 115 115 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 117	63 2 1 2 5 5 1 8 1 8 7 19 8	710 20 38 10 19 40 59 893 324 47 6 41 13 289 77				2 2 2			24	7			34	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Grachi GROUP VII.— NW. FRON- TIER, INDUS VAL- LEY, AND NW. RAJPUTANA.	1	T	-		1			3	Ĭ			12	247			-	1	1	1	1	1 2 1	6, 2	1 23 3		11	32		2			7		34		13			ā
Rajkot Ahmedabad, Centra B Ajmer Muttra Agra, Central , District Jhansi			1										40	6	3 5	4 3	8 1	3 4	10	1 21 2	2	96	3 62 2 17 9	1 1 8 2	1 15 3 14 2	16 514 20 9 254 36 3			11111			2			11111111111			
GROUP VIII.— SE. RAJPUTA- NA, CENTRAL INDIA, AND GUJARAT.	-	-	1	1				-			1	1	60	74	8	2 5	4 5	1	53	58	91	153	93	46	35	852	-		-	-		2	-		-			-
Sambalpur Raipur, Central												** !!!!!!!!	1 111 11		1		2 2 1	3	3	3	3 13 2 10 10	3		1 : 4 :		6 37 3 10 8 9 39 7 11 2 1 3 40 4			7	4			-:!!!!!!!!	1 7	5			
B Secunderabad Yeotmal Amraoti Akola Buldana Dhulia Yerrowda, Ceotral Bijapur Deccan Gang Dharwar							1111111	1111111					1	6 6 2				10	4 3 5	2 :: : : : : 27 : 2 : 3	31 13 30 18	7 34 1 7	32 7 19	30 39	1 1 2 49 13 21	137						11111111			111111	11111111	1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
GROUP IX DECCAN.	}	-	П			-	1			1.		-	3	3 3		25	33	25	21	28	90	94	100	128	103	716	11	7	"	12	6	4	3	"	9	6	10	
Thana Bombay, Common House of Correction, Rataagiri Cannanore, Centra	2			-		-			-					8			2 4 1	3	9 2 2	6 2	3	3	3	14	3	92		-				-						
GROUP X WESTERN COAST.	3	-		-	1	-	2		-		-	-	-	9	4		s	5	13	8	22	19	29	20	- 22	170	-		-	1 1	-	-	- 1				1	

		FEV									C			-	ADM	1155	IONS	FRO	м М	ALAE	I AI	N E	СН	MON	гн.										CH N		
GROUPS, AND NISTRATIONS.	January. February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	Angrest.	Soutember	October	November	December.		IOTAL.	January.	February.	Manch	marcu.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October,	November.	December.	TOTAL.	Rebenary.	March.	April	May.	June.	July.	August.	orptember.	October, November,	December.	TOTAL.
A r, Central . atore," Central		100											4	1		5 2	2 1	2 2		2 1 1	4	4:1	21 3	21 4	17	1	2					***				-	
nopoly, Central					-					1	-		2 1 1 1 2			2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		3			1 2 :: 1 2 :: 2		-	1::41 -		1		3 - 3	3 4	4 3	6 : 1 2	6 : 2 :	5 :	13	9	5 5	1
C nundey, Cen- patam, Central npur	-										-			11:00				2	1		1 3			6		11 14		1	1	2	2		8	4 1	3	3 4	
THERN }		-	1		-	-	-	1	-	1	-	2	12	1		13	5	to	3	7	17	8	25	38	24	173	1	9	7 11	12	11	15	27	23	21 1	2 18	17
a siling						-						3	2 2 2 4		2	1	1 2 4 1	1 2 2 4 4	1 2 3 5 6 3 2	7 4 24 3 2	16 2 10 7	1 4 2 15 12 2	1 14 5	3 1 1 1 2	1 3 2	1 11 4 38 7 1 36 68 43 18				-	3 : : : : :		6			3	
P XII }		-	1	1	-	1	-			-		4	13	1	3	3	9	14	23	42	35	36	21	19	9	227	-			2	3	2	7	3		3 3	
NDIA*	5	4	18	10	12	20	9	9	7	8	6	117	883	67	77	350	972	1,083	941	1,205	1,500	1,600	: 1.557	.85:	1,597	14,631	80	718	34 415	9 149	183	232	212	162	173	72 158	1,
A A AND ORISSA. AND ORISSA. B PROVINCES F. PROV-		3 :	111	3	9	2 : 2 3		3	2	1 1	3 1	11 22 9	29 15 259 59 93 163	18 5	5 2 3	70		100	57 17 306 58 141 157	67	71 328	128 548	94 312 237	68 7 595 88 231 356	75	2,522 2,619 928	16 8 2	81 7 5	15 33	1 35	37 20 9 43	30 1 75 6 37	37 51 5 20	38 38	3	35 22 2 2 35 45	
CES												1 6	110	12	7	122	9 93	3 87 10	91 5	89 7	35 179 17	39 146 8	31 213 25	23 204 38	13 182 24	1,653 176	12	6.	7 1	. 2	2	2	2	2		9 8	

Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad and Mercara and excluding Andamaus, † Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad, Mercara and Andamans.

113

TABLE XXXII.

TABLE XXXIII. TABLE XXXIV.

CHOLERA by months, Jails, Groups, and Administrations.

DYSENTERY by months, Jails, Groups, DIARRHEA by months, Jails, Groups and Administrations.

ADMINISTRATION CAPACITA IN CACCA DOTAL CAPACITA	and A	dministrations.	and Administrations.	and Administrations.
Strength			Admissions from Dysentery in each month	Admissions from Diarrhoea in each non-
Taylor (Corp. 1		January. February. March. April. Inte. Inte. Inty Suprember. November. December. Toral.	January. February. March. April. May. June. July. August. September. October. December.	January. February. March. April. May. June. July. August. September. October. November. December.
AND BAY 18-5 LANDE. Panged Pa	Tavoy Moulmein Shwegyin Toungoo Rangoon, Cen- trai (Europeans) Nangoon, Cen- trai (Indians). Maubin Myaungmya, Central Insein, Central Hentada Myanaung Kyankpyn Akyab Group I.—		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 6	4 4 2 3 6 2 2 2 5 to 12
Cachar	AND BAY Is- LANDS. Paungde Prome Thayetmyo, Centra Meiktila Pagan Myingyan, Centra Mandalay Monywa Shwebo Mogok Bhamo Katha		1	
Dacca, Central	Cachar Jorhat Dibrugarh Tezpur Nowgoog Gauhati Dhubri Sylbet GROUP III.—		1 1 3 2 2 6 1 2 18 1 1 18	1 1 2 2
	Dacca, Central Tippera Chittagong Noakhali Bakarganj Khulna Jessore Baraset Presidency, Central (Indians), Alipore, Central (Europeans), Alipore, Central (Europeans) Hooghly Burdwan Hooghly Burdwan Krishinagar Faridpur Pabna Murshidabad Rajshahi, Central Bogra Malda Dinajpur Rangpur Jalpaiguri Purneah Naya Dumka Suri Bankura Midnapore, Centra Balasore Cuttack Puri Angul		13 19 6 12 15 7 12 9 12 11 3 27 176	13 16 23 18 24 17 21 16 26 2

1 2 3 2 4 5 5 4 2 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 2		AD	118810 IN	EACH				RA	A	DMIS	8810	NS P	ROM	a Dy	SENT	rery	IN	RACI	i MO	NIH	Ac	MIS	SION	S FR	ом	DIAI	RRH	EA I	N EA	CH S	HONT
asya	S AND GROUPS.	January. February.	April.	June.	August.	September October.	November.	Torat.	lanuary.	Pebruary.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	September.	October.	November.	December.	Total.	January.	February.	March.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	December.	Total.
	asea ia ii iau iibagh, Central B Central alpur, Central alyr anga parun flarpur a, Central itadih pur ad apur celi apur celi apur iss, Central District pur pur pur oore ow, Central	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1					77	177 33 88 9 9 9 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3 2 4 4 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3 4 5 3 3 0 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	2 1 3 3 1 1 5 5 5 1 3 3 1 1 1 5 5 5 1 3 1 1 1 1	6 2 3 3 1 1 1 4 1 2 5 5 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 3 5 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	73324 1 1 3354 4 1 3 3 5 5 5 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	S 14 4 8 14 8 14 8 14 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	26 6 6 26 6 26 6 26 6 26 6 26 6 26 6 2	4 4 4 1 1 2 3 3 5 2 6 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 1 4 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1	73 1 1288 2 8 221 61 119 33 17	43 18 17 11 11 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 13 13 14 14 15 16 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17	1 3 3 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	99 22 66 66 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	33 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	5 4 3 7 7 1 2 2 2 2 2 3 4 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2	5 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	113 77 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
	k : : :								2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3		3	2 2 3 5 5	2 2 3 1	3	3	4 4 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	- : 5223230 :- :- :3	771111111111111111111111111111111111111	1 3 3	8 35 8 13 10 7 12 2 8 1 7 4 15 20 9 20	3	1 1	1	11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	1 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1 2 1 4 1 1 1 2 1 9 2 1	3 1 1 2 1 1 2	2		4	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
A hanpur	dur dur pore e, Central Borstal, Centra Female spur awala t								4 : 1 4 - 1 1 2 : 1 1	5 3	1 2 2 1 9 1 1 2 1	3 3	4 14 8 2 3	2 5	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	6	15 5 5 : 1	14 2 1 1 6 1	5 6 4	5 28 6 99 64 22 1 5 36 	4 - 1 2 1 4	8	9 1	5 8 29 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	20 6 1 2 5	2 3 3 1 1 1 1 5		8 5 1 2 2	a : 0.00 : a :	7 1	1 9 9 1 5

Q 2

TABLE XXXII-concld. TABLE XXXIII-concld. TABLE XXXIV-concla

CHOLERA by months, Jails, Groups, DYSENTERY by months, Jails, Groups, DIARRHEA by months, Jails, Groups,

	-	AD	MI					M C		LFR	٨			ADI	4188			MO			TE	KY II	N			1	ADI	MISS		ACH				HCE.	IN	
JAILS AND GROUPS.	January.	February.	March.	April.	lune.	lulv.	August.	September.	October.	December.	TOTAL.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	lune.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	Torat.	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.
hat												1 32 12 14	100 100	25	50	8 3 1 1 4 4 15 29 1 2 2	6 1 2 12 15 1 5 1	4	6 1 1 1 14 12 1	6 3 3 16 11 3 2 1	3 : 1 : 1 : 2 78 : 2 3	7 1 2 3 10 6 1 1 1	52 : : 1 2 98 4 1 1 :	57 12 3 4 17 28 180 156 16 28 13	111-111-11	i = i a : ! ! + a ! = !	1 1 4 28 2 2	1 2 25	2	3 1 2 17 20 1 1 2	5 1 4 1 2 21 18	5 1 12 13 1		4	2 5 24	2 2 2 1 1 8 31 1 1
В												1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2		123	3	3	1 1	1 5	2 2 1 1 1			1 2-11	7 7 15 10 1 7			1 1111			-		8	0: 11 1		-	
GROUP VII.— NW. FRON TIFF, INTUE VAILEY, AND NW. RAJ- PUTANA	} -	-		-							-	60	27	41	69	74	40	32	45	49	39	35	47	567	10	16	36	33	52	48	54	42	35	36	36	51
A nmedabad, Centra		-	-			1	-	-		-	-	15	2	2	2	3		6	9	6	7	5	2	60	8	4	6	12	14	8	18	19	3	5		-
mer ottra ora, Central District ansi litpur SE. RAPPUT-				-	-				-		-		11111	2	4	1 1			8 1 2 2	11 1 2	5 1 1	8	0 4-11	54 55 52	3	-	3	1			5	1 8 4		24=		
ANA, CENTRAL INDIA AND GUJARAT			1	-		1	-	1		1	T	13	3	4	7	5	4	14	22	20	15	14	9	132	12	9	21	13	18	14	25	32	12	12	2	-
ngor obulpore, Central india aspur mbalpur ipur, Central ini hindwara shangabad mar val gpur, Central andara anda												6		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		5 2 1 1	1	3 426 - 12 : 16 : :	9-398 :- 2 :: 2	1 10 3 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	3 3 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	234- :- : 4-	1 1 4 2 1 1 6 1	28 4 16 39 31 6 3 9 1 21 23		2		3	1111-1111-		46	5 1 5	5	2 4	3	
B underabad . stmal traoti ola dana ulia rowda, Central . apur ccan Gang . arwar												11111	111-1-111	11	111111111111	2 2 2	1 4	32	1 1 12 11 5 5	34	3 . 2 . 1 2 6 2 3:	2	3 3	1 5 1 3 1 2; 25 8 31 11	3	6	1	3 3	3 : 3	1 1 1 3 1	3 1	3	10	3 2		2 2 1
mbay, Common House of Correction Itagiri			-									5					2 : 3 : 4		22 4 2 1	11 2 1 4	11 3	711	1 2	69 19 9 10 6	2	111111	11 -11	2			6	5	7	3	5	16
OUP X	1	8			1	T	1		7			5		,	-	,	9	12	20	18		9	5	113	2		-	2	,		2	6	S	4	6	8

		1	D					FR				OL	RRA		AE	MIS	SIC	ON:	SF	ROS	D	vse	NTI	ERY	IN	EA	СН	MO	NTH.	An	MISS	HON	S F	ROM	Di	ARE	CHO	A II	R	ACH	MC	DNT
s, Groups, and inistrations.	lanuary.	Pebroary.	March.	April.	May	lung.	Junes	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL.	lanuary.	February		March.	April.	May.	June.	lulv.	America	Comment	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL,	January.	February.	March.	April.	May.	June.	July.	August.	September.	October.	November.	December.	TOTAL,
A y, Central	-		1												-		2	1	,	-				1	1	6	5	11	37							_	8 0000					
atore	-	-	0										-	3	-		3	2			1			2	2	3	8	1	24		1	3	2	***			***		1		***	
cottah .		-													1			-	1 2	-;				5	3	ī	3	3	25	1	1		1				***	100			2	
re }									201		::		-		1	-								2 3	1	1 2	4	7 2	16					-		"		"	1	1	::	
lore	-		-	-					-			-	-		1		2	2	3	3					2		2	1 1	5 20 29	-				-	1000		1.7		3	-		
ral.			-	-	ľ						200	100														-						B							4			50
C nundry, }							ı	1	ı				1				1	-							2				3													
patam, Central						1		-		-			-		-	1			-	1		3			2	1			14	2	=	1			4		3 2	1		-	3	
OUTHERN }	-	2			-	1	1							3	15	15		8	13	5	8	18	2	S 1	9 1	6	24	28	200	3	6	7	6	3	6	2	7	2	7	4	5	
	-													-	-			m							-	-	2		2							1	1000				-	
g ling					100								-	***				-				2				2	2	1	17	***			2	1	2 5	2		3	3	3 6	3	3
Tal :			-													-	-	2 1	2 2	5	2 3	3				1			9 24	-		2					"	1		. "		
TA XII)							4	-	-				-			-		-		1	1					2	2	ï	11	-1	=	=	-						-			
ills .}	-		-	-	-	-						-	-	-	-	-	-	5	4	6	10	11		4	7 1	7	9	5	84		-	3	3	- 4	8	12	-	1 6	-	9 9	- 5	-
INDIA-																										1																
IDIA.	-		7	-	1	3	-	5	-	-	8	5	1	46	45	31	5 40	00	436	473	549	719	93	964	26	16	66	603	6.804	227	213	347	406	379	410	467	500	436	398	8 383	353	3 4.
	=	T.	1.	1.				1	2	5	,	4	1	13	-		-	20	21						13	36	35	35	474	11		10						4 1)		1 19	5 20	0
AND ORISSA		-		3		1 .	-		_		1		***	4		5 15	9 2	5 16 39	191	187	220	0 29	7 39	8,2	1 2	19	72	266	2,893	125	107	138	161	125	149	103	3 19	6 16	9 18	2 17		3 1,
VINCES . }		Г	П			1				1				4	36	2		32	44	43		7 60					57	101	757 743				51 68	32	41 86		6 6			2 41		
F. VINCE . }		-													1		5	6	14	1	100			1	13	7	11	8	127	-	2	5	3	5	5	5 10	1	6	6	6 6	5 6	6
WINCES . }		-		1				3			100			4	2	9	3 7	6 9	7 8		3 13		0 7	7	42	16	15 23 24	17	312	13		5		26	17	7 41	1 5	4 13				
MANS	-		Н		-1-		-	-	-	-		-		3	6	-	8	9	50	101	-	8	2 7	0	43	20	24	20	614	1:	21	18	45	91	53	73	3 7	2 31		3 29	32	8
ANS : :	1.			7		3		5	12	8	2		1	46	51	3 30	0 4	39	486	574	613	5 80	198	60	85 6	40	590	032	7,418	231	234	305	45	470	403	540	157	407	145	413	39	5.

Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer. Secunderabad, and Mercara and excluding Andamans.
 Including Delhi, Sibi, Quetta, Ajmer, Secunderabad, Mercara and Andamans.

TABLE XXXV.

Diffance		-			D	ETAIL	of	DIS	EASE	35.					-	7700			
Diseases				EU	ROPE	AN ARM	IY C	OF IN	DIA.	2 // 9				IND	IAN A	RMY.*	17.	1	
GENERAL DISEASES. INFECTIVE DISEASES: Action-point Bischwater fever Berl-berl Chicken-pax Chicken-pax A		EUROP	ACHED	TO									ATT	ACHED AN TE	TO OOPS	Parsen Ensolt-	MEN	8,823 5,824	OF INDL
GENERAL DISEASES. INFECTIVE DISEASES:— Actionsycoids Bickwater fever Bicheric Bic	DISEASES.	issions.	hs.	lids.	issions.	tantly c.	hs.	ids.	istions.	be.	issions.	hs.	issions.	i i	ids.†	ssions.	hs.	ids.	sajon s.
GENERAL DISEASES. INFECTIVE DISEASES: Actinomycois Bickware fever Bicker fever Bickware fever Bickware fever Bickware fever Chicken-poor S		Adm	Deat	[nva	Adm	Cons	Deat	inval	Adm)eat	Adm	Deat	Adm	Deat	Inva	MP	Deat	Inva	denji
INFECTIVE DISEASES :	-	-														-		-	-
INFECTIVE DISEASES :														-	150		1	-	
Backware fever 1	GENERAL DISEASES.						-				200						1	- 4	-3
Backware fever 1	tunnanun nun nan																	1 4	0.
Blackenster fever Beri-beri Cereber-spinal fever Chicken-pox Chicken-pox A				25.			1			3	4					-	16		
Beri-beri				***		***		***	***			***	***	***		1			
Crebro-opical fever		1	***	***	-			***	***			***		***		3	3		4
Chicken-goax	The state of the s		***		21	1,36	***	3	***	***		***				59	. 4	11	31
Chelera		***	***	***		100	***		***		***	***		***	***	9	3	***	
Compos		4	***			1 277		100	***	***	30	***	2	***	144		***	1	1,583
Dengue	The second secon	***	***	***		110			***	***	***	***				82	45	1	40
Diphtheria . 3 67 6 11 2 2 13 2 1 17 1	The state of the s	3	***	***			***	***	***	***	***	***	1	***		30	***	***	12
Dysentery		34	***	***	696	20'42	1		4		17	***	13	***		181			234
Endocarditis, infective	THE CONTRACT OF REAL PROPERTY OF	3		***	67	6.11	2		2	***	13	2	1			17	1	-	
Enteric fever		22	- 1		253	17'32	13	3	2		12	1	20			2,676	24	67	7,418
Enterritis, infective			***	***	1	'02	1				***	***		***					44
Erysipelas	Enteric fever	6	1	1	83	13'57	16	111	1		7	-1	12	5		257	61	9	131
Gangrene, acute infective	Enteritis, infective		***		2	'02			***	***	- 1					- 4	1		82
German measles	Erysipelas	1			7	.60			1						-	14			174
Conorthoma 3			***	***	1	'01	1		***		Y	***	***						. 3
Influenza	German measles	5									***					224		-	
Kala-azar	Gonorrhæa	3	***		894	145'46	***	3	1		1		2			1,737		127	408
Kala-azar	Influenza	29			334	15'93					6	***	9			219		2	510
Leprosy	Kala-agar		,		1	'21	1								1	8	4	3	1.201 120
Madura disease	Leprosy				[***							24		18	20
Malaria . 106 1 6,934 251-82 16 9 56 102 133 1 17,292 129 194 3,089 Moditeranean fever	Madura disease		***						***	100		-		1000	-	1000			100
Mediterranean ferer	Malaria	106		1	6,934	251.82	16	0	56		102		132	1		10000	129	3	199
Measles	Mediterranean fever					.71											100		100
Mumps 5 74 7'60 1 1 1,772 10 548 Oxteo-myelitis and periostitis, acute infective 2 15 1 1 2 10 548 Paratyphoid A 2 78 12'94 1 1 2 1 </td <td>Measles</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>183</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1 3</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Measles					183										1 3			
Oateo-myelitis and periositis, acute infective	Mumps	5				0.00									1				20.00
Phagedmaa	Osteo-myelitis and periostitis, acute infective									3						85		10	-
Phagedena	Paratyphoid A	2	***	***	78	12'94	***	***	1	1	2		***		-				
Phagedenna	"В.,			***	6	'98	***		***			***	***		57.3				500
Plague	Phagedmaa				2	. 34	***		***			***	***	101	1	1			
Pneumonia	Plague		***	***	1	'01	1		***			***				24			10.
Pyrexia of uncertain origin	Pneumonia	3		***	119	10'57	17		3	100		***				1			
Pyrexia of uncertain origin . 18 2 438 35'97 3 6 37 2,672 26 13 2,065 Rabies	Pyzemia				7	100	3		***							1000	1		8
Rabies	Pyrexia of uncertain origin	18	1000		1000	-028	***		3							*	26	13	2,065
Relapsing fever	Rabies		7777				1		***										
Rheumatic fover	Relapsing fever					***													
Sandfly fever	Rheumatic fever	1			193		800				-					100		100	100
Scarlet fever	Sandfly fewer	- 000	-				1000									333			
Septicaemia	Scarlet fewer	733	1000		100	1000	200											100	
Small-pox	Septieremia	1	100																
Small-pox	puerperal		100		-							1		1		-13			200
Syphilis	Small-nov				1000	7700				100	-								
Tetanus	Syphilis	370				Control of the Contro										- 20			1000
	Tetanus				.79														
			100				1	***	***		***	***	***	***		5	3	***	

^{*} Excluding troops on Field Service.
† Information not available.

				EUR	OPEA	N ARMY	OF	INI	JIA.					INDI	AN AR	MY.	-		JA	11.
		BRITIS ATT EUROP	ACHED	TO		Men.		-	Wom	EN.	Снігр	REN.	BRITIS ATT INDIA	H OFF	TO	N	len.		POPUL	ATIO P
DISEASES.						- 10 1			4	1		-	2	3.7	-	,	-		·	
		Admissions.	.2	4	Admissions.	Constantly sick.	2	4	Admissions	2	Admissions	.2	Admissions.	,	99	Admissions.	2	*	Admssions.	4
		Imis	Deaths.	Invalids.	Imis	ick.	Deaths.	Invalids.	Imis	Deaths.	Inis	Deaths.	fmis	Deaths.	Invalids.	Imiss	Deaths.	Invalida	ga-p	Deaths.
		1	0	In	Ad	S.a.	2	- u	Ad	0	Y	2	×	å	-	Ad	Ď	-	<	-
ECTIVE DISEASES-CO	mtd.														cobe	ni ty		1	2.11	200
le of the lungs .		3		2	51	15.32	5	43	6	3					***	332	38	204	1,012	3
tubercular diseases		1		,	13	1'47	1	5	2		1					21	4	6	126	
ping-cough								111		in	10	ale:	***				***			. ***
								***	***		***	460			***		-		Y	***
		1													22.00	-		10		-
										2	distant			100	100	- 1				
		1														100	13	100		
										1	11		-		1-10-1	100	100	-11		
ATIONS-		110	14.1	1		- 41								100	W. Co.	1		33	-	
dism					17	.60	,		***							3	1		2	
inism						*05					***					5			116	
					1												1		-	
		1			139										13			13		
		1-10	-	+			41		100		9 70	13	1			100	1		-	
		-3	1	-	100		133			3	1 4	1 3	- 1	123	1	code	1	10	-	
		-	1							1	16	1								100
eneral Diseases sified as above	not	1	193	1	-					18	27							1	- 161	
sincu as above		1		1				1	-		1 30	110			18	11/6			- Dec	
ia					48	2.00	,		- 11		15	1	1			1,673	2	323	479	
chronic splenic .			1	-		*01			5		***							-	21	
pernicious .					3	'49	2				***				***		1	1	6	
osis	7					***		100	1 2						***					
ty		. 19		1	777	29'46		39	200		83		11	***	***	818		147	1,082	
tes mellitus					4	'77	,	2						***	,	13	3		13	
thalmic goitre .	-				5	'4		3				in				1		***		
				1	12	-4										- 1	7	. 1	1	
ophilia						***													2	
cythæmia					1	*11		1				Vin.				1				
hadenoma					1 2	11	s	1							***		5		1	
edema															-	1			,	
ty	1.0							1									2	1		
-arthritis					10	-4			5						184	1	8	1	11	
ıra						3	1										2		1	
its																				1.
y			-				1	100				1	1			23	9	1 3	35	
		-	-	-		-	1	-		-		-				1	-		1	1
		1			1				-	18			1	1	1	1	1	1	10.9	1
bid conditions in	oidani		-	1	-			1	-		1		1	1 .	1	1	1	0	100	
o various parts :					1	100	1	1	1	-			100	13	12		-	1	+ 1	100
4 10 12		1 3		10		1		1			1		100	1	190	100	1	100	10	1
ormation, undescende		e	-		1	'5	o	1	6	-	***		***			1	2			100
" Hypospadias			2															***	***	
genital malformations					1	9 '4	5						***	-		100	3	1	1 -	3
Growths Maligna	nt (n. d.)					-					100					4		2 9	9
" Carcino	ma				1 30		5	2	1	2 1						1 11	1	1	2:	2
, Epitheli	oma													100		-			1	4
" Sarcoma						-4	7		4							1	2		1	
		1	2		3	10	7		111	2		1	1	3		1	9	1	1	1

TABLE XXXV—continued.

				9.89	ETAL	2007	1000		٠٠.				INDI	AN AI	RMV.		-	-
THE PARTY OF THE P	101		EUR	OPEA	N ARM	Y OI	IN	DIA.	-				-	T			-	POPULAT
	BRITISH ATTA CUROPE	CHED T	0		MEN.			Wome	EN. C	CHILDR		BRITISH ATTA INDIAN	CHED 1	O	M	EN.		OF IND
DISEASES.	ions.	.	4	sions.	untly		Js.	sions.		sions.	S.	Admissions.	ns.	ds.	Admissions.		ids.	Admissions.
11 11 11 11 11	Admissions.	Deaths.	Invalids.	Admissions	Constantly sick.	Deaths.	Invalids.	Admissions	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Admis	Deaths.	Invalids	Admi	Deaths.	Invalids.	Admi
Morbid conditions incident to various parts-coneld.				-										100				
New growth, non-malignant .	4			45	2.3	0	2	1	***	-	***		***	***	100	***	22	52
Parasites :- Ankylostomum duode			401	4	*2	s	***	101						6	80	1	6	300
" Amœba coli -					***							-				***		
" Ascaris lumbricoides	TO SECURE			2	.0	s									73	1		68
" Mystax Rudolp	hi		100	***		***		***		1	100				***	***	***	
, Bothriocephalus latu	10000			1	-13	4				***								6
,, Bothriocephalus cordat	100		***							***					-	-	500	
Cysticercus of the Tæn		***	191	***	***			100					***	***	***	***		3
» Echinococcus hominis			***	2	1	56	1	1	***	***	***			***	-	-		
" Favus					***										***			34
" Filaria sanguinis hom					***										100	5		-
" Guinea-worm .				***	***	-					-	***	-	***	64.	3	34	374
,, Indian Bug		***		1	1	01				***						-		-
Microsporon Min tissimum .		111	***	1	2 .	10			***		-			***				
,, Oxyuris vermicular	ris		***	***	***				***	1 2	1	-				6		
, Pediculus capitis			***			15	-				"		***			3		
, vestimenti			***			04	1				1			-		-		1
,, Phthirius inguinalis Rhabdonema strong	y				2	00		-	-	-	1"			-		-		-
loides			***						3		2	1			54	13	103	6 147
Ringworm		6		20		27	-		-		1.	-			100	6	2	4 1,109
, Sporothrix Schenckii								1	-	1								3
" Staphylococcus py	·				1 .	01												***
Tænia saginata .					3 .	05			1						1318	5		11
,, Confusa Ward			***						-	100	1			***	100	1		
" " solium .			***	8	2 2	00			3		7		1	***	1	01	-	1000
, Elliptica .			***		***	-				-			-		1	1		-
LOCAL DISEASES		1							1	16	1		1	-3		-		19
Narvous System -								1	1	-		1	- 1		1	-	10	- 1
Nervous		19	,	7 77	6 30	74	9	81,	13		18	12 2	0 1		1,97	2 2	7 37	2 632
Mental						67	1	20	1						1	35	1 4	9 52
Eye Diseases		14		4 45	19	85 .		87	6		14 .	. 1	0	***	3,07	4		1000
Ear Diseases		14	***	89	1 43	61	4	So	5	100	5 .		3		1000	"		7 332
Nose Diseases		22	***	24	5	- 56	-	3	2		10 .	. 1	7		1,40	×		9 166
DISEASES OF THE CIRCULATO	RY	1			123			-			-		1	113	1	1	1	
Ancurysm (including all varieties)				1	16 1	54 .		1	-						100	1	10	113
Disordered action of the heart	1	4		1 20	14	81		34	1	-		- 9	7		1000	50	1 3	9 27
Valyular disease of the heart .		1	1	1 22	1000	115		47	2	1			-		100			16 1
Vacix		2 ***		15	11	.89 .		21	6	-	4	-	4		1	52		1 1

				-	AN ARM	-	-		-	-		377		DIAN				JA	IL
The same of the sa	BRITIS ATT EUROP	ACHED	TO		MEN.			Wom	EN.	Сипь	REN.	BRITIS ATT INDE	ACHED AN TRE	TO	N	den.		OF I	ATIO
	Admissions.	Deaths.	Invalids.	Admissions.	Constantly sick.	Deaths.	Invalids.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Admissions.	Deaths,	Admissions.	Deaths.	nvalids.	Admissions.	Deaths.	Invalids.	Admissions.	Deaths.
		-			-	-			-					_					
S OF THE CIRCULATORY																			
circulatory diseases	12	1	2	70	2.02	10	10	2	1	3	1	8			227	25	79	110	
es of the Respiratory							+												
em	. 68		2	957	35.65	3	12	27		135	6	23			5,045	40	256	3,991	,
S OF THE DIGESTIVE				- 13				-	1				7						
s of the liver				23	2.02	9	2					1			10	5		10	
dicitis	14			196	17'50	14	6	5			1	8		101	84	6	14	41	
colic		***		2	10			***						***	6	***		7	***
sis of the liver				2	.23		1								6	2	2	74	
	28			561	30'05	2	7	6		9	2	11			1,208	3	12	300	
œa	92		1	1,188	37.18		1	16		80	6	29			2,150	28	28	5,055	1
is	9			137	6.03	1	1	2		39	12	6		***	152	15	7	172	
	33			286	10'40	5	4	11		8		5		***	92	3	5	91	
tis	9			144	8.66	1		2				1	1	***	141	3	6	131	
	8			268	21'92		30			144		1			115	***	47	62	
ce	42			188	10'47					2		9		***	284	1	3	371	
itis		***		2	.13	1				1					- 4	3	1	16	
	2		1	4	'23		4	1	***	1		2			- 1	1	1	4	
diseases of the digestive	168		1	5,572	170'05	7	32	91		139	3	101	1		3,593	14	325	3,233	
	50		- 6				77										100	100	
																		1	
м-													-		1		,	2	
u— antiasis						100	3			6		8	-		536		1 24	2 242	
nntiasis	1000				10'77			1						1000			24	242	
antiasis	5			170	10'77		3	2	: 1	6		8			536		24	242	
antiasis	4			170	10'77		3	2		6		8			536		24	242	
antiasis	5		-	170	10'77		3	2	: 1	6		8			536		24	242	
antiasis	5		-	170	10'77		3	2	: 1	6		8			536		24	242	
antiasis	5 2	-	-	170 18 26	10"77		3 1 2	1 2	111	9		8			536	2	24	242	
mation of lymphatic glands . , , , , vessels . diseases of the lymphatic em	2	-	-	170 18 26	10'77' '45' 2'44'		3 1 2		111	9					536 11 153	2	24 16	242	
mation of lymphatic glands . we weeked . diseases of the lymphatic em s of the Thyroid	5 2	-	-	170 18 26	10'77' '45' 2'44'		3 1 2	1 2	111	9		1		-	536 11 153	2	16	242	
mation of lymphatic glands . we weeked . diseases of the lymphatic em s of the Thyroid	2	-	-	170 18 26	10'77' '45' 2'44'		3 1 2		111	9		1		-	536 11 153	2	16	242	
antiasis	3	-	-	170 18 26	10'77' '45' 2'44'		3 1 2		111	9		1		-	536 11 153 20	2	16	242	
mation of lymphatic glands . mation of lymphatic glands . messels . diseases of the lymphatic messels . The Thereoff December of the thyroid body . The Cop the Urinary System—	3	-	-	170 18 26	10'77' '45' 2'44'		3 1 2		111	9				-	536 11 153 20	2	16	242 215	
mation of lymphatic glands . mation of lymphatic glands . diseases of the lymphatic mation of the Thyroid mation of the thyroid body . so of the Urinary System— t's disease .	3		-	170 18 25	10°77 '45 2°42 1°00 '00	5 1 1 1	3 1 2 2 6		-	9					536 11 153 20	2	16 8 8	242 215	
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic em THYROID mation of the thyroid body es of the URINARY System— t's disease tus (including all varieties)		-		170 18 25	10°77 '45 2°42 1°00 '00	5 1 1 1	66		-	9					536 11 153 20	2	16 8	242 215	
mation of lymphatic glands . wessels . diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body . The of the Urinary System— t's disease . lus (including all varieties) . ria .			-	170 18 26	10077	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	66		-	9		 1		-	536 11 153 20 	2	24 16 8	242 215 172 18	
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body mation of the thyroid body es of the Urinary System— t's disease lus (including all varieties) ria				170 18 26	10°77 '43 2°42 1°00 '00:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	6			9		2 2 2			536 11 153 20 	2	16 8	242 215 1 172 5 1 182 22	-
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body mation of the thyroid body t's disease lus (including all varieties) ria is saturia				170 18 26 11 1 1 6	10°77 '45 2°42 1°00 '00 '40	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	66			9		3			536 11 153 20 	2	24 16 8	242 215 172 18	-
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body mation of the thyroid body rs of the Urinary System— t's disease lus (including all varieties) mia tis aturia c diseases of the urinary sys-				170 18 26 11 1 1 1 31 11 16	10°77 '43 2°43 1°00 '00 '40	7 7 7 8	66			9		2 2 1 2 2			536 11 153 20 	2	24 16 8	242 215 1 172 5 1 188 222 37	
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body mation of the thyroid body rs of the Urinary System— t's disease lus (including all varieties) mia tis aturia c diseases of the urinary sys-				170 18 26 11 1 1 6 	10°77 '43 2°43 1°00 '00 '40	7 7 7 8	6			9		2 2 1 2 2			536 11 153 20 	2	24 16 8 8	242 215 1 172 5 1 188 222 37	
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body mation of the thyroid body so of the Urinary System— the disease thus (including all varieties) mia tis tis tis taturia l colic diseases of the urinary sys-	- 4			170 18 26 11 1 1 1 31 11 16	10°77 '43 2°43 1°00 '00 '40	7 7 7 8	66			9		2 2 1 2 2			536 11 153 20 	2	24 16 8 8	242 215 1 172 5 1 188 222 37	
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body mation of the thyroid body res of the Urinary System— t's disease lus (including all varieties) ria is aturia c diseases of the urinary sys-	- 4			170 18 26 11 1 1 1 31 11 16	10°77 '43 2°43 1°00 '00 '40	7	66			9		2 2 1 2 2			536 11 153 20 12 2 13	22	24 16 8 	242 215 1 172 3 1 18 22 37	
antiasis mation of lymphatic glands wessels diseases of the lymphatic mation of the thyroid body mation of the thyroid body rs of the Urinary System— t's disease lus (including all varieties) mia tis aturia c diseases of the urinary sys-	- 4			170 18 26 11 1 1 1 31 11 16	10°77 '43 2°42 1°06 '00:	7	66			9		2 2 1 2 2			536 11 153 20 12 2 13	2	24 16 8 8	242 215 1 172 3 1 18 22 37	

TABLE XXXV—continued.

Myalgia	Men.	W. 16 1			
DISEASES OF THE FEMALE ORGANS OF GENERATION— Abortion Other diseases of the female organs of generation Diseases of the female breast Myalgia Other diseases of the crgans of locomotion— Lumbago Myalgia Other diseases of the crgans of locomotion— Solution of the connective tissue and male breast Diseases of the connective tissue and male breast Diseases of the connective tissue and male breast INJURIES OF THE SKIN— Boil Carbuncle Delhi boil Ulcer Whitlow Other diseases of the skin INJURIES OF THE SKIN— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local INJURIES Of the skin INJURIES O		WOMEN. CHILDRE	BRITISH OFFICERS ATTACHED TO INDIAN TROOPS.	Men.	POPULAT OF IND
Abortion Other diseases of the female organs of generation Diseases of the female breast Diseases of the female breast Diseases of the female breast Myalgia Other diseases of the organs of locomotion Diseases of the connective tissue and male breast Carbuncle Delhi boil Ulcer Whitlow Other diseases of the skin INJURIES OTHE SKIN— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local INJURIES OTHE SKIN— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local INJURIES OTHE SKIN— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local INJURIES OTHE SKIN— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local INJURIES OTHER Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local INJURIES OTHER Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local INJURIES OTHER Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local INJURIES OTHER Sun-stroke and heat-stroke INJURIES OTHER Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local INJURIES OTHER Sun-stroke and heat-stroke INJURIES OTHER	Constantly sick. Deaths.	Admissions. Deaths. Admissions.	Admissions. Deaths.	Admissions. Deaths. Invalids.	Admissions.
Abortion Other diseases of the female organs of generation Diseases of the female breast Diseases of the female breast Lumbago Myalgia Other diseases of the crgans of locomotion Diseases of the connective tissue and male breast Other diseases of the connective tissue and male breast Other diseases of the connective tissue and male breast Other diseases of the connective tissue and male breast In Jurian Skin Delhi boil Ulcer Whitlow Other diseases of the skin In Jurian Skin Sum-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Local Sum-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local Suicides Homicides Homicides Poisons Effects of anti-typhoid vaccine Anti-rabic treatment Deaths while on leave, etc. No appreciable disease Not yet diagnosed Cause unknown Il other causes (detail not available)					-
Other diseases of the female organs of generation				340	
Diseases of the female breast		35			6
DISEASES OF THE ORGANS OF LOCOMOTION— Lumbago		50 1			28
Lumbago		e			
Lumbago					1
Lumbago				1	1
Myalgia	94 4'19	3 1	7	237 30	6
Other diseases of the organs of locomotion	39 17'45 2			615 108	100
ISEASES OF THE SKIN— Boil	78 35'50 30	1 2	. 24	1,234 1 161	- 19
Boil	42 89*88 3	18 17 .	21	2,475 4 28	5.377
Boil			-	-	150
Boil					
Carbuncle					
Delhi boil Ulcer		7 15 .		2,171 8	
Ulcer			3	10 2 1	
Whitlow Other diseases of the skin NJURIES (General and Local)— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke Other general Local 183 4 2,65 Suicides Homicides Poisons Effects of anti-typhoid vaccine Anti-rabic treatment Deaths while on leave, etc. No appreciable disease Not yet diagnosed Cause unknown other causes (detail not available)	35 5-36	2 4 .		170 3	
NJURIES (General and Local)— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke		2 2 .		1,402 4	2,420
NJURIES (General and Local)— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke	57 1.58	2		233 1	40
and Local)— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke	39.2 3	7 15 .	3	1,607 1 66	891
and Local)— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke			-	1	
and Local)— Sun-stroke and heat-stroke					-
Sun-stroke and heat-stroke					-
Other general 2 3 Local 183 4 2,65 Suicides	7 12'77 33 7		1 design	207 4	
Local				47 20	247
Suicides Homicides Poisons Effects of anti-typhoid vaccine Anti-raboc treatment Deaths while on leave, etc. No appreciable disease Not yet diagnosed Cause unknown other causes (detail not available)		8 20	2	165 15 2	130
Homacides				1,370 56 363	4.454
Poisons Effects of anti-typhoid vaccine Anti-rabic treatment Deaths while on leave, etc. No appreciable disease Not yet diagnosed Cause unknown other causes (detail not available)				1 15	***
Anti-rabic treatment					***
Anti-rabic treatment		1		33 3 1	35
No appreciable disease	3 1'38	6	1.		***
No appreciable disease					***
ause unknown				71	***
Cause unknown		46 22		19 1	63
other causes (detail not available)				3	4
				1 61	***
				454	***
					1111
			2000	1941	1
- B - B - B - B - B - B - B - B - B - B		and a first		100	139
Ill causes 1,444 16 42 16.052	1,754'19 267 889	733 10 998 58			

TABLE XXXV—concluded.

TROOPS ON FIELD SERVICE.

		DIAN DOPS.			TROOPS.	
		ALL ATIONS.		THALL OPERATIONS.		
DISEASES.	Average annual strength—1,162.		DISEASES.		Average annual strength—1,162.	
		Deaths.		Admis- sions.	Deaths	
					-	
					1	
GENERAL DISEASES.	1	3			1999	
FECTIVE DISEASES-			DISEASES OF THE DIGESTIVE SYSTEM-			
Dysentery	36		Appendicitis	2	***	
Sonorrhona	10		Colitis	5		
dalaria	521		Diarrhoea	37	***	
neumonia	- 4	1	Enteritis	1	***	
Pyrexia of uncertain origin	3		Hernia	1		
Rheumatic fever	6		Jaundice	4		
Syphilis	1		Other digestive diseases	49	3	
Enteric fever	1					
Erysipelas	1					
nfluenza	39	1				
dumps	5		DISEASES OF THE LYMPHATIC SYSTEM-			
andfly fever	10		Inflammation of lymphatic glands	3	***	
4		100	Other lymphatic diseases	2		
NERAL DISEASES NOT CLASSED AS ABOVE-	3	-	Diseases of the male organs of generation	6		
Debility	7				1	
	-				1	
			DISEASES OF THE ORGANS OF LOCOMOTION:-	1		
	1		Lumbago	6	***	
			Myalgia	2		
			Other diseases of organs of Locomotion	1	***	
			Diseases of the connective tissue and male breast	11		
DEBID CONDITIONS INCIDENT TO VARIOUS PARTS-	2	1				
Parasites—Scabies	16				100	
Czenia Mediocanellata	2		SKIN DISEASES-	200	-	
itrongylus duodenalis			Boil	18		
Ringworm			Whitlow	2		
			Other diseases of skin	. 6		
LOCAL DISEASES.						
Vervous diseases	7		INJURIES (GENERAL AND LOCAL)-			
Eye diseases	13		Heat-Stroke and Sun-Stroke	,		
Car diseases	4		General injuries	5		
Nose diseases	9		Injuries (Local)	101		
Diseases of the circulatory system	***				200	
Valvular disease of heart	2					
Other circulatory diseases	2		* 1			
Respiratory diseases	24	***	TOTAL .	988	3	

CALCUTTA
SUPERINTENDENT GOVERNMENT PRINTING, INDIA
8, HASTINGS STREET